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FINANCIAL AND OPERATION HIGHLIGHTS
MRREERE

ANNUAL RESULTS HIGHLIGHTS

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the revenue of the Company and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) amounted to RMB1,745 million, representing an increase of 31.3% as
compared with last year.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the gross profit of the Group amounted to
RMB318 million and the gross profit margin of the Group was 18.2%, representing an
increase of 7.1% and a decrease of 4.2 percentage points as compared with last year,
respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the net profit of the Group amounted to RMB393
million, and the net profit margin of the Group was 22.5%, representing an increase of
RMB430 million as compared with last year.

If excluding the gains from change in fair value of convertible ordinary shares, the
adjusted net profit for the year ended 31 December 2018 would be RMB259 million.
Adjusted net profit margin would be 14.8%, an increase of 32.1% and 0.1 percentage
points compared with that for last year.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the total value of contracts entered for newly
built and upgraded environmental protection facilities engineering projects (including
desulfurization, denitrification and dust removal projects) of the Group reached
RMB1,036 million. Of which, the newly signed contracts for environmental protection
facilities projects in the steel industry amounted to RMB520 million, and the cumulative
steel mill sintering machine area was 1,344 m?.

For the Group's operation and maintenance business, the Group renewed 100% of its
operation and maintenance contracts that expired in the year ended 31 December 2017.
As at 31 December 2018, the Group had 18 operation and maintenance projects under
operation with an aggregate installed capacity of 24,400 MW.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group cumulatively undertook 9 concession
operation projects with 3 under construction and 6 in operation.

The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of the Company recommend
the payment of HK$0.09 per ordinary share as final dividend for the year ended 31
December 2018 (2017: Nil).
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BBEREERER

The following table sets forth the Company’s consolidated statements of profit or loss

a‘@
FINANCIAL AND OPERATION HIGHLIGHTS (continued)

and other comprehensive income for the periods indicated:

HRERE

S

TREIATPBARAN G BT REME

Revenue g
Cost of sales and services HE KRB AR
Gross profit E7
Other income and other gains and losses Hi WA RE M
REB
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHERAX
Administrative expenses THAX
(Allowance) reversal of impairment losseson & REE R AN EENHE
financial assets and contract assets BE(EE &D
Share of profit of an associate Rl =N bR
Finance costs B R AR
Change in fair value of AEALRRK 2
convertible ordinary shares AREEED
Listing expenses FWHEX
Profit before tax B 350 A s 7
Income tax expense SRS
Profit {loss| for the year FREF /(BB
Other comprehensive expense) FREMEE
income for the year: (AX),/ WA
ltems that will not be reclassified TeEFTHZE
to profit or loss: BauEE
Fair value loss on investments in equity BARBEFAEGZE
instrument at fair value through other WARBRATAKRE
comprehensive income AREBEEER
Income tax relating to investments inequity ~ HEIE AL EBE AEM
instrument at fair value through other FERBRAMBERIER
comprehensive income BEMGH

Year ended 31 December

BE12ANBLEE

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
20185 20174 2016 201546 20145
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥TR ARBTR AR®TR ARBTn ARKTR
1,744,998 1,329,078 1,352,995 1,351,416 1,238,759
(1,427,140) (1,031,836 1,099,309) (1,105,660) (1,038,654
317,858 297,242 253,646 245,756 200,105
117,456 26,017 28397 (5,495) 6,377)
(26,170) (18318) (15.859) (11,376) (8,266)
(109,103) (88.892) (72,376) (62,839) (58,276)
(3.816) 10,158 - - -
21,963 31,694 14,833 16,042 11,340
(5,900) (5,333) (6,043) (7,087) (8,810)
133,51 (233,228) - - -
(3.319) (14114) (9,141) - -
448,510 5226 193,457 174,951 129,716
55,691 (42,255) (41,416) (36,781) (25,751)
392,819 (37,029) 152,041 138,170 103,965

(5,460) - - -

819 - - -

(4.641) - - -
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FINANCIAL AND OPERATION HIGHLIGHTS (continued)

NEREERESR
Year ended 31 December
BZ12ANBLEE
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
2018 2017 F 2016 F 20154 20144
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR AREBTR ARETRL AREBTRT ARETR
ltems that may be subsequently reclassified E 74 B¢ E#F 7 B 5
to profit or loss: BmtBEE
Change in fair value of an AHEEEREN
available-for-sale investment NAEBEED 7,000 3,600) 2,240 2,906
Income tax relating to items thatmaybe B A EE A EFH H BN E
reclassified subsequently BRATEH (1,051) 540 (336) (143)
5,949 (3,060) 1,904 432
Total comprehensive income ERE2ERA/(FAR)
(expense) for the year ek 388,178 (31,080) 148,981 140,074 104,397
Profit (loss) for the year ATEEFER
attributable to: w8/ (BR)
QOwners of the Company ARAREEA A 394,359 (36,418) 152,01 137,585 103,640
Non-controlling interests FEEER (1,540) (611) - 585 325
392,819 (37,029) 152,01 138,170 103,965
Total comprehensive income (expense) forthe A TG ENZ2E KA/
year attributable to: (A%
Owners of the Company ARAEBA 389,718 (30,469) 148,981 139,489 104,072
Non-controlling interests R E S (1,540) 611) - 585 325
388,178 (31,080) 148,981 140,074 104,397
Eamnings (loss) per share BEF/(BE)
—Basic (RMB) —EXARE) (0.08) 0.25 023 017
- Diluted (RMB) — BB (ARY) (0.08) 025 NAT@EA NATEA

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 4F 5 7



a‘@
FINANCIAL AND OPERATION HIGHLIGHTS (continued)
HEREEREE

The following table sets forth selected items from the Company’s consolidated TREFVPAREBARAGEETBERAETN
statements of financial position as at the dates indicated: BTFIEA

Year ended 31 December

BE12ANBLEE
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
20185 20174 2016 201546 20145
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTRE AR®TR ARBTR AREBTRT ARETR

ASSETS gE

Total non-current assets TR EERE 1,253,016 1,148,815 706,450 484,626 411,663
Total current assets NYEERE 2,211,234 1,695,867 1,635,406 1,683,298 1,735,027
Total assets BEBS 3,530,250 2,844,682 2,341,856 2167924 2,146,690
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY BERESR

Total current liabilities nYPEBEE 1,337,058 1,309,524 1277711 1,021,386 1,047,979
Total non-current liabilities FRBEBER 20018 782,129 47,000 67,000 87,000
Total equity RREHE 2173174 753,029 1,017,145 1,079,538 1,011,711
Total liabilities and equity BERERES 3,530,250 2,844,682 2,341,856 2,167,924 2,146,690

The following table sets forth a summary of the consolidated statements of cash flows TR APEGAEERERBE
for the periods indicated:

At 31 December

BENANBLEE

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

2018 20175 20164 20155 20145F

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMVB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBETT AR®TT AR®TT AR®TR ARETR

Net cash from operating activities CETHMEREFHE 85 265 110 m 251

Net cash (used in) from REFBMR)ME

investing activities He 5 38 (318) (35) 61
Net cash from financing activities RETHMEREFE 58 28 (139) (78)
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°(:HAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (continued)
IRBES@)

Dear Shareholders,

2018 has been a year of significant milestone for the Group. The Group was
successfully listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
on 16 March 2018. This is yet another breakthrough in the development of the Group
and a new starting point for the Group to achieve leapfrog development. In 2018, in
face of a complex and volatile market environment, the Group upheld the principle of
being steady and proactive, seized the opportunity of its listing, introduced domestic
and foreign strategic partners, and actively explored market space, with “industry and
capital” as its aim. The mutual integration and promotion of capital and industry has
opened the path of gradual progress towards becoming a comprehensive environmental
protection industry group.

In 2018, in face of the overall economic slowdown and intensified industry competition,
the Group strived to expand its business, improve its management, seek breakthroughs,
continue to maintain a good development trend, as such a remarkable result has been
achieved and the Group has successfully expanded our market share in non-electrical
industries such as petrochemicals, steel and electrolytic aluminum. During the year, we
recorded an operating income of 1,745 million, which rose by 31.3% year-on-year, and
a net profit of 393 million, representing an increase of 430 million year-on-year. The
Group's overall business remains healthy, sustainable and was in a rapid development.

In 2018, China continued to attach great importance to environmental protection work,
and the Ministry of Environmental Protection has highlighted pollution control in three
major areas which are air, water and soil. In 2018, the newly revised Water Pollution
Prevention and Control Law was implemented. On 3 July, the State Council issued
the Three-Year Action Plan to Win the Blue Sky Defense War. On 31 August, the Fifth
Session of the Standing Committee of the 13th National People's Congress has voted
and approved to continue the implementation of The Law of the People's Republic of
China on Soil Pollution Prevention and Control and to deepen reforms in the field of
environmental protection, strengthening the construction of environmental laws and
regulations, as well as improving the system of environmental governance. China's
environmental protection industry will continue to usher in a huge room for development
and bring great opportunities for the development of the Group.

10 CHINA BOQI ENVIRONMENTAL (HOLDING) CO., LTD. Bl ZBR(ZR) AR A 7
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The Chinese economy is shifting from high-speed growth to high-quality development. In
the future, the Group will step up its efforts to further improve its company management
and strengthen its risk control, actively exploring other niche markets for environmental
protection projects, cultivating professional talents, and promoting the continuous
development of its main businesses and new businesses so that the Group’s operating
performance will maintain its steady growth.

The Group has always upheld to the philosophy of letting everyone live under the blue
sky and white clouds. Dedicated to environmental protection business for more than ten
years, the Group is committed to improving air quality and human living environment.
| am proud of the past achievements of the Group in environmental protection and |
have confidence in the future development of the Group. | believe that with the support
of all shareholders, under the leadership of the Board and with the efforts of all staff,
the Group will continue to shoulder the responsibility of environmental protection
and create quality projects, building the “Bogi” brand as well as striving to become a
professional, leading and sustainably growing, international, first-class environmental
protection industry group.

Cheng Liquan Richard
Chairman
26 March 2019
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER'S STATEMENT
THRABES

Dear Shareholders,

2018 was the 40th anniversary of China’s reform and opening up. For the 40 years of
braving the storms together, overcoming challenges and forging ahead, the construction
of ecological civilization has been an important part of this magnificent history of
China. Qver the past 40 years, China has always adhered to the value of environmental
protection and resource conservation, and has insisted on promoting the construction
of ecological civilization. With the promulgation and implementation of a series of
environmental protection policies, energy conservation and emission reduction have
made significant progress.

In 2018, due to the influence of external factors caused by a series of black swan
events such as the Fed's rate hikes and the Sino-US trade war, there were significant
uncertainties in the global economy and the domestic economy in the PRC remained
stagnant. Under the primary goals to eliminate excess production capacity, deleverage
and remove economic bubbles, the Chinese government continued to increase the
governance of heavily polluting industries such as power, cement, steel and chemicals,
spurring the market demand for environmental protection industries.

In 2018, the growth rate of the investment market in the environmental protection
industry slowed down with increasing difficulty for corporate financing. This prompted
the adjustment in the internal structure of the industry, maintaining a steady growth
momentum for the industry and accelerating the competition for the survival of the
fittest. As a leader in the industry facing all these challenges in the market, the
Company’s management continued to expand the market in the non-electricity fields
and attract new customers while actively extending the service model for the existing
customers, thoroughly integrating our concept of one-stop service with the customers’
needs. Meanwhile, we continued to improve the internal management system, establish
an independent audit center within our business system, optimize internal resource
allocation, release the internal vitality of the enterprise, reduce costs, and enhance the
Company's market competitiveness.

12 CHINA BOQI ENVIRONMENTAL (HOLDING) CO., LTD. Bl ZBR(ZR) AR A 7
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In 2018, while maintaining stability, the Group showed initiative and achieved
outstanding performance, highlighting the strength and the future development
potential of the Company. In 2018, the contract value of the Group’s new contracts
was approximately RMB1,783 million, representing an increase of RMB389 million over
2017. The total contract value of newly contracted EPC projects was approximately
RMB1,036 million, of which the contract value of the new EPC projects for the steel
industry was RMB520 million. The cumulative number of O&M projects in operation
was 18 with an aggregate installed capacity of 24,400 MW. There were 9 cumulative
concession operation projects, with 3 under construction and 6 in operation. All
members of the Group have united and worked together to achieve an outstanding
business performance with sufficient cash flow, laying an important foundation for the
Company's development.

In 2019, the Group will comprehensively improve the profitability of each business
segment. In addition to the traditional power industry, the Group will emphasize the
development of the flue gas treatment market in non-electricity industries such as
petrochemicals, steel and electrolytic aluminum, as well as improving technology
reserves and innovating the development model of concession operations. Apart from
that, the Group will enhance its capital operation level and actively participate in
municipal sewage treatment and industrial sewage treatment business through mergers
and acquisitions. The advantages of a listed company in the capital market will be
leveraged to increase the Group's enterprise value.

In the future, in view of the new starting points, the environmental protection industry
will develop new rules. Set to seize the development opportunities and shoulder
the heavy responsibility for environmental protection, the Group will overcome the
difficulties and embrace the challenges.

Zeng Zhijun
Chief Executive Officer
Hong Kong, 26 March 2019
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COMPANY PROFILE
AT BN

The Group commenced the flue gas treatment business in 2003 and is among the first
independent participants in the flue gas treatment industry in China. The Group provides
a variety of technologies and services to coal-fired power plants to reduce pollutant
emissions and improved their production efficiency. The Group has strategically
leveraged its solid experience and professional capabilities in R&D and design,
construction and implementation, operation and management to achieve synergies
among various business segments and to provide integrated environmental protection
and energy conservation solutions to the Group's customers. Particularly, the Group
provides a range of services primarily for controlling air pollution at coal-fired power
plants, including desulfurization services, denitrification services, dust removal services,
and integrated flue gas treatment services. In addition, the Group provides water
treatment services for power plants. The projects of the Group have a broad geographic
coverage, covering almost 30 provinces, municipalities and autonomous regions in
China. Furthermore, the Group started to expand its business into the overseas markets
in 2007, ahead of most of our competitors. In particular, the Group has undertaken
more than 10 quality desulfurization and denitrification projects in Europe, South Asia,
Latin America, Africa and Southeast Asia, and is one of the few PRC companies having
successfully completed thermal power environmental protection projects in overseas
markets.

The Group has advanced R&D equipment and facilities and has also established a
professional R&D team. The Group has established an enterprise technology center
which was accredited by the Beijing Municipality Commission of Economic and
Information Technology and a post-doctoral research station with Nankai University. In
recent years, the Group has established strategic partnerships with world-renowned
multinational companies and has entered into extensive science and research
cooperation with domestic and overseas research institutes for proactively seeking
technology development.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEREREER

DIRECTORS EF
The Board currently consists of eight Directors, comprising two executive Directors, EEelf \UES BEMMNHTES =
three non-executive Directors and three independent non-executive Directors. The MM TEER=ZNUBIYERNTES TR EH
following table sets forth information regarding the Directors. VEBESHNER -
Date of Appointment

Name Age Position as Director
£ Fie B EZERhESEHEH
Executive Directors
HITES
Mr. Cheng Liquan Richard (12 £ &) 53 Chairman and executive Director 30 January 2015
BEEEAE EERMITES 201551 H30H
Mr. Zeng Zhijun (& 2~ &) 48  Vice Chairman, executive Director, 30 January 2015
2B chief executive officer 201541 8308

BlEER MITESFRITHRAR
Non-executive Directors
FHTES
Mr. Tony Tuo Zheng (25 #7) 50 Non-executive Director 30 January 2015
B kA& FEHITES 201541 A30H
Mr. Zhu Weihang ( 4k & fi7) 32 Non-executive Director 9 January 2017
KEMEE EHITES 201741 A9H
Mr. Chen Xue ([ £2) 52 Non-executive Director 9 January 2017
PR 2 % A4 FEHITES 20174F1 A9H
Independent non-executive Directors
BIFHITES
Mr. Liu Genyu (£ 1R £% ) 55  Independent non-executive Director 28 February 2018
2R & T £ BYUERNITES 201842 A 28H
Dr. Xie Guozhong ( & B ) 58 Independent non-executive Director 28 February 2018
HEBE T BNIEMITES 20184F2H28H
Mr. Lu Zhifang ( BE 75 55 ) 65 Independent non-executive Director 28 February 2018
PEETS T & BYERITES 201852 H28H
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| ° DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continuec)
EENEREERE®

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Cheng Liquan Richard (22 2) (“Mr. Cheng”), aged 53, is the chairman of
the Board, an executive Director and the chairman of the Nomination Committee of
the Company. Mr. Cheng is primarily responsible for the overall strategic planning and
direction of the Group. Mr. Cheng was appointed to the Board on 30 January 2015.

Mr. Cheng joined the Group serving as a director of Beijing Bogi Electric Power SCI-
TECH Co., Ltd.* (AL R1EH E HEHEBBR 2 F]) (“Beijing Bogi”), the major operating
subsidiary of the Group, on 15 June 2005. Mr. Cheng became the chairman of the board
of Beijing Bogi in December 2007 and then served as its chief executive officer from
December 2009 to February 2017. Mr. Cheng currently serves as the general manager
of Beijing Bogi, a director of Beijing Shengyi Tiancheng Environmental SCI-TECH Co.,
Ltd.* (3t REE ERARREHL AR A 7)) (“Beijing Shengyi”), Zhejiang Bogi Electric
Power SCI-TECH Co., Ltd.* (#/LIEEFEHEHEER AR (“Zhejiang Bogi”) and
Anhui Nengda Fuel Co., Ltd* (ZIREZ AR B R/ F]) (“Anhui Nengda”). Prior to
joining the Group, Mr. Cheng held various positions at Bit Technology Holding Co.,
Ltd* (ELIFRHRIE R AR 15 5 PR /2 5)), a company that was principally engaged in the
wholesale of spare parts for power plants, from April 2000 to March 2003, including
deputy manager, general manager, the chairman of the board and a director. Mr. Cheng
has been a director of Ningbo Bonded Area Jiujiu Leasing Co. Ltd.* (8 & (R A 1% A A
FHE B PR 2 7)) (previously known as Ningbo Huaneng Leasing Co. Ltd.* (22 EE4E
FAE B2 7)) (“Ningbo Leasing”) from 2004 to 2007.

Mr. Cheng graduated from Fudan University with a bachelor's degree in political
economy in July 1987.

From June 2010 to September 2014, Mr. Cheng served as a director of Wuhan Boch
Jaco Environmental Co., Ltd* (B2 & EFIRIRAX (7 B PR A 7)) (National Equities
Exchange and Quotations Stock Code: 831100). From August 2011 to March 2017, Mr.
Cheng was a director of Shanghai ZJ Bio-Tech Co., Ltd* (_b/& 2 T AR S
BBR A 7)) (National Equities Exchange and Quotations Stock Code: 834839). Save as
disclosed above, Mr. Cheng did not hold directorships in any listed public companies in
the last three years.
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Mr. Zeng Zhijun (& 2 18) ("Mr. Zeng"), aged 48, is the vice chairman, an executive
Director, the chief executive officer and a member of the Remuneration Committee of
the Company. Mr. Zeng is responsible for the overall management and operation of the
Group. Mr. Zeng was appointed to the Board on 30 January 2015. Mr. Zeng joined the
Group in June 2004 serving as a director of Beijing Bogi and became the vice chairman
of Beijing Boqi in June 2007. Mr. Zeng currently serves as the vice chairman and the
chief executive officer of Beijing Bogi. Since February 2005, Mr. Zeng has served as
a director a director of Richinfo Technology Co., Ltd.* (FZRHEA B R A 7))
(formerly known as Shenzhen Richinfo Technology Co., Ltd.* (RIITREARERAE
B2 22 7)) (a listed company on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, stock code: 300634), a
company that provides mobile Internet technology services in the PRC. Mr. Zeng served
as the chairman of Beijing Horizon Media Group Inc.* (1t REE S AR AR A 7))
from December 2002 to October 2004.

Mr. Zeng graduated from Beijing Institute of Technology (1tFRIE T AZ) with
a bachelor’'s degree in computer science and engineering in July 1992. Mr. Zeng
received a master’s degree in business administration from Massachusetts Institute of
Technology in June 2001. Mr. Zeng was awarded the degree of Doctor of Management
from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University on 3 November 2010.

Since April 2016, Mr. Zeng has served as a director of Wuxi Zhonggan Microelectronics
Co., Ltd. (5 RIKE T AR A7) (National Equities Exchange and
Quotations Stock Code: 835399). Save as disclosed above, Mr. Zeng did not hold
directorships in any public listed companies in the last three years.
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| ° DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continuec)

EENEREERE®

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Tony Tuo Zheng (2F#R) (“Mr. Zheng”), aged 50, is a non-executive Director and
a member of the Audit Committee of the Company. Mr. Zheng also served as a director
of Beijing Bogi. Mr. Zheng was appointed to the Board on 30 January 2015.

From May 2011 to August 2016, Mr. Zheng served as a director of CITIC Securities
International Asset Management Limited (FEiI5EBEEEERAR AR,
a private company incorporated in Hong Kong. In 2008, Mr. Zheng established MTP
Capital Limited, a company that provides investment related consulting services, where
he is mainly responsible for the overall management and operation of the company.
From September 2000 to March 2010, Mr. Zheng was a director of Compass Venture
(China) Limited, a private company incorporated in Hong Kong.

Mr. Zheng received a bachelor’s degree in science from McMaster University in Canada
in June 1992.

Mr. Zheng did not hold directorships in any public listed companies in the last three
years.

Mr. Zhu Weihang (5= {2#1) (“Mr. Zhu"), aged 32, is a non-executive Director of the
Company. Mr. Zhu was appointed to the Board on 9 January 2017. Mr. Zhu also served
as a director of Beijing Bogi.

Mr. Zhu is currently the vice president of Guangdong Pearl River Investment Co., Ltd.*
(BRI TIRE D AR A R)), where he is primary responsible for the coordination
of the financing management. Mr. Zhu has been working at Guangdong Pearl River
Investment Co., Ltd.* (B R IR TIE &% (D BBR 72 F)) since September 2008, where
he has held various positions in its different branch companies. From September 2008
to September 2011, Mr. Zhu worked at the Guangdong Pearl River Investment Co.,
Ltd. Finance Management Center* (BERIKIIRERDER A TIFESIED L)
where he held positions as a financing chief executive, assistant to the director, deputy
director and director. From October 2011 to September 2012, Mr. Zhu worked at the
North China branch office of Guangdong Pearl River Investment Co., Ltd. (B ERIK/T %
B EBR/AF]) as the deputy general manager and the standing deputy general
manager.

Mr. Zhu graduated from Sun Yat-sen University (9 LLI A 22) with a bachelor’s degree in
finance in June 2012.

Mr. Zhu did not hold directorships in any public listed companies in the last three years.
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Mr. Chen Xue (FRZ2) (“Mr. Chen”), aged 52, is a non-executive Director of the
Company. Mr. Chen was appointed to the Board on 9 January 2017. Mr. Chen also
served as a director of Beijing Bogi.

Mr. Chen has been the division chief of the mergers and acquisitions division of the
capital operation department of Sinopec Group (B A AL TEE AR R]) since
March 2015, where he is primarily responsible for the capital market research and
internal restructuring of the company. From March 2001 to March 2015, Mr. Chen was
the deputy division chief and division chief of various departments and divisions of
Sinopec Group (PB4 M/ TEE/AF]) including the restructuring department,
department of enterprise reform, operation management department of refining and
chemical enterprises, and the asset management company. Mr. Chen worked at
China Sinopec Great Wall Lubricating Oil Limited (47 BI/A{t R385 B&5H A 7)) (an
integrated lubricating oil service provider in the PRC) from July 1989 to March 2001.
In 2013, Mr. Chen was recognized as professor-level senior economist by the Senior
Professional Technical Qualification Appraisal Committee of Sinopec Group (R EI/A
S TEBAR]). In January 2018, Mr. Chen was the deputy head of the capital
operation department of Sinopec Group (HF B35 J#1{t T & /2 &]) and deputy general
manager of Asset Operation and Management Company Limited (& E & & E 2GR
73 A]). He was mainly responsible for the capital operation, safety and environmental
protection management.

Mr. Chen received his bachelor's degree in petroleum processing from East China
College of Chemistry and Technology (E25{t T22F) (now known as East China
University of Science and Technology (ZEEIE T KE2)) in July 1989. Mr. Chen
received his master's degree in management from Renmin University of China (47 B A
E&KZ2) in June 2001.

Mr. Chen did not hold directorships in any listed public companies in the last three
years.
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| ° DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continuec)
EENEREERE®

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Liu Genyu (2R £E) (“Mr. Liu”), aged 55, is an independent non-executive
Director and a member of the Remuneration Committee and Audit Committee of the
Company. He was appointed to the Board on 28 February 2018. Mr. Liu does not hold
any other position with the members of the Group.

Mr. Liu is currently a non-executive director of Huazhong In-vehicle Holdings Company
Limited (ZEREESILAX AR A F]), a Stock Exchange listed company (stock code:
6830) manufactures and sells internal and external decorative and structural automobile
parts, molds and tooling, casing and liquid tank of air conditioning or heater units and
other non-automobile products. Mr. Liu currently serves as an executive director and
vice chairman of China Nuclear Energy Technology Corporation Limited (P BI4Z gE %}
HEE AR A R]), alisted company on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 611) engages
in EPC operations and consulting services, solar power generation operations and
financing operations.

Mr. Liu has extensive experience in project development, commercial negotiation and
operational management in the electric power industry. During the period from May
2007 to December 2012, Mr. Liu was the chief executive officer as well as an executive
director, a member of the executive committee and the authorized representative of
China Power New Energy Development Company Limited (Ff Bl & H #rac R R AR
7~ A]), a Stock Exchange listed company (stock code: 735) that engages in developing,
constructing, owning, operating and managing clean energy power plants. Prior to that,
Mr. Liu served as the vice president of Chongging Jiulong Electric Power Co., Ltd* (22
BENEENRMABFRAF) (principally engaged in electric power production), a
company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code: 600292), and he was
mainly responsible for construction projects and market management.

Mr. Liu received his bachelor's degree in industrial electric automation from Harbin
Institute of Technology in June 1991. Mr. Liu was awarded an executive master's

degree in business administration (EMBA) from Tsinghua University in July 2005.

Save as disclosed above, Mr. Liu did not hold directorships in any listed public
companies in the last three years.
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Dr. Xie Guozhong (3B 5E) (“Dr. Xie”), aged 58, is an independent non-executive
Director, the chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of the Nomination
Committee of the Company. He was appointed to the Board on 28 February 2018. Dr.
Xie does not hold any other position with the members of the Group.

Dr. Xie is an independent economist based in the PRC and is a columnist for
publications including South China Morning Post, The New Century Weekly (renamed
as Caixin) and Bloomberg where he published his articles analyzing and consulting on
global economics and financial markets. Dr. Xie was named as one of the “50 most
influential persons in finance” by Bloomberg in 2013. Dr. Xie has 20 years expertise
in financial services and has extensive financial management experience in the fields
of corporate finance. From December 2007 to December 2010, Dr. Xie served as an
independent non-executive director of Shenzhen Development Bank Co., Ltd* (&3l
R IRTTID B R A 71), which was listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock
code: 000001). Dr. Xie worked for Morgan Stanley from July 1997 to September 2006
and held the role of managing director. He was working in the capacity of a managing
director in the research division of Morgan Stanley in Hong Kong before his departure.
Prior to joining Morgan Stanley, Dr. Xie worked for Macquarie Bank in Singapore as an
associate director from 1995 to 1997.

Dr. Xie received his master's degree of science in transportation and a PhD in
Philosophy (in the field of economics) from Massachusetts Institute of Technology in
September 1987 and June 1990, respectively.

Dr. Xie did not hold directorships in any listed public companies in the last three years.
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° DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continuec)
EENEREERE®

Mr. Lu Zhifang (FE&3) (“Mr. Lu”), aged 65, is an independent non-executive
Director, the chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a member of the Nomination
Committee of the Company. He was appointed to the Board on 28 February 2018. Mr. Lu
does not hold any other position with the members of the Group.

Mr. Lu is a registered lawyer in China, and is currently a senior partner of East &
Concord Partners (Jb R REZEHLFEEMEFT). Mr. Lu was a senior partner of
Haiwen Law Firm (/8f72ATSE#5FT) from 1994 to 2008 and a partner of Beijing
Hylands Law Firm (3t 5 R(EFEADE AT from 2009 to 2014. Mr. Lu also has
more than 20 years experience in international commercial arbitration, which, among
others, he served as an arbitrator of China International Economic and Trade Arbitration
Commission. From 1991 to 1994, Mr. Lu worked at the law school of University of
International Business and Economics as an associate professor, and served as deputy
director of the International Economic Law Department of University of International
Business and Economics from 1986 to 1994.

Mr. Lu graduated from Beijing University of International Business and Economics (3£ 5
$IHNE S EABT) with a diploma in English in January 1978, and received his master's

degree in laws from the University of California in December 1983.

Mr. Lu did not hold directorships in any listed public companies in the last three years.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

il

EEREREEE®

SENIOR MANAGEMENT EREHEEB
The following table presents certain information concerning the senior management of TEREVEBAREESREEBAEBENETE
our Group. ¥l o
Name Age Year Joined Position
A Fie mAFH B
Ms. Cao Xiaoping (& B 5% ) 65 2008  Vice president and chief financial officer
BB LT 20084F EIBHFITEBES
Mr. Zhang Kongyu (5 L %i) 57 2010  Vice president and chief technology officer
ok L) % £ 2010F ElEskEiinaEs
Mr. Yan Bingli ( 28 f& F) 55 2004  Vice president
BE IR A 5 A& 2004F ElEE
Mr. Ma Xuexiang ( 55 £ % ) 64 2012 Vice president
BEFELE 2012F &l
Ms. Qian Xiaoning ( £ Bz & ) 45 2007  Vice president, Board secretary and joint company
BEEZ T 2007 & secretary
BllEH EFgNERBFEAAINE
Mr. Liu Qingbo (2] & )% ) 45 2004  Vice president
BFREE 2004F EI#EE
Mr. Lu Jing (P = 57 2011 Vice president
B SR A& 2011 ElEE
Ms. Ma Zhuo (5§ =) 44 2006  Vice president
BEZL 2006 F El#EE
Ms. Yan Zhilian (5 2 ) 60 2004  Vice president
BZEL+ 2004 EIMEH
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Ms. Cao Xiaoping (E &) (“Ms. Cao”), aged 65, is the vice president and chief
financial officer of the Company. Ms. Cao joined the Group in June 2008. Ms. Cao was
appointed as the chief financial officer of the Group in March 2010.

Ms. Cao is primarily responsible for finance and accounting, budget and investment
related matters of the Group. Ms. Cao also serves as the chairman of Jiangxi
Jinggangshan Bogi Environmental Technology Co., Ltd.* (T PaFFMIILIEZE ERR
R BBRAR]) (“Jinggangshan Bogi”), a director of Shanxi Bo Yuan Qi Cheng
Environmental Equipment Service Co., Ltd.* (IUFEIER A RIRIRZERSER A
&]) (“Shanxi Bo Yuan“) and the chairman of Beijing Bogi Environmental Remediation
Tech Co. Ltd* (JE RIGHFERIFEE R AR AR,

Ms. Cao has over 30 years of experience in accounting and financial management. Prior
to joining the Group, Ms. Cao served as the chief accountant of Angang Construction
Consortium Co., Ltd (£28M 2% 5% B AR A 7)) from November 2000 to June 2008.
Ms. Cao was the deputy section chief (EI}HR) of the finance department of Ansteel
Group Corporation (&% £= [#]) and later served as the deputy director and director from
February 1985 to November 2000.

Ms. Cao graduated from Dongbei University of Finance and Economics (SR1E 87 4F A
&) with a master's degree in accounting in March 1999. She became a qualified senior

accountant in the PRC in December 1997.

Ms. Cao did not hold directorship in any listed public company in the last three years.
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Mr. Zhang Kongyu (3R FL¥) (“Mr. Zhang”), aged 57, is the vice president and
chief technology officer of the Company and joined the Group in March 2010. Mr.
Zhang started as the vice chief engineer with Beijing Bogi and later was appointed
as the vice president and a technical director, the general manager of department of
research and development and the general manager of department of production and
technology of Beijing Bogi. Mr. Zhang is mainly responsible for technology development,
introduction and technology cooperation and responsible for overall technology strategy
the Company. For positions with other members of the Group, Mr. Zhang serves as the
general manager of Beijing Shengyi and as the supervisor of Beijing Bogi and Zhejiang
Bogi.

Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Zhang was the chief engineer of Shanghai Nature Power
Technology Co. Ltd (/84 RE HEHLRBRAR]) from January 2004 to February
2010. During the period from July 2000 to June 2003, Mr. Zhang was the technical
director of SEC-IHI Power Generation Environment Protection Engineering Co., Ltd* (=
B B B T2 2 F]). Mr. Zhang served as director of design of Shanghai Future
Environment Engineering Co., Ltd.* ((E/ERAIRIE TR AR R]) from January
1995 to July 2000. Mr. Zhang served as the design engineer of Shanghai Metallurgy
Mining Machinery Factory* (_E/8)8 & 5& ILIHARER) from 1989 to 1995. Mr. Zhang
also served as a technician of Shanghai Petrochemical General Factory* (/&7 m1E
T 48 ) from 1987 to 1989.

Mr. Zhang graduated from Shanghai University of Technology with a bachelor’s degree
in mechanical manufacturing in 1983.

Mr. Zhang did not hold directorships in any listed public companies in the last three
years.
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° DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continuec)
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Mr. Yan Bingli (ZE/R#) (“Mr. Yan"), aged 55, is the vice president of the Company
and joined the Group in October 2004. Since joining the Group, Mr. Yan has held
various positions including the engineer of department of engineering and the general
manager of Yangcheng project, a project director, the general manager of department of
operation and maintenance, the general manager of department of sales and marketing
and the general manager of department of operational planning and information
management of Beijing Bogi. Mr. Yan is primarily responsible for operational planning,
information management and internal control of the Company. Mr. Yan does not hold
any other position with the members of the Group.

Mr. Yan obtained the diploma in power engineering management in Northeast Dianli
University (SR1E 3 7 E2F5) in April 1998.

Mr. Yan did not hold directorships in any listed public companies in the last three years.

Mr. Ma Xuexiang (552 %£) (“Mr. Ma”), aged 64, is the vice president of the
Company and joined the Group in August 2012. Mr. Ma is primarily responsible for
overseeing project construction and managing quality and safety. Prior to joining the
Group, Mr. Ma was the chief operation officer, the assistant general manager and
minister of the department of engineering of Angang Steel Construction Group Company
Ltd. (25032 2R = E AR A 7)), from November 2000 to August 2012, where he was
mainly responsible for managing project construction and managing project quality and
safety. Mr. Ma joined Angang Group (No. 2) Construction Corporation® (¥% 3|55 B 55
TEE T2/ A]) in May 1983, and has held various positions including technician,
team leader and assistant manager and general manager between 1983 and 2000. Mr.
Ma has also served as a technician of People’s Liberation Army Corps of Engineers
infrastructure 002 troops (AP B A R f# I EE Z 7 T2 0025FFX) since December
1972.

Mr. Ma obtained the diploma in cogenerating from the Changchun Metallurgical
Construction School* (7 A & 2 EEE4%) in September 1977.

Mr. Ma did not hold directorships in any listed public companies in the last three years.
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Ms. Qian Xiaoning (£2E228) ("Ms. Qian”), aged 45, is the vice president, Board
secretary and joint company secretary of the Company and joined the Group in February
2007. Ms. Qian is primarily responsible for managing human resources, legal compliance
issues, administration and Board matters. Since joined the Group, Ms. Qian has held
various positions including general manager of legal department, general manager of
business department of the Board, general manager of human resource department,
Board secretary and vice president of Beijing Bogi. Ms. Qian is also a director of Beijing
Bosheng Environmental SCI-TECH Co., Ltd.* (It RIEERERIEAR A F), the
supervisor of Shanxi Puzhou Bogi Environmental Technology Co., Ltd.* (LLIZES& M 18
ARREHLER A F)) (“Puzhou Bogi”), Shanxi Hejin Bogi Environmental Technology
Co., Ltd.* (WP AR EHFIRREHLAMR 2 R]) (“Hejin Bogi”), Anhui Nengda and
Jinggangshan Bogqi and the general manager of Shanxi Bo Yuan.

Prior to joining the Group, Ms. Qian was a securities transaction representative (5%
EHEK) of Yongyou Network Technology Co., Ltd. (R ABERIFAMD AR A
&]) (previously known as FA R EX A% 17 B BR 2 &), a listed company on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange, stock code: 600588), an enterprise management software and cloud
service provider in the PRC, from 2001 to February 2007. During the time from July 1996
to August 1997, Ms. Qian worked at the legal department of CITIC Group (previously
known as China International Trust Investment Corporation).

Ms. Qian graduated from China University of Political Science and Law in July 1996
with a bachelor's degree in economic law. Ms. Qian obtained a master's degree in
economic law from China University of Political Science and Law in June 2006 and a
master’s degree in business administration from Chinese University of Hong Kong in
December 2010.

Ms. Qian did not hold directorships in any listed public companies in the last three
years.

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENTlCOﬂtinue.;i)
EENEREER®

BRELT(82L]) 455 RALAAEE
HOEEENERBELANWELRN2007F2A
MAREE BZXTTEREANERER
FREREE THREERESFCEH BXK
TEMAREERREERIERETH S AR
BREZRDELE EFXHHELE A
NERBHBR EFeRERIEH - BT
TRLRBERARMKRERABAZESE WA
BMNBIFREHEAR2ACENEF]) - W
AARBEFRENZAERAFATE2EE])
ZHEERARALUBI2EZRUABR A
FESE

RINAREE 2z Al 8 2+ 720015 £2007 F
PAEETRARBER KRN BR QA (A H
AREHEBRNDERRA —FZREBEHFRS
P LT a2 A - R RS : 600588) &) i 5 F 7
RER-ZRARTEDEEELIMNE RS
R B T A199657 A 2199768 A B
RPEFREEBFIREREERE DT MNE
REMER -

BRXLTRI996FTARERFEBRERNE H5
REXBLBMN - BEXTN2006F6AESHE
BOERBEEEBELTEM YR2010512A %
BEBRPXARBEIHEBRELEM -

BERLERE=-FUYENEM LT RAAETE

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 4F 5 27



° DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continuec)
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Mr. Liu Qingbo (2/& %) (“Mr. Liu”), aged 45, is the vice president of the Company
and joined the Group in April 2004. Since joining the Group, Mr. Liu has held various
positions including the engineer of Environmental Technology Development Center,
the debugging manager, a manager of customer training, the minister of department
of operation and maintenance project management, the deputy general manager of
operation and maintenance center, the general manager of operation and maintenance
center and an assistant of president of Beijing Bogi. Mr. Liu is mainly responsible for
overseeing the operation and maintenance of projects of the Company. Mr. Liu also
serves as a director of Hejin Bogi, Puzhou Bogi and Changjizhou Bogi Environmental
Technology Co., Ltd.* (E & MIBHRERHLAR A 7))

Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Liu was the design engineer of electric control department
of Tongfang Shareholding Co., Ltd.* ([R5 f% {5/ PR 2 &)), a provider of environmental
consulting solutions in the areas of fuel gas desulfurization, denitrification and
dedusting, from July 2001 to April 2004, where Mr. Liu was responsible for designing
solutions in relation to fuel gas treatment by way of desulfurization and denitrification.

Mr. Liu graduated from Tsinghua University with a bachelor’'s degree in thermal energy
and power engineering in June 1998, and obtained a master's degree in thermal

engineering from Tsinghua University in June 2001.

Mr. Liu did not hold directorships in any listed public companies in the last three years.
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Mr. Lu Jing (PE5) (“Mr. Lu”), aged 57, is the vice president of the Company and
joined the Group in March 2011. Since joining the Group, Mr. Lu has held various
positions including an assistant for the president and the general manager of
department of information, the general manager of Jianan subcontracting department
(%228 56), the vice president and the general manager of marketing and sales
center of Beijing Bogi. Mr. Lu is primarily responsible for marketing development and
sales. Mr. Lu does not hold any other position with the members of the Group.

Prior to joining the Group, for the period from November 2004 to June 2010, Mr. Lu
served as an assistant manager of Great Wall Computer Software & Systems Inc* (&
WAt B E T E XS AR A R), a company mainly engaged in information safety
business. Mr. Lu also served at the computer room of 57th Institute of the General Staff
Council of People’s Liberation Army (42228 1 -+ FE ATE K E) from July 1983.

Mr. Lu obtained a bachelor’s degree in applied computer science from PLA Engineering
Technology College (A R P E T2 FEMTEMT) in July 1983.

Mr. Lu did not hold directorships in any listed public companies in the last three years.
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° DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continuec)
EENEREERE®

Ms. Ma Zhuo (5 £) (“Ms. Ma"), aged 44, vice president of the Company, joined
the Group in March 2006. Since she joined the Group, Ms. Ma served several positions
in the Company, such as the general manager of the Operating Planning Department,
general manager of the Financial Management Center, deputy director of the tender
and supervision committee, general manager of the internal control department, general
manager of the President’s Office, general manager of the Information Management
Department, assistant to the president and vice president. Ms. Ma is primarily
responsible for marketing strategy and promotion, brand management and client
servicing of the Company. Ms. Ma does not hold any other positions in other members
of the Group.

Prior to joining the Group, Ms. Ma worked at the Electricity Business Quality
Management Center under the State Electricity Regulatory Commission (BEIZXE&E
NEELZEBSE HEFELEIEF L) responsible for the financial auditing
of power plants from October 2005 to March 2006. During the period from August
2004 to September 2005, Ms. Ma served as the chief financial officer of Xuji Lianhua
International Environmental Engineering Co., Ltd. (FFAEBFERBIRETRRER
‘A \]), being responsible for finance, taxation, investment and financing analysis and
application for recognition as a High and New Technology Enterprise of the Company.
During the period from July 1998 to July 2004, Ms. Ma worked at Beijing Sifang
Automation Co., Ltd. (b R PU5 #4R B B AR (DB BR 2 F]), a company listed on
the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code: 601126) mainly engaging in development and
research, production, sales and technical service of products for automation of power
station, relaying protection, automation of power plants. Ms. Ma served as the senior
manager of the finance department, business manager of the market department and
general manager of the credit control department respectively, in charge of finance
accounting and taxation, regional agents and large customers and contract risks control.

Ms. Ma graduated from North China Electric Power University (3£{tE 77 A E2) with
a bachelor's degree in accounting in July 1998. Ms. Ma obtained a Master Degree
of Executive Master of Business Management of Cheung Kong Graduate School of
Business in September 2010.

Ms. Ma did not hold any other directorships in any listed public companies in the last
three years.
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Ms. Yan Zhilian (B2 3) ("Ms. Yan"), aged 60, vice president of the Company,
joined the Group in 2004. Since she joined the Group, Ms. Yan served several positions
in Beijing Boqi Electric Power SCITECH Co., Ltd. (Jt RIEFEHRFEARA
7]), such as the technical director, business manager, general manager of the cost
actuary department, general manager of the technical department and assistant to the
president. Ms. Yan is primarily responsible for estimation and control of project costs
and matters related to project settlement of the Company.

Prior to joining the Group, Ms. Yan was the department head of the construction cost
RIEEREHAIEEFT) from
October 1999 to October 2004, the department head of civil engineering projects of
Liaoyang Petrochemical Fiber Company* (3 F5 -5 Jéi{t. 4 72 71) from December 1985 to
October 1999, and a technician of the Third Construction Company of Liaoning Province*
(3 B84 55 = 3255 /N 7)) from December 1977 to December 1985.

department in Liaoning Tianyi Accounting Firm* (3%

Ms. Yan obtained a bachelor’s degree in industrial engineering from Fushun Petroleum
Institute* (#EIEF R E2FT) in July 1983

Ms. Yan did not hold any other directorships in any listed companies the last three
years.

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Ms. Qian Xiaoning (£28228), aged 45, is a joint company secretary of our Company.
She was appointed as the joint company secretary of the Company on 13 February
2017. Ms. Qian's biographical details are set forth in the paragraph headed “Senior
Management” above.

Ms. Wong Wai Ling (E2Z%) (“Ms. Wong”), aged 38, is a joint company secretary
of our Company. She was appointed as the joint company secretary of the Company on
13 February 2017.

Ms. Wong has over 13 years of experience in providing company secretarial services in
Hong Kong. Ms. Wong currently is a vice president of SWCS Corporate Services Group
(Hong Kong) Limited and is responsible for assisting listed companies in professional
company secretarial work. Prior to joining SWCS Corporate Services Group (Hong Kong)
Limited, she worked as the secretarial officer of KCS Hong Kong Limited, a corporate
service provider, from May 2008 to February 2011. During the period from July 2003
to May 2008, Ms. Wong worked at Grant Thornton (an international accounting
firm). Ms. Wong was admitted as associate of The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and was elected as association of The Institute of Chartered Secretaries
and Administrators in the United Kingdom in July 2013.

Ms. Wong was awarded a bachelor's degree of Arts in Marketing and Public Relations
from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University (/&2 T A2 in October 2007, and
obtained a master degree of Corporate Governance degree from The Open University of
Hong Kong (&7 72 A £2) in December 2011.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWEDN

The Group is committed to the development of the environmental protection industry. As
an independent flue gas treatment integrated services provider, the Group is principally
engaged in flue gas treatment business, which falls within three segments, namely
flue gas desulfurization, flue gas denitrification and dust removal, with their respective
business models. The Group also provides waste water treatment services to coal-fired
power plants and will continuously expand its existing comprehensive environmental
protection business in coal-fired power plants to provide energy conservation and
environmental protection solutions to customers by focusing on zero waste water
discharge and detoxification treatment of solid waste. The Group also provides its
services through various business models including environmental protection facility
engineering (“EPC"), operation and maintenance (“0O&M") and concession operations.

1.  Industry Overview
2018 was the opening year of consistently implementing the spirit of the
19th CPC National Congress with both ecological civilization construction
and environmental protection beginning a new journey. Driven by policy and
market demand, the environmental protection industry continues to maintain a
momentum of rapid development as a whole.

Pursuant to the Environmental Protection Tax Law of the PRC, which came into
effect on 1 January 2018, within the territory of China and other sea areas under
the jurisdiction of China, enterprises, public institutions and other producers and
operators that directly discharge pollutants to the environment shall be liable for
environmental pollution tax. The implementation of the Environmental Protection
Tax Law of the PRC tightened the management and control efforts on enterprises
discharging pollutants, which effectively motivated such enterprises to reduce
pollutant emission by improving technologies.

According to the 2018 Work Report of the State Council at the first meeting of
the 13th National People’s Congress, the PRC government shall achieve greater
results in promoting pollution prevention, consolidate the achievements of the
blue sky protection policy, and promote ultra-low emission reform in industries
such as the steel industry in 2018. Subsequently, on 7 May 2018, the Ministry
of Ecology and Environment released the “Work Plan for Ultra-low Emissions
Reform of Iron and Steel Enterprises (Consultation Draft)”, clarifying that all new
steel projects (including relocation) should reach ultra-low emission standard,
and will focus on promoting the low-emission work in the steel industry while
the enhanced governance of the steel industry will be the focus of air pollution
prevention and control. With increasingly stringent environmental inspections,
the demand for such services in non-electricity flue gas treatment and emission
industries is expected to increase. The market is expected to expand in the
future, which may have a scale exceeding that of thermal power field.
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On 18 May 2018, at the National Working Conference on Environmental
Protection held in Beijing, General Secretary Xi Jinping pointed out that to
build an ecological civilization is of fundamental importance for the sustainable
development of China. The nation shall channel more energy into promoting
ecological civilization, resolving environmental problems and battling against
pollution in China to promote the advancement of building a ecological civilized
country.

On 3 July 2018, the State Council issued the “Three-Year Plan on Defending
the Blue Sky”, focusing on the main areas such as the Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei
and surrounding areas, the Yangtze River Delta and the Fenhe and Weihe plain
and continuing to carry out air pollution prevention and control operations.
“The national air pollution prevention and control work will be carried out in
the next three years, with the objective to greatly reduce the total amount
of major air pollutants, synergistically reduce greenhouse gas emissions so
that the concentration can be further reduced to PM2.5, shorten the heavy
pollution days, substantially improve the environmental air quality, significantly
facilitating the people’s satisfaction of blue sky after the three years of efforts.”
Since the introduction of this policy, various local governments have launched
corresponding action plans to further open up market space in the atmospheric
pollution control and monitoring industries in key regions.

In July 2018, the Ministry of Ecology and Environment published the Law of
the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and Control of Environmental
Pollution by Solid Waste (Revised Draft) (Consultation Draft), which stipulated
responsibilities of each stakeholder in controlling solid waste while enhancing
management of solid waste with comprehensive methods. Further, on 31 August
2018, the Fifth Session of the Standing Committee of the 13th National People’s
Congress voted to adopt the Soil Pollution Prevention and Control Law of the
PRC. It was implemented on 1 January 2019, promoting the development of the
entire industrial chain of soil restoration. With the increasingly stringent state
policies on environmental protection, the market prospects for soil restoration
and treatment of solid waste and hazardous waste is broad.
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2. Business Review

The Group commenced its flue gas treatment business in 2003 and is among the
first independent participants in the flue gas treatment industry in China. The
services of the Group cover the entire industry-chain of the flue gas treatment
industry, from project design, equipment procurement and facilities construction
to operation and maintenance and concession operation of flue gas treatment
facilities. Moreover, the Group’s business has a broad geographic coverage,
reaching almost 30 provinces, municipalities and autonomous regions in China.
Furthermore, the Group has been striving to expand its business overseas,
including in Europe, South Asia, Latin America, Africa and Southeast Asia.

The following map shows the distribution of the projects of the Group within the
PRC as at 31 December 2018:
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As at 31 December 2018, the Group has also executed, or has been
implementing, more than ten projects in regions outside the PRC, such as Europe,
South Asia, Latin America, Africa and Southeast Asia.

As an independent flue gas treatment integrated services provider, the Group
provides innovative technologies and quality services which aim to reduce
the SO, and NOx emissions of coal-fired power plants and offer flue gas
desulfurization, flue gas denitrification and dust removal services, as well as
other pollution control solutions to its customers. For the 2018 Financial Year,
the Group entered into project contracts with coal-fired power plants, aluminum
factories, steel factories, chemical plants and other customers for the provision
of services based mainly on three business models: the EPC, the O&M business
and concession operations (including “Build-Operate-Transfer” or “BOT",
“Transfer-Operate-Transfer” or “TOT" and “Build-Own-Operate” or “B0OQ"). The
Group adopt different business models for different projects in its desulfurization,
denitrification and other flue gas treatment businesses in an effort to comply
with general market practices, to meet clients’ expectation or to take advantage
of certain favorable government policies.

EPC

The typical EPC business primarily involves project design, procurement of
equipment and materials, project construction and equipment installment
services in relation to SO, or NOx emission control and dust removal for power
plants, aluminum factories, steel factories, chemical plants. The Group acts as
the main contractor and is responsible for the design of the client’s project;
procurement and selection of various environmentally friendly materials and
equipment from domestic and overseas suppliers; construction subcontracting
and supervision of the project construction and equipment installment; testing,
inspection and trial operation of the facilities; and delivery of finished project
to client upon its completion after inspection by the competent government
authority or independent subcontractors or customers.

In 2018, the total contract value of new EPC projects (including desulfurization,
denitrification and dust removal projects) of the Group amounted to RMB1,036
million, of which the contract value of new EPC projects in steel industry was
RMB520 million. The cumulative installed capacities of these projects reached a
cumulative sintering machine area of 1,344 m? in steel factories.
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In 2018, the Group has made a breakthrough in EPC projects in non-electricity
fields. As for the petrochemical industry, we have entered into a contract for
Chuanwei Denitrification, Desulfurization and Dust Removal Ultra Low Emissions
Reconstruction Project. As for the steel industry, we have entered into a contract
with Tangshan Xinbaotai Iron and Steel Company Limited for a 210m? sintering
machine transformation project, Hebei Jinxi Iron and Steel Company Limited
for a flue gas ultra-clean emission project for 265m? sintering machines, Hebei
Tangyin Iron and Steel Company Limited for a flue gas ultra-clean emission
project for 184m? sintering machine and with Jinxi Wantong Company Limited
for a desulfurization and denitrification project for 685m? sintering machines. As
for the natural gas industry, we have entered into a contract for our first waste
heat boiler denitrification project, which is a waste heat boiler denitrification
project with Jingneng Gao'antun Gas-fired Thermal Power Co., Ltd. Meanwhile,
the Group successfully entered the electrolytic aluminum flue gas desulfurization
market and entered into a contract for Weigiao Group Aluminium Power One,
Two, Three, Four, Five, Yangxin and Beihai Electrolytic Aluminum Flue Gas
Desulfurization Project.

In 2018, the continuous battle against atmospheric pollution has brought
opportunities for the flue gas treatment industry in non-electricity field. As
the leading provider in flue gas treatment field, the Group is equipped with
proven technologies as well as innovation capacities and has achieved good
performance in non-electricity field in 2018.

In 2018, the Group has 25 EPC projects under construction and their status set
forth as below:
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2018F & AEEHE B2 £ REPCE
CHBRMT

Environmental Protection
Facility Engineering projects

Date of contract Aggregate contract

Serial under construction Newly built/ (Month/Year) value (RMB million)
no. HERBRRIE Type of project upgraded BEETHE caek
F# IEBER BEER HEWE (8/R) (AR¥EETT)
1. Shentou Electric Power Phase  Desulfurization and Newly built December 2014 354
Il Desulfurization System and  dust removal =3 2014512
WESP Project B Kb
$ E?SEEE—HHHR )\L?/%
BAERERA
2. Beihai Desulfurization Project ~ Desulfurization Newly built November 2015 150
ILBRRIEE i B e 201511 A
3. Shouyang Green Island Project  Green Island Newly built December 2015 288
EGRRBEE BRE e 201512 A
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Environmental Protection
Facility Engineering projects

Date of contract

Aggregate contract

Serial under construction Newly built/ (Month/Year) value (RMB million)
no. EERRARIKE Type of project upgraded BEETEH AEH
F% IREH HEERR HE,/ wE (%/R) (AR®BETT)
4, Binzhou Phase Il Dust Removal Project Dust removal Upgraded April 2016 30
BN B EMERE i E Brgc 201654 7
5, Shanggiu Desulfurization Project Desulfurization Newly built June 2016 86
BERGIER i B e 201656 A
6. Phase Il Desulfurization Desulfurization Newly built September 2016 0
EP Project in Serbia i B R 20169 A
ERf T _HNREPEE
1. Seawater Desulfurization Desulfurization Newly built November 2016 91
System and Equipment Supply 5 iR 2016411 A
Project in Pakistan
BEHAEKEEESR
R EIAR
8. Xinjiang New Energy #1-2 Unit Desulfurization Newly built December 2016 72
Desulfurization Project 2 B R 201612 A
FEAE 2R AR R R
9. Shanghai Petrochemical Boiler Green Island Upgraded March 2017 225
Ultra-low Emission BRE ik 2017F3A
Upgrade Project
TERREBERRSERR
10.  Gaogiao Denitrification System Denitrification Upgraded April 2017 17
Supplies Procurement Project i B¢t 2017548
BRREEARYERBER
11. Nanyang Desulfurization Project Desulfurization Newly built March 2017 168
HEHRRIER i B il e 20174%3R
12. Sinopec Shanghai # 3-4 Unit Desulfurization Upgraded September 2017 91
Desulfurization Project e B i 2017F9A

REAL B4R EERTEA
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Environmental Protection

Facility Engineering projects Date of contract Aggregate contract

Serial under construction Newly built/ (Month/Year) value (RMB million)

no. ERRRRMKE Type of project upgraded BEETEH AEHE

F% IREH HEER HE,wE (%/R) (AR®BEETT)

13.  Flue Gas Desulfurization System Desulfurization Upgraded November 2017 20
Construction for Aluminum 5 & 2007F11 A

Company | of Zouping Hongmao

New Material Technology Co., Ltd
BTG R AE R

ARARBE-RAER

REmEEIR
14, Flue Gas Desulfurization System Desulfurization Upgraded November 2017 22
Construction for Aluminum 5 i 2017511 R

Company VI of Zouping Hongzheng

New Material Technology Co., Ltd
BEGEERETMEBE

BERARWEANAAER

RmEFLIE
5. Tangshan Xinbaotai Iron & Desulfurization Upgraded January 2018 105
Steel Limited 210m? Sintering B i 201841 A
Machines Upgrade Project
ELHRERHEAERAR
20mEEMBERE
16.  Xinjiang Guotai Xinhua Zhundong Desulfurization Upgraded May 2018 39
Phase | Ultra-low Emiossion 5 & 20185 A
Upgrade Project
MBERMELER B
BEEMSEER
17. 265m? Ultra-clean Emission Project  Green Island Upgraded May 2018 120
for Flue Gas from Sintering BRE B¢ 2018%5A4

Machines for Hebei Jinxi Iron
and Steel Company Limited

M ERAEEERS
BRORIGOmEERES

BEHRCER
18.  Jinxi Wanton 1#, 2#, 3# Sintering Green Island Upgraded May 2018 216
Machines Flue-gas Ultra-low RRE B¢ 20185 A

Emission Project
BEEB 24 FEEK
& R R HEHUOE B
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Environmental Protection
Facility Engineering projects

Date of contract

Aggregate contract

Serial under construction Newly built/ (Month/Year) value (RMB million)
no. EERRARIKE Type of project upgraded BEETEH AEH
F% IREH HEERR HE,/ wE (%/R) (AR®BETT)
19.  Jingneng Gao'antun Gas-fired Thermal Denitrification Upgraded June 2018 24
Power Co., Ltd Waster Heat Boiler ¢ 4 & 201856 A
Denitrification Upgrade Project
REREELRAREAREMR
NEIGRAMERHEYEER
20.  Shandong Haihua Thermal Power Desulfurization and dust ~ Expansion and upgraded ~ July 2018 50
Company Third Power Plant removal BERYE 2018%7 A
Desulfurization, Dust Removal and ¢ Bt 2 & B2
Expansion project
WRBLHAEANZER
R ERENEERR
21, Jingxi Gas Thermal Power Plant #1,#3  Denitrification Upgraded August 2018 17
Boiler Technical Denitrification % B8 W 201848 A
System Technical Upgrade Project
REMREE IR BB
R mironE TR
22.  Hebei Tangyin Iron and Steel Co., Ltd. ~ Sintering machine Newly built July 2018 79
184m? Sintering Machine desulfurization, il e 201857 A
Ultra-clean Emission of Flue Gas denitrification and dust
At BB 4R 8 184 TR A 1 removal
1B R R HE R G 45 1 IO 0 B R
23.  Zhongke Joint Venture Guangdong Denitrification Newly built September 2018 25
Refining and Chemical Integration ¢ 8 R 2018%9A7
Project Denitrification Project
RREEBRRRIL— B IER
i I8 B
24. Chuanwei Denitrification, Green Island Upgraded September 2018 206
Desulfurization and Dust Removal R R & W 201849 7

Ultra Low Emissions Reconstruction

Project
IR - B R ERR R
BEMBEER
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Environmental Protection
Facility Engineering projects

Date of contract Aggregate contract

Serial under construction Newly built/ (Month/Year) value (RMB million)
no. ERRRRMKE Type of project upgraded BEETEH AEHE
F% IREH HEER HE,wE (%/R) (AR®BEETT)
25.  Weigiao Group Aluminium Power Desulfurization Upgraded November 2018 156

One, Two, Three, Four, Five, 5 & 2018511 A

Yangxin and Beihai Electrolytic

Aluminum Flue Gas

Desulfurization Project

BEgERE— - =
mh B LERA
BRmERRTIER
0&M E

The O&M services mainly include operation services and regular maintenance
services for desulfurization and denitrification facilities owned by the customers.
The Group acts as a contractor, which provides desulfurization, denitrification
and dust removal operation services while the scope of work involves the full
operation, repair, upgrade and maintenance of flue gas treatment system/
facilities owned by power plants. Under the O&M projects, the customers are
either charged service fees for the 0&M services calculated based on the total
amount of on-grid electricity generated during the service period, or a price
predetermined at the commencement of the project based on the scope of work
that will be performed. Revenues from the O&M business can be a recurring one,
generating stable cash flow for the Group.

In 2018, the Group acted as a contractor under the O&M projects which
provided desulfurization, denitrification and dust removal operating services,
and the scope of business included full-process operation, upgrading and
maintenance of flue gas treatment system/facilities of coal-fired power plants.
Regular maintenance services included provision of technical support, regular
maintenance, facilities testing, maintenance services and spare parts services for
flue gas facilities. In 2018, the Group had 18 O&M projects under operation with
an aggregate installed capacity of 24,400 MW. Such projects operated steadily
and their emissions were up to standard. They will provide stable growth in our
business.

ERRGIZERYTFPRAENOERRR
REREREELRELEREERS -
ARBEERACEREEKRE HERKE
BERY IFRBEREEES BE-
HRRGERERABNERRERS
/R REERER  RAREP KR
REERBERRBEABALBEES
ENRBESIHEERRARBELERERARE
ThaEETMNER E2HEEXHK
AR BA A 7R 5 [ 3R (1 8 R 1 A SRR A
REMNRERE -

R2018F AEEFER/ABEREELE
BRENT HELGEELRE BX
BERER2EEE ARNAERRE
BREENERRBRS, K- FREE
REBRRERRBRERME BH
e RBUS BERERBUARBERENT
MR 7% - 20185 E - A& BB 181E 1% E K
EHRER BREBTERUIOKE &K
BERTET ESFICEAR/AKE
REBROXELZRRR -
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The following table sets forth the installed capacities and status of the 0&M RBEFEAEENKREEREENE
projects of the Group under operation in 2018: WASREBEEBRET

Starting date of service Expiring date of service

Serial (Month/Year) contract (Month/Year)

no. Project name Type of project L% B REANERBEH Installed capacity

Fi# BEEMW HREER (&£/R) (£/A) KRB E

1. Anshun Flue Gas Desulfurization November 2017 December 2018 2x300MW
Desulfurization 0&M Project i B 20174611 A 2018512 A

2 BB R A E 4R B

2. Yangcheng #1-6 Unit Flue Gas Desulfurization July 2018 August 2019 6x350MW
Desulfurization 0&M Project i B 201846 7H 201948 A
B 9 1-6 5% 1% A 1B SR AR
EHER
3. Yangcheng #7-8 Unit Flue Gas Desulfurization June 2018 August 2019 2x600MW
Desulfurization O&M Project i B 201846 A 201948 A
5 9 7-8 5% % A 1 SRR AR
EHIER
4, Yangcheng #7-8 Unit Slag removal June 2018 August 2019 2x600MW
Slag Removal 0&M Project G 201856 A 201948 A

B8 AREER AR

5. Kuche Flue Gas Desulfurization Desulfurization December 2012 December 2018 2x330MW
0&M Project AL 7R 2012612 4 201812 A
EEERMMEREE
6. Bulian Flue Gas Desulfurization Desulfurization April 2013 April 2019 2x660MW
0&M Project e B 2013F4A 201964 A
MEBRRMELEE
7. Qinzhou Desulfurization Q&M Project ~ Desulfurization July 2015 June 2021 2x630MW+
FMBREREE 5 2015%7A 2021%6 A 2x1000MW
8. Guotai Flue Gas Desulfurization, Denitrification, November 2015 June 2018 2x350MW
Denitrification and desulfurization 201511 A 201846 A
Slag Removal O&M Project and slag removal
BRERABRG  BER BRE AR R bR E
PrEE4TE B
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Starting date of service Expiring date of service

Serial (Month/Year) contract (Month/Year)
no.  Project name Type of project REELRAH RESHESB S Installed capacity
Fi# BEHMW HEER (#/R) (£/A) ERRE
9. Jingjiang Flue Gas Desulfurization and Desulfurization and dust ~ March 2016 March 2020 2x660MW
Dust Removal O&M Project removal 201653 A 202053 R
BIRRMBRKEERERE MERRE
10.  Tianjin SDIC Jineng Power Plant Desulfurization August 2016 December 2020 4x1000MW
Desulfurization, WESP and Water A% 201658 A 202012 A
Intake System Operation and
Cleaning Project
RO B #O0% B2 AT R Z UK
BITRRREER
11, Serbian Flue Gas Desulfurization Desulfurization May 2017 May 2018 2x350MW
0&M Project 5 2017%5 A 201855 A
ERgTERNMERER
12. Yangxi Flue Gas Desulfurization and  Desulfurization and January 2017 December 2025 2x660MW+
Denitrification 0&M Project denitrification 2017F1 A 2025%12 A 2x600MW
GaERRmHEELER e A% K2 B B
13. Chengde Desulfurization O&M Project  Desulfurization May 2017 September 2019 2x350MW
AR E 4R B B 2017%5A 20199 A
14, Anshun #1-2 Units Maintenance Desulfurization September 2017 December 2018 2x300MW
and Repair Service Project e B 2017%9A4 2018512 A
ZIR1-25F AR B
fR#%E 8
5. Shouguang Auxiliary Ashing and Desulfurization May 2018 May 2021 2x1000WM
Sulfurization Control System e 5 20185%5A 2021F5A

Entrusted Operation Project
SERBELBERRER

E{TRE
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Starting date of service Expiring date of service

Serial (Month/Year) contract (Month/Year)
no.  Project name Type of project REELRAH REESHESB S Installed capacity
Fi# BEHMW HEERR (#/R) (£/A) EHRRE
16.  Shanyin Phase Il Environmental Denitrification, June 2018 May 2021 2x350MW
Protection 0&M desulfurization and slag 2018476 A 2021%5R
e BRRETH removal
ot B B B R B B
17.  Jiantou Zunhua Auxiliary System Desulfurization August 2018 July 2019 2x350MW
Entrusted Operation Project i B 20184 8AH 2019%7R
BRENHYRGETIEZEER
18.  Xilinhot Desulfurization and Desulfurization and Expected to be June 2019 Expected to be May 2020 2x660MW
Denitrification 0&M Project denitrification & 201956 A BEH2020%5 A
HRERHTNEERER i B P
Concession Operation Business THEEEEE

Under the concession operation business model, the Group is responsible for the
financing, investment, construction and upgrading of a project according to its
concession contract with the customer. In general, the concession projects are
funded by the Group's internal funds or borrowings from local banks. Upon the
completion of constructions, the Group owns the project assets and operates
the project for a period specified in the concession agreement, which is typically
15 to 20 years, and the Group is entitled to collect revenues generated from the
project during the term of the contract. Revenues generated from the concession
operation business during the operation phase of the relevant projects are
calculated based on the on-grid power generation of the customer multiply by the
unit price specified in the concession contract during the operation phase, which
is generally settled monthly. The Group also generates revenues from the sales
of by-products during the operation of the environmental protection facilities.
The fees the Group receives for the provision of concession services typically
include a service fee based on a guaranteed minimum flue gas treatment volume
and such fees are contingent subject to adjustment of certain variable costs the
Group incurred. Such subsidy for the power consumption is pre-determined at the
time the concession agreement is entered into with the client.
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In 2018, the Group continued to carry out its concession operation business,
including desulfurization, denitrification and green island (which is an integrated
flue gas treatment system to treat synergistically the flue gas pollutants produced
by the boilers of coal-fired power plants, including denitrification, desulfurization,
dust removal, induced-drafted fan system, reheating system.). As at 31 December
2018, the Group has accumulated 9 concession operation projects with 3
currently under construction and 6 in operation. Among them, the BOT project of
flue gas ultralow emission upgrade for two 330MW units in Gugiao power plant
of Huainan Mining Industry Group Power Generation Co., Ltd, Xinjiang Guotai
Xinhua BOT Project and Guangxi Laibin Desulfurization, Denitrification and Dust
Removal “Build-Own-Operate”or “BO0" project are the Group’s new projects in
2018. These projects have provided us with decent investment returns and stable
cashflows, laying a strong foundation for us to operate continuously and develop
steadily.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS lcominuéa)
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The following table sets forth the installed capacities and status of the

concession operation projects of the Group in 2018:

RBFEREENBFLERERRNE
BARERBABRMOT :

Ending date
of concession
Total  Date of period
investment ~ signing contract BHREHR
Serial Installed Newly built/ REBE AEETAHS & B
no.  Project name capacity  Type of project upgraded RMB million  (Month/Year) (Year/Month)
Fi BEEEB £HAE EEER HB/XE AR%EER (§/R) (£/A)
1. Jiangxi Jinggangshan 2x300MW+  Desulfurization ~ Newly built 224 January 2008 (for Phase |) July 2030 (for Phase |)
BOT Project E60MW R M August 2008 (for Phase Il December 2030 (for Phase Il
T F R I 2008F1 A (—H) 2030F7A(—H)
BOTEEH 20088 A (=) 2030F12/3 (=)
2. Shanxi Hejin BOT Project 2x350MW  Denitrification ~ Newly built 90 June 2012 September 2033 (for Unit #1)
ipap== i mE 2012%6 A May 2033 {for Unit #2)
BOTEEH 2033FIA(15 KA
20335 (2574 48)
3. Shanxi Puzhou 2x300MW  Denitrification ~ Newly built 84 June 2012 January 2034 (for Unit #1)
Phase | BOT Project 3 7 B 2012664 May 2033 (for Unit #2)
785 M — 5 034F 1157 EA)
BOTIE B 2033FE5H (257 % 48)
4, Shanxi Puzhou Phase |l 2x350MW  Denitrification ~ Newly built 112 May2014 End of 2037
BOT Project i 7 i 2014F5A 037 F &
L7 5 M —
BOTIE B
b. Shanxi Yuguang 2x300MW  Green Island Upgraded 82 May2015 February 2036 (for Unit #1)
BOT Project RRE Y& 2015%54 May 2035 (for Unit #2)
LEEx 203652 A (1554 48)
BOTIE E 2035558 (2% #4)
6. Xinjiang Shenhuo 4x350MW  Green Island Upgraded 490 June 2017 End of 2032
BOT Project RRE Y& 201756 A 032F
MEMABOTEE
7. Huainan Gugiao 2x330MW  Green Island Upgraded 173 May 2018 End of 2033
BOT Project RRE Y& 2018%5A 2033F K
EEER
BOTIE B
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Ending date
of concession
Total  Date of period
investment  signing contract RAREHR
Serial Installed Newly buily REBE AEETHH & B8
no.  Project name capacity  Type of project upgraded RMB million  (Month/Year) (Year/Month)
Fi BEEER #RAE BEEEE FBR/%E AR%HER (E/A) (£/A)
8. Xinjiang Guotai 2x350MW  Green Island Upgraded 150 July 2018 June 2028
Xinhua BOT Project BRE Y& 201874 20286 A
MEERE
BOTIE B
9. Guangxi Laibin BOO Project 2x300MW  Green Island Upgraded December 2018 End of 2033
ERmAZEBO0ER RRE g 2018512 A 033F K
Financial Position and Operating Results MBERAREERE

In 2018, there had been significant uncertainties in the global economy.
Under the great goal of reducing capacity, eliminating economic bubble, and
deleveraging, the Chinese economy began to implement a series of major policies
such as restructuring, stabilizing growth, ensuring the environmental protection,
and benefiting the people. There is still a large room for environmental protection
industry to developed under the support of national policies.

2018 has been a milestone year for the Group. On 16 March 2018, the Group
was successfully listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited. As a listed company, China Bogi entered the capital market with a new
attitude and will continue to seize its unique advantages and potential to seek
for a new round of growth utilising the financing platform in Hong Kong.

Projects in the new fields of non-electricity industries, such as iron and steel,
metallurgical and petrochemical, have successively won the bid and signed
contracts to provide guarantee for the sustainable development of the Group.
The EPC, O&M and concession operation business have been executed smoothly,
and the integration of industry and capital have improved. The net profit has a
relatively large increase as compared with 2017. The gearing ratio remained at a
low level. The cashflow and bank facilities were sufficient and laid an important
foundation for the development of the Group.
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Non-IFRS Measurement Indicators

We believe that indicators such as adjusted net profit for the year provide
useful information for investors and others to compare net profit across different
periods and different companies by eliminating the impact of items which are,
in the view of our management, not indicative of our business performance.
Our management also adopts the same approach to understand and assess our
operating results. We expect that the impact of reconciliation items will decrease

gradually from 2019.

The adjusted net profit for 2018 increased by 32.1% to approximately RMB259
million in 2018 (2017: approximately RMB196 million). The following tables
reconcile our adjusted net profit for 2018 indicated to the profit for the year in

accordance with IFRS:

FERMBESEENGAERER
BAEE CHABFNBESAENRAESB
EZHERERRERMNEERRE AR
THEMEENTE AREERAMAL
HRAEBERETNRAE 2 ENENE
REAAMNER ZANERETRAM
R B RFERPNEERE R
BAUERBAENTERA09FER S
;‘ESZQ\O

01BFKABFMEEMRIRENAR
#2598 B (20176 A AR 1968 &
7T) e NRET A E 5 H 20184 19 48 58
EENBERBEERMBRELENNEF
77 O B

Reconciliation of profit for the year to
adjusted net profit for the year

Profit (loss) for the year

Adjusted for:

Change in fair value of convertible
ordinary shares

FRNBRFALEAE
RN 0
FRE N (ER)
BATHERE:
AEBREARAABEZDY

Adjusted net profit for the year

FRRABRKENE
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2018 2017

2018 F 2017 F
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR TR AR®ETT
(unaudited) (unaudited)
(REER) (RE&EZ)

392,819 (37,029)

(133,541) 233,228
259,278 196,199




Revenue

In the 2018 Financial Year, the Group’s total revenue increased by 31.3% to
RMB1,745 million as compared with RMB1,329 million for the 2017 Financial
Year, primarily attributable to the significant increase in revenue of EPC and BOT
business segment of the Group during the reporting period.

The Group generates revenues primarily from three major operating segments: (i)
the EPC business, (i) the O&M business, and (iii) concession operation business.
The following table sets forth a breakdown of the revenue of the Group by
segment for the periods stated.

]
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Revenue generated from the EPC business for the 2018 Financial Year increased
by 30.1% to RMB722 million as compared with RMB555 million for the 2017
Financial Year, mainly attributable to the increased number of projects newly
contracted by the Group in steel and petrochemical fields.

The revenue generated from the O&M business for the 2018 Financial Year
increased by 3.0% to RMB415 million as compared with RMB403 million for the
2017 Financial Year, mainly attributable to the increase in the Group’s power
generation capacity for the operation and maintenance projects in 2018.

Revenue from concession operation business for the 2018 Financial Year
increased by 70.6% to RMB580 million as compared with RMB340 million for the
2017 Financial Year, mainly attributable to the increase in construction revenue
of new BOT projects and the gradual commencement of operation of projects
that were previously under construction during the reporting period.

Segment revenue

2 EHUA
Year ended Year ended
31 December 2018 31 December 2017
HZ20185 B=E2017%
12ANALEE ANBILEFE
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥ TR ARKETF T
122,117 555,261
415,113 402,815
580,051 340,477
369,880 254,986
210171 85,491
21,117 30,525
1,744,998 1,329,078
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Cost of Sales and Services

The Group's cost of sales and services for the 2018 Financial Year increased by
38.3% to RMB1,427 million as compared with RMB1,032 million for the 2017
Financial Year mainly attributable to the increase in cost resulting from the
increased revenue of each business segment of the Group during the reporting
period.

Cost of sales and services for the Group’s EPC business consists primarily of
equipment procurement cost, construction and installation costs. The cost of
sales and services for the Group’s EPC business for the 2018 Financial Year
increased by 30.1% to RMB666 million as compared with RMB512 million for
the 2017 Financial Year, mainly attributable to the increase in newly contracted
projects in steel and petrochemical fields during the reporting period.

Cost of sales and services for the O&M service consists of raw materials costs,
staff costs and repair and maintenance costs. The cost of sales and services
for the 0&M service for the 2018 Financial Year increased by 5.4% to RMB291
million as compared with RMB276 million for the 2017 Financial Year, mainly
attributable to the increase of the Group’s O&M project repair and power
generation.

Cost of sales and services for the Group’s concession operation business
consists primarily of raw material costs, construction costs and amortization and
depreciation. The cost of sales and services for the Group’s concession operation
business for the 2018 Financial Year increased by 103.5% to RMB466 million as
compared with RMB229 million for the 2017 Financial Year, mainly attributable
to the increase of construction investment in new BOT projects and the gradual
commencement of operation of several projects which led to increase of material
costs and labour costs during the reporting period.
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Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

The gross profit of the Group for the 2018 Financial Year increased by 7.1% to
RMB318 million as compared with RMB297 million for the 2017 Financial Year
while the gross profit margin of the Group for the 2018 Financial Year was
18.2% as compared with 22.4% for the 2017 Financial Year, mainly attributable
to the increase in the cost of raw material in BOT business and the proportion of
revenue attributable from those in the construction period with lower gross profit
margin during the reporting period.

The following table sets forth the Group’s gross profit and gross profit margin for
each of the business segments for the periods stated.
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Year ended 31 December 2018  Year ended 31 December 2017

BZE2018512A31R°
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LFE LFE
Gross Profit Gross Profit
RMB’000 Margin % RMB'000 Margin %
AR¥TR ENE% ARETRT EFEY
EPC EPC 56,523 43,072 7.8
0&M 3 124,556 126,756 315
Concession Operation B 114,042 111,452 32.7
Of which: Operation HEd g% 109,297 110,605 434
Construction EiE 4,745 847 1.0
Others b=} 22,731 15,962 52.3
Total 4R 317,858 297,242 224

The gross profit of the Group’s EPC business for the 2018 Financial Year
increased by 32.6% to RMB57 million as compared with RMB43 million for the
2017 Financial Year, mainly attributable to the year-on-year increase of EPC
revenue and gross profit margin remained the same as 2017.

The gross profit of the Group’s O&M business for the 2018 Financial Year
decreased by 1.6% to RMB125 million as compared with RMB127 million for the
2017 Financial Year while the gross profit margin decreased from 31.5% in the
2017 Financial Year to 30.0% for the 2018 Financial Year, mainly attributable to
the increase of materials and labour costs in certain operation and maintenance
projects of the Group.

The gross profit of the Group's concession operation business for the 2018
Financial Year increased by 2.7% to RMB114 million as compared with RMB111
million for the 2017 Financial Year while the gross profit margin decreased from
32.7% in the 2017 Financial Year to 19.7% for the 2018 Financial Year, mainly
attributable to (i) lower gross profit margin during the construction period; (ii) the
increase in materials and labour cost for some of the projects.
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Other Income and Other Gains and Losses

Other income and other gains and losses consist primarily of government grants,

foreign exchange gains and losses, interest income etc.

The following table sets forth a breakdown of other income and other gains and

losses for the periods stated.

At ARREEZRER
ERAREMBEREBRIEBRER
e EMEBEDS MEKRAZE-

TR RN AT B E M RA R
Hitzm h BEOAM -

Interest income FEWA
Government grants IS 6 B
Rental income, net Hel NFE
Losses on disposal of property, plant
and equipment HEME HEREEBR
Gains from extinguishment of liabilities B34 (88 8 B & d 25
Foreign exchange gains (losses) EHBER(BE)
Others Hith

The Group’s other income and revenue for the 2018 Financial Year increased
by 350.0% to RMB117 million as compared with RMB26 million for the 2017
Financial Year, mainly attributable to increase in interest income, tax refund and

foreign exchange gains.

Selling and Distribution Expenses

The Group's selling and distribution expenses were RMB26 million in 2018
Financial Year as compared with RMB18 million for the same period last year,
with the share of revenue of 1.5%, up 0.1 percentage point year-on-year, mainly
attribute to the increase in resources and expenses for market expansion during

the reporting period.
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Administrative Expenses

The Group’s administrative expenses were RMB109 million in 2018 Financial
Year as compared with RMB89 million for the same period last year, with the
share of revenue of 6.2% in 2018, down 0.5 percentage point year-on-year.

Finance Costs
Finance costs of the Group consist of interest expense on bank borrowings in
2018 Financial Year. The Group's finance costs increased by 20.0% to RMB6
million as compared with RMB5 million for 2017, mainly attributable to the
increase in year-on-year average bank borrowings of the Group during the
reporting period.

Gearing Ratio

The gearing ratio is calculated as the percentage which the Group’s total bank
borrowings bears to the aggregate of the Group’s equity. The Group’s gearing
ratio decreased from 16.9% as at 31 December 2017 to 3.0% as at 31 December
2018, mainly attributable to repayment of the bank borrowings by the Company
and increase of equity capital.

Change in Fair Value of Convertible Ordinary Shares

Class B convertible ordinary shares and Class C convertible ordinary shares have
been automatically converted into ordinary shares of the Company on 16 March
2018, upon when the Company’s shares were listed on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing”). Class B convertible ordinary shares and Class C convertible ordinary
shares are included in the Group’s consolidated statement of financial position
at fair value, the changes are recognised in the Group's profit or loss. The Group
incurred a fair value gain of RMB133.5 million and would not affect the Group’s
operations and profitability. There is no cash income arising from the fair value
gains.

Listing Expenses

The Group incurred additional listing expenses of RMB3 million in connection
with the preparation for the Listing during the year ended 31 December 2018,
which included the professional service fees and other fees but excluded the
maintenance expenses after the Listing.
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Income Tax Expenses

Certain subsidiaries of the Company are entitled to a preferential income tax
rate of 15% as a "high-end new technology enterprise”, and some of the other
subsidiaries of the Company are entitled to a three-year tax holiday followed by a
three-year 50% tax rate reduction as their operations fall within certain qualified
environmental protection and energy conservation sections as defined by the
PRC government. Other subsidiaries of the Company are subject to an income tax
rate of 25% pursuant to the applicable PRC taxation law. The Company, which
was incorporated in the Cayman Islands, is not subject to any Cayman Islands
taxation.

The income tax expenses of the Group were RMB56 million, representing
an increase of 33.3% as compared with RMB42 million for the same period
last year, mainly attributable to increase in profit before tax and provision for
withholding income tax for dividend.

Profit/(Loss) for the Year

The Group recorded a net profit of RMB393 million for the 2018 Financial Year.
Excluding the gain from change in fair value of convertible ordinary shares, the
adjusted net profit of the Group would have increased to RMB259 million for the
2018 Financial Year compared to RMB196 million for the 2017 Financial Year.

Profit Attributable to the Owners of the Company

Profit attributable to the owners of the Company for the 2018 Financial Year was
RMB394 million while the loss attributable to the owners of the Company for the
2017 Financial Year was RMB36 million.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Taking into account the financial resources available to the Group, including cash
and cash equivalents on hand, cash generated from operations and available
facilities of the Company, and the net proceeds from the Listing, and after
diligent and careful analysis, the Directors are of the view that the Group have
sufficient working capital required for the Group's operations at present and for
the year ending 31 December 2019.

Cash Flows

The Group's cash and cash equivalents of RMBG689 million as at 31 December
2017 increased by 13.2% to RMB780 million as at 31 December 2018, which is
due to the receipt of IPO proceeds and the use of IPO proceeds on BOT projects
and fund the working capital.
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Capital Expenditure

The capital expenditure of the Group comprises expenditures on the purchase of
property, plant and equipment and the construction of BOT projects. For the 2018
Financial Year, the total capital expenditure of the Group was RMB392 million
which were used primarily for the construction of concession operation projects
of the Group and asset acquisition for individual BOT projects.

Pledge of the Group’s Assets

As at 31 December 2018, the Group borrowed an aggregate amount of RMB27
million from banks, of which bank borrowings for BOT projects of approximately
RMB3 million were secured by the pledge of bank deposit or the right to the
future income or the pledge of the concession arrangements for borrowings used
in concession operation. The Group also had RMB38 million of notes receivable
that has been discounted as at 31 December 2018, of which the Group still has

continuing involvement.

Contingent Liabilities
As at 31 December 2018, the Group did not have any material contingent
liabilities.

Risk Factors and Risk Management

Risks on environmental protection and pollution control policies
The Group provides substantially all of its environmental protection services to
customers in the PRC, and the development of its businesses is greatly dependent
on the pollution preventive policies of the PRC. Environmental protection industry
is one of the major industries that benefit from the constant support of the PRC
governments. The demand for the Group’s environmental protection services
and the revenue generated therefrom are directly linked with the environmental
protection requirements imposed on the current and potential customers of the
Group. However, there can be no assurance that the specific favourable policies
which are currently available will continue to exist. In addition, these policies
and incentives may attract additional new market entrants and may encourage
other products or services which may achieve greater pollution control effects
than the products and services of the Group. There can therefore be no assurance
that the Group will directly benefit from the changed industry policies. However,
the Group, as a leader among independent flue gas treatment integrated services
providers in the PRC, will capture market opportunities to further cover the
overall industry chain of flue gas treatment, explore the potential markets and
at the same time ambitiously expand its business in new market of the non-
electricity industries such as steel, petrochemical and cement, to achieve the
sustainable development of the Group's business. The Group will further expand
its business scope based on the core competitive strengths of the Group in the
flue gas treatment industry to become a comprehensive environmental protection
industrial group.
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Liquidity Risks

Although the Group recorded positive operating cash flow in the 2018 Financial
Year, there is no guarantee that the Group's operating cash flow will continue
to be positive in the future. The Group's ability to generate adequate cash
inflows from operating activities in the future will depend on project schedule
and billing arrangement, its ability to collect receivables in timely manner and
the credit terms it can obtain. If the Group is not able to generate sufficient
cash flows from its operations, the Group’s growth prospects may be materially
and adversely affected. Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management
rests with the Directors, who have established an appropriate liquidity risk
management framework for the management of the Group’s short-term, medium-
term and long-term funding and liquidity management requirements. The Group
manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves, banking facilities and
reserve bank financing, by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash
flows, and by matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities.

Credit Risks

The credit risk primarily arises from trade and notes receivables, receivables
under concession arrangement, bank balance and cash, pledged bank deposit,
contract assets, debt instrument at FVTOCI, other receivables and amounts due
from related parties. Due to the nature of business of the Group, the Group
has significant concentration of credit risk on a small number of customers
and the financial guarantee provided by the Group. As at 31 December 2018,
the aggregated amount of the Group’s trade and notes receivables to the top
five customers was RMB449 million, representing 57.6% of the total trade
and notes receivable of the Group on 31 December 2018. Furthermore, the
amount receivable from the concession operation business is RMB380 million
on 31 December 2018. In addition, the Group’s concentration of credit risk by
geographical locations is solely in the PRC. The Group has a credit policy in place
and the exposure to these credit risks are monitored on an ongoing basis. The
Group has established a collection team for each customer and require customers
to settle progress billings and other debts in accordance with the terms of the
agreements such customers have entered into.
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Foreign Exchange and Conversion Risks

Almost all of the Group’s operating activities are carried out in the PRC with
most of the transactions denominated in RMB. The Group is exposed to foreign
exchange and conversion risks primarily through sales and procurement that
are denominated in currencies other than RMB. In addition, RMB is not freely
convertible into foreign currencies and the conversion of RMB into foreign
currencies is subject to rules and regulations of the foreign exchange control
promulgated by the PRC Government.

The Group does not have a foreign currency hedging policy. However, the
Directors monitor the Group’s foreign exchange exposure closely and may,
depending on the circumstances and trend of foreign currency, consider adopting
significant foreign currency hedging policy in the future.

Outlook on the Group’s Future Development

In recent years, the PRC government has over time introduced a series of
policies that have far-reaching impact on the development of the environmental
protection industry, and promoted the sustained and rapid development of
environmental protection. The realisation of “Beautiful China initiative” and
“Ecological Civilization” has been written into the PRC Constitution, highlighting
the importance of ecological civilization construction in the overall layout of the
country, and the construction of ecological civilization has risen to the level of
national will. With a strong support from national policies, the principal business
of the Company has shifted from electricity sector to non-electricity sector. With
the gradual opening of flue gas treatment market in the non-power industry
and the rapid increase of VOCs market potential, the demand for sewage
treatment, soil restoration, solid waste treatment and environmental monitoring
will continue to grow. The Group will seize these development opportunities by
virtue of its own strength and become a leader in the environmental protection
industry.

The Group seeks to strengthen its position as a leading flue gas treatment
service provider in the PRC, and further expand the market share to maximize
shareholder returns. The Group also plans to expand its business into other
environmental protection and energy conservation areas and contribute to
the environmental protection in the PRC and around the world. The Group is
committed to becoming a world-class environmental industrial group. Looking
forward, the Group will carry out the following tasks with its existing advantages:
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Maintaining the sustainability of each business segment

In 2018, the Group's business segments and profits achieved remarkable
results. In the future, the Group will comprehensively enhance the professional
management capabilities of each business segment, further reduce costs,
optimize operations, enhance core competitiveness, continue to build quality
projects, and actively strengthen its exchange and cooperation with peers in
PRC and abroad, introducing and promoting advanced technology, increasing
investment in research and development, and improving the innovation ability
of enterprises. We will also seize the national policy opportunities, further
explore the thermal power industry’s desulfurization and denitrification operation
and maintenance market potential, and vigorously promote the development
of the Company’s concession operation and the development of operation
and maintenance business through public tendering and strategic cooperation
with major customers in the industry. The optimized structure of concession
and operation and maintenance business strengthens the foundation of the
Company's sustainable development.

Actively participate in the atmospheric management business of
non-electrical field

National and local governments in the PRC continue to introduce policies and
standards for flue gas treatment in non-electrical fields to drive the efforts of
heavy pollution enterprises in desulfurization and denitrification treatment.
The Group will seize the opportunity of air pollution control in non-electrical
industries, actively participate in the flue gas treatment in various industrial
processes, expand its business to steel, cement, petrochemical, metallurgical
and other fields, horizontally extend the industrial chain, and seize market
opportunities, increase its market share of non-electrical business, and seek
new breakthroughs in long-term sustainable development of enterprises. In face
of the difficulties in high-level pollutant discharge, high pollution intensity and
prevention and control, the Group will make use of its techniques and capital
as its own advantages to provide customers with high quality and integrated
comprehensive environmental protection and energy saving solutions.
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Utilize capital market platform to realize enterprise value
appreciation

While developing business and expanding the markets, the Group will leverage
its strong capital strength to enter the fields of municipal and industrial
sewage treatment business and detoxification treatment of solid waste through
various approaches, such as technology cooperation, investment, mergers
and acquisitions, so as to build an integrated environmental industry group.
In addition, supported with the industry background and resources of our
shareholders, the Group would collaborate with relevant research institutes on
joint technology licensing, so as to explore our “ultra-low emission” upgrade
business in the fields of petroleum and petrochemicals, metallurgical, steel and
coal chemicals.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD, MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS
AND DISPOSALS

The Group had no significant investments held or material acquisitions and disposals of
subsidiaries and associated companies during the 2018 Financial Year.

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had 1,800 employees in total (2017: 1,375
employees), substantially all of whom were based in the PRC. The Group has established
labor union branches. Currently, the Group has entered into employment contracts
with all employees, in which the position, duties, remuneration, employment benefits,
training, confidentiality obligations relating to trade secrets and grounds for termination,
among other things are specified pursuant to PRC Labor Law and other relevant
regulations.

The remuneration package of the employees includes salaries, bonuses and allowances.
Our employees also receive supplemental medical provision, transportation allowances,
meal allowances and other benefits. The Company carries out employee performance
appraisals and establishes diversified and dynamic appraisal mechanisms. The
department heads’ salaries and remunerations will be adjusted corresponding to the
results of their performance appraisals. In compliance with applicable PRC regulations,
the Company has contributed to social insurance funds, including pension plans, medical
insurance, work-related injury insurance, unemployment insurance and maternity
insurance, and housing funds for all its employees.

MAJOR SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Save as disclosed in this report, there are no major subsequent events to 31 December
2018 which would materially affect the Group’s operating and financial performance as
of the date of this report.
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On 8 February 2018 the Company was awarded the second prize of

“China Southern Power Grid Science and Technology Progress Award”
( T H EREHTES —F 42| ) for its achievement in 2017.

20182 A8H RE2017TFRGHRAES [T EEHEHH
A —F 5o

On 23 March 2018, the Company won the hid for the flue gas ultra-low
emission upgrade project for 2x330MW units in Gugiao power plant.
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On 16 March 2018, the Company was successfully listed on the main
board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange with the stock abbreviation of
“B0OQI ENV” (stock code: 02377).

201853716 RAKNEBTEMIMEREE LT R
FHBEIMEFRR] RERS 02377

On 21 May 2018, the Company entered into a contract with Hebei Jinxi

Iron and Steel Company Limited for an ultra-low emission project of
265m? sintering machines.

201BF5H21B RAIRBALEAMAEERNER QA
265 FAEWBESERER -
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On 21 May 2018, the Company entered into a contract with Qianxi

County Jinxi Wantong Ductile Iron Pipes Co., Ltd. for an ultra-low
emission project of 685m? sintering machines.
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In May 2018, Guangxi Qinzhou Power Plant Phase Il Expansion Project
(2x1000 MW) and Shanxi Yongji “Constructing Large Unite and
Restricting Small Ones” 2x300MW Chermal Power Cogeneration Project
was awarded the 2018 China Quality Power Project Award ([ 2018 4F

ETHEENEETRE].

20184F5 8 - E &N E B = B8 2 T2 (2x1000MW) T i2
AL PO [ E KRB E0 12 x 350MW 24 6 B & T 12 1815 2018 F
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On 8 June 2018, the Company entered into a contract for the first fuel
gas project, i.e. Gao'antun Gas-fired Thermal Power Waste Heat Boiler
Denitrification Upgrade Project.

20186 A8H AAIRAFEF —AMRRBEE-SLXEMRRAE
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On 15 June 2018, China Bogi Environmental Protection (Holdings) Co.,

Ltd. held a general meeting.

201856 A15H  PEBHRE(ER)AER AT EMREKNE -
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On 20 August 2018, Huainan Bogi
Environmental Protection Technology Co.,
Ltd. was incorporated.

2018%8A20H  ERBEHFRARMEK
AR AR FEMAL

October +A

On 17 October 2018, the Company won the bid for the flue gas ultra-low

emission upgrade BOO project for 2x300MW units in Laibin Power Plant
of Fangyuan Power Co., Ltd. of Guangxi Investment Group.

2018F10R17H FREAREEE A TENROHBER LA
R E B W2 < 300MW H# 48 1 5% 8 1K BF 7R 2 &EBO0E B -

On 23 November 2018, the Company's first wastewater zero-emission
project — Huaeng Jinggangshan Power Plant desulfurization and
wastewater zero-emission demonstration project was put into operation.

2018F 1M A238 DA% —EEKTHMAR —EEHEL
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On 29 November 2018, the Company participated in the 2018 ‘North
Star Cup’ most influential top ten flue gas treatment enterprises”
and was awarded the “Most Influential Top Ten Steel Denitrification
Enterprise Award” ([ fx B 52 & J7 -+ K #il &= B i 1 2 48] ) and
“The Most Influential Top Ten De-Plume Enterprise Award” ([ 5 & &

BT RERBAEERE])
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In December the Company was awarded the “Leading Enterprise in
Atmosphere Governance Industry” ([ K FORIETTEEE M ¥])
and top three in “Atmospheric Governance Environmental Protection
Enterprises (Power Industry)” ([ & /71T £ K A B IRR B Al
=5&]).
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In March and December, the Company was rated as “Quality Supplier
of Metallurgical Industry” ([/A & T2 EE H E /&) and
“Environmental Pioneer of Steel Industry” ([ #/ 82 17 2 IR (R % 88 1)
by Metallurgical Industry International Cooperation Service Center of
China Equipment Management Association.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TRERRSE

The Board is pleased to present this corporate governance report in the annual report of
the Company for the year ended 31 December 2018.

Corporate Governance Code

The Company’s Shares have been listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) since 16 March 2018 (the “Listing Date”). The Company is
committed to maintaining high standards of corporate governance to safeguard the
interests of the Shareholders and to enhance corporate values and accountahility.
The Company has adopted the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as
set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules (the “Listing Rules”). In addition, the
Board unanimously approved on 20 December 2018 to adopt the Stock Exchange’s
amendments to the CG Code and the Listing Rules with effect from 1 January 2019 and
implement its application.

Save as disclosed herein, the Company complied with the code provisions as set out in
the CG Code during the period from the Listing Date to the date of this annual report (the
“Period”). The Company will continue to review and enhance its corporate governance
practices to ensure compliance with the CG Code.

Model Code for Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”)
as its code of conduct regarding dealings in the securities of the Company. Having
made specific enquiry to all the Directors, all Directors confirmed that they had strictly
complied with the required standards set out in the Model Code during the Reporting
Period.

The Board has also adopted the Model Code to regulate all dealings by employees
who are likely to be in possession of unpublished inside information of the Company
in respect of securities in the Company as referred to in code provision A.6.4 of the CG
Code. No incident of non-compliance with the Model Code by the Company’s employees
was noted during the Period after making reasonable enquiry.
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THE BOARD

Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for the overall leadership of the Group, oversees the Group’s
strategic decisions and monitors business and performance. The Board has delegated
the authority and responsibility for day-to-day management and operation of the Group
to the senior management of the Group. To oversee particular aspects of the Company’s
affairs, the Board has established three Board committees including the audit committee
(the “Audit Committee”), the remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”)
and the nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”) (together, the “Board
Committees”). The Board has delegated to the Board Committees responsibilities as set
out in their respective terms of reference.

All Directors shall ensure that they carry out duties in good faith, in compliance
with applicable laws and regulations, and in the interests of the Company and its
shareholders at all times.

Directors’ and Senior Management's Liability Insurance and Indemnity
The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance to indemnify the Group’s
Directors and senior management for their liabilities arising out of corporate activities.
The insurance coverage will be reviewed on an annual basis.

Board Composition

The Board currently comprises two executive Directors, namely Mr. Cheng Liquan
Richard and Mr. Zeng Zhijun, three non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Tony Tuo
Zheng, Mr. Zhu Weihang and Mr. Chen Xue and three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Liu Genyu, Dr. Xie Guozhong and Mr. Lu Zhifang.

Since the Listing Date and up to the date of this annual report, the Board at all times
met the requirements of the Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules relating to
the appointment of at least three independent non-executive Directors with at least one
independent non-executive Director possessing appropriate professional qualifications
or accounting or related financial management expertise. Among the three independent
non-executive Directors, Dr. Xie Guozhong has appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise as required by Rule 3.10(2) of the
Listing Rules.
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Board Diversity Policy

Pursuant to the code provision A.5.6 of the CG Code, listed issuers are required to adopt
a board diversity policy. The policy specifies that in designing the composition the
Board, board diversity shall be considered from a number of aspects, including but not
limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background, professional experience,
skills and knowledge. The appointment of Directors will be based on meritocracy,
and candidates will be evaluated against objective criteria, having due regard for the
benefits of diversity of the Board. Selection of candidates will be based on a range of
diversity perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, culture, educational
background, professional experience, knowledge and skills.

The composition of the Board will be disclosed in the Corporate Governance Report
every year and the Nomination Committee will supervise the implementation of this
policy. The Nomination Committee will review the effectiveness of this policy, as
appropriate discuss any revisions that may be required, and recommend any such
revisions to the Board for consideration and approval.

As at the date of this annual report, the diversity of the Board is illustrated as below.
Further details on the biographies and experience of the Directors are set out on page
16 to page 22 of this annual report.
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The Nomination Committee has reviewed the membership, structure and composition ReZeedBhilsEeKE 2B RAK:

of the Board, and is of the opinion that the structure of the Board is reasonable, and
the experiences and skills of the Directors in various aspects and fields can enable the
Company to maintain high standard of operation.

66 CHINA BOQI ENVIRONMENTAL (HOLDING) CO., LTD. R EfZBR(ZR) AR A 7

REBEESNEREGE MEENAEZ A
LEBMEBREEE BEARRSFERE
BIKFE o



Independence of the Independent Non-executive Directors

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each independent non-
executive Director of his independence pursuant to the requirements of the Listing
Rules. After the Board reviews the written annual confirmation from of all the non-
executive Director of his independence, the Board considers them to be independent in
accordance with the independence guidelines as set out in the Listing Rules. The Board
is not aware of the occurrence of any events which would cause it to believe that the
independence of any of the Independent non-Executive Directors has been impaired up
to the date of this annual report.

None of the Directors has any personal relationship (including financial, business, family
or other material/relevant relationship), with any other Director.

All Directors, including independent non-executive Directors, have brought a wide
spectrum of valuable business experience, knowledge and professionalism to the
Board for its efficient and effective functioning. Independent non-executive directors
are invited to serve on the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee.

In regards to the CG Code provision requiring directors to disclose the number and
nature of offices held in public companies or organizations and other significant
commitments as well as their identity and the time involved to the issuer, Directors
have agreed to disclose their commitments to the Company in a timely manner.
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Induction and Continuous Professional Development

Pursuant to code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all Directors should participate in
continuous professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills
to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.

Each newly appointed Director has been provided with necessary induction and
information to ensure that he has a proper understanding of the Company’s operations
and businesses as well as his responsibilities under relevant statues, laws, rules and
regulations.

In this reporting period, all the Directors (Mr. Cheng Liquan Richard, Mr. Zeng Zhijun,
Mr. Tony Tuo Zheng, Mr. Zhu Weihang, Mr. Chen Xue, Mr. Liu Genyu, Mr. Xie Guozhong
and Mr. Lu Zhifang) has attended the training courses conducted by the legal adviser
of the Company, William Ji & Co. (in Association with Tian Yuan Law Firm Hong Kong
Office). The content of such training related to the new amendments made in the
Securities Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and CG Code
in its Appendix 14 with effect from 1 January 2019. According to it, all the Directors
have been updated with the latest developments regarding the Listing Rules and other
applicable regulatory requirement to ensure compliance and enhance their awareness
of good corporate governance practices. In addition, continuing briefing and professional
development to Directors will be arranged whenever necessary.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Under the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer should be separate and performed by different individuals. The
positions of chairman and chief executive officer are held by Mr. Cheng and Mr. Zeng,
respectively. The chairman provides the overall strategic planning and direction of the
Group and is responsible for the effective functioning and leadership of the Board. The
chief executive officer focuses on the Company’s business development and the daily
management and operations generally.
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Appointment and re-election of Directors
Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract with the Company
for a term of three years commencing from 28 February 2018.

Each of the non-executive Directors and the independent non-executive Directors has
signed an appointment letter with the Company for a term of three years commencing
from 28 February 2018.

None of the Directors has a service contract which is not determinable by the Group
within one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

In accordance with the Company’s amended and restated memorandum and articles
of association, at each annual general meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time
being shall retire from office by rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to
retirement at least once every three years. Shareholders of the Company entitled to vote
at the annual general meeting for the election of Directors will elect a Board consisting
of at least the minimum number of Directors set under the articles of association of
the Company and all the Directors shall cease to hold office immediately before such
election, but are eligible for re-election at such meeting.

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and removal of directors are set
out in the Company’s amended and restate memorandum and articles of association.
The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing the Board composition,
monitoring and make recommendations to the Board on the appointment, re-election
and succession planning of Directors, in particular the chairman and the chief executive
officer.

Board Meetings

The Company adopts the practice of holding board meetings regularly, at least four
times a year, and at approximately quarterly intervals. Notices of not less than
fourteen days are given for all regular board meetings to provide all Directors with an
opportunity to attend and include matters in the agenda for a regular meeting. For other
Board and committee meetings, reasonable notice is generally given. The agenda and
accompanying board papers are dispatched to the Directors or committee members at
least three days before the meetings to ensure that they have sufficient time to review
the papers and be adequately prepared for the meetings. When directors or committee
members are unable to attend a meeting, they will be advised of the matters to be
discussed and given an opportunity to make their views known to the Chairman prior to
the meeting. Minutes of meetings are kept by the Company with copies circulated to all
Directors for information and records.
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Minutes of the board meetings and committee meetings are recorded in sufficient detail
the matters considered by the Board and the committees and the decisions reached,
including any concerns raised by the Directors. Draft minutes of each board meeting and
committee meeting are sent to the Directors for comments within a reasonable time
after the date on which the meeting is held. The minutes of the board meetings are
available for inspection by Directors.

ESCERNZECeRNERERIHER
BREZERZBEMBZNEERMERNR
T ERESRAEANTARE ZSEFEER
FRECEZNTHRERAIABREAETEHA
&WQETWWﬁL BREF UHKRFEXR
ER- CEEMCRARESARNERN-

Since the Listing Date and up to 31 December 2018, four board meetings were held and BEETmHSPEEE2018F12831BIH EFg

the details are set out in the table below: DRTMAEZEGE EBBERLOT

Date Agenda of the meeting

=R EE L

29 March 2018 To review and approve the relevant (1) corporate governance functions of the Group; (2) the 2017 audited

20183 A29H consolidated financial statements of the Group; (3) the 2017 Annual Result Announcement of the Group; (4) the
continuing connected transactions of the Group for 2017; (5) Final dividend of the Group; (6) Re-appointment
of the Group’s auditors in 2018; (7) 2018 Annual General Meeting of the Group; (8) General mandate to issue
shares and repurchase shares of the Group; (9) Risk of the Group Management and internal control system; (10)
the Group's diversity policy of the Board.
BERRBERBENASECXRERE  QFEEWTFLEEFEHUBRE QFEE
VEEEERE WAKSENWTEFERBEABRS  OAKERERE (6K K E201845
B ENTG (NAEE0BFERRAG Q) FAEEETRMHME B M —REEK
BOAEERBREBNMADEFBR (10FAEEEZTEXNES TIEBR

20 April 2018 To review and approve the relevant (1) Group’s 2017 Annual Report; (2) re-election and appointment of the

201844 A20H Directors of the Group; (3) remuneration of Directors.
BRERUERBNASENTFERS  ODASEEENENEENED QEFNHM -

29 August 2018 To review and approve of (1) the Group’s 2018 Interim Result Announcement; (2) the Group's 2018 Interim

201848 A29H Report; (3) the Group’s 2018 Interim Dividend; and review the effectiveness of the Group’s corporate financial
reporting, risk management and internal control systems for the six months ended 30 June 2018.
BRI EEENAEE208FFHEELE A EE2018F F HRE : (A EEH2018F
HHRE  TEEASEBE2018F6A30R IEAEAN ARG B RS Bk EEMAIDE
Tl 2 e 69 B B

20 December 2018 To review and approve the proposal on the adoption and implementation of the new CG Code and the new

2018412 A 20H Listing Rules amendment.
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ik
M

70

CHINA BOQI ENVIRONMENTAL (HOLDING) CO., LTD. R EfZBR(ZR) AR A 7



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

TEERBESE)

Directors Attendance/number of meetings held
B BHERE 2TEFRY
Mr. Cheng Liquan Richard 4/4
BE2EE

Mr. Zeng Zhijun 4/4
LrErE

Mr. Tony Tuo Zheng 4/4
BHEEE

Mr. Zhu Weihang 4/4
REMEE

Mr. Chen Xue 4/4
REBEXL

Mr. Liu Genyu 4/4
ZIRFELE

Dr. Xie Guozhong 4/4
HEEEL

Mr. Lu Zhifang 4/4
e

Apart from formal meetings, other matters subject to the approval of the Board were
handled in the form of written resolutions.

Model Code for Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its
own code of conduct regarding Directors” securities transactions. Specific enquiry has
been made of all the Directors and each of the Directors has confirmed that he has
strictly complied with the Model Code since the Listing Date and up to the date of this
annual report.

The Board has also adopted the Model Code to regulate all dealings by relevant
employees who are likely to be in possession of unpublished inside information of the
Company in respect of securities in the Company as referred to in code provision A.6.4
of the CG Code. No incident of non-compliance with the Model Code by the Company's
relevant employees has been noted during the Period after making reasonable enquiry.
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Delegation by the Board

The Board reserves its decision for all major matters of the Company, including: approval
and monitoring of all policy matters, overall strategies and budgets, internal control
and risk management systems, material transactions (in particular those that may
involve conflict of interests), financial information, appointment of Directors and other
significant financial and operational matters. Directors could have recourse to seek
independent professional advice in performing their duties at the Company’s expense
and are encouraged to consult with the Company’s senior management independently.

The daily management, administration and operation of the Group are delegated to
the senior management. The delegated functions and responsibilities are periodically
reviewed by the Board. Approval has to be obtained from the Board prior to any
significant transactions entered into by the management.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three Board committees to strengthen its functions and
corporate governance practices, namely, the Audit Committee, the Nomination
Committee and the Remuneration Committee. The Audit Committee, the Nomination
Committee and the Remuneration Committee perform their specific roles in accordance
with their respective written terms of reference.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises three members, namely Dr. Xie Guozhong (chairman),
Mr. Liu Genyu and Mr. Tony Tuo Zheng, all of them are non-executive Directors and
the majority are independent non-executive Directors. The primary duties of the Audit
Committee include examining independently the financial positions of the Company,
overseeing the Company's financial reporting system, risk management and internal
control system, the audit process and proposals of internal management, communicating
independently with, monitoring and verifying the work of internal audit and external
auditors.

Since the Listing Date and up to 31 December 2018, two meeting of the Audit
Committee was held and the details are as follows:

° the first meeting of the first Audit Committee was held on 29 March 2018 to
review and approve (1) the Group's 2017 annual financial statements and results
announcement; (2) the Group's risk management and internal control system; (3)
the re-appointment of the Group’s auditors in 2018.
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° the second meeting of the first Audit Committee was held on 29 August 2018
to review and approve (1) the unaudited consolidated financial statements of
the Group for the six months ended 30 June 2018, (2) the Group’s 2018 Interim
Report and Interim Results announcement, and review of the Group for the
effectiveness of financial reporting, risk management and internal control
systems for the six months ended 30 June 2018.
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Directors Attendance/number of meetings held
B HE/8RETHE
Dr. Xie Guozhong (Chairman) 2/2
# B BT (ERE)

Mr. Liu Genyu 2/2
FRELE

Mr. Tony Tuo Zheng 2/2
kA&

The Audit Committee reviewed the financial reporting system, compliance procedures,
internal control (including the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programmes and budget of the Company's accounting and financial
reporting function), risk management systems and processes and the reappointment of
the external auditor and fulfilled the aforementioned duties as required. The Board had
not deviated from any recommendation given by the Audit Committee on the selection,
appointment, resignation or dismissal of external auditor.

They also reviewed annual results of the Company and its subsidiaries for the fiscal year
as well as the audit report prepared by the external auditor relating to accounting issues
and major findings in course of audit. There are proper arrangements for employees, in
confidence, to raise concerns about possible improprieties in financial reporting, internal
control and other matters. The written terms of reference of the Audit Committee are
available on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee currently comprises three members, namely Mr. Cheng
Liquan Richard (chairman), Dr. Xie Guozhong and Mr. Lu Zhifang, the majority of them
are independent non-executive Directors.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to review the structure, size and
composition of the Board at least annually and make recommendations on any proposed
changes to the Board to complement the Company’'s corporate strategy, to make
recommendation to the Board regarding candidates to fill vacancies on the Board and/or

EREERE
REZECRANMA-RKEAK AiEE2E
AEXZRE) #ELBELRESFELE R&H
REDRBIERNTES -

REZBENIZRERESBFRIESS
MRE RERAK YHREFERESAR
AR R B AT E L M ERZEE IR G2
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in the management, and to assess the independence of the independent non-executive eREESE WIGEBIIIERNTESNBE LI -
Directors.
The Nomination Committee will assess the candidate or incumbent on criteria such as REZESEREEFFEEAREFTA B
integrity, experience, skill and ability to commit time and effort to carry out the duties Bz KB FERBAEBBMEBEIILE ﬁ i
and responsibilities. The recommendations of the Nomination Committee will then ENEANEN REZECSHNHEERZRR
be put to the Board for decision. Their written terms of reference are available on the ERETESCIEE AT - EEHEESHER —J »
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company. B RARABIEER -
Since the Listing Date and up to 31 December 2018, the first meeting of the first BErmBHENREZ2018F12A318 1L R4
Nomination Committee was held on 20 April 2018 to review and approve the ZE@R8FIRWEETTE —RFEREZ
Group's Board diversity policy; review and evaluate the independence of the Group's EgE— /’/ZTSE%% ZUIHAEEBLAEEES
independent non-executive Directors; review and approve the re-election of relevant @Z Ut ER: BRI TEANEBRE L IEH T
Directors at the annual general meeting. The details of their attendance are as follows: EEMF L Iﬁ-E CEBUHENBESERRA
FRELEREF -HHBEFBEOT:
Directors Attendance/number of meetings held
5= HE/ gRBTHEA
Mr. Cheng Liquan Richard (Chairman) Al
BER2EE(ERE)
Dr. Xie Guozhong A
it Bl B+
Mr. Lu Zhifang /1
The Nomination Committee assessed the independence of independent non-executive REEZETIHBUFANTESNBE LN &

Directors, considered the re-appointment of the retiring Directors, reviewed the time
commitment required from the non-executive Director and fulfilled duties as required
aforesaid.
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The Board has adopted a Board diversity policy (the “Policy”) in accordance with the
requirements of the Listing Rules with effect from 29 March 2018 which sets out the
approach to achieve diversity on the Board. All Board appointments shall be based on
meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against selection criteria, having regard
for the benefits of diversity on the Board. Selection of candidates will be based on range
of diversity perspectives, which would include but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and
length of service. The ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution that the
selected candidates will bring to the Board. The Nomination Committee will monitor
the implementation of the Policy and will from time to time review the Policy, as
appropriate, to ensure the effectiveness of the Policy.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises three members, namely Mr. Lu Zhifang
(chairman), Mr. Liu Genyu and Mr. Zeng Zhijun, the majority of them are independent
non-executive Directors.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are to recommend the Board on the
Group’s remuneration policy and structure for the Directors and senior management
remuneration and on the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for
developing remuneration policy, to review and approve the management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the Board's corporate goals and objectives, and to make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of the executive Directors
and senior management.

The written terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are available on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.
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Since the Listing Date and up to 31 December 2108, the first meeting of the first BFrmHEBEREZ2018F12 8318 1k + & B
Remuneration Committee was held on 20 April 2018 to review and approve the ZEER2018F4A208 BT TE—RBHFMEZ
remuneration of the Directors and senior management of the Group, and the details are BeF— ek BRI AEEEAEEES
as follows: REREBENGEM HERFEHT :
Directors Attendance/number of meetings held
s HE/gEETEA
Mr. Lu Zhifang (Chairman) 1/1
BEEFEE(ER)
Mr. Liu Genyu /1
2R K&
Mr. Zeng Zhijun 11
B2EEE

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 4F 75



“CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

TEERBESE)

The Remuneration Committee discussed and reviewed the remuneration policy for
Directors and senior management of the Company, made recommendations to the Board
on the remuneration packages of individual executive Directors and senior management
and fulfilled duties as required aforesaid.

Details of the remuneration by band of the members of senior management of the
Company, whose biographies are set out on page 24 to page 31 of this annual report,
for the year ended 31 December 2018 are set out in the Independent Auditor's Report
on page 210 to page 212 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FINANCIAL REPORTING IN
RESPECT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial statements for
the 2018 Financial Year which give a true and fair view of the affairs of the Company
and the Group and of the Group's results and cash flows.

The management has provided to the Board such explanation and information as are
necessary to enable the Board to carry out an informed assessment of the Company's
financial statements, which are put to the Board for approval. The Company provides all
members of the Board with monthly updates on Company's performance, positions and
prospects.

The Directors were not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern.

The statement by the auditor of the Company regarding their reporting responsibilities

on the financial statements of the Company is set out in the Independent Auditor’s
Report on page 129 to page 133 of this annual report.
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INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for maintaining an adequate risk management and internal
control systems to safeguard Shareholders’ investments and Company’s assets and
with the support of the Audit Committee, reviewing the effectiveness of such systems
on an annual basis. The Company has implemented various internal control and risk
management policies, including Asset Depreciation Provision Management Policy,
Inventory Management Policy and Financing and Guarantee Management Policy.
Furthermore, we also sponsor our internal control staff to attend risk management
and internal control related trainings every year. The risk management and internal
control policies are designed to help achieve business objectives, safeguarding assets
against unauthorised use, and maintaining proper accounting records for the provision
of reliable financial information for internal use and for publication. The establishment
of risk management and internal control systems is to provide reasonable, but not
absolute, assurance against material misstatement of financial statements or loss of
assets and to manage rather than eliminate risks of failure in operational systems and
achievement of the Group's objectives.

The Company’s operation planning department is responsible for the internal control and
risk management of the Company’s business operations. The internal audit department
is responsible for the internal audit of the Company. The Company has also engaged
external consultants to perform a review of the internal control and risk management
systems of the Group. With the assistance of the external consultants, the operation
planning department, the internal control department and the internal audit department
of the Company, the Company is able to take mitigating and remedial measures to
address the identified risks and such actions and measures are integrated in the day-
to-day activities of the Group and their effectiveness is closed monitored. The internal
audit, internal control and risk management systems and policies are reviewed by
the Board on an ongoing basis in order to make it practical and effective in providing
reasonable assurance in relation to the identification of business risks.

The Company has put in place a policy on handling and dissemination of inside
information which sets out the procedures and internal controls for handling and
dissemination of inside information in a timely manner in such a way to avoid placing
any person in a privileged dealing position. The inside information policy also provides
guidelines to employees of the Group to ensure proper safeguards exists to prevent
the Company from breaching the statutory and listing rule disclosure requirements.
The Company has appropriate internal control and reporting systems to identify and
assess potential inside information. Dissemination of inside information of the Company
shall be conducted by publishing the relevant information on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company, according to the requirements of the Listing Rules.
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The Audit Committee assists the Board in the review, which covers operational,
financial and compliance controls, internal audit and risk management functions, to
maintain an adequate and effective internal control system to safeguard the interests
of the shareholders and the assets of the Group. For the 2018 Financial Year, the
Board conducted an annual review of the effectiveness of the internal control system
of the Group by, including but not limited to, considering a written report prepared
by the external consultants to the Audit Committee covering the above aspects. The
Board has also considered the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of
staff of the Company’'s accounting and financial reporting function, and their training
programme and budget during the year under review. The Board is not aware of any
significant internal control and risk management weaknesses nor significant breach of
limits or risk management policies, and considers that the current monitoring systems
of the Company are effective and that the qualifications and experience of the staff,
performing accounting and financial reporting functions and the training programmes
of the Company as well as the experiences and resources for setting the budget of the
Company are adequate. The Company has complied with the requirements under C.2.1
to C.2.5 and C.3.3 of the CG Code relating to risk management and internal control since
the Listing Date.

AUDITOR'S REMUNERATION

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu (“Deloitte”) was appointed as the Company’s auditors to
audit the financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2018
prepared in accordance with IFRSs and the PRC GAAP, respectively. Aggregate fees in
respect of audit and audit-related services provided by Deloitte payable by the Company
during the year ended 31 December 2018 were HK$2,800,000.

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES AND PRIMARY CONTACT OF
THE COMPANY

Ms. Qian Xiaoning was appointed as the joint company secretary of the Company on
13 February 2017. Ms. Qian’s biographical details are set out in the section headed
“Directors and Senior Management” on page 27 of this annual report. As Ms. Qian
Xiaoning does not possess the qualifications as stipulated under Rules 3.28 and 8.17 of
the Listing Rules, the Company has applied for and has been granted a waiver by the
Stock Exchange from strict compliance with those Listing Rules.
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In order to uphold good corporate governance and ensure compliance with the Listing
Rules and applicable Hong Kong laws, the Company also engages Ms. Wong Wai Ling,
the president of SWCS Corporate Services Group (Hong Kong) Limited (a company
secretarial service provider), as its joint company secretary to assist Ms. Qian Xiaoning
to discharge her duties as company secretary of the Company. Ms. Wong Wai Ling's
primary contact person in the Company is Ms. Qian Xiaoning.

Ms. Qian Xiaoning and Ms. Wong Wai Ling have undertaken not less than 15 hours of
relevant professional training in compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules for the
year ending 31 December 2018.

GENERAL MEETING
The annual general meeting (“AGM") of the Company will be held on 29 May 2019.
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During the Reporting Period, the Group has held two general meetings held on 15 June AREHN AEEEBITRMARREAE 5
2018 and 21 November 2018 respectively. The details of the Directors’ attendance are as A A2018F6 A15H X2018F 1M A21 A&7 &
follows: EHERFEASERET
Directors Attendance/number of meetings held
= HE/gRBTEA
Mr. Cheng Liquan Richard 2/2
BER2EE
Mr. Zeng Zhijun 2/2
ZEEE
Mr. Tony Tuo Zheng 2/2
IR K&
Mr. Zhu Weihang 2/2
KEMEE
Mr. Chen Xue 2/2
BRE L&
Mr. Liu Genyu 2/2
2B EE L&
Dr. Xie Guozhong 2/2
it B 1S £
Mr. Lu Zhifang 2/2
e
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TEERBESE)

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTOR
RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication with shareholders is essential for
enhancing investor relations and understanding of the Group's business, performance
and strategies. The Company also recognizes the importance of timely and non-selective
disclosure of information, which will enable shareholders and investors to make the
informed investment decisions.

The AGM of the Company provides opportunity for shareholders to communicate directly
with the Directors. The Chairman of the Company and the chairmen of the Board
Committees of the Company will attend the AGMs to answer shareholders’ questions.
The external auditor of the Company will also attend the AGMs to answer questions
about the conduct of the audit, the preparation and content of the auditor’s report, the
accounting policies and auditor independence.

To promote effective communication, the Company adopts a shareholders’
communication policy which aims at establishing a two-way relationship and
communication between the Company and its shareholders and maintains a website at
http://www.chinabogi.com, where up-to-date information on the Company’s business
operations and developments, financial information, corporate governance practices and
other information are available for public access. In 2019, the Company will focus more
on the demands of investors and analysts, pay close attention to important policies
of the environmental protection and energy conservation industry and allow timely
access by the public to sufficient business information and recent developments of the
Company.

SHAREHOLDERS® RIGHTS

To safeguard shareholders” interests and rights, a separate resolution will be proposed
for each issue at shareholder meetings, including the election of individual directors.

All resolutions put forward at shareholder meetings will be voted by poll pursuant to the
Listing Rules and poll results will be posted on the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange in a timely manner after each shareholder meeting.

80 CHINA BOQI ENVIRONMENTAL (HOLDING) CO., LTD. R EfZBR(ZR) AR A 7

HERHBERREEME

ARARR ERRNANEBRYMRREE
MARERASENER RAKKBEUBEE
BoARAITRARFEFZZEMBREER
MEBREREEEHABERERRNER M -

ARAIBRAFAGRBRRUBEZTERE
BOKE - ARATERARAREEZES
TERBERERRAFAERERRER A2
AN EZBM TS ERRAFAE UK
EEBMBNRT REMBRENRAELAR
SR RRR BB LR EE -

BRREBBEBER AR AFHREBMBUR -
EERVYARAEERTEMEEBERER
3 3% A 48 ¥k (http://www.chinabogi.com) - Tl & &
MEEBLEERERNETEE UK HE-
PEERAERREMEE  UERARALER-
R2019F  KAARIBEERRBEERS A
EREOBAIRRIOEEENEZRR
ERELARABREE BAREHREIE
TEMNEBENIBREARDIHERMR

B 542 7
RRBEBRROMNEREN ARAERKREK
IR EZR(BRESEANESIRERY

REE

RERAGLRENMERBREBRELDA
BIAREFTAETRR REERBNERRE
RERTREERARNR LB BT E -



Procedures for shareholders to convene an extraordinary general meeting
According to Article 12.3 of the Articles of Association, general meetings can be
convened on the written requisition of any two or more shareholders holding at the
date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of
the Company which carries the right of voting at general meetings of the Company
deposited at the principal office of the Company in Hong Kong. If the Board does not
within 21 days from the date of deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene the
meeting to be held within a further 21 days, the requisitionist(s) themselves or any
of them representing more than one-half of the total voting rights of all of them, may
convene the general meeting in the same manner, as nearly as possible, as that in
which meetings may be convened by the Board provided that any meeting so convened
shall not be held after the expiration of three months from the date of deposit of the
requisition, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of
the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to them by the Company.

Procedures for Shareholders to Propose a Person for Election as a Director
If a shareholder of the Company wishes to propose a person other than a Director
for election as a Director at the Company’s general meeting (“Proposal”), he/she
should lodge a written notice setting out the Proposal and his/her contact details
at the principal place of business of the Company or the Company’s branch share
registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited. The Proposal should include
the biographical details of the proposed Director and a written notice signed by the
proposed Director confirming his/her willingness to be elected, the accuracy and
completeness of his/her biographical details.

Shareholders’ inquires

If you have any query in connection with your shareholdings, please write to or contact
the Company’s Hong Kong share registrar, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at: Level
22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong Tel: (852) 2980 1066 Fax:
(852) 2262 7584 Website: www.tricorglobal.com

Investor relations and communications

The Company has set up a website at www.chinabogi.com as a channel to promote
communication, publishing announcements, financial information and other relevant
information of the Company. Shareholders are welcome to make enquiries directly to
the Company at its principal place of business in Hong Kong. The Company will deal
with all enquiries in a timely and appropriate manner. The primary contacts of the
Company are Ms. Zhu Beibei and Ms. Xu Na at (email: irhk@chinabogi.com or tel:
+86 10 59579665/+86 10 59579509).

CHANGE IN CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The memorandum and articles of association of the Company have been amended and
restated with effect from the Listing Date.
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DIRECTORS REPORT
EEEHS

The Board is pleased to present its report together with the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018.

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Basic information about the Company is set out in the sections headed “Corporate
Information” and “Company Profile” on page 2 to page 4 and page 14 of this annual
report.

GLOBAL OFFERING

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted company with
limited liability on 30 January 2015. The Company's shares were listed on the Stock
Exchange on 16 March 2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal activities of the Group
are providing independent flue gas treatment service and environmental protection
solution service by various business models, including environmental protection facility
engineering, operation and maintenance and concession operation.

The activities and particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are shown under note 46 to
the consolidated financial statements. An analysis of the Group’s revenue and operating
profit for the year by principal activities is set out in the section headed “Management
Discussion and Analysis” in this annual report and note 5 to the consolidated financial
statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the Group’s business during the year, which includes a discussion of
the principal risks and uncertainties facing by the Group, an analysis of the Group’s
performance using financial key performance indicators, particulars of important events
affecting the Group during the year, and an indication of likely future developments in
the Group's business, could be found in the sections headed “Chairman’s Statement”
and “Management Discussion and Analysis” in this annual report. The financial risk
management objectives and policies of the Group can also be found in note 3 to the
consolidated financial statements. In addition, a discussion on relationships with its key
stakeholders is included in the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis”
in this annual report. The review forms part of this directors’ report.
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RESULTS

The consolidated results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018 are set out
on page 134 to page 140 of this annual report.

DIVIDEND POLICY

According to the dividend policy that resolved to adopt by the Board (the “Dividend
Policy”) on 18 May 2018, the Company may declare and distribute dividends to the
shareholders of the Company, provided that the Group records a profit and that the
declaration and distribution of dividends does not affect the Group’s normal operations.

According to the Dividend Policy, the Company takes priority to distributing dividends
in cash and shares its profits with the Shareholders. It is expected that the amount of
dividends distributed will be in the range of 30%—50% of the Group's net profit for the
current year, subject to the following requirements. The remaining profit will be used
for the development and operation of the Group.

The Company's ability to distribute dividends will depend on, among others, the
operating results, cash flow, financial condition and capital requirements of the Group
and the interests of the Shareholders of the Company. The Company's distribution
of dividends shall also comply with any restrictions under the Companies Law of the
Cayman Islands and the Articles of Assaciation of the Company.

FINAL DIVIDENDS

The Board recommend the payment of HK$0.09 per ordinary share as final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017: Nil).

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the Group’s results, assets, liabilities for the last four financial years are
set out on page 6 to page 8 of this annual report. This summary does not form part of
the audited consolidated financial statements.

USE OF NET PROCEEDS FROM THE COMPANY'S INITIAL PUBLIC
OFFERING

On 16 March 2018 (the Listing Date), the shares of the Company were listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange, pursuant to which 216,105,000 new shares were
issued by the Company to the public at HK$2.40 per share, with net proceeds of HK$489
million (approximately RMB391 million), after deduction of underwriting commission and
estimated expenses payable in connection with the global offering.
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In 2018, the Company saw an increase in the capital requirement for the new projects
and concession investments in the non-electricity industry. However, taking into
consideration factors such as the Company’s position of domestic funds, fluctuations
in the exchange rate, the Company used part of the fund raised and its own domestic
fund for the execution of the above projects. Accordingly, since the Listing Date and
up to 31 December 2018, the Company has utilized (i) approximately RMB92 million
of the proceeds for the newly built and upgrade concession operation projects;
(ii) approximately RMB78 million of the proceeds for the development of sewage
treatment, soil and solid waste treatment and new businesses in non-electricity
industry; (iii) approximately RMB5 million of the proceeds for research and development
expense; and (iv) approximately RMB12 million of the proceeds for working capital and
other general corporate purposes, in the ways as disclosed in the prospectus, with a
remaining balance of RMB204 million.

For the amounts not utilized yet, the Company will use the net proceeds in the ways as
disclosed in the prospectus in the future. The below table sets out the expected plan of
use:

2018%F  ARAFETEHFEERBHALER
BESBRER BERGEAZEALARANE
RN EXRGEFERR ARAERT
BLEEESRRNEAES AR LAEE
BBl -8 EmHBAEZE2018F12A318 » K
AACRRAREEABEEN I BAME
RANOARBENEETAREFELHE N
MERRBGE (NOARKIBEE T AR KE
B I ERERAEARIRFETENEZHN
P (M ARBSEB T AR B Riv)
ANBEETUREEES REM—REZXASE
RHEARB20BETERSA -

REARBARE RREALARRBRBERER
FBRENTAERASHREFR Rt €M
BTk

Amount expected to be
utilized as disclosed
in the prospectus Utilized amount Amount expected
(RMB million) for the period to be utilized
RRERFEE (RMB million) (RMB million)
Use of Proceeds ARBRALE HBAEDRLE B BASE  Expected timeofuse  Detailed description
FERERR (BBRARY) (EBRARY) (BEXARY) HBICEAKER FHAHL
New concession projects or the upgrade of 17 9 25 1January2019to  Gugiao and Shenhuo concession projects
the concession projects 30 June 2019 B BARTLEER
BRGeEANNERYE 019517182
201956 A30H
Sewage treatment, soil and solid waste 78 78 0 Notapplicable Desulfurization, denitrification and dust removal project
treatment fields and the development of TEA for steel sintering machines
new business of non-electricity industry BN ERERE
KRR TEREELEELR
HEMENEBOFAE
Research and development expenditures 20 5 4 1January 2019to  Technological research and development for zero
ik 30 June 2019 sewage discharge
19F1818E  BXSHMRMHE
201946 A30H
3 1January2019to  Research and development expense on the fields of
30 June 2019 flue gas, water and solid waste treatment and other
0191518 E environmental protection solutions
019%6A308 ERER KEE EEREREMRE
8 1July20191t0 RERAHREGHHE XM
31 December 2019
0195718 %
20196124318
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EEEHREW)
Amount expected to be
utilized as disclosed
in the prospectus Utilized amount ~ Amount expected
(RMB million) for the period to be utilized
RRERFHE (RMB million) (RMB million)
Use of Proceeds ERBRSE HACHALE HirBEEE  Expectedtimeofuse  Detailed description
FERERR (FBRARY) (EBRARY) (BEXARY) HBICAKER FHAHL
Working capital and other general corporate 3 12 20 1January 2019t Working capital and other general corporate
purposes 30 June 2019 purposes
ERESREM-—REXRL WIFTAIEE  BEASREM-—ROXRR
201966 A30H
7 1July2019to
31 December 2019
019F7A10%
2019128318
Strategic mergers and acquisitions 137 0 137 1July2019t0 The Company has been identifying and contacting

B bR

WI9FTAIBE

31 December 2019 various acquisition targets to seek strategic merger
and acquisition opportunities. Generally, it is
expected to take approximately 8 to 16 months
from the confirmation of an acquisition target to the
completion of the acquisition.

RAR-ERVEREAZENERS .
SREMGERE BB TWER
BETRUBABEZHABEI6MEA -

20195124318

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group's largest customers accounted for
15.0% of the Group's total revenue. The Group's five largest customers accounted for
47.1% (2017: 49.3%) of the Group's total revenue.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group's largest suppliers accounted for 8.5%
of the Group's total cost of procurement. The Group's five largest suppliers accounted
for 27.9% (2017: 32.8%) of the Group's total cost of procurement.

Save as disclosed in the prospectus of the Company dated 28 February 2018 (the
“Prospectus”), none of the Directors or any of their associates (as defined under Listing
Rules) or any Shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, owns more
than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) has any beneficial interest in the
Group's five largest suppliers or the Group's five largest customers.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Company and
the Group during the year ended 31 December 2018 are set out in note 13 to the
consolidated financial statements.

TEEFRRMERD
BEBF12ANBLEE AEBAHARF
EAEEZRE50% AEBRARTLHEAR
S ) 18 0 3547.1% < (2017 : 49.3%)

BE20BFNZANBLFE  RAEEKAHE
BERNEEBREKARES% AEBERAHMHE
B A B R B X AR 27.9% (2017 4F : 32.8%) °

72 7 B 8 A 201842 A28 B R 1R B 12(
RERNFHEEN BEEEZRSMEN
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the year ended 31
December 2018 are set out in note 36 to the consolidated financial statements.

Tax Relief

The Company is not aware of any tax relief available to the Shareholders by reason of
their holding in the Company’s securities.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY'S LISTED
SECURITIES

For the period from the Listing Date and up to 31 December 2018 (the “Period”), the
Company purchased 1,255,000 shares of its shares, in aggregate, on the Stock Exchange
at a total consideration of HK$2,038,510.00, which were cancelled thereafter.

Details of the repurchases are summarized as follows:

g3

ARBREBZE2018F12A3NBEFENRAE
PHABERG S M B HRRIMESS -

RBERR

ARABRYFANERRABEARABZLMEA
FRARBEER -

RE HEAROFLFALTES
mETBEBZE2018F12 A318 EHRTER]D -
AR AR B R P IR 48 1K {82,038,510.007% T #E B
£ $£1,255,000 B A {0 > AR N E R -

MEHEHENT

Month of Number of Highest price Lowest price Aggregate
repurchase in 2018 Shares repurchased paid per share paid per share consideration
R2018 E & A 17 EERGEE BRESER BEREEER BRE
HK$ HK$ HKS$
BT BT BT
December
12 R 1,255,000 1.74 1.54 2,038,510.00
Save for the above, neither the Company nor any member of the Group has purchased, BREMEN RRARIAEEKE QRN HHE

sold or redeemed any of the Company’s shares during the Period.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

As at 31 December 2018, there were no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Articles of Association, which require the Company to offer new Shares to existing
Shareholders in proportion to their shareholdings.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group during the year
ended 31 December 2018 are set out on page 135 to page 136 in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2018, the Group's distributable reserves were RMB861,492,000 (as
at 31 December 2017: RMB504,141,000).
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BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Particulars of bank loans and other borrowings of the Company and the Group as at 31
December 2018 are set out in note 33 to the consolidated financial statements.

LOAN AND GUARANTEE

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group had not made any loan or provided
any guarantee for loan, directly or indirectly, to the Directors, senior management, its
controlling shareholders being Mr. Cheng, Mr. Zeng, World Hero International Limited
(“World Hero”) and Best Dawn Limited (“Best Dawn”) (collectively referred to as the
“Controlling Shareholders”) or his/her respective connected persons.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2018 and up to the date of this
annual report were:

Executive Directors
Mr. Cheng Liquan Richard (Chairman)
Mr. Zeng Zhijun

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Tony Tuo Zheng

Mr. Zhu Weihang

Mr. Chen Xue

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Liu Genyu

Dr. Xie Guozhong

Mr. Lu Zhifang

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE DIRECTORS AND THE SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of the Group as at
the date of this annual report are set out on page 16 to page 31 in the section headed
“Directors and Senior Management” to this annual report.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received a confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules from each of the independent non-executive Directors and the Company
considers such Directors to be independent during the period from their respective
appointments and up to the date of this annual report.
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EZgHE®

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the Pre-IPO Share Award Scheme of the Company as set out in note 43 to the
consolidated financial statements, no equity-linked agreements were entered into by
the Group, or existed during the year ended 31 December 2018.

DONATIONS

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group made charitable donations of
HK$1,000,000 (2017: Nil).

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACT AND LETTER OF
APPOINTMENTS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract with the Company
for a term of three years commencing from 28 February 2018.

Each of the non-executive Directors and the independent non-executive Directors has
signed an appointment letter with the Company for a term of three years commencing
from 28 February 2018.

None of the Directors has a service contract which is not determinable by the Group
within one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS
OR CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Connected Transactions” below, neither the
Director nor any entity connected with the Director had a material interest in, either
directly or indirectly, in any contract of significance to the business of the Group to
which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party during the year ended 31
December 2018.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

Pursuant to the amended and restated memorandum and articles of association of the
Company, every Director shall be indemnified out of the assets of the Company against
all losses or liabilities incurred or sustained by him as a director of the Company. The
Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance to indemnify the Directors for
their liabilities arising out of corporate activities.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or existed during the
year ended 31 December 2018.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

There was no contract of significance to which the Company or its holding company
or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which any Controlling Shareholder had a
material interest subsisted during the year ended 31 December 2018.
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CONTRACTS WITH CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

No contract of significance has been entered into among the Company or any of its
subsidiaries and the Controlling Shareholders or any of their subsidiaries during the year
ended 31 December 2018.

EMPLOYEES

The Group had 1,800 employees as at 31 December 2018, as compared to 1,375
employees as at 31 December 2017. The employees of the Company are employed
under employment contracts which set out, among other things, their job scope and
remuneration. Further details of their employment terms are set out in the employee
handbook of the Company. The Company determines the employees’ salaries based on
their job nature, scope of duty, and individual performance. The Company also provides
various benefits to the employees including medical care, housing subsidies, retirement
and other benefits as well as on-the-job education, training and other opportunities
to improve their skills and knowledge. The Company also provides employees with
contributions to social insurance and housing provident fund for the employees in
accordance with PRC regulations and the internal.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Remuneration Committee was set up for reviewing the Group’s emolument policy
and structure for all remuneration of the directors and senior management of the Group,
having regard to the Group’s operating results, individual performance of the directors
and senior management and comparable market practices.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE INDIVIDUALS WITH
HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and five highest paid individuals are set out
in notes 12 to the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITION IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at the 31 December 2018, the interests and short positions of the Directors and the
chief executive of the Company in the Shares, underlying Shares and debentures of
the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO) (i) which were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short
positions which were taken or deemed to have under such provisions); or (i) which were
required to be recorded in the register of the Company required to be kept under Section
352 of the SFO; or (iii) which were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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Long position in our Shares, underlying Shares and debentures of our

RELTERGMG HRROCRAEEPOHF

Company =1
Approximate
Number and class percentage of
Name of Director Nature of Interest of Shares shareholding
EENS ERME BRoBEREN MABEREIL
Mr. Cheng Liquan Richard Interest of a controlled corporation; interests held jointly 406,940,911 40.26%
(Notes 1 and 2) with another person and beneficial owner (Note 1) (Long Position)
BEE2EEMFIR2) RErE s BEMALRBENRERE (17 &)
mHEB AT
Mr. Zeng Zhijun (Notes T and 3) Interest of a controlled corporation; interests held jointly 406,940,911 40.26%
ZEREEMEIRS) with anather person (Note 1) (Long Position)
REmEEER B AXRBENERM ) (7 &)
Mr. Zhu Weihang (Note 4) Interest of a controlled corporation; interests held jointly 152,573,529 15.09%
KAEM £ (M7 4) with another person (Note 1) (Long Position)
REEEER B AR ENERM ) (17 &)
Notes: Wt
(1) Mr. Cheng Liquan Richard and Mr. Zeng Zhijun have entered into an acting-in-concert arrangement, as (1) BELAAEREZHEXAFLBIT T —HTEHZH H

such, Mr. Cheng and Mr. Zeng together control 40.26% equity interests in the issued share capital of
our Company through World Hero, Asia Environment Investment Limited (“Asia Environment”) and Best
Dawn. Asia Environment is owned as to 47.2% by Mr. Zeng. Asia Environment is interested in 2.67%
interest in the issued share capital of the Company, which Mr. Zeng is deemed to be interested in the
Shares held by Asia Environment under Part XV of the SFO.

2) Mr. Cheng holds the entire issued share capital of World Hero. Therefore, Mr. Cheng is deemed to be
interest in the Shares held by World Hero under the SFO.

(3) Mr. Zeng holds the entire issued share capital of Best Dawn. Therefore, Mr. Zeng is deemed to be
interested in the Shares held by Best Dawn under the SFO.

(4) The entire issued share capital of New Asia Limited (“New Asia”) is held by Great Origin Ventures
Limited (“Great Origin”), which in turn is held by Mr. Zhu. Therefore, Mr. Zhu is deemed to be interested
in the Shares held by New Asia under the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at the date of this annual report, none of the Directors
and the chief executive of the Company had or was deemed to have any interest or
short position in the Shares, underlying Shares or debentures of the Company or its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) that was required to
be recorded in the register of the Company required to be kept under Section 352 of the
SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

From June to July 2018, and from September to November 2018, the Directors and
management of the Company successively used their own funds to purchase 4,060,000
Shares at an average price of HK$1.53 per share, equivalent to the 0.40% of the equity
interests in the issued share capital of our Company. Mr. Cheng Liquan Richard and
Mr. Zeng Zhijun purchased 4,007,000 shares for the concerted parties. The number of
Shares currently held is 406,940,911 shares, and the shareholding ratio has risen to
40.26% of the issued share capital of the Company.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at the date of this annual report, to the best knowledge of the Directors, the
following persons (not being a Director or chief executive of the Company) had interests
or short positions in the Shares or underlying Shares which fall to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO as recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO:
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Approximate
percentage of

Name Capacity/Nature of interest Number of Shares shareholding

mEEB B REEME RHOBE KREHBOEIL

Mr. Cheng Liquan Richard Interest of a controlled corporation; interests held 406,940,911 40.26%
(Notes 1 and 2) jointly with another person and beneficial owner (Long Position)
BB2REMTIR2) (Note 1) (#FB)

RErEER B AXBREED
o REnER AT

World Hero (Note 2) Beneficial owner 168,134,580 16.63%
World Hero (A7 2#2) EnEAB A (Long Position)
(#F &)

Ms. Zhou Xuan (Note 3) Interest of spouse 406,940,911 40.26%
B jE 22 &= (K 7% 3) Bic 18 #E &= (Long Position)
(B &)

Mr. Zeng Zhijun (Notes 1 and 4) Interest of a controlled corporation; interests held 406,940,911 40.26%
&SR E (M1 k4) jointly with another person (Note 1) (Long Position)
RELEER B AXBFAED (F &)

e (Hat1)

Best Dawn (Note 4) Beneficial owner 210,964,143 20.87%
Best Dawn (7 7£4) EmEB A (Long Position)
(7 7&)

Ms. Ge Tong (Note 5) Interest of spouse 406,940,911 40.26%
Ge Tong % =& (At 7£5) LB = (Long Position)
(7 7&)
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ESgHEH)
Approximate
percentage of
Name Capacity/Nature of interest Number of Shares shareholding
mE LB B REHE BROHEE RESIATIE
New Asia Beneficial owner 152,573,529 15.09%
New Asia EnEB A (Long Position)
(&)
Great Origin (Note 6) Iﬂterest of a controlled corporation 152,573,529 15.09%
BIR(KE6) REEEEE (Long Position)
(&)
Mr. Zhu Weihang (Note 6) Iﬂterest of a controlled corporation 152,573,529 15.09%
KAEM T LA E6) REEEEE (Long Position)
(&)
Sinopec Overseas Investment Beneficial owner 110,294,118 10.91%
Holding Limited (“Sinopec”) EmEAA (Long Position)
B L INE B R (&)
BRAR(HALD
China Petroleum & Chemical Corporation Iﬂterest of a controlled corporation 110,294,118 10.91%
(Note 7) R AE = (Long Position)
FEAHLEIROGBRA A (7 A&)
(K #E7)
Full Synergy Investment Limited Beneficial owner 56,508,715 5.59%
(“Full Synergy”) EmEAA
SmEEBRAR(SEM)
Partners Investment Management Limited Ilterest of a controlled corporation 56,508,715 5.59%
(Note 8) XYL E R
Partners Investment Management
Limited (A7 2#8)
Bullion Riches Limited (Note 8) Interest of a controlled corporation 56,508,715 5.59%
Bullion Riches Limited (¥ 78) XA B =
Partners Financial Holdings Limited (Note 8)  Interest of a controlled corporation 56,508,715 5.59%
Partners Financial Holdings Limited = ¥ K B # &=
(K7 7E8)
Bright Hope Global Investments Limited Interest of a controlled corporation 56,508,715 5.59%
(Notes 8 and 9) %P E B R
Bright Hope Global Investments
Limited (4728 % 9)
Wan Ten Lap (Notes 8 and 9) Iﬂterest of a controlled corporation 56,508,715 5.59%
Wan Ten Lap (47728 % 9) A B
Zhang Yi (Notes 8 and 9) Interest of a controlled corporation 56,508,715 5.59%

Zhang Yi (K1 :#8 4 9)
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Note:

(1)

2)

(3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

(7)

(8)

(9)

Mr. Cheng Liquan Richard and Mr. Zeng Zhijun have entered into an acting-in-concert arrangement, as
such, Mr. Cheng and Mr. Zeng together control 40.26% equity interests in the issued share capital of
our Company through World Hero, Asia Environment and Best Dawn. Asia Environment is owned as to
47.2% by Mr. Zeng. Asia Environment is interested in 2.67% interest in the issued share capital of our
Company, which Mr. Zeng is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Asia Environment under Part
XV of the SFO.

Mr. Cheng holds the entire issued share capital of World Hero, therefore, Mr. Cheng is deemed to be
interest in the Shares held by World Hero under the SFO.

Ms. Zhou Xuan (/& i€ ) is the spouse of Mr. Cheng. Under the SFO, Ms. Zhou Xuan is deemed to be
interested in the same number of Shares in which Mr. Cheng is interested.

Mr. Zeng holds the entire issued share capital of Best Dawn, therefore, Mr. Zeng is deemed to be
interested in the Shares held by Best Dawn under the SFO.

Ms. Ge Tong is the spouse of Mr. Zeng. Under the SFO, Ms. Ge Tong is deemed to be interested in the
same number of Shares in which Mr. Zeng is interested.

The entire issued share capital of New Asia is held by Great Origin, which in turn is held by Mr. Zhu.
Mr. Zhu is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by New Asia under the SFO.

China Petroleum & Chemical Corporation holds the entire issued share capital of Sinopec. Therefore,
China Petroleum & Chemical Corporation is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Sinopec
under the SFO. China Petroleum & Chemical Corporation is a PRC state-owned company whose H shares
are listed on the Main Board (stock code: 366).

Full Synergy, a company incorporated in the BVI on 2 April 2015, is an investment holding company
and a wholly-owned subsidiary of Partners Investment Management Limited. Partners Investment
Management Limited is wholly owned by Bullion Riches Limited, which in turn is wholly owned by
Partners Financial Holdings Limited. Partners Financial Holdings Limited is a financial holding company,
of which its subsidiaries are licensed corporations under the SFO holding type 1, type 4, type 6 and type
9 licences in Hong Kong. Full Synergy is the issuer of structured notes, of which one of the subscribers
is a fund established in the PRC. Mr. Cheng, through World Hero subscribed approximately 2.96% of the
limited partner interest in such fund. Mr. Cheng does not hold any interest in the general partner of the
fund, and is not involved in the decision making process of the fund.

Bright Hope Global Investments Limited and Wan Ten Lap owns 44% and 51%, respectively, of Partners
Financial Holdings Limited, the holding company of Full Synergy. Zhang Yi in turns owns 100% of Bright
Hope Global Investments Limited. Under the SFO, Bright Hope Global Investments Limited, Wan Ten
Lap and Zhang Yi are deemed to be interested in the same number of Shares in which Full Synergy is
interested.

Save as disclosed above, and as at the date of this annual report, the Directors were

not aware of any persons (who were not directors or chief executive of the Company)

who had an interest or short pasition in the Shares or underlying Shares of the Company
which would fall to be disclosed under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which
would be required, pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, to be entered in the register

referred to therein.
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COMPLIANCE WITH NON-COMPETITION DEED

Each of the Controlling Shareholders, namely Mr. Cheng, Mr. Zeng and Best Dawn, has
executed a deed of non-competition on 22 February 2018 pursuant to which they have
irrevocably and unconditionally undertaken to the Company (for the Company itself and
on behalf of the members of the Group) that, during the period that the Non-Competition
Deed remains effective, he/it/she shall not, and shall procure that his/its/her close
associates (other than any member of the Company) shall not, directly or indirectly,
develop, acquire, participate in, hold any right or interest or invest in or engage in,
render any services for or otherwise be involved in any business in competition with or
likely to be in competition with the existing business activities of the Company in the
PRC or any other area in which the Company carries on business.

The Company shall seek opinion and decision from the independent non-executive
Directors who are responsible for reviewing and determining whether to accept or
decline such new business opportunity provided by Controlling Shareholders or its
associates.

The details of the Deed of Non-competition have been disclosed in the Prospectus under
the section headed “Relationship with Controlling Shareholders”.

The Company has received the annual confirmation of the Controlling Shareholders
in respect of their compliance with the non-competition undertakings under the Non-
Competition Deed during the year ended 31 December 2018.

The independent non-executive Directors also reviewed the Controlling Shareholders’
compliance with the non-competition undertakings. The independent non-executive
Directors confirmed that the Controlling Shareholders were not in breach of the non-
competition undertakings during the year ended 31 December 2018.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

As at 31 December 2018, none of the Directors or their respective associates had
engaged in or had any interest in any business which competes or may compete with
the businesses of the Group.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the reporting period, the Group has undergone the following connected

transactions:

1. Exempted connected transactions
Construction subcontracting and supply contracts
On 3 December 2018, Beijing Bogi and Sinopec Fifth Construction Co., Ltd.
(“Sinopec Fifth Construction”) entered into four construction subcontracting and

supply contracts (collectively referred to as the “Construction Subcontracting and

Supply Contracts”):

(1)

Construction sub-contract in relation to the maintenance and general
E&l finishing (defect elimination) work of #1/2/5/7 boilers under the EPC
master contract for the ultra-low emission upgrade project of cogeneration

boilers of Sinopec Shanghai for the compliance with emission standard

(“Construction Sub-contract 1”)

The principal terms of the Construction Sub-contract 1 are summarized as

below:

Date of signing:

Parties:

Scope of work:

Total construction term:

Contract value:

3 December 2018

Beijing Bogi (main contractor) and Sinopec Fifth
Construction (subcontractor)

Sinopec Fifth Construction is responsible for
the maintenance and general E&l finishing
(defect elimination) work of Boilers #1/2/5/7,
which includes the procurement, transportation,
installation and inspection of the materials
according to the required design and
specifications.

30 days

RMB550,000 (Fixed sum)
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2)

Supplemental contract to the sub-contract in relation to maintenance (2) LEEBALLARE

work under the EPC master contract for the upgrade project of #3 and #4
boilers of Sinopec Shanghai's thermal power division for the compliance

I - A

MU EEPCE R B RERB TR D
BERBRARMEETLE) ([

with emission standard (includes the expedited works for #3 boiler) INBER2])

(“Construction Sub-contract 2”)

The principal terms of the Construction Sub-contract 2 are summarized as i

below: N

Date of signing: 3 December 2018 HNERE
Parties: Beijing Bogi (main contractor) and Sinopec Fifth HE SR

Construction (subcontractor)

Scope of work: Beijing Boqi subcontracts the maintenance work TE&E :
to Sinopec Fifth Construction, after an arm’s
length negotiation between the parties, includes
the expedited works for #3 boiler. This includes
the construction, equipment transportation,
labour, adjustment and testing and management

under this work.
Total construction term: 30 days TH@AKE:
Contract value: RMB950,000 (Fixed sum) SRIEBE:
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(3)

Material supply contract in relation to the ultra-low emission dust removal

upgrade project of #1, #2 and #3 coal-fired boilers of Chongging Chuanwei

Petrochemical Engineering Company Limited* (“Supply Contract”)

The principal terms of the Supply Contract are summarized as below:

Date of signing:

Parties:

Scope of work:

Construction term:

Contract value:

3 December 2018

Beijing Bogi (main contractor) and Sinopec Fifth
Construction (subcontractor)

Beijing Bogi subcontracts the supply of
materials to Sinopec Fifth Construction for the
construction safety work of the dust removal
upgrade project, including dust collectors,
steel frames, steel pipes, structural steel,
thermal insulation materials, lighting and
fireproof materials. All of the above main and
supplementary materials and consumables
shall be procured and supplied by Sinopec Fifth
Construction.

To be completed by February 2020

RMB13,951,170 (tentative)

(3)
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(4)  Construction sub-contract in relation to the ultra-low emission dust
removal upgrade project of #1, #2 and #3 coal-fired boilers of Chongging
Chuanwei Petrochemical Engineering Company Limited* of the Sinopec
Group (P B AL & B & & )l # £ T B R 2 7)) (“Construction
Sub-contract 3")

The principal terms of the Construction Sub-contract 3 are summarized as

below:

Date of signing: 3 December 2018

Parties: Beijing Bogi (main contractor) and Sinopec Fifth
Construction (subcontractor)

Scope of work: Beijing Bogi subcontracts the construction
safety work of the dust removal upgrade project
to Sinopec Fifth Construction. This includes the
preparation of the construction, dismantling of
the whole original dust removal system, base
construction, installation of dust removal and
adjustment and testing.

Construction term: Completion before February 2020

Contract value: RMB23,724,579 (tentative)

Reasons for and benefits Sinopec Fifth Construction has advanced

of the transaction: capabilities in construction and material supply.
The signing of the Construction Subcontracting
and Supply Contracts enables the Company to
complete the EPC master contract for the ultra-
low emission upgrade project of cogeneration
boilers of Sinopec Shanghai for the compliance
with emission standard, as well as the
dust removal upgrade work of the ultra-low
emission upgrade project of coal-fired boilers of
Chongging Chuanwei Petrochemical Engineering
Company Limited®, in a more efficient manner
with higher quality and cost-savings. The
above transaction is entered into on normal
commercial terms.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, Beijing Bogi has not made any

payment for the abovementioned construction subcontracting and supply
contracts.
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China Petroleum & Chemical Corporation holds 10.91% equity interest
in the Company through its wholly-owned subsidiary, Sinopec Overseas
Investment Holdings Limited (“Sinopec Overseas”). Sinopec Fifth
Construction is controlled by China Petrochemical Corporation through
Sinopec Engineering (Group) Co., Ltd. and Sinopec Asset Management
Co., Ltd. China Petroleum & Chemical Corporation (the parent company
of Sinopec Overseas) and Sinopec Engineering (Group) Co., Ltd. (the
parent company of Sinopec Fifth Construction) are fellow subsidiaries
of China Petrochemical Corporation. Therefore, according to the Listing
Rules, they are connected persons of the Company at the issuer level. The
Construction Subcontracting and Supply Contracts accordingly constitute
connected transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

According to Rule 14A.81 of the Listing Rules, if a series of connected
transactions are entered into or completed within 12 months or are
otherwise interrelated, then such connected transactions shall be
aggregated and treated as if they were one transaction. Given the
Construction Subcontracting and Supply Contracts are entered into
between Beijing Bogi and Sinopec Fifth Construction and of the same
transaction nature, the contract values of such contracts shall be
aggregated pursuant to Rule 14A.81 of the Listing Rules. As the applicable
percentage ratio (except for the profit ratio) upon aggregation exceeded
0.1% but was less than 5%, the contracts are subject to the reporting
and announcement requirements but exempted from the circular and
shareholders’ approval requirements pursuant to Rule 14A.76 of the
Listing Rules.

For details of the above transactions, please refer to the announcement of
the Company dated 3 December 2018.
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Continuing connected transactions exempt from the circular
and shareholder approval requirements

Pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, the continuing connected
transactions of the Group as set out below are subject to the reporting,
annual review, announcement and independent Shareholders’ approval
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The Company has
obtained approval from the Stock Exchange in respect of the annual caps
of the non-exempt continuing connected transactions upon the Global
Offering and such transactions were exempted from announcement and
the independent Shareholders’ approval requirement.

Design and EPC contracts with Sinopec
1. Technical Service Contract with Fushun Research Institute

Parties: Beijing Boqi and Sinopec Fushun Petrochemical
Research Institute of Petroleum and
Petrochemicals (FEIAA{L TIRMHABRA
AJHR)IEA B (L TARZERT) (“Fushun Research
Institute”)

Term: September 2017 to December 2019

Contract scope:  Beijing Bogi and Fushun Research Institute
entered into a technical service contract
(“Technical Service Contract”) whereby Beijing
Bogi provides technical service to Fushun
Research Institute in relation to fluid catalytic
cracking design for deep dust removal and
defogging of regenerative flue gas. Beijing
Bogi shall deliver design documents in both
hard copy and electronic copy, assist onsite
construction and participate in initial debugging
work. The technical service provided by Beijing
Bogi shall be completed on 31 December 2019,
whereas the design work shall be completed
within 30 days after signing the Technical
Service Contract.
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Technical
service fee:

Payment:

Confidentiality:

Payment Term:

Reasons for and
benefits of the
transaction:

RMB500,000

Within 30 days after signing the Technical
Service Contract, Beijing Bogi shall provide
to Fushun Research Institute with a detailed
blueprint. It shall issue an invoice upon
acceptance of such blueprint by Fushun
Research Institute based on the standards
set by Sinopec in relation to the standards of
detailed engineering design of engineering
devices. Within 45 days upon the receipt of
such invoice, Fushun Research Institute shall
pay the technical service fee to Beijing Bogi.

Beijing Bogqi shall keep all information obtained
under and in relation to the Technical Service
Contract confidential.

The revenue from the Technical Service
Contract is RMB500,000 and was settled on 25
October 2017.

This transaction will enhance the engineering
design business of the Group and expand the
Group’s business opportunities with Sinopec
and its group of companies for the Group to
provide its wide range of services to market
players of petro-chemical industry.

Sinopec Shanghai EPC project

Parties:

Sinopec Shanghai Petrochemical Company
Limited (R BIE1E_EBAB{IETRNER
23 A]) (“Sinopec Shanghai”) and Beijing Bogi.
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Bid and contract
scope:

Price:

Term:

Reasons for and
benefits of the
transaction:

Revenue and
Annual Cap:

On 7 February 2017, Beijing Bogi won a bid
for an EPC project in connection with the
upgrade of the desulfurization, denitrification
and dust removal environmental facilities
of a cogeneration power plant of Sinopec
Shanghai for the purpose of meeting the “ultra-
low emission” standards. On 1 March 2017,
Beijing Bogi entered into an EPC contract
with Sinopec Shanghai finalizing the winning
bid whereby Beijing Bogi will act as the
main contractor. The upgrade work involves
project design, procurement of equipment and
materials, project construction and installation
of five boiler fuel gas denitrification facilities
(“Upgrade Project”).

RMB224,626,000 (including tax) comprised
of construction fee, installation fee, fee for
procurement of equipment and raw materials.

The Upgrade Project is expected to be
completed in October 2018.

This transaction will enhance the
desulfurization, denitrification and dust removal
business operations of the Group and expand
the business opportunities with Sinopec and
its group of companies for provision of flue gas
treatment business to market players of petro-
chemical industry.

The revenue generated from Sinopec Shanghai
EPC Project amounted to RMB146,990,000
for the year ended 31 December 2017. The
revenue generated from Sinopec Shanghai EPC
Project amounted to RMB43,419,000 for the
year ended 31 December 2018, which did not
exceed the maximum transaction amount of the
contract of R\MB75,000,000 for the year ended
31 December 2018.
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Gaogiao Petrochemical EPC project

Parties:

Bid and contract
SCOpe:

Price:

Payment terms:

Sinopec Shanghai Gaogiao Petrochemical Co.,
Ltd. (PEIAf EBEBAMEIAER
7~ a]) (“Gaogiao Petrochemical”) and Beijing
Bogi.

On 24 March 2017, Beijing Bogi won a bid
for an upgrade project in connection with the
upgrade of denitrification facilities and boilers
of the power plant of Gaogiao Petrochemical
(“Gaogiao Petrochemical EPC Project”) for the
purpose of meeting the “ultra-low emission”
standards. On 24 April 2017, Beijing Bogi and
Gaogiao Petrochemical entered into a contract
finalizing the winning bid for the Gaogiao
Petrochemical EPC Project whereby Beijing
Bogi will act as the main contractor.

RMB16,990,000 (including tax).

Payment will be made in four instalments. The
first instalment of 15% of the contract price
to be paid within 30 days after signing of the
EPC contract and delivery and confirmation of
the design blueprints. The second instalment
of 25% of the contract price within 30 days
of instalment of the SCR system to the boiler
facilities. The third instalment of 50% of the
contract price to be paid within 90 days of the
issuance of the certificate of compliance by
the environmental department of the relevant
government authority. The last instalment of
10% of the contract price within 30 days of
expiry of the 18 months warranty period.
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Term: The SCR systems for each boiler facility shall
be delivered on 6 May 2017, 30 May 2017, 6
July 2017, 30 July 2017 and 30 August 2017
respectively.

The project is expected to be completed and inspected in on April
2019.

Reasons forand  This transaction will enhance the

benefits of the desulfurization, denitrification and dust

transaction: removal business operations of the Group and
expand the Group’s business opportunities
with Sinopec and its group of companies for
provision of flue gas treatment business to
market players of petro-chemical industry.

Revenue and The revenue generated from Gaogiao

Annual Cap: Petrochemical EPC Project amounted to
RMB8,150,000 for the year ended 31
December 2017. The revenue generated from
Gaogiao Petrochemical EPC Project amounted
to RMB6,321,000 for the year ended 31
December 2018, which did not exceed the
maximum transaction amount of the contract of
RMB9,000,000 for the year ended 31 December
2018.

4. Sinopec Shanghai #3—4 EPC project

Parties: Sinopec Shanghai and Beijing Bogi.

Bid and contract  On 14 August 2017, Beijing Bogi won a bid for

Scope: an EPC project in connection with the upgrade
of the #3—4 boiler of a cogeneration power
plant of Sinopec Shanghai for the purpose of
meeting the “ultra-low emission” standards
(“#3—4 Upgrade Project”) On 7 September
2017, Beijing Bogi entered into an EPC
contract with Sinopec Shanghai finalizing the
winning bid whereby Beijing Bogi will act as
the main contractor, involves project design,
procurement of equipment and materials,
project construction and installation.
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Price: RMB91,123,500.00 (including tax) comprised
of construction fee, installation fee, fee for
procurement of equipment and raw materials.

Term: The project was completed on November 2018.

Reasons forand  This transaction will enhance the

benefits of the desulfurization, denitrification and dust removal

transaction: business operations of the Group and expand
the business opportunities with Sinopec and
its group of companies for provision of flue gas
treatment business to market players of petro-
chemical industry.

Revenue and No revenue was generated from Sinopec

Annual Cap: Shanghai #3—-4 EPC project for the year ended
31 December 2017. The revenue generated
amounted to RMB83,310,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2018, which did not
exceed the maximum transaction amount of
RMB100,000,000 of the contract for the year
ended 31 December 2018.

Fushun Research Institute is a branch of China Petroleum &
Chemical Corporation, the parent company of Sinopec Overseas
Investment Holding Limited (F B AL /G INEEZRE
R /2 &]), one of the substantial shareholders of the Company,
whereas Sinopec Shanghai and Gaogiao Petrochemical are fellow
subsidiaries (as defined under the Listing Rules) of Sinopec, being
owned as to 50.56% and 55%, respectively, by China Petroleum &
Chemical Corporation, and each of them is therefore a connected
person of the Company under Rule 14A.07(4) of the Listing Rules.
Given the above continuing connected transactions were all
made with the group companies of China Petroleum & Chemical
Corporation, the parent company of Sinopec, pursuant to which
income shall be received by the Group in relation to the design
and EPC services provided. Such transactions shall be aggregated
in accordance with Role 14A.81 of the Listing Rules. The above
transaction is entered into on normal commercial terms. Prior to
the Listing, the Company had applied to the Stock Exchange and
the Stock Exchange had granted the Company, a waiver from
strict compliance with the rules regarding the announcement and
independent shareholders” approval requirements under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules, on the condition that the aggregate
amount of continuing connected transactions with Sinopec for
the year 2018 would not exceed the annual cap set out in the
Prospectus.
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Technology Licensing Contract with Fushun Research Institute

As part of the Upgrade Project, Beijing Bogi and Fushun Research Institute
entered into two technology licensing contracts (“Technology Licensing
Contracts”) in 14 September 2017 and 6 September 2018, pursuant to
which Beijing Bogi was licensed to use certain patents and know-how of
Fushun Research Institute for the purpose of carrying out of the Upgrade
Project.

Fushun Research Institute is a branch of China Petroleum & Chemical
Corporation, the parent company of Sinopec, one of the substantial
shareholders of the Company, and is therefore a connected person of the
Company under Rule 14A.07(4) of the Listing Rules.

Technology Licensing Contract 1

Parties: Beijing Bogi and Fushun Research Institute

Term: 5 years

Contract scope:  Beijing Bogi was licensed to use the patents and
know-how of Fushun Research Institute for the
carrying out of the Upgrade Project to achieve “ultra-
low emission” standards. The patents and know-
how relate to the denitrification catalyst and SCR
technology. Beijing Bogi was licensed to use the
patent and know-how from the signing date of the
Technology Licensing Contract until December 2018,
and shall use the patent and know-how within
365 days from the signing date of the Technology
Licensing Contract. During the term of the Technology
Licensing Contract, Beijing Bogi may make subsequent
development in respect of the patent and know-how
which it is licensed to use. The parties will enter into
separate agreements in respect of the distribution
of interests if any interests arised in relation to the
development of patent and know-how.
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Licensing fee: Beijing Bogi shall pay RMB2,150,000 to Fushun
Research Institute for its license to use the patents
and know-how.

Payment: Licensing fee of Technology Licensing Contract 1 of
RMB2,150,000 was settled on 11 October 2017.

Confidentiality: Beijing Bogi is under the obligation of confidentiality
in respect of the use of patents and know-how of
Fushun Research Institute. Such obligation continues
to survive 5 years after the termination of the
Technology Licensing Contract.

The above transaction was entered into on normal commercial terms. Prior
to the Listing, the Company had applied to the Stock Exchange and the
Stock Exchange had granted the Company, a waiver from strict compliance
three year term requirement for continuing connected transactions under
Rule 14A.52 of the Listing Rules.

TECHNOLOGY LICENSING CONTRACT 2

Date of contract: 6 September 2018

Parties: Beijing Bogi and Fushun Research Institute

Term: From contract signing date to 31 December 2019
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Main terms:

(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

There are 3 patents (“the patents”) in total granted under this
contract. The details of these patents are as follows:

(i) Nature: Invention patents (invention, utility model and
appearance design);

(i) Patentee: Fushun Research Institute of China Petroleum &
Chemical Corporation;

(iii)  Patent numbers:
ZL201210409848.0,
Z1201020569738.7
and 71201010222036.6.

Contract scope: Beijing Bogi is licensed to use the patents and
know-how of the flue gas ultra-clean emission denitrification
technology of Fushun Research Institute for the implementation
of the Upgrade Project to comply with the “ultra-low emission”
standards. Relevant patents and know-how relate to the
denitrification catalyst and SCR technology.

Obligations of Fushan Research Institute: Fushun Research
Institute shall submit the following materials to Beijing Bogi:
(i) The industrial process documents required for applying the
technology and know-how, and (ii) The technical solutions for flue
gas denitrification treatment of Shanghai Petrochemical Coal-
fired Power Plant. Beijing Bogi is licensed to use the patents and
know-how within 365 days from the signing date of the Technology
Licensing Contract.

Confidentiality: Beijing Bogi is under the obligation of
confidentiality in respect of the use of patents and knowhow of
Fushun Research Institute. Such obligation continues to survive 5
years after the termination of the Technology Licensing Contract.
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(5)  Licensing fee: Beijing Bogi shall pay RMB900,000 to Fushun
Research Institute for its license to use the patents and know-
how. Such amount was determined after arm’s length negotiations
between Beijing Bogi and Fushun Research Institute with reference
to normal commercial terms and market rates.

(6)  Payment: Licensing fee of Technology Licensing Contract 2 of
RMB900,000 was settled on 30 October 2018.

Reasons for and the benefits of the transaction: The signing of the
Technology Licensing Contract will benefit the Company’s Upgrade Project
of #3 and #4 Boilers of Sinopec Shanghai’s Thermal Power Division for
the Compliance with Emission Standard. With the advanced flue gas
ultra-clean emission denitrification technology, the flue gas treatment
performance can be improved so that the upgrade project can be
completed more efficiently and with better quality.

For details of the Technology Licensing Contract 2, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 6 September 2018.

The above transaction is entered into on normal commercial terms.
According to Rule 14A.81 of the Listing Rules, if a series of connected
transactions are entered into or completed within 12 months or are
otherwise interrelated, then such connected transactions shall be
aggregated and treated as if they were one transaction. As both the
Technology Licensing Contracts are signed with Fushun Research
Institute and of the same transaction nature, these two contracts shall
be aggregated in accordance with Rule 14A.81 of the Listing Rules. As
the applicable percentage (except for the profit ratio) at the time of the
aggregation exceeded 0.1% but was less than 5%, both contracts are
subject to the reporting and announcement requirements but exempted
from the circular and shareholders’ approval requirements, pursuant to
Rule 14A.76 of the Listing Rules.
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Shouyang Contract

Parties:

Date:

Project:

Project Price:

Payment term:

Beijing Bogi and Yangmei Group Shouyang Bogi
Electric Co., Ltd (FREESHEEFTEEER
Z /A 7)) (previously known as Shanxi Shouyang
Mingtai Guoneng Power Co., Ltd) (L FAESF5 AR
§EZL B AR A 7)) (“Shouyang Power”)

Beijing Bogi entered into an EPC master contract with
Shouyang Power in December, 2015 (the “Shouyang
Contract”).

Shanxi Yangquan Coal Industry (Group) Company
Limited Shouyang Mingtai Green Island General
Contractor Project, with the capacity of 2*350 MW
(the “Shouyang Green Island Project”).

Under the Shouyang Green Island Project, Beijing
Bogi shall act as the main contractor, which involves,
among others, project design, procurement of
equipment and materials, construction and installment
in relation to desulfurization and denitrification and
dust removal for low calorific value thermal power
plant.

RMB287,560,000 (including tax).

Shouyang Power shall pay 10% of the contract value
as pre — payment to Beijing Bogi within one month
from the date the Shouyang Contract takes effect,
and the remaining amount of the contract value shall
be paid monthly according to the progress of the
Shouyang Green Island Project. 5% of the contract
value shall be paid by Shouyang Power to Beijing Bogi
as quality guarantee after one year period when no
quality issue is raised.
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Reasons forand  Carrying out environmental protection facility
the benefits
of the transaction: of Company and entering into such transaction would

engineering projects is the usual course of business

enable us to consolidate the Company’s market
presence in the Shanxi Province where Shouyang
Power is situated.

Shouyang Power, through various intermediaries, is 40% held by Mr.
Cheng and Mr. Zeng, the ultimate controlling shareholders of the
Company and is therefore a connected person of the Company under Rule
14A.07(4) of the Listing Rules. The above transaction is entered into on
normal commercial terms. Prior to the Listing, the Company had applied to
the Stock Exchange and the Stock Exchange had granted the Company, a
waiver from strict compliance with the rules regarding the announcement
and independent shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules, on the condition that the respective aggregate
amounts of non-exempt continuing connected transaction with Shouyang
Power for the years 2018 and 2019 would not exceed the respective
annual caps set out in the Prospectus.

Yangxi Project

On 31 December 2016, Beijing Boqi, Guangdong Huaxia Electric
Development Co., Ltd (& 58 £ = & /7 2 & B [R A 7)) ("Guangdong
Huaxia Electric”) and Yangxi Haibin Electric Power Development Co.,
Ltd (F5 788 /85 78 R BB A F]) (“Yangxi Electric”) entered
into a management service agreement (“Yangxi Management Service
Agreement”) in relation to the provision of operation, daily maintenance
and repair services in respect of the #1—#4 desulfurization and
denitrification facilities owned by Yangxi Electric (“Yangxi Facilities”)
prior to the completion of the acquisition of the Yangxi Facilities under
the cooperation framework agreement dated 20 May 2016 entered
into between the said parties (“Cooperation Framework Agreement”).
On the same day, Beijing Bogi, Guangdong Huaxia Electric and Yangxi
Electric entered into an ultra-low emission upgrade project cooperation
agreement (“Upgrade Project Cooperation Agreement”), under which
Beijing Bogi agreed to construct “ultra-low emission” units to #1-2
desulfurization and denitrification facilities of the Yangxi Facilities for
Yangxi Electric. However, no similar arrangement was entered into
in relation to #3-4 desulfurization and denitrification facilities as the
“ultra-low emission upgrade units have already been constructed and
completed by Yangxi Electric at the time the parties entered into the
Upgrade Project Cooperation Agreement. On 1 January 2017, Beijing
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Boqi, Guangdong Huaxia Electric and Yangxi Electric further entered into
a supplemental agreement solely to determine the pricing terms of the
Yangxi Management Service Agreement (the “Yangxi Service Pricing
Agreement”). Due to an unexpected delay in the release of the mortgage
on the Yangxi Facilities, the completion of the proposed acquisitions
of the Yangxi Facilities under the Cooperation Framework Agreement
was delayed, and it was agreed between Beijing Bogi, Guangdong
Huaxia Electric and Yangxi Electric not to proceed with the proposed
acquisitions of the Yangxi Facilities. Accordingly, on 28 August 2017,
Beijing Boqi, Guangdong Huaxia Electric and Yangxi Electric entered
into a supplemental agreement (“Yangxi Supplemental Agreement”)
under which, the proposed acquisitions of the Yangxi Facilities under the
Cooperation Framework Agreement, were terminated. On the same day,
Beijing Bogi, Guangdong Huaxia Electric and Yangxi Electric entered into a
supplemental agreement (the “Yangxi Supplemental Management Service
Agreement”, together with Yangxi Management Service Agreement
and the Yangxi Service Pricing Agreement as “Yangxi Agreements”)
to supersede and extend the term of the services under the Yangxi
Management Services Agreement from 1 January 2017 to 30 September
2017 to a term from 1 January 2017 to 31 December 2025. Other
provisions in relation to the services and ancillary services to be provided
by Beijing Bogi under the Yangxi Management Services Agreement remain
unchanged for the extended term.

Yangxi Agreements

Under the Yangxi Agreements, Beijing Bogi provides operation, daily
maintenance and repair services in respect of the Yangxi Facilities to
Yangxi Electric for a term from 1 January 2017 to 31 December 2025.

Parties: Beijing Bogi, Guangdong Huaxia Electric and Yangxi
Electric

Term of the 1 January 2017 to 31 December 2025.

agreement:

Services to be The services to be provided by Beijing Bogi include

provided: the operation, daily maintenance and repair of

Yangxi Facilities. Beijing Bogi is also responsible for
the materials used in the services provided as well
as treatment of waste created during the provision
of such services.
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Service fee policy:

Payment obligation:

The service fee under the Yangxi Agreements is
calculated based on the on-grid power generation
multiply by a rate which is determined by the
parties. The pricing terms of the Yangxi Agreements
were determined under the Yangxi Service Pricing
Agreement. Such pricing terms are arrived at on
arm’s length negotiations between Beijing Bogi,
Yangxi Electric and Guangdong Huaxia Electric and
are determined with reference to (i) the relevant
subsidies with respect to desulfurization and
denitrification as set by the government; and (ii)
the fees and expenses in respect of the operation,
management and maintenance of the desulfurization
and denitrification facilities.

Yangxi Electric shall pay to Beijing Bogi the service
fee within 15 days of Yangxi Electric receiving the
electricity fee from the State Power Grid.

Beijing Bogi shall pay to Yangxi Electric a
performance guarantee in an amount of
RMB139,000,000 for guaranteeing its work and
performance under the Yangxi Agreements and safe
operation of the Yangxi Facilities.

The above performance guarantee is arrived at on
arm’s length negotiations between Beijing Bogi,
Guangdong Huaxia Electric and Yangxi Electric and
determined based on the estimated service fee to be
received (i.e. the estimated on-grid power generation
multiplied by a rate (10%) which is determined by
the parties) multiplied by the term of the Yangxi
Agreements (i.e. 8 years). Such performance
guarantee has been paid to Yangxi Electric and shall
be refunded to Beijing Bogi upon completion of the
term of the Yangxi Agreements.
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Ancillary charges:  Under the Yangxi Agreements, Beijing Boqi shall
pay to Yangxi Electric before the 10th day of each
month the ancillary charges, including relevant
operation fees such as water, electricity, vapor, gas,
environmental protection penalty and pollution tax
fees and other relevant operational charges.

Yangxi Electric is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Guangdong Huaxia
Electric, which is owned and controlled by, through various intermediaries,
Mr. Zhu Yihang, the brother and associate of Mr. Zhu, one of our
substantial shareholders and is therefore a connected person of the
Company under Rule 14A.07(4) of the Listing Rules. The above transaction
is entered into on normal commercial terms. Prior to the Listing, the
Company had applied to the Stock Exchange and the Stock Exchange
had granted the Company, a waiver from (i) strict compliance three
year term requirement for continuing connected transactions under
Rule 14A.52 of the Listing Rules and (ii) strict compliance with the rules
regarding the announcement and independent shareholders’ approval
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, on the condition that
the respective aggregate amounts of non-exempt continuing connected
transactions with Yangxi Electric for the years 2018, 2019 and 2020 would
not exceed the respective annual caps set out in the Prospectus.

Reference is made to the announcement of the date of the company's
date of 12 March 2019, which relates to, among other things, the
Transaction Amount of the Yangxi Agreement. The service fee for O&M
services was approximately RMB261.74 million, exceeding the existing
2018 annual cap by an amount of RMB16.74 million; and the ancillary
charges was approximately RMB89.72 million, exceeding the existing
2018 annual cap by an amount of RMB4.67million. Therefore, the highest
applicable percentage ratio in respect of the actual 2018 Transaction
Amount exceeded 5%, accordingly the transactions under the Yangxi
Agreements with Guangdong Huaxia Electric and Yangxi Electric for the
year ended 31 December 2018 are subject to the reporting, annual review,
announcement and Independent Shareholders’ approval requirements
under chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Therefore, the transactions under
the Yangxi Agreements for the year ended 31 December 2018 are subject
to the ratification of the Independent Shareholders at the EGM.
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A circular containing, among other matters, (i) further details of the
transactions under the Yangxi Agreements for the year ended 31
December 2018; (ii) details of the New 2019 and 2020 annual Caps; (iii) the
letter of recommendation from the Independent Board Committee; (iv) the
letter of advice from Gram Capital to the Independent Board Committee
and the Independent Shareholders in respect of the transactions under the
Yangxi Agreements; and (v) a notice convening the EGM, is expected to
be despatched to the Shareholders on or before 30 April 2019. As Mr. Zhu
is deemed to have a material interest in the transactions under the Yangxi
Agreements with Guangdong Huaxia Electric and Yangxi Electric, Mr. Zhu
and his associate(s) shall abstain from voting on the relevant resolution.

Upgrade Project Cooperation Agreement

On 31 December 2016, Beijing Bogi and Yangxi Electric entered into
the Upgrade Project Cooperation Agreement, pursuant to which Beijing
Boqi agreed to constrct the “ultra-low emission” upgrade units to #1-2
desulfurization and denitrification facilities of the Yangxi Facilites for
Yangxi Electric. Pursuant to the Upgrade Project Cooperation Agreement,
the ultra-low emission upgrade works conducted by Beijing Bogi include,
among others, the upgrade of the desulfurization system, detection and
repair of the absorption tower of #1-2 desulfurization and denitrification
facilities of the Yangxi Facilities and the upgrade of model of the
continuous emission monitoring system for the purpose of enabling
Guangdong Huaxia Yangxi Power Plant to comply with the new “ultra-
low emission” standards. The total contract value of the Upgrade Project
Cooperation Agreement is RMB23,200,000 which consists of the design
fee, the equipment fee and the construction and installation fee, and such
fees will be borne by Beijing Bogi. Beijing Bogi will pay to Yangxi Electric
certain compensations if (a) Beijing Bogi has caused delay in completing
the ultra-low emission upgrade works under the Upgrade Project
Cooperation Agreement; (b) Beijing Bogi is solely responsible for the non-
compliance of the #1-2 desulfurization and denitrification facilities of the
Yangxi Facilities with the ultra-low emission standards; and/or (c) Beijing
Bogi has solely caused the halt or load decrement of #1-2 desulfurization
and denitrification facilities of the Yangxi Facilities.
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Reasons for and benefits of the transactions under the Yangxi Agreements
and Upgrade Project Cooperation Agrement:

Since the issue of the Action Plan of Energy Saving, Emission Reduction,
Upgrading and Retrofitting of Coal-fired Power Plants (2014—2020) which
tightened the emission limits for newly-built coal-fired power plants in
September 2014 and the Proposals for Comprehensively Implementing
the Ultra-low Emissions and Energy Conservation Upgrade of Coal-fired
Power Plants in December 2015, which requires the comprehensive
implementation of “ultra-low emission” and energy conservation upgrade
on coal-fired generator sets by 2020, coal consumption and pollution
emission standards have been significantly tightened. To comply with
such stringent standards, and minimize operational risk while also
minimizing the costs to be incurred, notwithstanding that Yangxi Electric is
capable of operating the Yangxi Facilities, Yangxi Electric engaged Beijing
Boqi, being a leading independent flue gas treatment integrated service
provider who have earned numerous highly recognised awards in the flue
gas treatment industry, and having been already familiarized with the
operations and facilities of Yangxi Electric, including the Yangxi Facilities,
through the prior business dealings with Yangxi Electric in connection
with the Yangxi Facilities as a result of the potential acquisition under
the Cooperation Framework Agreement, to be the sole desulfurization and
denitrification service provider for its power plant during the term of the
Yangxi Agreements. Further, it is in the benefit of Yangxi Electric to retain
only one desulfurization and denitrification service provider for the Yangxi
Facilities for the purpose of minimizing costs and eliminating the need to
manage a number of different service providers with different points of
contact and who may use different quality management systems.

Provision of O&M services is the Company’s usual course of business.
By entering into the Yangxi Agreements and the transactions thereunder,
Beijing Bogi will leverage its relevant professional experience and
strengths in the operation, maintenance and management of the
desulfurization and denitrification facilities and the “ultra-low emission”
units, export its management experience and gain reasonable income
and returns. The execution of the Yangxi Agreements is in line with the
Group's overall strategy and business focus of engaging in the operation,
management and maintenance of the desulfurization and denitrification
facilities and the “ultra-low emission” units and will enhance the
Company's market presence in Guangdong province. The enhancement of
the Group's competitive edge in its core business is in the interests of the
Group as a whole.
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According to the Notice on Issuing the Plan for Nationwide
Implementation of Ultra-low Emissions and Energy Saving Reform on
Coal-fired Power Plant (€[ 7% E) 2% <2 [ & i M8 K B 58 K HE
TN AR RE 2 iE T1E 75 56> 19 38 &N)) (the “Notice”), the PRC government
will give those coal-fired power plants, which satisfy ultra-low emissions
standards, electricity price subsidies and generating rewards to encourage
ultra-low emissions and energy saving reform in power plants.

It is in the benefit of the Group to construct such “ultra-low emission”
upgrade units in order to receive the “ultra-low emission” subsidy, which
is obtained through the service fees in connection with its management
and operation business. In this respect, under the Yangxi Agreements, the
Group agreed to construct and pay the costs of constructing the “ultra-
low emission” units for #1-2 facilities so that Guangdong Huaxia Yangxi
Power Plant can comply with the new ultra-low emission standards and
the Group can enjoy the “ultra-low emission” subsidy and electricity
price subsidies. Upon the completion of the upgrade works, the newly
constructed “ultra-low emission” units shall belong to Beijing Bogi
and will not be pledged as part of the Yangxi Facilities. Beijing Bogi is
accordingly entitled to the “ultra-low emission” subsidy generated by
the said “ultra-low emission” units, which is calculated based on the
“ultra-low emission” electricity price subsidy multiplied by a rate which
is determined with reference to the costs of constructing the “ultra-low
emission” units and the costs of operating and managing such “ultra-low
emission” units in respect of desulfurization and denitrification facilities.
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In connection with the “ultra-low emission” upgrade units to #3-4
desulfurization and denitrification facilities, for the purpose of securing
the “ultra-low emission” subsidy in the form of service fee, in respect of
the said “ultra-low emission” upgrade units which have been constructed
and owned by Yangxi Electric, Beijing Bogi underwent negotiations with
Yangxi Electric in respect of a potential arrangement to bear the costs and
expenses for the construction of such “ultra-low emission” upgrade units.
However, through a number of discussions and negotiations, Beijing Bogi
and Yangxi Electric could not agree on the terms and calculation of the
entitlement of the “ultra-low emission” subsidy and no such arrangement
would be entered into between the two parties. Accordingly, Beijing Bogi
will not be required to bear the costs of the “ultra-low emission” upgrade
units to #3-4 desulfurization and denitrification facilities, and as a result,
will not be entitled to the “ultra-low emission” subsidy generated by such
units. On the other hand, Beijing Bogi's provision of services to Yangxi
Electric’s desulfurization and denitrification facilities (including #3-4
desulfurization and denitrification facilities) under the Yangxi Agreements
and the fees to be received thereunder shall continue and remain
unaffected.

For details of the information with respect to the connected transactions
mentioned above, please refer to the disclosure as set out in the section
headed “Connected Transactions” of the Prospectus.

Non-exempt continuing connected transactions subject to
reporting, annual review, announcement and independent
shareholders' approval requirements

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group entered into certain
connected transactions, which were disclosed in the note 41 to the
consolidated financial statement. These transactions constitute continuing
connected transactions under the Listing Rules and are required to be
disclosed in this report in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. The Directors confirmed that the Group has complied with the
disclosure requirements prescribed in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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CHONGQING CHUANWEI EPC CONTRACT

Date of the contract: 14 September 2018

Date of signing:

Scope of work:

Completion date:

Contract value:

Reasons for and
the benefits of the
transaction:

Revenue:

Chongging Chuanwei Petrochumical Engineering
Company Limited of the Sinopec Group (“Chongging
Chuanwei”) (contract-issuing party) and Beijing Boqi
(Contractor)

Engineering of ultra-low emission upgrade project
of coal-fired boiler; denitrification, desulfurization
and dust removal except upgrade of boiler itself;
procurement and supply of relevant equipment;
construction (including building, installation, removal
and transportation of structures related to the
project) and subsequent testing and performance
evaluation

October 2020

RMB205,880,000 (tentative estimate of the total
value)

Chongging Chuanwei EPC Contract is in line with
the business development strategy and operation
structure adjustment of the Company, which began
in late 2016 to explore markets for petrochemicals
and steel industries. The Company believes that
the transaction will enhance the desulfurization,
denitrification and dust removal business of the
Group. It is expected to expand the business
opportunities between the Group and Sinopec
Group and gain considerable project experience,
which allows the Company to further expand the
market and offer similar services to more market
participants of the petrochemical industry in the
near future.

The revenue generated from Chongging Chuanwei
EPC Contract amounted to RMB6,849,000 for the
year ended 31 December 2018.
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NINGBO PROCUREMENT CONTRACT

Date of signing:

Parties:

Scope of work:

Completion date:
Contract value:
Reasons for and

the benefits of the
transaction:

Revenue:

14 September 2018

Sinopec Ningbo Engineering Co., Ltd. (“Sinopec
Ningbo”) (Purchaser) and Beijing Bogi (Seller)

In terms of design, installation, testing, operation,
maintenance, procurement of purchased components
and during the construction process, the materials
provided and the technology delivered strictly
comply with the requirements under the Ningho
Procurement Contract and the relevant technical
agreement.

May 2019

RMB24,800,000

Ningbo Procurement Contract will enhance the
desulfurization, denitrification and dust removal
business of the Group. The performance of
the contract will have a positive impact on the
Company’s income and operating results, thereby
laying an important foundation for the Company to
expand and strengthen its environmental protection
business in the petrochemical industry, as well as
contributing to the continuous growth of the Group’s
annual performance.

The revenue generated from Ningbo Procurement
Contract amounted to RMB1,250,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2018.

Chongging Chuanwei, is indirectly wholly owned by China Petrochemical

Corporation through Sinopec Group Asset Management Co., Ltd. (Sinopec

Group Asset Management Co., Ltd. and China Petroleum & Chemical

Corporation are both subsidiaries of China Petrochemical Corporation, and

China Petroleum & Chemical Corporation wholly owns Sinopec Overseas).
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Sinopec Ningbo, is controlled by China Petrochemical Corporation
through Sinopec Engineering (Group) Co., Ltd and Sinopec Group Asset
Management Co., Ltd. (Sinopec Engineering (Group) Co., Ltd, Sinopec
Group Asset Management Co., Ltd and China Petroleum & Chemical
Corporation are all subsidiaries of China Petrochemical Corporation, and
China Petroleum & Chemical Corporation wholly owns Sinopec Overseas).

Since Sinopec Overseas is one of the substantial shareholders of the
Company, and both companies are therefore a connected person of
the Company under Rule 14A.07(4) of the Listing Rules. Given the
above continuing connected transactions were all made with the group
companies of China Petroleum & Chemical Corporation, he parent
company of Sinopec Overseas, pursuant to which income shall be received
by the Group in relation to the EPC and procurement services provided,
such transactions shall be aggregated in accordance with Rule 14A.81
of the Listing Rules. The above transaction is entered into on normal
commercial terms. Prior to the Listing, the Company had applied to the
Stock Exchange and the Stock Exchange had granted the Company, a
waiver from strict compliance with the rules regarding the announcement
and independent shareholders” approval requirements under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules, on the condition that the aggregate amount of non-
exempt continuing connected transactions with Sinopec for the year 2018
would not exceed the annual cap set out in the Prospectus.

According to Rule 14A.81 of the Listing Rules, if a series of connected
transactions are entered into or completed within 12 months or are
otherwise interrelated, then such connected transactions shall be
aggregated and treated as if they were one transaction. As both the
Chongging Chuanwei EPC Contract and Ningbo Procurement Contract are
signed with the group company of Sinopec Overseas’ parent company,
China Petroleum & Chemical Corporation and of the same transaction
nature, both the Chongging Chuanwei EPC Contract and Ningbo
Procurement Contract shall be aggregated in accordance with Rule 14A.81
of the Listing Rules. As certain applicable percentage ratios of transaction
amounts of Chongging Chuanwei EPC Contract and Ningbo Procurement
Contract exceed 5% but are less than 25% after aggregation, therefore,
Chongging Chuanwei EPC Contract, Ningbo Procurement Contract and the
transactions thereunder must comply with the reporting, announcement,
circular, Independent Shareholders’ approval and annual review
requirements under Chapter 14A of Listing Rules.
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The annual caps approved by the Independent Shareholders in 2018 are as
follows:

0BFELBURRBLEFELR
mE

For the period from
21 November 2018 to
31 December 2018

For the year ending
31 December 2019

For the year ending

For the period from
1 January 2021 to

31 December 2020 21 November 2021

R2018E1MB21B & HZ2019%F HZE2020%F% R221F1818%
2018F12A31EHHMA 12A31BLLEE 1283NBLEEE 20151 B21BHE
RMB RMB RMB RMB
ARM ARM AR¥ ARM
Chongging Chuanwei EPC
Contract
EEJIHEPCE A 30,811,874 92,645,623 82,351,665 =
Ningbo Procurement Contract
BEREBEER 4,960,000 17,360,000 - 2,48,000
Annual caps
FEER 39,426,062 121,006,185 90,586,831 2,728,000

The revenue generated from Chongging Chuanwei EPC Contract and
Ningbo Procurement Contract amounted to RMB8,099,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2018, which did not exceed the maximum transaction
amount of the contract of RMB39,426,062 for the year ended 31 December
2018.

For details of the transaction, please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 14 September 2018 and the circular of the Company dated
31 October 2018.

CONFIRMATION BY INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed each of the above mentioned
continuing connected transactions and confirmed that:

(1)

(2)

122

the transactions stated in the section headed “— Exempt Continuing Connected
Transactions” in this annual report have been generated during the Group's
ordinary and usual course of business on normal commercial terms (or more
favorable than normal commercial terms available for the Group), and that the
terms of such transactions are fair and reasonable, and are in the interests of the
Company and its shareholders as a whole; and

the transactions and relevant annual caps stated in this section headed “— Non-
exempt Continuing Connected Transactions” in this annual report have been
generated during the Group's ordinary and usual course of business on normal
commercial terms (or more favorable than normal commercial terms available for
the Group), and that the terms of such transactions are fair and reasonable, and
are in the interests of the Company and its shareholders as a whole.
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During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group has complied with the
disclosure requirements prescribed in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules with
respect to the connected transactions and continuing connected transactions
entered into by the Group during the year under review.

AUDITOR'S LETTER

Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Board engaged the auditors of the
Company, Deloitte, to report on the Group’s continuing connected transactions in
accordance with the Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with
reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Based on its work, Deloitte has provided the Board with a letter confirming that, with
respect to the aforesaid continuing connected transactions:

(1) nothing has come to the auditor's attention that causes the auditor to believe
that the disclosed continuing connected transactions have not been approved by
the Company's board of directors;

(2)  for transactions involving the provision of goods or services by the Group, nothing
has come to the auditor’s attention that causes the auditor to believe that the
transactions were not, in all material respects, in accordance with the pricing
policies of the Company;

(3)  nothing has come to the auditor's attention that causes the auditor to believe
that the transactions were not entered into, in all material respects, in
accordance with the relevant agreements governing such transactions; and

(4)  with respect to the aggregate amount of each of the continuing connected
transactions set out above, except for the service fee for O&M services of
approximately RMB261.74 million and ancillary charges of approximately
RMB89.72 million as described in “Yangxi Agreements”, nothing has come to
our attention that causes us to believe that the disclosed continuing connected
transactions have exceeded the annual cap as set by the Company.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Please refer to note 41 to the consolidated financial statements in this annual report for
details of the significant related party transactions pursuant to IFRSs. For the connected
transactions and continuing connected transactions pursuant to the requirements of
the Listing Rules, please refer to the disclosure as set out in the above section headed
“Connected Transactions” in this report of Directors. Except for those disclosed in the
section headed “Connected Transactions” in this report of Directors, the other related
party transactions as disclosed in note 41 are not considered as connected transactions,
or are exempt from reporting, announcement and independent shareholders’ approval
requirements under the Listing Rules.
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MAJOR SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Company was successfully listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on 16
March 2018.

The first goal for the Company's second-stage leaping development was achieved by
bringing in important investors such as Yunnan Energy Investment (H K) Co. Limited
upon Listing. In 2019, the Group will make full use of the Listing as a capital platform
and leverage the strength of its capital to realize mutual integration and promotion
between capital and industry and take a step forward to become a comprehensive
environmental protection industry group.

Save as disclosed in this annual report, there are no major subsequent events to 31
December 2018 which would materially affect the Group’s operating and financial
performance as of the date of this annual report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE AND REVIEW OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Company established the Audit Committee with written terms of reference in
compliance with the CG Code. As at the date of this annual report, the Audit Committee
comprises three members, namely Dr. Xie Guozhong, Mr. Liu Genyu and Mr. Tony Tuo
Zheng. Dr. Xie Guozhong is the chairman of the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the audited financial statements of the Group for the
2018 Financial Year. The Audit Committee has also discussed matters with respect to
the accounting policies and practices adopted by the Company and the internal control
with senior management members and the external auditor of the Company, Deloitte.
Based on this review and discussions with the management, the Audit Committee was
satisfied that the Group’s audited consolidated financial statements were prepared in
accordance with accounting standards and fairly present the Group's financial position
and results for the 2018 Financial Year.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate governance
to safeguard the interests of shareholders and to enhance corporate value and
accountability. The Board has adopted the principles and the code provisions of the
Corporate Governance Code contained in Appendix 14 to Listing Rules to ensure that the
Company's business activities and decision making processes are regulated in a proper
and prudent manner.

Information on the corporate governance practices adopted by the Company is set out

in the Corporate Governance Report on page 64 of this annual report. During the Period,
the Company has fully complied with the CG Code.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information publicly available to the Company and to the knowledge of the
Directors, at least 25% of the Company's total issued share capital, the prescribed
minimum percentage of public float approved by the Stock Exchange and permitted
under the Listing Rules, are held by the public at all times as of the date of this report.

AUDITOR

The Shares were listed on the Stock Exchange on 16 March 2018, and there has been
no change in auditors since the Listing Date. The consolidated financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2018 have been audited by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu,
Certified Public Accountants, who are proposed for reappointment at the forthcoming
AGM.

MATERIAL LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

The Group was not involved in any material legal proceeding during the year ended 31
December 2018.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Company is in compliance with the relevant
laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the Company.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

As an environmental protection service provider, the Group strictly abides by the laws
and regulations relating to its business, including provision of services of environment
protection and energy conservation, inspection of the pollutants and flue gas generated
by coal-fired power plants. The Group is committed to protecting the environment and
giving back to community and achieving sustainable growth. The achievements of the
Group are based on constructing the mutual beneficial relations with our clients and
employees and maintaining coexistence with ecological and social environment. The
Group will continue to commit to its social responsibilities and exert its advantages
as an environmental protection enterprise and make consistent efforts to forage an
environment with blue sky and white clouds.

Details of the environment, social responsibilities and governance of the Company will
be set out in the Environmental, Social Responsibilities and Governance Report (“ESG
Report”) to be issued by the Company separately pursuant to Rule 13.91 and Appendix
27 to the Listing Rules.
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\ DIRECTORS' REPURT(continuedi
EZgHE®

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The AGM will to be held on Wednesday, 29 May 2019. A notice convening the AGM
will be published and dispatched to the shareholders of the Company in the manner
required by the Listing Rules in due course.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

In order to determine the entitlement to attend and vote at the AGM, the register of
members will be closed from Friday, 24 May 2019 to Wednesday, 29 May 2019, both
dates inclusive, during which period no transfer of share will be effected. In order to be
eligible to attend and vote at the AGM, unregistered holders of shares of the Company
shall ensure that all transfer documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates
must be lodged with the Company’s share registrar, Tricor Investor Services Limited,
at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen's Road East, Hong Kong for registration not
later than 4:30 pm on Thursday, 23 May 2019. The record date for such purpose is
Wednesday, 29 May 2019.

In order to determine the entitlement to the proposed final dividend for the year ended
31 December 2018, the transfer books and register of members of the Company will
be closed from Wednesday, 26 June 2019 to Friday, 28 June 2019, both days inclusive.
During the above period, no transfer of shares will be registered. In order to qualify for
the entitlement to the proposed final dividend, all transfers accompanied by the relevant
share certificates and transfer forms must be lodged with the Company’s branch share
registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at Level 22,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong before 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 25
June 2019.

On behalf of the Board

Cheng Liquan Richard
Chairman
Hong Kong, 26 March 2019
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HUMAN RESOURCES
ABER

Guided by the business strategy and annual business objectives, the Company is
centered on economic benefits and is supported by the market as the leader and
technique, comprehensively improving the Company's overall execution ability on
its plan, project management ability and teamwork ability. During the year, an
evaluation system based on “contribution value” as a performance measurement
standard and “performance result” was established. It emphasis on job ability
which is judged by work efficiency, guiding employees to achieve excellence. The
Group implements a responsibility system for business management objectives,
and all members participate in the performance evaluation. By setting post key
performance indicators and index evaluation criteria, the performance for the
completion of task in each position is evaluated scientifically and objectively,
assisting employees to improve their working standard and working performance
so that the Company's annual business objectives can be realized. Meanwhile,
the corresponding reward and punishment system; and promotion system are
implemented according to the quantitative evaluation results so as to truly
realize employee incentives.

1.  Profile of human resources 1+ AHBEER
As at 31 December 2018, the Group had 1800 employees in total, substantially RN2018F 128318 ML EH18004% &
all of whom were based in the PRC. The Group has established labor union E HETMBAZHEETHDEH A&
branches. Currently, the Group had entered into employment agreements HEEBI IS - BRi - AEEDHE
with all employees, in which the position, duties, remuneration, employment EHRETIUTHHAR BRIELEH
benefits, training, confidentiality obligations relating to trade secrets, grounds for FEMEMBEBERENET PARATTE
termination and other aspects are specified pursuant to PRC Labor Law and other EMBU - BE T8 8IT8&F B3I
relevant regulations. FHREMBNRFEERKRILEHRS
E
The table below sets forth the number of employees as at 31 December 2018 by TRYIRTR2018FE12A31MH LB L 2 &
their functions: METAZ:
Percentage of the
Number of employees  total number of employees
Function T BE BEEAH AEBEA
Concession operation management personnel SR EEE AB 93 5.17%
Engineering and technical personnel IREEMAE 176 9.78%
Sales personnel HE A B 24 1.33%
Research and development personnel N 75 417%
Administrative and management personnel THE®EAE 40 2.22%
Manufacture personnel EEANEB 1,392 77.33%
Other Hib 0 0
Total FEE 1,800 100%
2.  Employee incentive 2- AT HM

ARANREERNFELERERE
B PRERERF L UTHRESR
Rt A 2ERSAREETE
HiTEE N BB EEES  BEBIEEN -
FERA BUTUNIEREIRXEGE
BE [BRERIBEANEHZBR
BUTHERRFHEALIERN 5188
TRIHAE SEENTKEEEBREL
Ho2B2EENFGE - BBREEMLA
REFEBRRERTIERE M2 T8
WA ESEUERTKER BB TR
FESTHERKENIERE KREAF
FEELZEBENER A RBEELTHE
BRTEMERESE SAHE &EIE
ERBTAB-
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% HUMAN RESOURCES (continued)

ADERE)
3. The Employees Remuneration Policy

128

The remuneration package of the employees include salaries, bonuses and
allowances. Our employees also receive supplementary medical provision,
transportation allowances, meal allowances and other benefits. The Company
carries out employee performance appraisals and establishes diversified
and dynamic appraisal mechanisms. The department heads’ salaries and
remunerations will be adjusted corresponding to the results of their performance
appraisals. Pursuant to applicable PRC regulations, the Company has contributed
to social insurance funds, including pension plans, medical insurance, work-
related injury insurance, unemployment insurance and maternity insurance, and
housing funds for all its employees.

Training for Employees

In order to allure and retain quality employees and further enrich their
knowledge, skill level and professionalism the Group places a strong emphasis on
the training of its employees. The Group provides professional education, training
and other opportunities for the management personnel and the employees to
improve their professional skills and knowledge. We have commenced elite
training in sales and marketing centers, enhancement training in procurement
management, training in national related policies and laws and regulations, and
the beginner training for fresh graduates.

In 2018, the Group conducted 77 training programs in the areas of professional
knowledge and skills, management knowledge and skills, safety and quality,
professional qualifications, and achieved 92% training rate.

Protection of the employees’ rights

The Group complies with the Labour Law of the PRC and the Labour Contract
Law of the PRC in all material respects, including making contributions to social
insurance and housing provident funds for its employees, among which the social
insurance includes basic pension insurance, medical insurance, work-related
injuries insurance, unemployment insurance and childbirth maternity insurance.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
BV HE RS

Deloitte

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
CHINA BOQI ENVIRONMENTAL (HOLDING) CO., LTD.
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China Bogi Environmental
(Holding) Co., Ltd. (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) set out on pages 134 to 272 which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2018, and the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity
and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of
the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2018, and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued
by International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
("HKSAs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”).
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matter

Key audit matter is the matter that, in our professional judgment, was of most
significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements for the current period.
This matter was addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on this matter.
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\ INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (continued)
BIYZEMBEE)

Key Audit Matter (continued)

HEEZER(R)

Key audit matter

HRELEE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BMNEGNNEEERELRSE

Revenue from construction contracts
BiESHKE

We identified the revenue from construction contracts as a key audit
matter due to the fact that the amount recognised is significant in
the consolidated financial statements and the accounting treatments
of which require significant estimations made by the directors of the
Company (“Directors”).

The Group's revenue from construction contracts is recognised over time
based on the stage of completion of the contracts which is determined as
the proportion of the costs incurred relative to the estimated total costs
to complete the contract.

The Directors estimate both of the profit margin and contract cost at the
beginning for each contract, revises the estimation of both profit margin
and contract cost through regular review when the Directors consider
there are changes in the assumptions throughout the contract period.

Details of the related key estimation uncertainty are set out in note 4 to
the consolidated financial statements.

ARBEREREAEL AT RRYEEN BEEHER

HAPREEBNBEAG A AU AMERES QNS
RERBREZFR-
ERENREARANRZIREAODTKERER  SHNTK

EREMELSNKRAGETKANNMGETARANLPIERE -

§$Eﬁﬁﬁxé%M%ﬂT&mﬂW$ﬁﬁ%ﬁ'E%$

RAREBEEEOPRROBRRBELZ (LR BATHRIEE
BEMNXRA DKL -
HMEXRAFTREESBIARKA M BHRMEL -

Our procedures in relation to revenue from construction contracts
included:

° Testing controls relevant to our audit on budget preparation and
revenue recognition of construction contracts;

° Recalculating the proportion of the costs incurred relative to
the estimated total costs to complete the contracts on a sample
basis;

° Evaluating the reasonableness of the key assumptions adopted by
the Directors in determining the profit margin and total contract
costs, cross checking to the corresponding construction contracts
and the respective budget;

° Testing construction costs incurred during the year by tracing to
supporting documentation on a sample basis; and

° Visiting selected construction sites on a sample basis to observe

the existence of the construction work and interview the site
project managers for the progress of the construction work.

RS HRESNKRERTHEZREFERE:
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Other Information

The Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
the information included in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility
is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and Those Charged with
Governance for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB
and the disclosure requirements of Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the Directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Directors are responsible for
assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the Directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's financial
reporting process.
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\ INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (continued)
BIYZEMBEE)

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated

financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to

fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for

the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is

not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect

a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error

and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably

be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these

consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgment and

maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

132

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal
contral.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’ use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or,
if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue
as a going concern.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated

Financial Statements (continued)

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information
of the entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on
the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible
for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements for the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent auditor's report is
Chung Chin Cheung.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

26 March 2019
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
GERBENHEMEZEKER

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12H31 1L FZ

Notes
Bt &
Revenue I &= 5
Cost of sales and services HERRBKA
Gross profit EH
Other income and other gains and losses HEl A REMKEREE 6
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHEHMAX
Administrative expenses THREX
(Allowance) reversal of impairment losseson ~ & BEERESNEEN
financial assets and contract assets 1B B 18 (& ﬁ) [ 7
Share of profit of an associate DIGEEE R EDEF 17
Finance costs B 7 A A 8
Change in fair value of convertible ERETARZ
ordinary shares RABEED 34
Listing expenses FmRAX
Profit before tax BR 751 A 5 A
Income tax expense FTEMAX 9
Profit (loss) for the year FRm F (& 8) 10
Other comprehensive (expense) income FREMEEFEIDBA
for the year:
Items that will not be reclassified to TeEHIEE
profit or loss: BmrIEE :
Fair value loss on investments in E’Aﬁ{ﬁfﬁ;ﬂr)\ﬁﬁﬂ
equity instrument at fair value through FEBENRALA
other comprehensive income BREMRAREBEBE
Income tax relating to investments in ERERAREBETA
equity instrument at fair value through H 2 [ Y58 B R R
other comprehensive income TARENMEH
ltems that may be subsequently reclassified HEmApET 2 HE
to profit or loss: BmiIEE
Change in fair value of an available-for-sale HEEREN
investment RABEESD
Income tax relating to items that may EHMEBAREN»HE
be reclassified subsequently RIEB R PTIE R
Total comprehensive income (expense) FRE2ABA(RZ) B3
for the year
Profit (loss) for the year attributable to: AT EEERGF(EE)
Owners of the Company ZN/NETE? 2 =IN
Non-controlling interests FEEREE
Total comprehensive income (expense) LTEAEERZEKA
for the year attributable to: (AX)es:
Owners of the Company RRAREE A
Non-controlling interests FEHE IR A &
Earnings (loss) per share FRAER(EE)
— Basic (RMB) —ER(ARE) 1
— Diluted (RMB) —#BARE) "
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2018
2018
RMB’000

AR® TR

1,744,998
(1,427,140)

317,858
117,456
(26,170)
(109,103)

(3.816)
27,963
(5,900)

133,541
(3,319)

448,510
(55,691)

392,819

(5,460)

819
(4,641)

388,178

394,359
(1,540)

392,819

389,718
(1,540)

388,178

0.44
0.27

2017
2017 %
RMB'000
ARBETT

1,329,078
(1,031,836)

297,242
26,017
(18,318)
(88,892)

10,158
31,694
(5,333)

(233,228)
(14,114)

5,226
(42,255)

(37,029)

7,000

(1,051)

5949

(31,080)

(36,418)
(611)

(37,029)

(30,469)
(611)

(31,080)

(0.08)
(0.08)




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e BN R

At 31 December 2018
B 201841231 HILF/Z

Notes
Bt &

Non-current assets (RBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BENZRE 13
Investment properties BWEMHE 14
Intangible assets BEEE 15
Receivables under service concession REEFEELHERT

arrangement-non-current B FE R TE— 3R 16
Investment in an associate REE R RINRE 17
Equity instrument at fair value through BARBEFARAM

other comprehensive income ZHEEMNRATA 18
Available-for-sale investment AfEHERE 19
Amounts due from related parties — non-current  J& Y B 38 5 X IE —IE R &) 41
Deferred tax assets ERERIBEE 21
Total non-current assets FERBEELE
Current assets RBEE
Receivables under service concession REEFEELHERT

arrangement #) FE W 5K I8 16
Debt instrument at fair value through BRAABEFTAEM

other comprehensive income PHREMEBLIA 20
Inventories TE 22
Contract assets BHEE 23
Amounts due from customers for contract work JEU &R F & %) T 12 318 23
Trade and notes receivables 2 S EWHIERERE R 24
Prepayments, deposits and other BRRE Rek

receivables H fth & W 5K I8 26
Amounts due from related parties-current EWEEFRIEBE-RE 41
Pledged bank deposits BEFRITER 28
Bank balances and cash RITEHRRRE 29
Total current assets MBI EELE

2018

2018
RMB’000
ARBT T

88,330
12,348
543,824

367,029
69,537

3,540

143,287
25121

1,253,016

12,526

70,205
37,841
204,289

779,070

123,190
181,520

88,113
780,480

2,271,234
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2017
20175
RMB'000
ARETT

67,021
12,982
425,140

384,565
70,098

9,000
158,014
21,995

1,148,815

23,519

25,429
95,348
667,253

70,176
70,405
54,383
689,354

1,695,867
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‘ CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (continuec)
SEMBRREF@®)

At 31 December

®12831H
2018 2017
20185 2017 %
Notes RMB’'000 RMB000
L= ARBT R ARETT
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and notes payables BOENZERLENEZE 30 885,535 720,727
Other payables, deposits received and HiugfzE e izée
accrued expenses KRR X 31 176,024 405,489
Contract liabilities-current EHEE-R 23 115,651 =
Amounts due to customers for contract work ENEEPE4HIRERE 23 - 27,708
Income tax payable e T 15RL 24,805 17,719
Other tax liabilities HmHBEaE 32 57,659 32,385
Bank horrowings RITERK 33 53,483 100,000
Amounts due to related parties FEfTBEE A RIB 41 23,901 5,496
Total current liabilities nEEEeRE 1,337,058 1,309,524
Net current assets B EEFE 940,176 386,343
Total assets less current liabilities EERERRDAEG 2,193,192 1,535,158
Non-current liabilities EFRBEE
Deferred tax liabilities ELTHBAR 2 8,018 -
Bank borrowings RITER 33 12,000 27,000
Convertible ordinary shares A] 8 T aE AR 34 - 755,129
20,018 782,129
Net assets BEEE 2173174 753,029
Capital and reserves BAEAREE
Share capital & 7K 36 67 32
Reserves e 2,174,058 752,408
Equity attributable to owners of the Company 7N A &) % A A JE1E 25 2,174,125 752,440
Non-controlling interests I S 25 37 (951) 589
YAVERVL 753,029

BRFIUEINEZREAMBHRREN20195F
SH2BREEZEHARKENNE LB T

The consolidated financial statements on pages 134 to 272 were approved and
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 26 March 2019 and are signed on its

behalf by: BEEREXEE:
Zhijun Zeng Liquan Cheng
gk BEER
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
EE EFE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
RERREDR

For the year ended 31 December 2018

HE2018F12H31 AL FZ
Attibutable to owners of the Company
KORERAER
Share — Statutory Investment Non-
Share  Treasury Merger Other —~ premium suplis  Retained ~ revaluation controlling Total
capital shares reserve reserve resere resere profts resee  Subdotal  interests equity
Rt HE % *2R
Bx  ERRR AHEE HbHEE REEE EREE  REEN  EfRE It B RRSE
RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOD  RMBOO0  RMBOO0  RMBO0  RMBOOO  AMBOD  RMBOM  RMBOO0  RMBON
AE¥Tr ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETHL ARMTr ARMTr ARETR ARETR ARETRL ARETR
(note)
(W)
At January 2017 ANTEIA1A 0 {2 50 (128,167) 0% 191200 563932 (1071 - 10
Loss o the year EpER = = = = - - bl - %l Tt 1
Othe compehenshe ncome o ERipRaNs:
the yer, et ot TARHR = - - - - - = 5349 5349 = 539
Totelcomprehense expens) Ep2E(E)haLE
income for theyear = = = = = = (548 534 (30469 611 (31,080)
Transfer o statutry surls resene ERRITRRRE - - - - - BB (AR - - - -
Recesipationof Clss A rdnay sares e~ ABZBREH KR BRE
Closs Bcomvertleonary shares ote] W EREBR(WZi) ] - - - = = - - o
Repurchaseof Clas A oty shares foteii] B AR & R (4 i) ) - - - 60103 - - - (40.105) - (40,105
Share-hased payment WRGBEES R - - - - 1106 - - - 1106 - 106
Contibution from Non-controling nterets FRRERTE - - - - - - - - - 100 120
i - - S oMo Bmo B S W o
At 31 December 2017 RNTE1ANE bii [ 3150 (128.167) (175.260) 1745% S0 5605 1240 59 13009
Hfet arsing o il ERERAREEREE
applaton of FRS 9 ote 2 e AR - - - - (6280 (628
At1 January 2018 R0IBET1A1E 50 (128.167) (175.262) 174583 497859 145,158
Pofitoss) for e e EniTIER) - - - S ) W
(the compehenshe expense for EREpRART
{he year, net of tax ankHE (4641)
Totelcomprehensive income fepense) ERAERE(RY)eE
forthe year 304359 39718
Trenster fosttutory surpls resene ERTETRRER (30728) -
Conversonof Class B and Clss Comeerible B RCETEMEER
ety Shares o ocnary sares (e ) BRAERR(HZH) 621,567 671,568 671,568
Bedseof pePOseeavats o) ERABEENRHED
LI UEL 1894 18941 (L
Foeitur ofpe-PO0shee awards RHERAREER
kO RE L} H [
Reurchas o ordinryshates fote BELARTHY) - (17%9) (17%9)
Sharehesed payment HROBERDHR B B2 B2
lsteofnew Shaes pon sty (o2 ) A ZHRAEG
(K% Mo - - kL L)
) - o N 10888 10828
31 eoember 2018 RUIBENANE (1800 A0 (1AM sE A5 N % W 231
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“ CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (continued)
GEER2BRG)

Notes:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

v

138

In accordance with the Articles of Association of all subsidiaries established in the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC”), the PRC subsidiaries are required to set aside 10% of their profit after tax as per
statutory financial statements determined under the PRC laws and regulations for the statutory surplus
reserve fund until the reserve reach 50% of their registered capital. Transfer to this reserve must be
made before distributing dividends to equity owners of the subsidiaries. The statutory surplus reserve
can be used to make up previous years' losses, expand the existing operations or convert into additional
capital of the respective subsidiaries.

On 9 January 2017, the Company redesignated 125,000,000 Class A ordinary shares which were owned
by New Asia Limited (“New Asia“) to Class B convertible ordinary shares.

Subsequent to the investment by Sinopec Overseas Investment Holding Limited (“Sinopec”) and
New Asia, on 11 January 2017, the Company, Mr. Cheng Liquan Richard (“Mr. Cheng”), World Hero
International Limited (“World Hero”), a shareholder of the Company which is wholly owned by Mr.
Cheng, and Full Synergy Investment Limited (“Full Synergy”), the Company's financial investor, entered
into a share transfer agreement whereby World Hero transferred 24,722,563 Class A ordinary shares in
the Company to Full Synergy at the price of approximately RMB1.77 per share for a total consideration
of the US dollars equivalent to RMB43,750,000. Immediately after the transfer, the Company agreed
to repurchase the 24,722,563 Class A ordinary shares held by Full Synergy in consideration for the
allotment and issue of 24,722,563 Class C-3 convertible ordinary shares to Full Synergy.

During the year ended 31 December, 2018, 11,122,000 pre-IPO share awards were exercised.

In December 2018, the Company repurchased 1,255,000 ordinary shares at prices in a range of HK$1.54
(RMB1.35) to HK$1.74 (RMB1.52) per share.

CHINA BOQI ENVIRONMENTAL (HOLDING) CO., LTD. R EfZBR(ZR) AR A 7

i
fi

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

REBERFEARKFE ([ B]) K47 E W E A A
MR EEME - BN E R AR KL E I HBE A
TR R IR B % 13 RO% HBETE 49 1R 6 7 10% 7 1£)%
ERGEHEE BEFHEEZINHZTMELXDD - 15
RRETFHER I ERFERAFRSEMZ R FEREN
REBBHEETAREHBEFREER RREFE
ERBRBERNE R AR I EX -

R2017F1H9H + K 2 &] #New Asia Limited ([New
Asial) # A #7125,000,000 58 A %8 & 38 ¢ & %7 76 € BB
’755 A g@&l °

R B AEENREFLERER R A([FA(E])ENew
Asialt % R2017FE1A1MAE ARGl BE2 4%
LB E]) &L A K EWorld Hero International
Limited ([World Hero ) (1 FE 5 £ 2 B #B) K & 12 7] 81
BREERWREBARAA(RBFDTL— R #E
E % #F I World Hero A R R B4 A R #1.77 7T
BE2 722563 A NIABEBRTF =W HBRER
AR #43750,000T £ FEETT - EFEEEZE £ - AN A]
EEBER BB 224722563RAEEHER LBEA
7] 63 B 3 ] 3 7724,722,563 % C-3 48 m] #2 14 4 A% -

BE2018F1IZANAILFE BEAXAARETRG £
it Z/8911,122,00088 B8 (3 B 771 °

R2018F 12/ » AR AU FERISGET(A K135
TT)E1.748 7T (A & #1.527) ) (B 15 B [E] 1,255,000 %



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

GREHERER

For the year ended 31 December 2018

EHE2018F12H31AILFE
2018 2017
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® TR ARETT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES KEEE
Profit before tax B& 74 B A 448,510 5226
Adjustments for: A
Finance costs B 75 AR 5,900 5,333
Change in fair value of convertible AEREER
ordinary shares ARBEEED (133,541) 233,228
Share of profit of an associate valol A U/NES b (27,963) (31,694)
Interest income S WA (38,496) (17,199)
Profit from construction service under BHKERERSE ST
concession operation (4,209) (820)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME - BEMREITE 11,153 6,454
Depreciation of investment properties WEWMERE 634 634
Amortisation of intangible assets BB E 36,851 33,418
Allowance for inventories GFERE - 484
Allowance (reversal of allowance) for Z 5 e W s B
trade receivables (B f5 R ) 324 (10,458)
Allowance for other receivables H b e Uk Zh B B AR 125 300
Allowance for contract assets EHEERE 1,278 =
Allowance for amounts due from related parties JiE Uy B 3E 5 RIB R 2,204 =
Reversal of allowance for receivables under RERTREELHEIERTH
service concession arrangement FEM TR B EED (155) -
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEWE BER
equipment F B A 21 45
Share-based payment PARR 17 A E 6 3 8,442 7,206
Foreign exchange (gain) loss fE N (M=) BB (35,445) 10,331
Operating cash flows before movements BEBESEYRILE
in working capital BERE 275,673 242,488
Increase in inventories FEEMN (12,412) (3,861)
Decrease in contract assets BEHEERD 11,437 -
Decrease in amounts due from customers BT FE A4 T2 FE /D
for contract work 22,630
(Increase) decrease in trade and notes receivables EoEBZIENEREE
(3% n) 3Rk 4 (301,086) 76,196
Increase in debt instrument at fair value through RALBEFTAEM
other comprehensive income 2HWK R ER T EE M (4,368) =
(Increase) decrease in prepayments, deposits BRRE R k&t
and other receivables JE Ui SR T8 (38 ) % 2 (28,548) 20,333
Decrease in receivable under service AR 7 AT A L HE Y
concession arrangement JE W ZxE e D 25,01 -
Increase in amounts due from related parties JE Uy B 38 5 2N 3B 1 N (116,779) (27,561)
Increase in trade and notes payables 2 5 e 3UA RE 245 0 146,824 26,988
Increase (decrease) in other payables, HmpENZE - BRiES
deposits received and accrued expenses N EETR R 2) 50,496 (81,519)
Increase in contract liabilities EHEEEN 41,130 -
Increase in amounts due to customers RRFE A4 T2 5 IEE N
for contract work — 11,447
Increase in other tax liabilities Ha#ia s &8 mn 20,290 5,583
Increase in amounts due to related parties JE < B & 5 BB 38 AN 18,405 5,363
Cash generated from operations REMBHRE 126,073 298,087
Income taxes paid EFMEH (41,153) (32,572)
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES CEFHMERLFH 84,920 265,515
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‘ CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)
FEATRERG

2018 2017
2018 2017 F
RMB'000 RMB000
AR®BT R ARBF T
INVESTING ACTIVITIES KEEH
Placement of pledged bank deposits FABERRITER (86,824) (206,066)
Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits RBMEERRITER 53,094 443,286
Interest received 2 F B 38,496 17,199
Dividend received from an associate BB 2 QR AR B 28,524 13,351
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEME WMELERE (32,541) (40,541)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and HEME BE&
equipment HAEBFTS R 58 442
Purchase of intangible assets and costs capitalised & B & /2 & & & R 5 5 =F
under service concession arrangements BWERZHENERN(LER (391,636) (187,160)
Deposit refunded for the acquisition of assets HNBEERBDZ2ES - 136,000
Advance to related parties 7 8 i 77 2 5% (2.507) (139,759)
Repayment from related parties BERER 17,815 1,203
NET CASH (USED IN) RERB(FTAMEREFH
FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES (375,521) 37,955
FINANCING ACTIVITIES BMEEY
Repayment of bank borrowings ERBITER (100,000) (298,530)
New bank borrowings raised HMEBRITER = 80,000
Proceeds from discounted notes receivables from RITERBRERRE
banks P15 508 38,483 -
Interest paid B FE (5,900) (5,333)
Proceeds from issue of shares BIIRMABRE 418,860 -
Exercise of pre-IPO share awards RN STl ) 18,947 -
Repurchase of ordinary shares B L AR (1,799) -
Cash paid by employees due to forfeiture of BEREZWE X AREITA
pre-IPO share awards Rin ZEFNR & 74 =
Contribution from non-controlling interests FEREREE = 1,200
Cash received from convertible ordinary shares B EHEERIEERAES - 280,459
NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES BREETEMEIREEE 368,665 57,796
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND ReRkBeSEYWENFRE
CASH EQUIVALENTS 78,064 361,266
Effects of exchange rate changes fEXRBEH R E 13,062 (20,253)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS M ATEMEE K
1 JANUARY ReEEY 689,354 348,341
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS N12A31EHNEE &
31 DECEMBER ReEEY 780,480 689,354
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018
#HE2018F12H31 HILFE

1.

General

China Bogi Environmental (Holding) Co., Ltd. (the “Company”) was incorporated as
an exempted company with limited liability in the Cayman Islands on 30 January
2015 of which its shares were listed on the Main, Board of the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited on 16 March 2018. The addresses of the registered
office of the Company and principal place of business of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) are disclosed in the section
headed Corporate Information to the annual report.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal activities of the
Group are providing independent flue gas treatment service and environmental
protection solution service by various business models, including environmental
protection facility engineering, operation and maintenance and concession
operation.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB”), which
is also the functional currency of the Company.

—KR&EH
FREBEFRERER)ARAATARE])
R2015F1ANRERERSEMALA
E#E2BERAA ERHR2018F3A16
RERRBBARSIMARQBERLM
ARANEMBERRARELENE
AR SE NN 3 38 :0p:)
IRERFRAREN -

ARBRREERRAR -AEENTEZE
BREBZEXBEA(BERRRETL
BOEBREEEREALE)REEBELE
REE RS RIREBRT RIRT -

GAMBBRRAARBTAR®DES
ARBTRR/ARANNEEE -
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“ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

)

142

BB RRMEE)

Application of New and Revised International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRSs")

New and Amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily effective for

the current year

The Group has applied the following new and amendments to IFRSs issued by
the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) for the first time in the

current year:

IFRS 9

IFRS 15

IFRIC 22

Amendments to IFRS 2

Amendments to IFRS 4

Amendments to IAS 28

Amendments to IAS 40

Except as described below, the application of the new and amendments to
IFRSs in the current year has had no material impact on the Group's financial
performance and positions for the current and prior year and/or on the

Financial Instruments

Revenue from Contracts with Customers and the
Related Amendements

Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance
Consideration

Classification and Measurement of Share-based
Payment Transactions

Applying IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” with IFRS
4 "Insurance Contracts”

As part of the Annual Improvements to IFRSs
Standard 20142016 Cycle

Transfers of Investment Property

disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements.
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ERAHITRECITERMBERS
# R
FEEEAENORITRESITRR
MBEREER
AEBEERAFEEREAMBER &5
ZAZBe((BEREFENRBS)MEM
HFTR] RGETTERM B RS ER

BRI BHERER SRTA

£
BRI BEELER TRPailiasRk
FE155% HEEET
BIRR BT iR & IR 5 R
2RBZEE AR (R E
—RBENR
BRI B EER UROAERNZIM
25 (BT A) RGMDBREFTE
B B B 75 i [ B B B 7%
& 28 WMEEREAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued)

Application of New and Revised International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) (continued)

New and Amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily effective for
the current year (continued)

2.1 IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

The Group has applied IFRS 15 for the first time in the current year. IFRS
15 superseded IAS 18 Revenue, IAS 11 Construction Contracts and the
related interpretations.

The Group has applied IFRS 15 retrospectively with the cumulative
effect of initially applying this standard recognised at the date of
initial application, 1 January 2018. Any difference at the date of initial
application is recognised in the opening retained profits (or other
components of equity, as appropriate) and comparative information
has not been restated. Furthermare, in accordance with the transition
provisions in IFRS 15, the Group has elected to apply the Standard
retrospectively only to contracts that are not completed at 1 January 2018.
Accordingly, certain comparative information may not be comparable as
comparative information was prepared under IAS 18 Revenue and IAS 11
Construction Contracts and the related interpretations.

The Group recognises revenue from the following major sources which
arise from contracts with customers:

° Environmental protection facility engineering (“EPC”) services

o Operation and management (“0&M") services

o Concession operation (“Build-Operate-Transfer”, “BOT", and
“Transfer-Operate-Transfer”, “TOT")

° Others including sewage treatment, sales of by-products and others

Information about the Group's performance obligations and the accounting
policies resulting from application of IFRS 15 are disclosed in note 5 and 3
respectively.

SEMBBRRME®

ERAHITRECTERMBERS
# R (4&)
FEEEAENORITRESTRR
MBHREENGR)

21 EBRMBBREEMNFBREFEN
i 3
AEERAFEEREARKESG

HEAEBR HENBHHRSE
I 155% U BIBR & 5 28 R 55185
Wz BREFREAFNRELS
HRERRE-

AEBCDERERBRMBERE R
BIZ155% - BIRER % & A/ R &t
FTERWIBF1AIBERERER
ER-MERXEREBELNEM
ZERBOBFEN P RA(HHE
tERARTD MEZ)RELBE
BARERES - W REERE
B 75 ¥R & 2 B 155 &Y 38R 1R 3
ARBEEREH2018FIRA1H /R
TERZAERBPRBZER Bt -
AETHREMAEEIL B Bk
HEEHAREBEER G ERF18
Wil BEEFERNENREL
EAREHERERS

AEERIBATELEEEPAAN
FERRH et

e RRRFRMIR(EPC])RH

e EEREERH

e RHEEXRBUIRR-LE-
B2l BOTI R [BR—&&—

B 110T)

e HMBEFKERE  BEMH
EREAM

BRASBERENE T RERBERKM

BHREENFISREHN A HE
HE R D RIS RIFE -
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‘ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

)

144

BERERME@E

Application of New and Revised International Financial 2.
Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) (continued)

New and Amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily effective for

ERAHITRECSITERMBERS
# R (4&)
FEEEMNENOTITRESTER

the current year (continued) M 3% R & 2 R ()
2.1 IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (continued) 2.1. BEEBREEANEIBREEFEY

Summary of effects arising from initial application of IFRS 15

The following adjustments were made to the amounts recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position at 1 January 2018. Line items
that were not affected by the changes have not been included.

i 7 (&)
B R RE R B BR B 75 3R 5 2 Bl 551558
FELMFERL

IWTRER2018F1A1B &S
BRAKRDPEINSHEMELNSE
B AXEPFENBEL LR
EA -

Gross carrying
amounts previously

Gross carrying
amounts under

reported at IFRS 15 at
31 December 2017 Reclassification 1 January 2018*
BE K EE
5% Al R 2017 ZRE155 T
12ANBEHE M2018F181H
Y BR [ 48 18 BNOE WEREAE®
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AREFTTT AREFTT
Current Assets REBEE
Trade and notes receivables (notefij) B HREWRER
B U & (7 (i) 698,677 (127,489) 571,188
Contract assets (note (i) and (ii) BRVEE Z0) R (i) = 222,837 222,837
Amounts due from customers for U EFAHTRENA
contract work (note (if)) (B & (i) 95,348 (95,348) -
Current Liabilities REBEE
Contract liabilities (note (i) and (iii) &8 8 & i) R (i) = 74,521 74,521
Amounts due to customers for EREFPEHIRHIE
contract work (note (if)) (B (i) 27,708 (27,708) -
Other payables, deposits received HmEMRE Blike
and accrued expenses (note (iii) X P& &t 5 S (7 at (i) 405,489 (51,797) 353,692
Other tax liabilities HHERE 32,385 4,984 37,369
0 The amounts in this column are before the adjustment from the application of IFRS 9. * U3l & B8 75 BB BT s R 5 2 A 9
HHEN S -
Notes: oga
(i) At the date of initial application, retention receivables of RMB127,489,000 arising from i) REXEFAE BEENELNIE
construction contracts was retention receivables which was conditional on the Group's W RS A K #127489,000T A A 1+
achieving specified milestones as stipulated in the contracts, and hence such balance REEZR AL HETEN BT ERE
was reclassified from trade receivables to current contract assets by RMB127,489,000. GHAEEMNERRES AUZE
BHREHBESERFEEN 2 HEE
BA K EEA R B127489,0007T °
(i) In relation to construction contracts related to EPC previously accounted for under (ii) BAEAREER ST ERENF AR

IAS 11, the Group continues to apply input method in estimating the performance
obligations satisfied up to date of initial application. RMB95,348,000 and
RMBZ27,708,000 of amounts due from/to customers for contract work were reclassified
to contract assets and contract liabilities, respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued)

Application of New and Revised International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) (continued)

New and Amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily effective for
the current year (continued)

2.1 IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial application of IFRS 15 (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(iii) As at 1 January 2018, advances from customers of RMB51,797,000 in respect of
construction contracts and the related value added tax previously included in other
payables, deposits received and accrued expenses were reclassified to contract
liabilities and other tax liabilities, respectively.

The following tables summarise the impacts of applying IFRS 15 on the
Group's consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2018 and its consolidated statement of cash flows for the current year for
each of the line items affected. Line items that were not affected by the
changes have not been included.

Impact on the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31

EXln B )

ERAHITRECTERMBERS
# R (1)
EEERMENORTREETER

MBEHSENGE
21 BERMBBREEINFISREFEN
i 7 (&)

BRERBIRM G REEAE155
FELNT EHA(E)

it - (&)

(i) R2018F 1 /18 - 5 Bl 5 Bl it A E
TR BMEZEREHXHH
BELWRIEHEERAEL BHA
R #51,797,000cERFEH S EEE
HMEERAMHERLRE-

TR ERBE RS RS ERFE15%
HAEBN2018F12A3BNEREHH
RAKNFEREXYERBYARHE
AEENGERRSRERNTE -AXE
FENBRAYTBREERA-

HR2018F12A3N B & & B B AR & &

December 2018: 2
Gross carrying
Gross carrying amount without
amount as application of
reported Adjustments IFRS 15
& & B
BRET RS
BRE % B %155
REAE ik HERE A E
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
Bt & ARETTT ARETTT ARBTIT
Non-Current Assets FRBEE
Amounts due from related parties FE U FE 3E 5 IR M 145,850 = 145,850
Current Assets RBEE
Trade and notes receivables g 5 E WA K
I E S 24 802,046 69,980 872,026
Contract assets EHNEE 23 211,400 (211,400) -
Amounts due from customers for EBUREFAL
contract work TRZE 23 - 111,420 111,420
Amounts due from related parties FEU 8 & 5 R IB M 184,040 30,000 214,040
Current Liabilities nBEE
Contract liabilities ANEaE 3 115,651 (115,651 -
Amounts due to customers for contract  JE N B F & 4
work TI#ERAE 23 43,808 43,808
Other payables, deposits received and L fth & { 5% 18 -
accrued expenses Eliine RETHS 31 176,024 81,304 247,867
Other tax liabilities HitFiBEE 2 57,659 (9.461) 48,198
There is no impact on the consolidated statement of profit and loss and HEoBRaRAMEERSRHEYE -

other comprehensive income.
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‘ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
SEMBBRRME®
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Application of New and Revised International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) (continued)

New and Amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily effective for

the current year (continued)

21

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial application of IFRS 15 (continued)

Impact on the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year ended 31
December 2018

2 BRABIRESTERMBRS
# 7 (#)
FEEEMWENOHATRESTER
MEREENGR)

21

BERMBREENFISREFELN
i 7 ()

BRER BRI E E A F155
FELANT EHR(E)

HEHZE2018F12ANBILFERE
RenBRNTE

Amount without
application of

As reported Adjustments IFRS 15
PR
B BRI E
% B 551555
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR® T AR® T AR® T

OPERATING ACTIVITIES RESEE
Increase in trade and notes B 5 ERRIE R

receivables JE U Z2 4% 1% 0 (301,086) 57,509 (243,577)
Decrease in contract assets EHNEBERD 11,437 (11,437) =
Increase in amounts due from EWEFEEH

customers for contract work T2 FIBLE N - (16,072) (16,072)
Increase in amounts in due from & e 2 58 5 SR IR SE N

related parties (116,779) (30,000) (146,779)
Increase in contract liabilities BREEEM 41,130 (41,130) =
Increase in amounts due to customers fE & F & 4

for contract work TREZIEE M - 16,100 16,100
Increase in other payable, deposits £ 4t i <7 70 1B » 2 U i%

received and accrued expenses © R FEET 4L 50,496 29,507 80,003
Increase in other tax liabilities H ity I8 & 5180 20,290 (4,477) 15,813
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued)

Application of New and Revised International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) (continued)

New and Amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily effective for
the current year (continued)

22

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments and the related amendments

In the current year, the Group has applied IFRS 9 Financial Instruments
and the related consequential amendments to other IFRSs. IFRS 9
introduces new requirements for 1) the classification and measurement of
financial assets and financial liabilities, 2) expected credit losses (“ECL")
for financial assets and other items (for example, contract assets) and 3)
general hedge accounting.

The Group has applied IFRS 9 in accordance with the transition provisions
set out in IFRS 9, .i.e. applied the classification and measurement
requirements (including impairment) retrospectively to instruments
that have not been derecognised as at 1 January 2018 (date of initial
application) and has not applied the requirements to instruments that have
already been derecognised as at 1 January 2018. The difference between
carrying amounts as at 31 December 2017 and the carrying amounts as at
1 January 2018 are recognised in the opening retained profits and other
components of equity, without restating comparative information.

Accordingly, certain comparative information may not be comparable as
comparative information was prepared under IAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement.

Accounting policies resulting from application of IFRS 9 are disclosed in
note 3.

SEMBBRRME®

BRAHKIOREEITERMERS
4 7 (¥8)
FEEEHENOHATREBSTER
MBREENGE)

22

ERMBEREENFIREMIA
KRBT
RAFE AEECEAERYB
SRAFIREHTAREME
R BHEENABOEREER -
B R B 75 R 5 ERIF9H I AT
TREENEBABNDBENGE
D)ERMEENEMBRWANEE)
MESREEER(BRBEEEBR]
R3)—MEFGHIENFMATE

AEEEREHEBRMBERSERNE
Q%% P 81 18 X 1 5k 3B A B RR B 75
wmEERFF At R201851 A
TH(ERER B )R KK ERE
TAEPEBOBERAERT(BR
RAE) - MEARSR2018F1A1H
RUIEBANTAEARE 20174
12A3NB R EREEE201851 410
MEEEZRNBOREEFN LA
RO ER  MAFREINEH -

it B THLRERARYGAR L
ALBEMTLRERE S LS
NREHMTA B RAERH

FE PR B BR B 7% R & % Al R 955

o= 5
V& RSN I RE -

i
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‘ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

REMBHRRM TR
2. Application of New and Revised International Financial 2. BERHITREECITERMERS
Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) (continued) #£8)(48)
New and Amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily effective for FEERHNENPHITIREEISTERE
the current year (continued) B 35 &R 5 £ B (4F)
22 IFRS 9 Financial Instruments and the related amendments 22 BEUEREERNEIREMIA
(continued) R HEA 15T (&)
Summary of effects arising from initial application of IFRS 9 BRERBRE B REEREIR
FTE £ 25
The table below illustrates the classification and measurement of TRHARERAEABH=-_ZT-—N
financial assets, financial liabilities and other items subject to ECL under F-A—HREBEBEBRY KRS LR
IFRS 9 and IAS 39 at the date of initial application, 1 January 2018. FORRER S ERENE R

FHREEFEENEREE 2RA
BEAREMCEBENDBRITE

Receivables
Amounts ~ Prepayment, ~ Amounts under
Available- Equity Trade  duefrom deposits ~~ due from senice Debt
forsale instrument  andnotes customersfor  and other related  concession  instrument Contract ~ Deferred Retained
investment  atFVTOCI*  receivables contractwork  receivables parties  amangement  at FVTOC assefs  tax assets profits
BAAEE RH%S RAAEE
ARl BREN  EUEF RERE gezd  FARE
It 2EGEN  RER  RHIE REREM EUBER  ATH 2ELEN BEHE

HERE RAIR EURE #E  EhHE #5  EURA BEIR AKKE BE  RER
MUBOD  RMBIO  AVBO  RVBOO  RWBOD  RMBIO  RVBOD  RVBO  RAVBOD  RMBOD  RWBOD

ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETR
Closing balance at 31 December ~ R2017£12 8318
11- 183 BRkH-
BRetEd
%308 900 = 67,263 9,348 0,176 49 408084 - - 219% 504141
Effect arising fromnital EREREREE
application of RS 15 REEHENE
fEENEE - - (127,489 (95,348) - - - - mw = =
Effect arising fromnitial U EELLE
appliation of IFRS 9 RERHEE
fEEHZE
Reclassificationfrom EfSER
Available-for-sale ivestment MHEERS 9000 9000 = - - - _ - _ _ _
Trade and noes receivables BHRNFER
EWZE - - (65,837) - - - - 65,637 = = =
Remeasurement EffitE
Impaiment under EL model BEEEEE
EXATHEE - - 4381 - (59) (28%9) (3673 - 58%) 174 (6,282
Opening balance at RBE1A1R
1 January 2018 LR = 9000 {78,308 = 0117 15580 44 66,637 17004 B1% 497859
* FVTOCI: Fair value through other comprehensive income
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued)

Application of New and Revised International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) (continued)
New and Amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily effective for
the current year (continued)
22 IFRS 9 Financial Instruments and the related amendments
(continued)
Summary of effects arising from initial application of IFRS 9 (continued)

(a)  Available-for-sale (“AFS") investment
From AFS investment to FVTOCI

The Group elected to present in other comprehensive incomes
for the fair value changes of all its equity investments previously
classified as AFS investment. These investments are not held for
trading and not expected to be sold in the foreseeable future.
At the date of initial application of IFRS 9, RMB9,000,000 were
reclassified from AFS investment to equity instrument at FVTOCI.
The fair value gains of RMB7,000,000 relating to those investments
previously carried at fair value continued to accumulate in
investment revaluation reserve.

SEMBBRRME®

ERAHITRECTERMBERS

4 Al (48

FEEEAENORITRESTRR

MEBSENG)

22 EIRMBERERUFIREMIA]
RHEERE T ()

BRMER B ®REERFIR
FELANT B (E)

(a)

AfthE(AHEENRE
BEARHEREZERAAE
EFFAEMEHE K E

ASEERENEM2E K
EIFMABEMYBERAHE
ERENBKERENAAE
BEEY REREYIFFHEE
E -HBFARABREARRTE
HE-RERERBERY®B
MEENFIRBAH ARK
9.000000tE A EREE
MAOBERRABEF AR
tEERENRATR - B
AABRAALBEIENZS
RENRAABERSEARYE
7,000,000 7 4 & X % & E 1
e Rt e
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‘ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

)

150

BB RRMEE)

Application of New and Revised International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) (continued)
New and Amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily effective for
the current year (continued)
22 IFRS 9 Financial Instruments and the related amendments
(continued)
Summary of effects arising from initial application of IFRS 9 (continued)

(b)  Impairment under ECL model

The Group applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to measure
ECL which uses a lifetime ECL for all contract assets and
trade receivables. To measure the ECL, contract assets and
trade receivables are grouped based on shared common risk
characteristics. The Group believes that most of the customers of
trade receivable are the same in nature, who are power plants.
The ECL on these financial assets are estimated using a provision
matrix i.e. analysis of the outstanding balances by aging and
apply a probability-weighted estimate of the credit losses within
the relevant time band. The probability-weighted estimate of the
credit losses is determined based on the Group's historical credit
loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to general
economic conditions and an assessment of both the current as
well as the forecast direction of conditions at the reporting date,
including time value of money where appropriate.
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EENTERLE)

b) FEHMEEBBELXTHRE
AEBEABERMBHREE
BIFIR L DAt ERBIE
EER UABMBEARNEE
FESRERURENEHES
FEBR RAEEHEES
B -ANEBERE HRERWFIE
RABRRARAREHE SR K
SEBEEEZRBRENAKN
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E-ZEemEENRBEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued)

Application of New and Revised International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) (continued)
New and Amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily effective for
the current year (continued)
22 IFRS 9 Financial Instruments and the related amendments
(continued)
Summary of effects arising from initial application of IFRS 9 (continued)

(b)  Impairment under ECL model (continued)

The contract assets relate to unbilled work in progress and have
substantially the same risk characteristics as the trade receivables
for the same types of contracts. The Group has therefore concluded
that the expected loss rates for the trade receivables are a
reasonable approximation of the loss rates for the contract assets.

Except for those which had been determined as credit-impaired
under IAS 39, ECL for other financial assets at amortised cost,
including pledged bank deposits, bank balances and cash, other
receivables, notes receivables, amounts due from related parties
and receivables under service concession arrangement are
measured on 12-month ECL (“12m ECL") basis and there had been
no significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition.

As at 1 January 2018, additional credit loss allowance of
RMB8,023,000 has been recognised against retained profits
netting of deferred tax effect of RMB1,741,000. The additional loss
allowance is charged against the respective assets.

SEMBBRRME®

BRAHKIOREEITERMERS
# R (4&)
FEERHNENORTRESTER

MBHREENGR)
22 EBRMBEREENFRIEMITA]
R BB (&)

BRMER B ®REERFIR

FELANT B (E)

b) FEHEEBEBEREXTHHE
(&)
RHBEEERAEERM
B YERBESOE S EKRX
B AR KB R & BB e
Bit ASEABRR EH
BUFRENRREREERES
NEEBRXEE-

PR AR 13 B PR & &2 Al 395
WEEREERENZER
BN REBHK ARG ENEM
TREENANEEHAE
REERMROTER RTEH
EH e EEEKE  EK
B BREEDTFEARRS
SRS RH IR T R B IGRR)
K12 A BB EEEE12(
ARMEEBRDEEGE
BNEERUNREERRYL
EREEM -

R20185E1 A1H » AR #8,023,000
TRBIIMEEBRBBEGRE
TERIER E AR1741,0007T)
ERREGHNER BINEE
BRECNABEEEMR -
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‘ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

REMBREMEE)
2. Application of New and Revised International Financial 2. BERHITREECITERMERS
Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) (continued) R (48
New and Amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily effective for EEERHNENDTITIREEITER
the current year (continued) BHEREENGE)
22 IFRS 9 Financial Instruments and the related amendments 22 EBRPHBEEANFIREBITA]
(continued) R BT (&)
Summary of effects arising from initial application of IFRS 9 (continued) BRERBRMERSEBF95%
FrEE £ B 2Rt (8)
(b)  Impairment under ECL model (continued) b)) BEHEEEREXATHEE
(%)
All loss allowances including contract assets, trade and notes MN2017%E12A8318 0 FT & 5
receivables, other receivables, amounts due from customers for BEREE(BIEANEE -B5
contract work, amounts due from related parties, receivables under PEU K TE R E U = H b fE
Service concession arrangem.ent, and debt |n§trument at FVTOCI as KB EhEEA N TRY
:E 131J2[:e;aerr:t;%ré();; :e:?gltlz!\(levi:to the opening loss allowances as B 2 RS
ARERHEET A ERKIE
REARBEFAEMZE
W mEH T A)HERK201841
ATEO B ERE AR
m
Receivahles
Prepayments, Amounts under
Trade deposits due from service
Contract and notes and other related concession
assets  receivables receivables parties  arrangement
R 75 45 3
EZEW BARE- BezH
RERER ZeRHEM Bl BTHEK
RHEE FE ERTE BELSNE 0]
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT AREBTT ARETRT ARETFT
At 3| December 2017-1AS 39 R2017F12 8318~ N/A
Re s ERIE395 iR 31424 300 - -
Reclassification ENNE 5,281 (5.281) - - -
Amounts remeasured through BRBIRE G F
opening retained profits ENHENSE 552 900 5 2839 3673
Opening balance at 1 January 2018 R2018E1 R1E R
& 5833 27,043 39 2839 3673
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued)

Application of New and Revised International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) (continued)
New and Amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily effective for
the current year (continued)
22 IFRS 9 Financial Instruments and the related amendments
(continued)
Summary of effects arising from initial application of IFRS 9 (continued)

(c) Debt instrument at FVTOCI

As part of the Group’s cash flow management, the Group
discounted some of the notes received from debtors to financial
institutions before the notes are due for payment and derecognises
notes discounted on the basis that the Group has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards to the relevant counterparties.
Accordingly, the Group’s trade and notes receivables of
RMB65,837,000 were considered as within the hold to collect
contractual cash flows and to sell business model, and reclassified
to debt instrument at FVTOCI. The related fair value approximates
to the carrying amount of debt instrument at FVTOCI as at 1
January 2018.

SEMBBRRME®

ERAHITRECTERMBERS

4 Al (48

FEEEAENORITRESTRR

MEBSENG)

22 EIRMBERERUFIREMIA]
RHEERE T ()

BRMER B ®REERFIR
FELANT B (E)

(c)

BRArBEFAEMLEZEK
HsMEHTA
ERAGSBEHREREEEN
—®n AEERERI A
BEMBEBBBEE AN
ETER URAKEGET
eEnRERLERESEH
BHEFIE RIEERAZEE
BEMERRE - Rt K&
EMEZRURERERE
& A R #65,837,000 T #% 1% &
BERBEANURAEOEAESRE
XML EREEMBAENE
¥R YEBHHOBARA
REEFAEMGZE KD N
BB I HE-N208F1H18 -
HENLAABEBEEZA
REEFAEMGZE KD
EHETANKREEMES -
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‘ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

EEln B )

2. Application of New and Revised International Financial

Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) (continued)
New and Amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily effective for

the current year (continued)

23 Impacts on opening consolidated statement of financial position
arising from the application of all new standards and amendments
As a result of the changes in the Group’s accounting policies above, the
opening consolidated statement of financial position had to be restated.
The following table show the adjustments recognised for each of the line
items affected. Line items that were not affected by the changes have not

been included.

k-

BRAITREETERMBESES

# Rl (18
FEEEAENORITRESITRR
MEBRSENGE)

23 ERFAHEARBTHANES
MERRRNTE
AREAAEEEHBREES B
NEEMBRARRBTUNEG T
BT EXYERARANAR -
AXEYFENRALIBEER -

=

=

o &%

31 December 1 January
2017 2018
(Audited) IFRS 15 IFRS 9 (Restated)
2017 £ B PR Bt 7 B PR B 20185
128318 & E 8 & ER 181H
(RER) 155 E95% (RE5)
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBTn ARETT ARE®Trx
Non-current Assets kRBEE
Receivables under service REEFLLEZHBATH
concession arrangement JE U Z 1B 384,565 - (3,461) 381,104
Available-for-sale investment At ERE 9,000 - (9,000) -
Amounts due from related parties FE U B8 E A 158,014 = (1,840) 156,174
Equity instrument at FYTOC BRARBEGARLML
ZENEHBRATE = = 9,000 9,000
Deferred tax assets ELRIBEE 21,995 - 1,74 23,736
Current Assets RBEE
Trade and notes receivables BORKFERELZE 667,253 (127,489) (67,456) 478,308
Amounts due from related parties JE W & 75 58 70,405 - (999) 69,406
Amounts due from customers for EUEFANHIRAE
contract work 95,348 (95,348) - -
Receivables under service REFTCERERTH
concession arrangement JE U Z 1B 23519 = (212) 23,307
Prepayments, deposits and BNRE Ze2k
other receivables H At B W R IR 70,176 = (59) 70,117
Debt instrument at FVTOCI BARBEFAEMZRA
BamEBIA - - 65,837 65,837
Contract assets ANEE 222,837 (5,833) 217,004
Current Liabilities hEBEE
Contract liabilities ANBE 74,521 - 74,521
Amounts due to customers for EREFAHTIRAE
contract work 27,708 (27,708) - -
Other payables, deposits received and EEMNTE Blike
accrued expenses REFHZ 405,489 (51,797) - 353,692
Other tax liabilities HiuHiEa R 32,385 4,984 - 37,369
Capital and Reserves BRAR G E
Retained profits R R F 504,141 - (6.282) 497,859

Note:  For the purposes of reporting cash flows from operating activities under indirect
method for the year ended 31 December 2018, movements in working capital have
been computed based on opening statement of financial position as at 1 January 2018

as disclosed above.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued)

Application of New and Revised International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) (continued)
New and revised IFRSs in issue but not yet effective

SEMBBRRME®

BRAHKIOREECITEARMERS
# 7 (¥&)
ERFERRENNHITREESTE
PR B 355 3 05 A

The Group has not adopted the following new and revised IFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective:

IFRS 16 Leases'
IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts®
IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments'

Amendments to IFRS 3 Definition of a Business*

Amendments to IFRS 9 Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation’

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture?

Amendments to IFRS 10
and IAS 28

Amendments to IAS 1 Definition of Material®

and IAS 8

Amendments to IAS 19 Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement’

Amendments to IAS 28 Long-term Interests in Associates and
Joint Ventures'

Amendments to IFRSs Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle'

i Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019

z Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined
g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021
& Effective for business combinations and asset acquisitions for which the acquisition date is on

or after the beginning of the first annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2020

o Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020

Except for the new and amendments to IFRSs mentioned below, the directors of
the Company (“Directors”) anticipate that the application of all other new and
amendments to IFRSs will have no material impact on the consolidated financial
statements in the foreseeable future.

AEBEYE

HORTR] RGBT M B RS 2R

R TERMERKREXK

BlRmBgRELEy RE
F165¢

BB BRERERN RREHS
F17%

BB BT A iR ERERZ
REBZBEE- THEE
2EFEBR

BREBEREREN ZEBMER
EIRUEFTA)

B R B 75 o o 2 A Eﬁﬁf #78 f
ELEACHPS) I B
B R B 75 R o 2 A Txﬁ%‘ﬁiﬁﬁ’ﬁ%“?
£10% kBB FaEPEZHEN
S ERIFE28% BELEHIE?
CHES)

BEeEAE1H EANEER®
REE g A
ELEACHES)

Eilll el FTENERT - BR
F19% (BT A) EE*

Eilae il RBELRARAEELE
E28% (BT A) MR EER

BRmBREER BEREERSEER
CHEY 2015F 2017 F

BHz FEY#

i R2019% 151 H 22 % F 16 49 F & B 6 £ 3L

2 RE T A 3R 1% B4 89 F 2 4 B £ 3

9 R20214F1 418 2.2 1% 45 89 F K 5 £ 3%
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Application of New and Revised International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) (continued)

New and revised IFRSs in issue but not yet effective (continued)

IFRS 16 Leases

IFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the identification of lease
arrangements and accounting treatments for both lessors and lessees. IFRS 16
will supersede IAS 17 Leases and the related interpretations when it becomes
effective.

IFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on the basis of whether an
identified asset is controlled by a customer. In addition, IFRS 16 requires sales
and leaseback transactions to be determined based on the requirements of
IFRS 15 as to whether the transfer of the relevant asset should be accounted
as a sale. IFRS 16 also includes requirements relating to subleases and lease
modifications.

Distinctions of operating leases and finance leases are removed for lessee
accounting, and is replaced by a model where a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability have to be recognised for all leases by lessees, except for
short-term leases and leases of low value assets.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and subsequently measured
at cost (subject to certain exceptions) less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability. The
lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments
that are not paid at that date.

Subsequently, the lease liability is adjusted for interest and lease payments, as
well as the impact of lease modifications, amongst others. For the classification
of cash flows, the Group currently presents upfront prepaid lease payments as
investing cash flows in relation to leasehold lands for owned use and those
classified as investment properties while other operating lease payments are
presented as operating cash flows. Upon application of IFRS 16, lease payments
in relation to lease liability will be allocated into a principal and an interest
portion which will be presented as financing cash flows by the Group, upfront
prepaid lease payments will continue to be presented as investing or operating
cash flows in accordance to the nature, as appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued)

Application of New and Revised International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) (continued)

New and revised IFRSs in issue but not yet effective (continued)

IFRS 16 Leases (continued)

Under IAS 17, the Group has already recognised an asset and a related finance
lease liability for finance lease arrangement and prepaid lease payments for
leasehold lands where the Group is a lessee. The application of IFRS 16 may
result in potential changes in classification of these assets depending on
whether the Group presents right-of-use assets separately or within the same
line item at which the corresponding underlying assets would be presented if
they were owned.

Other than certain requirements which are also applicable to lessor, IFRS 16
substantially carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in IAS 17, and
continues to require a lessor to classify a lease either as an operating lease or a
finance lease.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by IFRS 16.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group has non-cancellable operating lease
commitments of RMB20,430,000 as disclosed in note 40. A preliminary
assessment indicates that these arrangements will meet the definition of a
lease. Upon application of IFRS 16, the Group will recognise a right-of-use asset
and a corresponding liability in respect of all these.

In addition, the Group currently considers refundable rental deposits paid of
RMB3,063,000 and refundable rental deposits received of RMB397,000 as rights
and obligations under leases to which IAS 17 applies. Based on the definition
of lease payments under IFRS 16, such deposits are not payments relating to
the right to use the underlying assets, accordingly, the carrying amounts of such
deposits may be adjusted to amortised cost. Adjustments to refundable rental
deposits paid would be considered as additional lease payments and included
in the carrying amount of right-of-use assets. Adjustments to refundable rental
deposits received would be considered as advance lease payments.
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Application of New and Revised International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) (continued)

New and revised IFRSs in issue but not yet effective (continued)

IFRS 16 Leases (continued)

The application of new requirements may result in changes in measurement,
presentation and disclosure as indicated above. The Group intends to elect the
practical expedient to apply IFRS 16 to contracts that were previously identified
as leases applying IAS 17 and IFRIC 4 determining whether an arrangement
contains a lease and not apply this standard to contracts that were not previously
identified as containing a lease applying IAS 17 and IFRIC 4. Therefore, the Group
will not reassess whether the contracts are, or contain a lease which already
existed prior to the date of initial application. Furthermore, the Group intends to
elect the modified retrospective approach for the application of IFRS 16 as lessee
and will recognise the cumulative effect of initial application to opening retained
profits without restating comparative information.

Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8 Definition of Material

The amendments provide refinements to the definition of material by including
additional guidance and explanations in making materiality judgements. The
amendments also align the definition across all IFRS Standards and will be
mandatorily effective for the Group’s annual period beginning on 1 January
2020. The application of the amendments is not expected to have significant
impact on the financial position and performance of the Group but may affect the
presentation and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued)

Significant Accounting Policies

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
IFRSs issued by IASB. In addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”)
and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost
basis except for certain properties and financial instruments that are measured
at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting
policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in
exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of
an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the characteristics of the
asset or liability if market participants would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value
for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in this consolidated financial
statements is determined on such a basis, except for share-based payment
transactions that are within the scope of IFRS 2 “Share-based payment”, leasing
transactions that are within the scope of IAS 17, and measurements that have
some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value
in IAS 2 “Inventories” or value in use in IAS 36 “Impairment of assets”.

3.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are
categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the
fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the
fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level
1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly;
and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company:

o has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvements with
the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Company reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three
elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Company obtains control over
the subsidiary and ceases when the Company loses control of the subsidiary.
Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Company gains control until the date
when the Company ceases to control the subsidiary.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued)

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are attributed
to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total
comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed the owners of the Company
and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in line with the Group’s accounting
policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented separately from the
Group’s equity therein, which represent present ownership interests entitling
their holders to a proportionate share of net assets of the relevant subsidiaries
upon liquidation.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group's interests in subsidiaries that do not result in the Group
losing control over the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions.
The carrying amounts of the Group's interests and the non-controlling interests
are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries.
Any difference between the amount by which the non-controlling interests are
adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or received is recognised
directly in equity and attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss and is calculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate
of the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value of any
retained interest and (i) the previous carrying amount of the assets (including
goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interests. All
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to
that subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or
transferred to another category of equity as specified/permitted by applicable
IFRSs). The fair value of any investment retained in the former subsidiary at the
date when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition for
subsequent accounting under IFRS 9/IAS 39, when applicable, the cost on initial
recognition of an investment in an associate or a joint venture.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other
leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor
Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-
line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line
basis over the lease term. Contingent rentals arising under operating leases are
recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into operating leases,
such incentives are recognised as a liability. The aggregate benefit of incentives
is recognised as a reduction of rental expense on a straight-line basis.

Revenue from contracts with customers (upon application of IFRS
15 in accordance with transitions in note 2)

Under IFRS 15, the Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or services underlying the
particular performance obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or a bundle of goods
or services) that is distinct or a series of distinct goods or services that are
substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised over time by reference
to the progress towards complete satisfaction of the relevant performance
obligation if one of the following criteria is met:

o the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided
by the Group's performance as the Group performs;

o the Group's performance creates and enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the Groups performs; or

o the Group’s performance does not create an asset with an alternative

use to the Group and the Group has an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued)

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (upon application of IFRS
15 in accordance with transitions in note 2) (continued)

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the customer obtains
control of the distinct good or service.

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to consideration in exchange
for goods or services that the Group has transferred to a customer that is not
yet unconditional. It is assessed for impairment in accordance with IFRS 9. In
contrast, a receivable represents the Group's unconditional right to consideration,
i.e. only the passage of time is required before payment of that consideration is
due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to transfer goods or services
to a customer for which the Group has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to the same contract are
accounted for and presented on a net basis.

Contracts with multiple performance obligations (including allocation of
transaction price)

For contracts that contain more than one performance obligations, including
certain BOT & TOT contracts, the Group allocates the transaction price to each
performance obligation on a relative stand-alone selling price basis.

The stand-alone selling price of the distinct good or service underlying each
performance obligation is determined at contract inception. It represents the
price at which the Group would sell a promised good or service separately
to a customer. If a stand-alone selling price is not directly observable, the
Group estimates it using appropriate techniques such that the transaction
price ultimately allocated to any performance obligation reflects the amount
of consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for
transferring the promised goods or services to the customer.

Input method

The progress towards complete satisfaction of a performance obligation is
measured based on input method, which is to recognise revenue on the basis
of the Group's efforts or inputs to the satisfaction of a performance obligation
relative to the total expected inputs to the satisfaction of that performance
obligation, that best depict the Group’s performance in transferring control of
goods or services.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (upon application of IFRS
15 in accordance with transitions in note 2) (continued)

Over time revenue recognition: measurement of progress towards

complete satisfaction of a performance obligation

Input method (continued)

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a contract with

customer and excluded amounts collected on behalf of third parties. The

Group principally earns revenue from provision of construction, operation and

management services including:

EPC services

0&M services

BOT & TOT

Others

Specifically, revenue is recognised in profit or loss as follows:

(i)

EPC services

EPC business primarily involves project engineering and design,
procurement of equipment and materials, project construction, equipment
installation and commissioning services in relation to desulfurisation and
denitrification and dust removal for coal-fired power plants.

The Directors have assessed that the Group’s performance creates and
enhances an asset that the customers control as the Group performs.
Therefore, the Directors have satisfied that there is only one single
performance obligation and the services are satisfied over time.

Accordingly, revenue from EPC services, which are generally under
project based development contracts, is recognised based on the progress
towards complete satisfaction of a performance obligation which is
determined as the proportion of the costs incurred for the works (i.e.
subcontracting costs, material costs and direct staff costs incurred)
performed to date relative to the estimated total costs to complete the
satisfaction of these services and the margin of each project, to the extent
that the amount can be measured reliably and its recovery is considered
probable.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued)

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (upon application of IFRS
15 in accordance with transitions in note 2) (continued)

Over time revenue recognition: measurement of progress towards

complete satisfaction of a performance obligation (continued)

Input method (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

0&M services

0&M services mainly include the provision of operation service and
regular maintenance service for desulfurisation and denitrification
facilities and dust removal facilities owned by their customers, where
the Group’s work scope includes the full operation, testing and repairing,
upgrading and maintenance of flue gas treatment system/facilities owned
by these coal-fired power plants.

Pursuant to the contracts of rendering related 0&M services, the
transaction price is the amount of consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring O&M services to
customers. Additionally, the O&M services typically meet the criterion
where customers simultaneously receive and consume the benefits of the
Group's performance as the Group performs. Therefore the Directors have
satisfied that the performance obligation of rendering O&M services are
satisfied over time which is recognised over the service period.

BOT&TOT services

In a typical BOT&TOT project, the Group is responsible for the financing,
investment, construction and operation of the project according to the
concession contract with their customer. After the completion of the
constructions, the Group operates and maintains the project for a pre-
defined period, which is typically 15 to 20 years, when they are entitled
to collecting revenues generated from the project during the term of the
contract.

The Directors have assessed that BOT&TOT services generally comprise
two separate performance obligations, the construction or upgrading
of the facilities and the operating and maintenance service upon the
completion of the construction or upgrading of facilities, equivalent as a
combination of EPC service and O&M service. The Group allocates the
transaction price to each performance obligation on a relative stand-
alone selling price basis, taking into account of the significant financing
component. Revenue recognition for each performance obligation follows
the comparable stand-alone services specified above in (i) and (ii).
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (upon application of IFRS

15 in accordance with transitions in note 2) (continued)

Over time revenue recognition: measurement of progress towards

complete satisfaction of a performance obligation (continued)

Input method (continued)

(iv)  Other revenues from sewage treatment are recognised over the service
period as the customers simultaneously receive and consume the benefits
provided by the Group’s performance as the Group performs. Revenues
from sales of by-products and others are recognised at the point of time
when the control of goods is passed to the customer.

The Group's construction contracts include payment schedules which require
stage payments over the construction period once certain specified milestones
are reached. The Group requires certain customers to provide upfront deposits
range from 10% to 30% of total contract sum, when the Group receives a deposit
before construction commences, this will give rise to contract liabilities at the
start of a contract, until the revenue recognised on the specific contract exceeds
the amount of the deposit.

Interest Income

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the expected life
of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.
The interest income from bank balances and cash and receivables under service
concession arrangement is recognised in other income and other gains and
losses.

Operating lease

The Group's accounting policy for recognition of revenue from operating leases is
described in the accounting policy for leasing above.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued)

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Revenue recognition (prior to 1 January 2018)

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable
and represents amounts receivable for goods sold and services provided in the
normal course of business, net of discounts and sales related taxes.

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured;
when it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the Group and
when specific criteria have been met for each of the Group's activities, as
described below.

Sale of goods
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the goods are delivered and
titles have passed, at which time all the following conditions are satisfied:

° the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and rewards of
ownership of the goods;

o the Group retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the
degree usually associated with ownership nor effective control over the
goods sold;

° the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

o it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction
will flow to the Group; and

o the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be
measured reliably.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Revenue recognition (prior to 1 January 2018) (continued)
Construction contracts

Construction contracts included design, construction and equipment installment
and testing services, where the outcome of a construction contract can be
estimated reliably, revenue and costs are recognised by reference to the stage of
completion of the contract activity at the end of the reporting period, measured
based on the proportion that contract costs incurred for work performed to date
relative to the estimated total contract costs, except where this would not be
representative of stage of completion. Variations in contract work, claims and
incentive payments are included to the extent that the amount can be measured
reliably and its receipt is considered probable.

When the outcome of a construction contract cannot be estimated reliably,
contract revenue is recognised to the extent of contract costs incurred that it is
probable will be recoverable. Contract costs are recognised as expenses in the
period in which they are incurred. When it is probable that total contract costs
will exceed total contract revenue, the expected loss is recognised as an expense
immediately.

When contract costs incurred to date plus recognised profits less recognised
losses exceed progress billings, the surplus is shown as amounts due from
customers for contract work. For contracts where progress hillings exceed
contract costs incurred to date plus recognised profits less recognised losses,
the surplus is shown as amounts due to customers for contract work. Amounts
received before the related work is performed are included in the consolidated
statement of financial position, as a liability, as advances received. Amounts
billed for work performed but not yet paid by the customer are included in the
consolidated statement of financial position under trade and notes receivables.

Operation and Maintenance
Revenue from operation and maintenance revenue are recognised when the
related services are rendered.

Interest Income

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Operating lease
The Group’s accounting policy for recognition of revenue from operating leases is
described in the accounting policy for leasing above.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued)

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred
tax. The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable
profit differs from profit before tax as reported in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income because it excludes items of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further
excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group's current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax base used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred
tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition (other than in a business consolidation) of other assets and liabilities
in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and associates, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences associated
with such investments and interests are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the
benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each
reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset
is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Taxation (continued)

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group expects,
at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its
assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they
relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

Pledged bank deposits

Pledged bank deposits represent amounts held by banks, which are not
available for the Group's use, as security for issuance of bills to the Group’s
suppliers, letters of credit relating to the EPC contracts and the operation and
maintenance contracts signed with the customers, and letters of guarantee for
bank borrowings. Upon maturity of the letters of credit, letters of guarantee
and repayment of bank borrowings, the deposits are released by the bank and
become available for general use by the Group. Pledged bank deposits are
reported within cash flows from investing activities in the consolidated statement
of cash flows with reference to the purpose of making the pledge.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity, transactions
in currencies other than the entity’s functional currency (foreign currencies) are
recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions.
At the end of each reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on that date. Non-monetary
items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated. Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they arise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued)

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment held for use in the supply of services, or held
for administrative purposes other than construction in progress as described
below, are stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items of property, plant
and equipment other than construction in progress less their residual values over
their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated useful
lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis.

Construction in progress represents building under construction which is carried
at cost, less any recognised impairment loss. Such assets are classified to the
appropriate categories of property, plant and equipment when completed and
ready for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other
assets, commences when the assets are ready for their intended use.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when
no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the
asset. Any gain or loss arising on disposal or retirement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Buildings under development for future owner-occupied purpose
When buildings are in the course of development for production or for
administrative purposes, the amortisation of prepaid lease payments provided
during the construction period is included as part of costs of buildings under
construction. Buildings under construction are carried at cost, less any identified
impairment losses. Depreciation of buildings commences when they are available
for use (i.e. when they are in the location and condition necessary for them to be
capable of operation in the manner intended by the Directors).
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for capital
appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including any directly
attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are stated at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and any
accumulated impairment losses. Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the
cost of investment properties over their estimated useful lives and after taking
into account of their estimated residual value, using the straight-line method.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the investment
property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits
are expected from its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the
property (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the profit or loss in the period in
which the property is derecognised.

Investment in an associate

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence.
Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating
policy decisions of the investee but is not control or joint control over those
policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated in the
consolidated financial statements using the equity method of accounting, except
when the investment, or a portion thereof, is classified as held for sale, in which
case it is accounted for in accordance with IFRS 5 “Non-current Assets Held for
Sale and Discontinued Operations”. The financial statements of associates used
for equity accounting purposes are prepared using uniform accounting policies
as those of the Group for like transactions and events in similar circumstances.
Appropriate adjustments have been made to conform the associate’s accounting
policies to those of the Group. Under the equity method, an investment in an
associate is initially recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the
profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the associate. When the
Group’s share of losses of an associate exceeds the Group's interest in that
associate (which includes any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of
the Group’s net investment in the associate), the Group discontinues recognising
its share of further losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the extent
that the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments
on behalf of the associate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued)

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Investments in an associate (continued)

An investment in an associate is accounted for using the equity method from
the date on which the investee becomes an associate. On acquisition of the
investment in an associate, any excess of the cost of the investment over the
Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of
the investee is recognised as goodwill, which is included within the carrying
amount of the investment. Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value
of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the investment, after
reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or loss in the period in which
the investment is acquired.

The Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence that the interest in
an associate may be impaired. When any objective evidence exists, the entire
carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment
in accordance with IAS 36 “Impairment of Assets” (“IAS 36”) as a single asset by
comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair value less costs
of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognised forms part
of the carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is
recognised in accordance with IAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable amount
of the investment subsequently increases.

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over an associate, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in the investee with a resulting
gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. When the Group retains an
interest in the former associate and the retained interest is a financial asset, the
Group measures the retained interest at fair value at that date and the fair value
is regarded as its fair value on initial recognition in accordance with IFRS 9/IAS
39. The difference between the carrying amount of the associate or at the date
the equity method was discontinued, and the fair value of any retained interest
and any proceeds from disposing of a part interest in the associate is included
in the determination of the gain or loss on disposal of the associate. In addition,
the Group accounts for all amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to that associate on the same basis as would be required if
that associate had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities. Therefore,
if a gain or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive income by that
associate would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related
assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit or
loss (as a reclassification adjustment) when the equity method is discontinued.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Investments in an associate (continued)

The Group continues to use the equity method when an investment in an
associate becomes an investment in a joint venture or an investment in a joint
venture becomes an investment in an associate. There is no remeasurement to
fair value upon such changes in ownership interests.

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an associate but the Group
continues to use the equity method, the Group reclassifies to profit or loss
the proportion of the gain or loss that had previously been recognised in other
comprehensive income relating to that reduction in ownership interest if that
gain or loss would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related
assets or liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate of the Group, profits and
losses resulting from the transactions with the associate are recognised in the
consolidated financial statements only to the extent of interests in the associate
that are not related to the Group.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets with finite useful lives, other than service concession
arrangements as set out in “Service concession arrangements” below, that
are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation is recognised on a straight-line
basis over their estimated useful lives.

When the Group has a right to construct and operate the concession
infrastructure (as a consideration for providing construction service in a service
concession arrangement), it recognises a contract asset at fair value during
the construction or upgrade period. Upon the completion of the construction or
upgrade, the contract asset is reclassified to intangible asset which is carried at
cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic
benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from
derecognition of an intangible asset are measured at the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised
in profit or loss in the period when the asset is derecognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued)

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of
its tangible and intangible assets to determine whether there is any indication
that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss (if any). When it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. When a
reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets
are also allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are
allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable
and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value
in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for
which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated
to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-
generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the
asset (or a cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal
of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

SEMBBRRME®

FEEHEGE)
AERERREERE

REREHRR AEEREEAVRENW
BENRASR UNETREFEZEER
EESREEBRNEATR - HEEEA
ZEPER AEHFABEENTREEE
NETREBEMA)NREZE - i T8k
ATEREENAKESE  AAKESHE
AEEMBREEABNMATKESHE
WABAMEER BN EEE BXE
ENERAIEEM@AREELEM B
FEWAREAAANGER —HHNDE
BEENRDARNREELEMN -

A E S B AL A B E R R B
BEEMETNBRSE RFGERERE
B AT ARRB SR E A AL R4
REHRE MHEABREIRREABET S
HEERREENFEREERERRCK
REEREGBFLBEFELAR) -

MEEFRBEEELBMNA RO ERL
AOREREER ZEEEBHTEL
BEU)MEESRREEAT KD SR8 R
EERDERBETER -

MBEBERERER ZEE(XRETE
ABEMNEBSRUEEALETOM
AR E SR RN EE SR TGE
BHNBEFEYERZEEGREE
AEM)BRABEEENAREENRE
TH - BEMHERBAENEE D ER -

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 4F 175



“ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued)

)

176

BB RRMEE)

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Research and development costs

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in the period in
which it is incurred.

When no internally-generated intangible asset can be recognised, development
expenditure is recognised in profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred.

Service concession arrangements
The Group has entered into a number of service concession arrangements with
certain owners of the power plants (the “Grantors”).

Under these service concession arrangements:

° the Grantors control or regulate the services the Group must provide with
the infrastructure, to whom it must provide them, and at what price; and

° the Grantors control, through ownership, beneficial entitlement or
otherwise, any significant residual interest in the infrastructure at the end
of the term of the arrangements, or the infrastructure is used for its entire
useful life under the arrangements, or both the Group’s practical ability to
sell or pledge the infrastructure is restricted and continuing right of use
of the infrastructure is given to the Grantors throughout the period of the
arrangements.

Revenue relating to construction services under a service concession
arrangement is recognised based on the progress towards complete satisfaction
of a performance obligation, consistent with the Group's accounting policy on
recognising revenue from construction contracts.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued)

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Service concession arrangements (continued)

Consideration given to the Grantor

A financial asset (receivables under service concession arrangement) is
recognised to the extent that the Group has an unconditional right to receive
cash or another financial asset from the Grantors for the consideration paid
and payable by the Group to the Grantors. The Group has unconditional right to
receive cash if the Grantors contractually guarantee to pay the Group specified
or determinable amounts or the shortfall, if any, between amounts received from
the users by the Grantors and specified or determinable amounts. The financial
assets (receivables under service concession arrangement) are accounted for in
accordance with the policy set out for financial assets at amortised cost under
IFRS 9 or loans and receivables under IAS 39.

An intangible asset (service concession) is recognised consistent to the extent
that the Group receives a right to charge the owners of the power plant, which
is not an unconditional right to receive cash because the amounts are contingent
on the extent that the operation and maintenance service that will be delivered.
The intangible asset (service concession) is accounted for in accordance with the
policy set out for “Intangible assets” above.

Construction and upgrade services

Revenue and costs relating to construction or upgrade services of the existing or
new infrastructure are recognised in accordance with the policy for “Construction
contracts” above while the costs incurred to date plus recognised profits less
recognised losses, if any, (representing the revenue) are included in contract
assets during the construction or upgrade period and reclassified to intangible
assets or receivables under service concession arrangement upon the completion
of the construction or upgrade, as appropriate.

Operating service

Revenue relating to operating service are accounted for in accordance with the
policy for “Revenue” above. Costs for operating services are expensed in the
period in which they are incurred.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Inventories

Inventories mainly include supplies and spare parts in relation to the Group's
environment protection facility and operation and maintenance services are
stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost of inventories are
calculated using first-in-first-out method. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated costs of completion and
costs necessary to make the sale.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable assurance that
the Group will comply with the conditions attaching to them and that the grants
will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic basis over
the periods in which the Group recognises as expenses the related costs for
which the grants are intended to compensate. Specifically, government grants
whose primary condition is that the Group should purchase, construct or
otherwise acquire non-current assets are recognised as deferred revenue in the
consolidated statement of financial position and transferred to profit or loss on a
systematic and rational basis over the useful lives of the related assets.

Employee benefits

In accordance with the rules and regulations in the PRC, the PRC based
employees of the Group participate in various defined contribution retirement
benefit plans organised by the relevant municipal and provincial governments
in the PRC under which the Group and the PRC based employees are required
to make monthly contributions to these plans calculated as a percentage of the
employees’ salaries.

The municipal and provincial governments undertake to assume the retirement
benefit obligations of all existing and future retired PRC based employees’
payable under the plans described above. Other than the monthly contributions,
the Group has no further obligation for the payment of retirement and other
post-retirement benefits of its employees. The assets of these plans are held
separately from those of the Group in independently administrated funds
managed by the PRC government.

The Group’s contributions to the defined contribution retirement schemes are
expensed as incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued)

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a group entity
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value except
for trade receivables arising from contracts with customers which are initially
measured in accordance with IFRS 15 since 1 January 2018. Transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit
or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a
financial asset or financial liability and of allocating interest income and interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and payments (including all fees
and points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the financial asset or financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income which are derived from the Group’s ordinary course of business
are presented as revenue.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets (upon application
of IFRS 9 in accordance with transitions in note 2)

The Group’s financial assets are classified into two categories, including
financial assets subsequently measured at amortised cost and financial assets
subsequently measured at FVTOCI.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured
at amortised cost:

o the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to
collect contractual cash flows; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured
at FVTOCI:

o the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is
achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

All other financial assets shall be subsequently measured at FVTPL, except
that at the date of initial application/initial recognition of a financial asset the
Group may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in fair value of an
equity investment in OCI if that equity investment is neither held for trading nor
contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to
which IFRS 3 Business Combinations applies. At the date of initial application,
the Group elects to present subsequent changes in fair value of the equity
investment in Wuhan BOCH JACO Environmental Co., Ltd. (“Wuhan BOCH") in
OCl.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued)

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets (upon application

of IFRS 9 in accordance with transitions in note 2) (continued)

(i)

(ii)

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method for
financial assets measured subsequently at amortised cost and debt
instruments/receivables subsequently measured at FVTQOCI. Interest
income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of a financial asset, except for financial assets that
have subsequently become credit-impaired (see below). For financial
assets that have subsequently become credit-impaired, interest income is
recognised by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of
the financial asset from the next reporting period. If the credit risk on the
credit impaired financial instrument improves so that the financial asset
is no longer credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset
from the beginning of the reporting period following the determination
that the asset is no longer credit impaired.

Equity instruments designated as at FVTOCI

Investments in equity instruments designated as at FVTOCI are
subsequently measured at fair value with gains and losses arising from
changes in fair value recognised in OCI and accumulated in the reserve;
and are not subject to impairment assessment. The cumulative gain or
loss will not be reclassified to profit or loss on disposal of the equity
investments, and will be transferred to retained profits. Dividends from
these investments in equity instruments are recognised in profit or loss
when the Group’s right to receive the dividends is established, unless
the dividends clearly represent a recovery of part of the cost of the
investment. Dividends are included in the other income and other gains
and losses line item in profit or loss.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application IFRS 9 with transitions in
accordance with note 2)

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on financial assets and contract
assets which are subject to impairment under IFRS 9 (including trade receivables,
other receivables, amounts due from related parties, receivables under service
concession arrangement, bank balances and cash and pledged bank deposits).
The amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit
risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible default events
over the expected life of the relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL
represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default
events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

Assessment are done based on the Group's historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions
and an assessment of both the current conditions at the reporting date as well as
the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables and contract
assets without significant financing component. The ECL on these assets are
assessed collectively using a provision matrix.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss allowance equal to 12m
ECL, unless when there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether
lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on significant increases in the
likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued)

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application IFRS 9 with transitions in

accordance with note 2) (continued)

(i) Significant increase in credit risk
In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial instrument has
increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares the
risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as
at the date of initial recognition. In making this assessment, the Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable
and supportable, including historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into account when
assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition:

° an actual or expected significant deterioration in the financial
instrument's external (if available) or internal credit rating;

o significant deterioration in external market indicators of credit risk,
e.g. a significant increase in the credit spread, or the length of time
or the extent to which the fair value of a financial asset has been
less than its amortised cost;

o existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial or
economic conditions that are expected to cause a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations;
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application IFRS 9 with transitions in

accordance with note 2) (continued)

(i)

(ii)

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)
o an actual or expected significant deterioration in the operating
results of the debtor;

° an actual or expected significant adverse change in the regulatory,
economic, or technological environment of the debtor that results
in a significant decrease in the debtor's ability to meet its debt
obligations.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria used to
identify whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk and
revises them as appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the amount becomes
past due.

Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an event of default
for internal credit risk management purposes as historical experience
indicates that receivables that meet either of the following criteria are
generally not recoverable.

° when there is a breach of covenants by the counterparty; or

° information developed internally or obtained from external sources
indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including
the Group, in full (without taking into account any collaterals held
by the Group).

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group considers that default
has occurred when the contractual payment is more than 90 days past
due unless the Group has reasonable and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is more appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued)

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application IFRS 9 with transitions in

accordance with note 2) (continued)

(iii)  Credit-impaired financial assets
A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events that have
a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of that financial
asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired
includes observable data about the following events:

° significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower;

° a breach of contract, such as a default or past due event;

° the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual reasons
relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty, having granted to the
borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider;

° it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or
other financial reorganisation; or

o the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset
because of financial difficulties.

(iv)  Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is information indicating
that the counterparty is in severe financial difficulty and there is no
realistic prospect of recovery, for example, when the counterparty has
been placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings.
Financial assets written off may still be subject to enforcement activities
under the Group's recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice
where appropriate. Any recoveries made are recognised in profit or loss.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application IFRS 9 with transitions in

accordance with note 2) (continued)

(v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of default,
loss given default and the exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is based on historical data
adjusted by forward-looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects an
unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is determined with the
respective risks of default occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows
that are due to the Group in accordance with the contract and the cash
flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at the effective
interest rate determined at initial recognition.

To measure the ECL, contract assets and trade receivables and other
receivables are grouped based on shared common risk characteristics.
The Group believes that most of the customers of trade receivable are
the same in nature, who are power plants, and treats all customers as
one single group. The grouping is regularly reviewed by the Directors to
ensure the constituents of the group continue to share similar credit risk
characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying amount of the
financial asset unless the financial asset is credit impaired, in which case
interest income is calculated based on amortised cost of the financial
asset.

Except for investments in debt instruments/receivables that are measured
at FVTOCI, the Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or
loss for all financial instruments by adjusting their carrying amount, with
the exception of trade receivables, contract assets and other receivables
where the corresponding adjustment is recognised through a loss
allowance account. For investments in debt instruments/receivables that
are measured at FVTOCI, the loss allowance is recognised in OCI and
accumulated in the investment revaluation reserve without reducing the
carrying amount of these debt instruments/receivables.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued)

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets (before
application of IFRS 9 on 1 January 2018)

Financial assets are classified into the two categories, AFS investment and loans
and receivables. The classification depends on the nature and purpose of the
financial assets and is determined at the time of initial recognition. All regular
way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on
a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that required delivery of assets within the time frame established
by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

(i)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables (including
receivables under service concession arrangement, trade receivables,
other receivables, amounts due from related parties, pledged bank
deposits and bank balances and cash) are measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less any impairment. (See the
accounting policy in respect of impairment loss on financial assets below)

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate,
except for short-term receivables when the effect of discounting is
immaterial.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets (before

application of IFRS 9 on 1 January 2018) (continued)

(ii)

AFS investment

An AFS investment is non-derivatives that are either designated as
available-for-sale or are not classified as (a) loans and receivables, (b)
held-to-maturity investments or (c) financial assets at FVTPL. The Group
designated an equity investment in Wuhan BOCH as AFS investment on
initial recognition.

Equity and debt securities held by the Group that are classified as AFS
investments are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting
period except for unquoted equity investments whose fair value cannot
be reliably measured. Changes in the carrying amount of AFS investment
relating to interest income calculated using the effective interest
method, are recognised in profit or loss. Dividends on AFS investment are
recognised in profit or loss when the Group’s right to receive the dividends
is established. Other changes in the carrying amount of AFS investment
are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated under the
heading of investment revaluation reserve.

An AFS investment that does not have a quoted market price in an active
market and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured are measured
at cost less any identified impairment losses at the end of each reporting
period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued)

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (before application of IFRS 9 on 1 January 2018)

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of each
reporting period. Financial assets are considered to be impaired when there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after the
initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the
investment have been affected.

For an AFS investment, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the
security below its cost is considered to be objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective eviden ce of impairment could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty;

o breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments; or

° it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or financial
reorganisation.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the impairment
loss recognised is the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial
asset's original effective interest rate.
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BB RRMEE)

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (before application of IFRS 9 on 1 January 2018)
(continued)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment loss
directly for all financial assets with the exception of trade receivables and
other receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an
allowance account. When a trade receivable or other receivables is considered
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against the allowance
account. Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account are
recognised in profit or loss.

When an AFS investment is considered to be impaired, cumulative gains or
losses previously recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to
profit or loss in the period.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent period,
the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to the
extent that the carrying amount of the investment at the date the impairment
is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.

In respect of an AFS investment, impairment losses previously recognised in
profit or loss are not reversed through profit or loss. Any increase in fair value
subsequent to an impairment loss is recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated under investment revaluation reserve.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued)

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to
the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset
and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another
entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Group
recognises its retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for
amounts it may have to pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group continues to
recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for
the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised cost, the difference
between the asset's carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received
and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in a debt instrument classified as at FVTOCI
upon application of IFRS 9, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in
the investment revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in equity instrument which the Group has
elected on initial recognition to measure at FVTOCI upon application of IFRS
9, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the investments
revaluation reserve is not reclassified to profit or loss, but is transferred to
retained profits.

On derecognition of an AFS financial asset, the cumulative gain or loss previously
accumulated in the investment revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or loss.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are classified as either
financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the
assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued
by a group entity are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is recognised and deducted
directly in equity. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase,
sale, issue or cancelation of the Company’s own equity instruments.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method or at FVTPL. The Group's financial liabilities are
classified as financial liabilities at FVTPL and financial liabilities at amortised
cost.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is (i)
contingent consideration that may be paid by an acquirer as part of a business
combination to which IFRS 3 applies, (i) held for trading, or (iii) it is designated as
at FVTPL.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued)

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instrument (continued)

Financial liabilities at FVTPL (continued)

o such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or
recognition inconsistency that would otherwise arise; or

° the financial liability forms part of a group of financial assets or financial
liabilities or both, which is managed and its performance is evaluated
on a fair value basis, in accordance with the Group's documented risk
management or investment strategy, and information about the grouping is
provided internally on that basis; or

° it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded derivatives,
and IFRS 9/IAS 39 permits the entire combined contract (asset or liability)
to be designated as at FVTPL.

Upon application of IFRS 9, for financial liabilities that are designated as at
FVTPL, the amount of change in the fair value of the financial liability that is
attributable to changes in the credit risk of that liability is recognised in other
comprehensive income, unless the recognition of the effects of changes in the
liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive income would create or enlarge an
accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in fair value attributable to a
financial liability's credit risk that are recognised in other comprehensive income
are not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss; instead, they are transferred to
retained profits upon derecognition of the financial liability.

Prior to application of IFRS 9 on 1 January 2018, financial liabilities designated
at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on
remeasurement recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in
profit or loss includes any interest paid on the financial liabilities and is included
in the other income and other gains and losses line item. Fair value is determined
in the manner described in note 34.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instrument (continued)

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost including trade and notes
payables, other payables, amounts due to related parties and bank borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method.

Offsetting a financial asset and a financial liability

A financial asset and a financial liability are offset and the net amount presented
in the statement of financial position when, and only when, the Group currently
has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts; and intends
either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or
constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that the Group will be
required to settle that obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation. Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the
consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting
period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation.
When a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the
present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows
(when the effect of the time value of money is material).

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production
of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period
of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those
assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use
or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which
they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued)

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Share-based payment arrangements

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and others providing similar
services are measured at the fair value of the equity instruments at the grant
date. Details regarding the determination of the fair value of equity-settled
share-based transactions are set out in note 43.

The fair value determined at the grand date of the equity-settled share-based
payments is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, based
on the Group’s estimate of equity instruments that will eventually vest, with a
corresponding increase in equity. At the end of each reporting period, the Group
revises its estimate of the number of equity instruments expected to vest.

The impact of the version of the original estimates, if any, is recognised in profit
or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a
corresponding adjustment to the equity-settled employee benefits reserve.

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions with parties other than
employees are measured at the fair value of the goods or services received,
except where that fair value cannot be estimated reliably, in which case they are
measured at the fair value of the equity instruments granted, measured at the
date the entity obtains the goods or the counterparty renders the service.

For cash-settled share-based payments, a liability is recognised for the goods
or services acquired, measured initially at the fair value of the liability. At the
end of each reporting period until the liability is settled, and at the date of
settlement, the fair value of the liability is remeasured, with any changes in fair
value recognised in profit or loss for the year.
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Critical Accounting Judgements and Key Sources of
Estimation Uncertainty

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which are described in note
3, the Directors are required to make judgments, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources.

The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and
future periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

The followings are the critical judgements, apart from those involving estimations
that the Directors have made in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies and have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements.

Judgments in determining the performance obligations

In making their judgments, the Group considered the detailed criteria for
recognition of revenue set out in IFRS 15. In determining performance obligations,
the Directors consider whether the customer benefits from each service on
its own and whether it is distinct in the context of the contract. Specifically,
when concluding a contract has multiple performance obligations, the Directors
consider that the individual performance obligation is regularly satisfied
separately and the service is separately identifiable from other promises within
the contract.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued)

Critical Accounting Judgements and Key Sources of
Estimation Uncertainty (continued)

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies (continued)
Judgments in determining the timing of satisfaction of performance
obligations

Note 3 describes the revenue recognition basis to each of the Group's
revenue streams. The recognition of each of the Group’s revenue streams
requires judgment by the Directors in determining the timing of satisfaction of
performance obligations.

In making their judgment, the Directors considered the detailed criteria for
recognition of revenue set out in IFRS 15 and in particular, whether the Group
has satisfied all the performance obligations over time or at a point in time with
reference to the detailed terms of transactions as stipulated in the contracts
entered into with its customers.

The Directors has assessed that the Group’s performance creates and enhances
an asset that the customer controls as the Group performs in a EPC business;
that the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided
by the Group’s performance as the Group performs in a 0&M business; and that
the BOT business contains two performance obligations characterised as EPC
and O&M business. Therefore, the Directors have satisfied that the performance
obligation is satisfied over time and recognised the revenue over the service
period.

Accounting for the Group’s service concession arrangements under
IFRIC Interpretation 12 Service Concession Arrangements (“IFRIC 12”)

The Group’s service concession arrangements are accounted for as intangible
assets and/or financial assets (receivables under service concession arrangement)
in accordance with IFRIC 12 because, in the opinion of the Directors, the Group’s
service concession arrangements contain the following:

° the grantors control or regulate the services the Group must provide with
the infrastructure, to whom the Group must provide such services, and at
prices agreed with the grantors;

o the grantors of the infrastructure controls, through ownership, any
significant residual interest in the infrastructure at the end of the service
concession agreement; and

o the grantors restrict the Group’s practical ability to sell or pledge the
infrastructure that give the Group continuing right of use throughout the
period of the arrangements.
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Critical Accounting Judgements and Key Sources of
Estimation Uncertainty (continued)

Key Sources of estimation uncertainly

The followings are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Progress of completion of performance obligations

The Group recognises contract revenue and profit on a construction contract
according to the Directors’ estimation of the total outcome of the project as well
as the progress of completion of performance obligations. Notwithstanding that
the Directors reviews and revises the estimates of both contract gross margin
and costs for the construction contract as the contract progresses, the actual
outcome of the contract in terms of its total revenue and costs may be higher or
lower than the estimates and this will affect the revenue and profit recognised.

In addition, the Group makes provision for expected loss on construction contracts
based on the estimation of the outcome of the ongoing construction projects by
the Directors’ prior experience and industry averages for similar projects. The
Group assesses periodically the expected return of construction contracts and if
the expectation differs from the original estimate, such difference will impact the
expected return in the period in which such estimate has been changed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued)

Critical Accounting Judgements and Key Sources of
Estimation Uncertainty (continued)

Key Sources of estimation uncertainly (continued)
Provision of ECL for trade receivables and contract assets

The Group uses provision matrix to calculate ECL for the trade receivables and
contract assets. The provision rates are based on internal credit ratings as a
grouping of various debtors that have similar loss patterns. The provision matrix
is based on the Group's historical default. At every reporting date, the historical
observed default rates are reassessed and changes in the forward-looking
information are considered. In addition, trade receivables and contract assets
with significant balances and credit impaired are assessed for ECL individually.
The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates. The information about
the ECL and the Group's trade receivables and contract assets are disclosed in
notes 27, 24 and 23, respectively.

Useful life and impairment of property, plant and equipment

The Directors determine the estimated useful lives and the depreciation method
in determining the related depreciation charges for its property, plant and
equipment. This estimate is based on the Directors’ experience of the actual
useful lives of property, plant and equipment of similar nature and functions.
In addition, the Directors assess impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and
equipment may not be recoverable. The Directors will increase the depreciation
charge where useful lives are estimated to be shorter than previously estimated,
or will write off or write down obsolete assets that have been abandoned or
impaired. Any changes in these estimates may have a material impact on the
results of the Group.
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Revenue and Segment Information

Revenue is mainly generated from the flue gas desulfurisation and denitrification

services through three different models, namely EPC, operation and maintenance

and concession operation. In addition, the Group also provides sewage treatment

and sales of by-products, which are recorded in others.

For the purposes of resources allocation and assessment of segment

performance, the executive Directors, being the chief operating decision maker

("CODM"), regularly review types of goods or services delivered or provided

by focusing on different business models. No operating segments have been

aggregated in arriving at the reportable segments of the Group.

Specifically, the Group's reportable segments under IFRS 8 are as follows:

EPC

0&M

BOT & TOT

Others:

project design, procurement of equipment and
materials, project construction and equipment
installment and testing services

operation service and regular maintenance service
for desulfurisation and denitrification facilities and
dust removal facilities

construction of infrastructure or acquisition of
existing infrastructure from grantor, operation and
maintenance of flue gas treatment project for a
pre-defined period according to the concession
contract and transfer the ownership of the
infrastructure to the customer at the end of the
period

sewage treatment, sales of by-products and others
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued)
SEMBBRRME®

5. Revenue and Segment Information (continued) 5. KWERSBEHGE)
Disaggregation of revenue =30k B

Year ended 31 December

HENRANALEE

2018 2017
20185 2017 %
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR® TR ARET T

Timing of revenue recognition R N E

Over time | 1,717,555 1,307,718

A point in time B 25 27,443 21,360
1,744,998 1,329,078

Types of goods and services EREBRBEES

Provision of services BHERE 1,717,555 1,307,718

Sales of goods HESm 27,443 21,360
1,744,998 1,329,078

Nature of goods and services EPC EmkEBBHE

EPC EPC 122,117 555,261

0&M EeEgE 415113 402,815

Concession operation AR 580,051 340,477

Others Hi 21,117 30,525

1,744,998 1,329,078
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Revenue and Segment Information (continued)
Disaggregation of revenue (continued)

Transaction price allocated to the remaining performance obligations
for contracts with customers

The performance obligations for the EPC services and construction services under
service concession arrangements have an original expected duration of one year
or less. Therefore the transaction price allocated to these unsatisfied contracts is
not disclosed as permitted by IFRS 15.

For certain O&M services and the O&M service under service concession
arrangements, the Group applies the practical expedient by recognising revenue
in the amount to which the Group has right to invoice. The transaction price
allocated to these unsatisfied contracts is not disclosed as permitted by IFRS 15.

For the O&M services with fixed total contract amounts, the transaction price
allocated to the remaining performance obligations (unsatisfied or partially
unsatisfied) as at 31 December 2018 and the expected timing of recognising
revenue are as follows:

kaksBREHGK

I & 0 2 ()
EFENTIRENBRBENEENRS
'

PRI FFEE LB MEPCIR T R 2 & RS
MENEENRERBBRA —FU
Mo RBERA R E LR EISFIERF 2
REZFRAETAANNRZERLARKE -

RETEZRBERBLREHHLE
THNELZREERTM S AKEEB
BAAEEARRAAREN SR e
FERATEEN S - REKRMEHRSER
FIORAE DPEEZEFRETAOMNR
HERIRKE -

RETANBEMELREERLEM S -
R2018F12A31B DR ZFIBREBEHEFECK
MERBARMB)INRZEERRERER
WaEmT

0&m

EgmsgE

RMB’000

ARBT R

Within one year —F R 151,976
More than one year but not more —FN EENBBRRSF

than two years 37,363

More than two years BBWF 102,813

Total @t 292,152
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Revenue and Segment Information (continued)
Disaggregation of revenue (continued)

Geographical information

The Group primarily operates in the PRC. Substantially all non-current assets and
revenue of the Group are located in and generated from the PRC.

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by operating and

reportable segment:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued)
SEMBBRRME®

5 BERSBEHGE)
o&=3:0F B2 A¢ )
& & R
AEEFERFTELCLEER - AEEELT
FBEERBEERKREHURNPERE
REIEAE -

TXRELERAEZHDMEDNAE
Bl Rk ZEDH:

Segment revenue Segment profit

Year ended 31 December Year ended 31 December

7 8 W i 7 & i
BE12A3NBLEE BEN2ANABLEE
2018 2017 2018 2017
2018 2017 € 2018 F 20174
RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTT ARBTRT ARBTE

EPC EPC 122117 555,261 56,523
0&M B 415113 402,815 124,556 126,756
Concession operation AR 580,051 340,477 114,082 111,452
Others Hith 21,111 30,525 22,137
Total st 1,744,998 317,858 297,242
Unallocated other income and AoREMUEA

other gains and losses H o W 55 K% B 8 117,456 26017
Unallocated selling and RAOBHER

distribution expenses vaki=1: 53 (26,170) (18,318)
Unallocated administrative expenses RAOBITHAX (109,103) (88,892)
Unallocated (allowance) reversal of APRERMEER

impairment losses on financial ENEERNRE

assets and contract assets EiE (B ) B (3,816) 10,158
Unallocated share of ROBEEEE AR

profit of an associate i A 21,963 31,694
Unallocated finance costs RO B EE KA (5,900) (6,333)
Unallocated change in fair value of ] B2 4 X 5E iR A

convertible ordinary shares NAEEBRES 133,541 (233,228)
Unallocated listing expenses AP ETHAX (3.319) (14,114)
Profit before tax % 75 A% F 448,510
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Revenue and Segment Information (continued)
Disaggregation of revenue (continued)

The accounting policies of the operating and reportable segments are the same
as the Group's accounting policies described in note 3.

Segment revenue reported above represents revenue generated from external
customers. There were no inter-segment sales for the year ended 31 December
2018 (2017: Nil).

Segment profit represents the gross profit of each segment. This is the measure
reported to the CODM for the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of
segment performance.

No segment assets and liabilities are presented as the CODM does not regularly
review segment assets and liabilities.

Information about major customers
Revenue from customers during the year contributing over 10% of the total
revenue of the Group are as follows:

kaksBREHGK
I & 0 2 ()
ZERAEHRI BN EHBRELAEE

PSR M B E AR -

EXE2HM I BUSERBIBRL N
Was - B ZE2018F12ANBELFEHED
AR 3H & (20174 © &)

DEBFEEDBNERN WL ARERD
EEDHEEFRANIBEELRRER
HH IR

i

AREEELRRELIAEHNEN A
BERABGE AUt HME2INHEER
AR

IREFEH
RAFE  KREERAKESWE10%A
LEFPMKEMT

Year ended 31 December

BZE12A3NBALEE

Segment 2018 2017
2 2018 20174
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARBFT
Customer A 0&M 197,061
EPA B
Customer B Concession operation & 0&M 168,696
X FB HHARERES
Customer C EPC 146,990
BPC EPC

* Revenue from these customers was less than 10% in 2018.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued)

Other Income and Other Gains and Losses

SEMBBRRME®

6. HtWARKMB2RER

Year ended 31 December

HENRANABLEE

2018 2017

2018 2017

RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBT R ARBTF T

Interest income B U A 38,496 17,199
Government grants B %4 Bh 26,968 11,554
Rental income, net (note 10) Ml NFEBZI0) 1,526 847
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment HEME BERREESR (21) (45)
Gains from extinguishment of liabilities (note) BEEEa BN (I 8,786 2,534
Foreign exchange gains (losses) P& X Uz (B 1E) 35,445 (10,331)
Others Hib 6,256 4,259
117,456 26,017

Note:  The amount mainly represents certain outstanding trade payables, other payables and accrued
expenses, relating to construction contracts, which has exceeded the maximum recourse
periods and is no longer payable by the Group.

(Allowance) Reversal of Impairment Losses on Financial
Assets and Contract Assets

W ZeBELTBEAREANABNETAEEE
SENGE BEENFEREFHX B#
BEREZE XEETHEFEX -

1. eMBERSVRENRESR
(48 0% ) # [l

Year ended 31 December

HENRANALEE

2018 2017
2018 2017
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBT R ARBF T
Allowance (reversal) of allowance for trade

receivables 2 5 W SRIE (B E) (324) 10,458
Allowance for other receivables H e Ui 3 TE B (125) (300)
Allowance for contract assets EHEERE (1,278) =
Allowance for amounts due from related parties JE U5 B i 5 FRIB AR (2.244) =

Reversal of allowance for receivables under service — FR 7% 2 57 48 & Z HE 18 T 9
concession arrangement U5 TR B S [ 155 -
(3,816) 10,158

Finance Costs 8. MERF
Year ended 31 December
BZ12A3NBLEE

2018 2017
2018 2017
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBT R ARBF T
Interest on bank borrowings RITEERE m 5,333
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Income Tax Expense

PR 13 1R BA 32

Year ended 31 December
EZ12A3NBLLEE

2018 2017
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTT

BN P18 B —

Current income tax - PRC

48,239 29,718
1,452 12,537

Deferred income tax (note 21) BT IB (M E21)
Total Bt

55,691 42,255

The Company and CBEE Holdings Co., Ltd. (“CBEE") were incorporated in the
Cayman Islands and the British Virgin Islands (“BVI”), respectively. Both entities
did not have tax assessable profit in Cayman Islands, BVI or other jurisdiction
during the reporting periods.

Pursuant to the Enterprise Income Tax Law (the “EIT Law") effective on 1 January
2008, Beijing Bogi Electric Power SCI-TECH Co., Ltd. (Jt RIE& E HRIEA
FR 7~ &) (“Beijing Bogi”) obtained a “High and New Technology Enterprise” (the
“HNTE") in 2008 which Beijing Bogi was entitled to a preferential tax rate of
15% from 2008 to 2010 and could be re-applied every three years; the current
active HNTE certificate has an effective date until December 2020.

In October 2015, Shanxi Hejin Bogi Environmental Technology Co., Ltd. (L P8
TR A IRREHE A PR A 7)) (“Hejin Bogi”) obtained the approval for being
eligible as the HNTE for the year ended 31 December 2015 which Hejin Bogi was
entitled to a preferential tax rate of 15% from 2015 to 2017 and could be re-
applied every three years; the current active HNTE certificate has an effective
date until December 2021.

In November 2016, Jiangxi Jinggangshan Bogi Environmental Technology Co.,
Ltd. (T FEFHERA L SR IRREHE AR A7) (“Jinggangshan Bogi”) obtained
the approval for being eligible as the HNTE for the year ended 31 December 2016
which Jinggangshan Bogi was entitled to a preferential tax rate of 15% from
2016 to 2018 and could be re-applied every three years, and the current active
HNTE certificate has an effective date until November 2019.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued)

Income Tax Expense (continued)

In December 2017, Shanxi Puzhou Bogi Environmental Technology Co., Ltd. (1L
FBMEFIRRRI AR A7) ("Puzhou Bogi”) obtained the approval, by
which the desulfurisation program in Puzhou Bogi was entitled to a preferential
income tax of three-years free from 2017, followed by a three-year preferential
rate of 12.5%.

The applicable tax rate of other PRC subsidiaries of the Company was 25% for
the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017: 25%).

According to the relevant tax law in the PRC, dividend distributed to foreign
investors out of the profit generated from 1 January 2008 onwards shall be
subject to withholding tax at 10% and withheld by the PRC entities, pursuant

SEMBBRRME®

Fir 15 1R BA 32 (1)

R2017 128 WABENEFTRAMEE
PR A (TS M 18 2 1) B 10 S8 M 18 25 B9 B
WAEBNTFZERG=FMERN
BE HE=ZFAZH125%MEEMRE -

BZE2018F12A31BLEFE  ARAIAM
o B P B 2 A B0 8 A B R R 25% (2017 4F
25%) ©

REFEEBERE BEXMERESRS
R3TH A R KB e R I AR RIS 91 {6k - B
ERA 8200851 A1 H AKRE £ 8%

to Articles 3 and 37 of the EIT Law and Article 91 of its Detailed Rules for the Mg oMRE & D K &) IR B B8 10% #) 7B
Implementation of the Regulation. M e
The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the profit before tax FRNFEHHAL T HE V? AEZEREME
per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income MWERM ARG R RFSERENT
as follows:
Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLLEE
2018 2017
2018 20174
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBT ARET T
Profit before tax & % Al v Al 448,510 5,226
Tax at applicable income tax rate of 25% BB A EH T E25% T E R IE 112,128 1,307
Tax deduction due to preferential tax rate E 8 = F R M 406 518 (31,210) (24,052)
Tax effect of R&D super deduction MBEBENR 2 H G E (836) (643)
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purpose BERBRBAZRET E (48,831) (5,397)
Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible AANRAL BB E
for tax purpose 14,053 70,714
Utilisation of tax losses previously not recognised BRALAARER LHIEBE (113) (166)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AR EERE R & 2,482 492
Withholding income tax on earnings expected to B H B KB A R E AR & F A
be remitted by subsidiaries (note 21) BHFTET (A FE21) 8,018 -
Tax charge for the year FARB XM 55,691 42,255
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10. Profit (Loss) for the Year

208

10. FARF(ER)

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A3MBLLEE

2018
2018
RMB'000
AR® TR
Profit (loss) for the year has been arrived Frm (BB EMRGEA)
at after charging (crediting): ATEEEBEL
Staff costs, including directors’ remuneration EIRAKN(BEEEZHH)
set out in note 12 O R EE12
Salaries and other benefits A RAMAEF 155,927
Contributions to retirement benefits scheme RAKEFI 52 38 18,758
Share-based payment expenses (note 43) VAR 19 5 EEHE 80 15 50 A S (B 7 43) 8,442
Total staff costs BEIKABEE 183,127
Gross rental income from investment properties REMEHRS WAL (2,160)
Less: Direct operating expense (including WOEREEHESKADH
depreciation) incurred for investment RENMEELENEEREE
properties that generated rental income A (BENE) G AEM
during the year (included in other income WAREMKZERER)
and other gains and losses) 634
(1,526)
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses BRAAHEIHTERAE
(included in cost of sales and services) (Rt ASH & K B 7 A AX) 541,325
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME BMEMKREE 11,153
Depreciation of investment properties WEMERE 634
Amortisation of intangible assets EFEEEH 36,851
Research and development expenses Mm% 10,618
Auditor's remuneration 1% 21 A = B 2,340

CHINA BOQI ENVIRONMENTAL (HOLDING) CO., LTD. FEEHFBRE(GER) AR A 7

2017
20174
RMB'000
ARETE

122,513
12,685
7,206

142,404
(1,548

701
(847)

364,105
6,454
634
33,418
8,204
5,500



1.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued)

Earnings (Loss) Per Share
The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings (loss) per share attributable to
the owners of the Company is based on the following data:

Earnings (loss) figures are calculated as follows:

1.

SEMBBRRME®

SREANER)
ADARBABETRESREERF
) TVER A TR E -

BM(BRBFFTENT:

Year ended 31 December
BENRANBLEE

2018 2017
2018 20174
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR ARBETTT

Earnings (loss): 2 (EHE)
Earnings (loss) for the purpose of calculating earnings

(loss) per share (profit (loss) for the year attributable

AEESRAENER NEAN(ER)
(RRRHERAEIEFRE M

to owners of the Company) — basic (B18))—EX 394,359 (36,418)
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares: BEBRELTRRANTE:

Change in fair value of convertible ordinary shares AEBREBRZALBEED (133,541) -
Earnings (loss) for the purpose of calculating eamings =t 2 TR ZF| (BB & F| (F1E)

(loss) per share (profit (loss) for the year attributable (A 2 & # B A JE{5 & A % F

to owners of the Company) — diluted (B8)) %% 260,818 (36,418)
Number of shares: BROEE :
Weighted average number of ordinary shares forthe st EFRE KA F

purpose of calculating basic earnings (loss) per (BB AR

share I F 19 903,159,880 453,694,494
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the 5t & & i% # 58 2 5|

purpose of calculating diluted earnings (loss) per (BB EaR

share EFEHH 967,910,157 453,694,494

The calculation of basic earnings per share for the year ended 31 December 2018
was based on the profit for the year attributable to the owners of the Company,
and the number of shares has taken into account the allotment and issuance with
regards to the conversion of Class B and C convertible ordinary shares and the
issuance of shares upon listing on 16 March 2018, and repurchase of ordinary
shares from 18 December 2018 to 31 December 2018.

The calculation of basic loss per share for the year ended 31 December 2017 was
based on the loss for the year attributable to the owners of the Company and the
number of 600,000,000 ordinary shares, which had been adjusted retrospectively
for the effect of bonus element of additional shares issued and the share split as
set out in note 36 as it the bonus issue and the share split had been effective on
1 January 2017.

The computation of diluted earnings per share for the year ended 31 December
2018 has considered the effect of the shares issued under the Pre-IPO Share
Award Scheme, and the conversion of Class B and C convertible ordinary shares.

BZE2018F12ANBLEFENERER
BMLERARAEAR ARMKEF AT
AE-MKNBECEEEBR201843
AR EHBRERCENEHRERBR LR
FigETRG A KRRK20185F12418H
ZF2018F12ANEHEEDMEBR -

REBE2017TFNZANBEFEZERE
ABBRNIBRARAEEAREFAER
600,000,000 & @M 8 B &t & - K
NDBBEEREIIC HETRD RBO KA
EEWANEEELBNHZENME
36) - Bt A R AR R ARE R 20171 A
THEX-

AEEENBFNANABLFENER
BERNKCEZERBEERAHEEH
B BB B &I REBRBERC
BuUBRETBAROTE-
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‘ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

REMBREMEE)

11. Earnings (Loss) Per Share (continued) 1. SEEBHN(ER)(E)
The computation of diluted loss per share for the year ended 31 December HEHE2017TFE12ANBLEEENST K
2017 has not considered the effect of the shares issued under the Pre-IPO BEEBERITAZERBEE A AMEE
Share Award Scheme given that the effect is anti-dilutive and does not assume MR HEETE R TRNNTE  RA
the conversion of the Class B and C convertible ordinary shares issued by the MrZhRBENHE BV ARKZEBRAK
Company in 2017 since their assumed exercise would result in an anti-dilutive in RAEIR20MTFEHTHBERCETE R T
loss per share. BRCDARNEBERETESERTRE

BREE-

12. Directors’, Chief Executives’ and Employees’ Emoluments 12 EX - FETBRAEREEH S

Directors and chief executives EFERIETHRAR

Mr. Cheng served as the Company's Chairman and Executive Director and Mr.
Zeng served as the Company’s Vice Chairman, Executive Director and Chief
Executive Officer since the incorporation of the Company on 30 January 2015.

Mr. Tony Tuo Zheng was appointed as non-executive director of the Company on
30 January 2015. Mr. Zhu Weihang was appointed as non-executive director of
the Company on 9 January 2017. Mr. Chen Xue was appointed as non-executive
director of the Company on 9 January 2017.

Details of the emoluments paid to the Directors and the Chief Executive Officer
of the Company during the years reported are as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2018:

B AR RIR2015%1 A308 s A 7 BAZK
BALBEEARANIERATESZR
BRAEEEARANBIER RTESH
TR -

BIMELER2015F1ANAEZERER
AIEMITES - REMEEN2017F1A9
AEZERARRIFNTEE REXLE
R2017F1AIREZER KRR AT
E=-

RBEFE INTFARAEERITHE
HOMEHBOT:

BZE2018F12A3TB LFE :

Salaries Retirement
and other  benefit scheme
Directors’ fee allowances contributions Total
£ B AREF
EEHe H 2 By 5t 81 #a 5t
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR AR¥ET R AR¥T R AR¥ET T
Executive directors: WITES:
Mr. Cheng BEAE
Mr. Zeng TR AE
Non-executive Directors: FHTES:
Mr. Tony Tuo Zheng BIp k&
Mr. Zhu Weihang REMEE
Mr.Chen Xue BRE %4

210 CHINA BOQI ENVIRONMENTAL (HOLDING) CO., LTD. #EEFRR(ZK)ER A 7



12.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued)

SEMBBRRME®

Directors’, Chief Executives’ and Employees’ Emoluments 12 ES - FETTBRAEBEREE#M S
(continued) (#&)
Directors and chief executives (continued) EFSRTETHRAE(E)
For the year ended 31 December 2017 BEW17F12A3NBLEEE
Salaries Retirement
and other  benefit scheme
Directors’ fee allowances contributions Total
ek EIREF
EE8e Hfth 2 B FHEI R et
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AR®BTT AR®BTT AREKTR
Executive directors: HITEE
Mr. Cheng BrxE - 850 57 907
Mr. Zeng B LA - 850 57 907
Non-executive Directors: FHTEE:
Mr. Tony Tuo Zheng BhEs = - - -
Mr. Zhu Weihang REMEE = = = -
Mr.Chen Xue [CR= - - - _
- 1,700 114 1,814

The emoluments of the Directors and chief executives shown above were mainly

for their management services rendered to the Company and the Group and were

determined by the shareholders of the Group having regard to the performance of

individuals and market trends.

No emoluments were paid or payable to Mr. Tony Tuo Zheng, Mr. Zhu Weihang,

and Mr.Chen Xue during the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017 nil).

NEMTESRERTBRABNME X
ERBRERURTARARAEENE R
REMS A YHAREBRRE REA
FERMEBERET -

BZE2018BF12ANBILEE TEEMNK

ENBALE REMETERRELEN
B (20175 : &) °
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‘ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

REMBHRRME R

12. Directors’, Chief Executives’ and Employees’ Emoluments 12.
(continued)
Employees

The five highest paid individuals of the Group included two directors for the year
ended 31 December 2018 (2017: two), whose emoluments are included in the
disclosures above. The emoluments of the remaining three individuals for the
years ended 31 December 2018 (2017: three) are as follows:

EF FTETBRAEREEM £
(#&)

ER

BZE2018FE 1283 BLEEE ALENT
LREBFMALOREMBES HMeH
REXHEEQTE: WE) HZE2018
FI2ANBLEFE BT=Z2ALTHHE
MTQ07%: =4):

Year ended 31 December

BEENRANALEE

Salaries and other benefits FehEMmEF
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RIKBFFEI X
Share-based payments AR 1 A E R

2018 2017
2018 2017 %
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBT R ARET T
1,560

57

875

2,492

The five highest paid individuals, including two directors, whose emoluments
were within the following bands:

IABRFMAZ(BRRMBAEST)NME
NRATEE:

Number of employees
Year ended 31 December

Nil to HKD1,000,000 = % 1,000,0007% 7T
HKD1,000,001 to HKD1,500,000 1,000,0015% 7t & 1,500,000 7T

BEAY
EZ12A3NBLEE
2018 2017
20185 2017 4
3
2
5

During the year, no remuneration was paid by the Group to the Directors or the
top five highest paid employees as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group or as compensation for loss of office (2017: nil). None of the Directors has
waived any remuneration during the year (2017: nil).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued)

13. Property, Plant and Equipment

SEMBBRRME®

13. YR BERXMR

Leasehold land Motor Fixtures and Construction
and building vehicles equipment in progress Total
HELiH
kEF "E EBRRE EEIR 5t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTR AR¥TR AR®TRT AR®BTR
COST DN
At 1 January 2017 R2017E1A18 32472 17,573 11,820 - 61,865
Additions NE 244 3,648 36,592 57 40,541
Disposals i+ & - (4.914) (673) - (5.587)
At 31 December 2017 R2017 &
12A31H 32,716 16,307 47,739 57 96,819
Additions NE 5,567 2,646 8,193 16,135 32,541
Disposals == = (852) (752) = (1,604)
At 31 December 2018 120185
12R31H 38283 18,101 55,180 16,192 121,756
ACCUMULATED RiME
DEPRECIATION
At 1 January 2017 R2017F1 818 (6,694) (13,164) (8,586) - (28,444)
Charge for the year FAX M (1,022) (2,505) (2,927) = (6,454)
Elimination on disposals HE BB - 4,494 606 - 5,100
At 31 December 2017 ®2017 &
12A31H (7.718) (11,175) (10,907) - (29,798)
Charge for the year FRASH (1,073) (1572) (8,508) - (11,153)
Elimination on disposals i & K 3 8 - 810 715 - 1525
At 31 December 2018 R2018
12A31H (8,789) (11,937) (18,700) (39,426)
CARRYING VALUES BRE A
At 31 December 2018 M2018 5
12A31H
At 31 December 2017 K2017 &
12A31H 25,000 5132 36,832 57 67,021
The above items of property, plant and equipment, other than construction in BRERZIREN LlWE BERXER

progress, after taking into account their estimated residual value of 5% of the

cost, are depreciated on a straight-line basis with the following expected useful

lives:

Leasehold land and building 30 years
Motor vehicles 5 years
Fixtures and equipment 2—-7.5 years

B &5 & H B A 5%H {4 5t I 68 (B B & 1R
NTEARERFHNEREANE:

HMELHRET

"

RERRMB
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‘ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

REMBHRRM TR
14. Investment Properties 14. BBEYME
RMB’000
AR T
COST X 2
At 1 January 2017, 31 December 2017, R2017FE1B18 - 2017F 128318 &
and 31 December 2018 20185612 A31RH 20,871
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION 2:tinE
At 1 January 2017 R2017F1 818 (7,255)
Provided for the year FREE (634)
At 31 December 2017 M2017F12A31RH (7,889)
Provided for the year FREE (634)
At 31 December 2018 R2018F12831H (8,523)
CARRYING VALUES EHEE
At 31 December 2018 R2018%F12831H 12,348
At 31 December 2017 R2017%612 8318 12,982
The investment properties are the units located on the same floor within the BREMEFERUNFEILREREFTR—
same building in Beijing, the PRC, which are held to earn rentals or for capital BEMEM HENKDA2AE &
appreciation purposes. The investment properties are depreciated on a straight- EMENEGEEREETFINT% KA
line basis at the rates of 3.17% per annum, estimated residual value of 5% of HET R ELS% I E -
the cost.
The fair value of the Group's investment properties as at 31 December 2018 was R2018F12A31H  AEEEEMENA
RMB62,450,000 (2017: RMBS8,712,000) which was determined by the Directors R EEAAREG2450,0007T(20174F + A
by using direct comparison method based on observable market transaction R#58712000) AEEBBFERER
prices of properties in similar locations. The fair value hierarchy is level 2 as at L BOE R 1R i 5 48 It Bh 6 W) % w0 AT 8
31 December 2018 (2017: level 2). BMi5R 5 ERETE - R2018F12A318 -

ARBEERAEE_HKQUIE - E_R) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued)

At 31 December 2018

M20185F12A31H

At 31 December 2017

R2017F12 431 H

1,805

551

313

1,352

541,646

423,237

REMBREMEE)
15. Intangible Assets 15. |MLEE
Service
Patents and concession
Software trademarks arrangements Total
Bk % 45 7T
Bt HIRBE REZH @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRE AR®TR AR®TR AR®BT:R
COST DN
At 1 January 2017 R2017F1HB18 12,695 28,774 544,661 586,130
Additions NE 29 - 42,926 42,955
At 31 December 2017 R2017412 4318 12,724 28,774 587,587 629,085
Additions NE 1,586 - 153,949 155,535
Disposals & - - (793) (793)
At 31 December 2018 R2018F 12831 H 14,310 28,714 740,743 183,821
ACCUMULATED AMQORTISATION Rt
At 1 January 2017 R2017F1B1H (11,846) (26,302) (132,379) (170,527
Charge for the year FARXH (327) (1,120) (31,971) (33,418)
At 31 December 2017 M2017F12A31H (12,173) (27,422) (164,350) (203,945)
Charge for the year FRTH (332) (979) (35,540) (36,851)
Elimination on disposals e B 8y = = 793 793
At 31 December 2018 R2018%12831H (12,505) (28,401) (199,097) (240,003)
CARRYING VALUES REE

543,824

425,140
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& NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued)
SEMBERME®

15.

216

Intangible Assets (continued)

The Group has entered into a number of service concession arrangements with
certain power plants which are owned by state owned enterprise in the PRC
on a BOT basis in respect of its desulfurisation and denitrification construction
and maintenance services. Pursuant to the service concession arrangement
contracts, the Group (i) is responsible for the construction of the desulfurisation
and denitrification facilities; (i) has the contractual obligations to maintain
the infrastructures at a specified level of serviceability; and (iii) is entitled to
operate the facilities upon completion for a specified concession period from
15 to 20 years by receiving the monthly fees, which are determined by on-grid
tariff subsidies on a per kilowatt hour basis for power generated by the power
plant and settled with the customers on a monthly basis. The Group will not hold
any residual interest in the facilities upon expiration of the concession period.
As such, these contracts are accounted for as service concession arrangements
and intangible assets were recognised upon the completion of construction
at amounts equal to the stand-alone selling price for provision of construction
service.

Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment loss. Service concession arrangements are amortised
on a straight-line basis, over the remaining concession period. Other intangible
assets are amortised a straight-line basis based on their estimated useful lives as
follows:

Software 5 years

Patents and trademarks 5 years—15 years

CHINA BOQI ENVIRONMENTAL (HOLDING) CO., LTD. R EfZBR(ZR) AR A 7

15.

ERAREGR

ARBZBOTEEFARBMERETZR
RERGETRRELEAENETE
BRILZERBHFEELT - RERS
FHEERHAN ARE(I)EEREMR
Bt B BB R R B () AR IR E AT R R A
KFHEERRBOARNEME: R(iii)A
BERTRENRBENDFANRERFE
LZHEBBAUBMERLERE MEA
EBHNERDREERAEETNRET
B LREEXHET IBARTFE
B-AEERBHEEHERRIBERA
REEMBTME Bt ZFEHNRNT
REERARIGERGEFELELHER
BEVEE THEASREHZERBNE
VHEBRER

mYEERRAR BB RAARH
REBEZH  REMFELERERGT
BEEERIEREERY RO EE
ENRETREHTEAESNERE
T
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16.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued)

Receivables Under Service Concession Arrangement

In June 2017, the Group entered into a service concession arrangement with a
state owned power plant. Through the arrangement, the Group is involved as an
operator (i) paying a specific amount for purchasing the relevant infrastructure
for operation under the service concession arrangements; (ii) using the existing
infrastructure and upgrading the acquired facilities for provision of services
under the service concession arrangements; and (iii) operating and maintaining
the infrastructure for the period of 15 years (the “Service Concession Period”),
and the Group will be paid for its services over the Service Concession Period
at prices stipulated through a pricing mechanism. The Group is entitled to use
all of the related infrastructure, however, the power plant, as the grantor,
will control and regulate the scope of service that the Group must provide
with the infrastructure. The construction or upgrade of this service concession
arrangement have been fully completed in December 2018.

The service fee is charged by reference to on-grid tariff subsidies determined
on a per kilowatt hour basis as set out in the service concession agreement.
However, the Group is entitled to a minimum guaranteed service charge, which is
calculated based on the minimum guaranteed on-grid tariff per year and the price
agreed in the service concession agreement. Accordingly, the receivables under
service concession arrangement was recognised based on the consideration
paid by the Group upon the completion of the construction or upgrade of the
infrastructure.

The receivables under service concession arrangement arose from the minimum
service charge guaranteed by the power plant was as follows:

16.

SEMBBRRME®

BRERFEEREATHERR
|

R201746A AKEE-HEE B/
URBHAKER -BBALH T &
ENEZB SN2 R(IRBERBHFL
ERHRTHEENHBERREXM
BESRB (IERAASERBEERRKEN
REBUERM BRI RERBFFLE
ZHETH RS A K(iii) & 8 & 4+ 8
BERREZSF(REFIFLLEH)
MASEHRREFFELHARER
R IR B RE B AR A E
RERGM -~SEFRERMERBE
BRI EEBRBEARTAZDEHLSR
EAKEANGRERRER KO RE
HE ZARBEFCLERNEERZE
BER20185F12 A 2 E K

RBEENE2ERREBTIALERZN
ARNETRAREERFENLEREER
BE - AT AREERZFEREER
REER MZEABNIRESFREERF
IREERREBAECLEHBAEMATEN
BRAE-Fit REBFEELRENE
BHFERETRERRERELRERR
SE AR ERER-

MEMRBNRERBERELZRE
BRE&EcBRTMREFREAEDT

At 31 December

ENEA R 2
EA

Current portion
Non-current portion

B HERMAT

Expected collection schedule is analysed as follows:

Within one year —FR

More than one year, but not more than two years —FULETRBBME
More than two years but not more than five years MELNEBIBBRBRESF
More than five years RENE

M12A31H
2018 2017
2018 2017 4
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ T ARETT
12,526 23,519
367,029 384,565
379,555 408,084
12,526 23,519
18,981 17,830
88,811 60,600
259,237 306,135
379,555 408,084
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‘ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

REMBREMEE)
16. Receivables Under Service Concession Arrangement 16. EERBFEERBETHEKR
(continued) T (#&)
The Group accounts for the receivables under service concession arrangement REEBREETLCELHBTNERT
based on the present value of the estimated annual minimum service charge in BEBRESFEEHNGTFERER
the Service Concession Period by applying an implied (2017: effective) interest BENEHEERENSGYDPESHEK
rate of 6.37% which is calculated based on the significant financing component MEBIFENBZ(2017F: ER)F X
implied in the contract (2017: considered by reference to the market interest rate 6.37% (2017 F : FREMBFEREF A
and the credit risk of the grantor). MEEERRETE)AR-
The grantor under the service concession arrangement is a state owned power REEFRELTHETHRETAABEYD
plant in which the default risk is generally perceived to be low. The Directors AR EERAEARENBEEER =5
consider that there was no significant change in credit risk in the year ended RE BE18F12ANBLEEFEMNF
31 December 2018, and thus measure the loss allowance for receivables under ERRIIEEAEZE AN BREE:S
service concession arrangement at an amount equal to 12m ECL, which is AT HETE TR EW R IEEIERET K
RMB3,518,000 (1 January 2018: RMB3,673,000). While the Company consider ERNNEREHEEFENEE BA
the credit risk is low, the collection of receivables under service concession K #3518,000(2018FE1A1H : A R #&
arrangement is closely monitored by the Company in order to minimise any credit 36730007) - BEALARRAEERR
risk associated with the receivables. BIE AARBYERRBETLELH
T T JE UK TE B R AR R DA R A B
JEWHIBR B H = & @ b o
17. Investment in an Associate 17. REBEQFMKRE
At 31 December
M12831H
2018 2017
2018 & 2017 4
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®T R ARBF T
Cost of investment in an associate R B & A B IR B B AR AR 33,000 33,000
Share of profit of an associate, DG E R EEF
net of dividend received (F0BR B Wi B 36,537 37,098
Proportion of ownership interest and AEENEREERZR
voting rights held by the Group BT R R £ 1 69,537 70,098
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17.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued)
SEMBBRRME®

Investment in an Associate (continued)
As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Group had interests in the following
associate:

THENRERELD:

17. REEAXRMKRRAM)
120184 R2017612 4318

P REER MK

Principal activity

FEXH

Design installation
operation and
maintenance of EPC

EPCERET IR
R

Principal Class of Proportion of ownership
Place of place of shares interest and voting rights
Name of entity registration operation held held by the Group
T2 IES; AEENHEERESR
ERLHE o 1M 3t B rEmE  ROER KGR ERL S
at 31 December
B12A31H
2018 2017
2018 2017 F
Directly Directly
E# B
Z)EREFRRREERAA The PRC The PRC Ordinary 30% 30%
Han Chuan Long Yuan BoQi H H gl
Environmental Technology Co., Ltd.
("Han Chuan Long Yuan”)
B IRRE SRR AR AT
DE)IIER] )
The associate is accounted for using the equity method in the consolidated Bt &
financial statement. The summarised financial information in respect of Han AR e

Chuan Long Yuan is set out below:

ARRNERMBRERTERESE
BB BEMBRDT

At 31 December

R12B31H
2018 2017
2018 2017 F
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBT R ARET T
Total assets wEE 461,026 497,116
Total liabilities raf (229,236) (263,455)
Net assets EEFE 231,790 233,661
Year ended 31 December
®W12A31H
2018 2017
2018 2017 F
RMB'000 RMB’000
AR® TR ARBF T
Revenue Y &= 241,146 211,270
Profit and total comprehensive income for the year FREFRE2EW S L5 93,209 105,645
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‘ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
SEMBBRRME®

18. Equity Instrument at Fair Value through Other
Comprehensive Income

18. BARREFARMEZEBZMN
BKEIR

At 31 December
2018

R2018 5
12R31H
RMB'000
AR®T T

Listed equity investment
— Equity securities listed in on NEEQ

rHRERE
—E2EHRIEEROEER

EREMHBRAES 3,540

The listed equity investment represents investment in Wuhan BOCH JACO
Environmental Co., Ltd. (“Wuhan BOCH"), an entity incorporated in the PRC. The
shares of Wuhan BOCH is traded on National Equities Exchange and Quotations
(“NEEQ”). The Directors elected to present in OCI for the fair value changes
of this equity investment previously classified as an AFS investment. This
investment is not held for trading and not expected to be sold in the foreseeable
future.

19. Available-for-sale Investment

IR EREERPEEMKINER
REBFEFTRABNDARAATRER
FDORE - REBFRONZEFP D
ERnhBEZAG(2BH NEEROER
AR - EFEEREME2EREZ
NG BEERM D BAAHLERENBRE
REMNRMABEED - LRKRELIFFIE
BE BERARABBRLRRAEGLE-

19. THEHERR

At 31 December
2017

R2017 &
12A31H
RMB'000
ARBT

Listed equity investment at fair value

BAABEARNLETRERE

9,000

The equity investment represented the investment in Wuhan BOCH, which has
been reclassified to equity instrument at fair value through other comprehensive
income upon application of IFRS 9 on 1 January 2018.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued)

20. Debt Investment at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive

21.

Income

SEMBBRRME®

20 BoOAREAARMZERZH

RERE
At 31 December At 1 January
2018 2018
R2018 2018 4F
12A31H 1TRA1HE
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARBFTT

BUER

Notes receivable

65,837

The Directors recognised the notes receivable, with fixed rate and maturity
date, as debt investment at FVTOCI, as they held these notes for the purpose of
cash collection and discounting. The Directors assessed the expected credit loss
risk of notes receivable as low, mainly because the notes were secured by the
drawer’s bank deposit and the default risk was low. The Directors assess the
fair value of all notes receivables approximate to their carrying amount as the
maturity dates are within 6 months.

Deferred Tax

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement of financial
position, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities have been offset. The
following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial reporting
purposes:

21.

EERAEENERIBENRKTER
BARBEAAEBEFAECZEREN
EHERE REAKAZEREMNENR
BBRRe LR - EERERBFRENOR
HEEBRRRBE TEZERAREAL
FANBIERER EORBREKE - H
RERZEENINHBEREARN EFH
EMAERBEENAAEBERAREE
A -

EERER
REAMBRRAREIME  BATELEH
BEERABCTAH RPBHEM
EOREBBEHOMMOT

At 31 December

Deferred tax assets REHIBEE
Deferred tax liabilities EEHRBEE

M12A31H
2018 2017
20185 2017 %
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETT
25121 21,995
(8,018) -
17,103 21,995
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‘ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

REMBHRRME R
21. Deferred Tax (continued) 21, BEERBEE)
The following are the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities recognised THAERBKREFERNEERELEHRIESE
and movement thereon during the years reported: ERECHBAGEREZE:

Withholding

Change in tax on

Allowance ~fair value of the eamings

for credit equity  Provision for anticipated

losses and instrumen onerous Accrued to be distributed
inventories at FVTOC! contracts expenses Patent by subsidiaries Total

BAREE

HARM B

2ERER KEA

FEER  RAIR i R kH
BERRE DAEE2E  ANBE  EHEX g7 BANENH &t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ABRTR  ARBTR AR¥TR ARKTR ARETR AR¥TR ARKTR
AT January 2017 RTE1A18 7306 i 8215 AL 2800 - 35,583
Charged topoftorloss nkaEs (2811 - (2450 (1109 (11) - (12531
Charged o other comprehensie ncome HEERSESL e - (1061) - - - - (1.051)
At 31 December 2017 RTE12ANA 4515 (990) 5% 9.9% 2 = 219%

Adjustment arising from ENERERYEREER

el adopton of IFRS § ote 95 M BB 1741 = = = = = 174
At January 2018 R8I 6,25 (%0) 5% 99% 2 - BI%
Charged o proft o loss NhekEs (101 - (1.3%) 2018 (151 8018) (1450
Charged to other comprehiensive income BeEt2ENE = 819 - - - - §19
At 31 December 2018 R218E124318 6,15 (n) 4365 12214 255 (8018) 17103
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21.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued)

Deferred Tax (continued)

As at 31 December 2018, the Group has unused tax loss of RMB22,557,000 (2017:
RMB13,081,000), available for offset against future profits for the consecutive
five years and will expire between 2019 and 2023. No deferred tax assets have
been recognised in respect of such tax losses due to the unpredictability of future
tax profit streams.

Deferred tax assets is recognised if it is probable that all of the deferred tax
assets will be realised through the recovery of taxes previously paid and/or
future taxable income. The Directors have reviewed its deferred tax assets at the
end of the reporting period and considered that it was probable that the deferred
tax assets of the Group will be realised through future taxable income based on
the Directors’ assessment of the probability that taxable profits will be available
over the year which the deferred tax assets can be realised or utilised.

Under the EIT law of the PRC, withholding tax is imposed on dividend declared in
respect of profits earned by the PRC subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group recognised the relevant deferred tax
liabilities of RMB8,018,000 (2017: nil) on earnings anticipated to be remitted
by certain subsidiaries in the foreseeable future. No withholding tax had been
provided for the earnings of approximately RMB781,314,000 (2017: 504,141,000)
expected to be retained by the PRC subsidiaries and not to be remitted to a
foreign investor in the foreseeable future based on several factors, including the
Directors” estimation of overseas funding requirements.

21.

SEMBBRRME®

i BE IR (18)

R2018F12A31H  AKEN R A KA
K18 B A R #22,557,000 7T (20176 : AR
#13,081,0007T) T AREHEERFHN
AR HOa ¥ I R 20199 220234 H1 [ 2
o mRAREBBENREELRD &
YERZERAERERECHBREE -

EERBREERMAEERBEEEANE
BREEMENMBTER L RRER
RUAZRETUAHER EXCERAR
BEMANECHBEE YEREFY
RELCHEEEANEERAIAFER
HRERB OGN A A R RAAK
EMELEHBREENEBARNERY
LON S8

RERPBEECEMSHEZ  582008F171H
2 BB AR E R E AR EUE A B R
BB AMRIBHB -

R2018F 128318 REBR BB TH
BERARAERARSELNRBAER
HBKRELEREH&EARS0180007T
(017F:8) - REDEEEHENES
ERGHEANSZEREZ  AEEVER
BHRTFEANBARRBAETERAE
ARNBRELBENEEENRAOAR
781,314,000 7T (2017 4F : 504,141,000) 3
BREME -
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‘ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

REMBHRRM TR
22. Inventories 2 #E8
At 31 December
R12A31H
2018 2017
2018 2017
RMB'000 RMB000
AR® TR AR¥ET T
Equipments, supplies and spare parts HE MEREHE 37,958 25,546
Allowance for inventories FERE (117) (117)
37,841 25,429
23. Contract Assets and Contract Liabilities/Amounts Due from 23. SHEERSWAR EIL(ER)
(to) Customers for Contract Work EFREVNIERE
The Group has rights to considerations from customers for the provision of AEBERMEHTIE £EREERT
construction, operation and maintenance services. Contract assets arise when AMEFPHRRE GRNEERASEBRE
the Group has rights to considerations for completion of such services and BEKEERE A KREBREABEEHOK
not yet billed under the relevant contracts, and their rights are conditioned on BWMAREREE MEEFABEZRRS
factors other than passage of time. Any amount previously recognised as a MAINEZBGEE - EERAEEL
contract assets are transferred to trade receivables when the rights become BEMNTAREREBENKAEKMG
unconditional. Remaining rights and performance obligations in a particular KERLABESEWFE A6 RN
contract are accounted for and presented on a net basis, as either a contract TEFNEBENETERFBEEARTLZ
asset or a contract liability. JABEHNEESENEE-
At 31 December At 1 January
2018 2018*
72018 & 20184
12A31H 1TH1B*
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®ET R ARBFT
RMB'000 RMB000
AR® T AR¥ET T
Construction contracts analysed for HERBRIEDTHEE
reporting purposes as follows: EHMT
Contract assets ANEE 204,289 217,004
Contract liabilities EHEE (115,651) (74,521)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued)

23. Contract Assets and Contract Liabilities/Amounts Due from
(to) Customers for Contract Work (continued)

Contract assets are analysed for reporting purposes as follows:

23.

SEMBBRRME®

AVREREGHAR MU (E)
EFRGNIBREGR
HERAREIMOANEEDT

At 31 December At 1 January
2018 2018*

H2018 5 R 20184
12A31H TH1R*
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®T ARET T

Current Bl EA

204,289 217,004

204,289 217,004

Contract liabilities are analysed for reporting purposes as follows: HERABREITHELNEBENT :
At 31 December At 1 January
2018 2018*
R 2018 12018 4F
12A31H 1R1B*
RMB'000 RMB000
AR¥ TR AR¥ET T
Current B &8 74,521
74,521
* The amounts in this column are after the adjustments from the application of IFRS 9 and 15. * Ut 3| % A8 73 A B B B Y 7 B AR R B 9% K

The contract assets primarily relate to the Group's right to consideration for
work completed and not billed because the rights are conditioned on the Group's
future performance. The contract assets are transferred to trade receivables
when the rights become unconditional. The Group typically reclassifies contract
assets to trade receivables on the date of issue of invoice or billing with the
customers when such right of collections becomes unconditional other than the
passage of time.

The Group classified these contract assets and contract liabilities as current
because the Group expects to realise them in its normal operating cycle.

F155 M EA LA

ANEETZBARAKRERE K AR
WEMTRUBMRENERN  WLIERNZ
ERANAEBERROBITERGE -8
ZERNERERMR QNEENER
REFERUFE AEEA-ERNBELESR
A ERFHERY NERZZUER
BREMNEEEERRAIZEDSEFEE $
ARNEEEN N EEEIRKFE-

ARBERBUERNEERGHNREDE
REH URARAKRERARALETRE
ERNAERLECNEERANEE:
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‘ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
SEMBBRRME®

23. Contract Assets and Contract Liabilities/Amounts Due from 23.
(to) Customers for Contract Work (continued)

The following table shows how much of the revenue recognised in the current

year relates to carried-forward contract liabilities. There is no revenue recognised

in the current year related to performance obligations that were satisfied in prior

226

periods.

AVREREGHAR M (E )

EFaNIEREM)
TRETAFERADBATES LA

RECNEENHB AFEYEHERAH
DRTEIRETHEAEENKA -

Construction
contracts
BEAD
RMB’000
ARBT T

Revenue recognised that was included in the contract liability

balance at the beginning of the year

REMNFAGHNABERNEBABMA
20,614

Movement in lifetime ECL that has been recognised for contract assets in
accordance with the simplified approach set out in IFRS 9 for the year ended 31

December 2018 is as follows:

BE218F12A31RLFE REERE
BRELNFIREEN LR A NEERE
ROEHRACEEREHOT :

RMB'000
AR¥ET T
At 31 December 2017 under IAS 39 R2017F12 A3 BEI R & &5t & A

ERELSENN =
Adjustment upon application of IFRS 9 ERBIR M BHmELEIRE 2 HE 5,833

At 1 January 2018 — restated under IFRS 9 R20184F1 B 1B —BIRR B 7% 3R & % Al
FIRIE T EF 5,833
Allowance for contract assets BHEERE 1,278
At 31 December 2018 R20185F12 A31 H 7,111

Amounts due from (to) customers for contract work as at 31 December 2017,
which were reclassified to contract assets and contract liabilities upon initial

application of IFRS 15, are analysed as follows:

FU(EMEFAENITEFEARTRER
HERMBREENESREEHTIER
ANEERANAR -N2017F12A831H
MEK(EMEFPAOIRIEASNMAT

RMB'000
ARET T
Contracts in progress at the end of reporting period NFERRETHRHNAL
Contract costs incurred plus recognised profits less EASEENA QAN
recognised losses to date B R m AR B iR E e 350,172
Less: progress billings o EERR (282,532)
67,640
Recognised and included in the consolidated financial RERE M ISR RER
statements as amounts due: ANBRKRIE
— from customers for contract work -EhEFEHIREREA 95,348
— to customers for contract work -ERNEFAEHIRERA (27,708)
67,640
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued)
SEMBBRRME®

24. Trade and Notes Receivables

24, RHARKRERBHERE

At 31 December

Trade receivables 2 5 EWIA
Notes receivables e U 2 %
W EEEBRE

Less: Allowance for credit losses

M12A31H
2018 2017
20185 20174
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETT
802,046 632,840
= 65,837
(22,976) (31,424)
779,070 667,253

The Group generally grants credit period between 30 to 90 days which are
agreed with each of its trade customers. The extension of credit period to the
customers may be granted on a discretionary basis by considering customer type,
the current creditworthiness and the customer’s financial condition and payment
history with the Group.

Trade receivables relate to a number of independent customers that have a good
track record with the Group. The allowance for doubtful debts of the Group is
based on the evaluation of collectability and aging analysis of individual trade
debts performed by the Directors. A considerable amount of judgment is required
in assessing the ultimate realisation of these receivables, including the current
creditworthiness and the past collection history of each customer.

As at 31 December 2017, included in the trade receivables are retention amounts
of RMB206,601,000, which were held by customers under construction contracts.
Upon application of IFRS 15, the retentions receivables were reclassified to
contract assets.

Notes receivables are bank acceptance notes and the aging is generally within
90 days to 180 days, which the Directors believe that no impairment allowance
is necessary as there is no significant change in credit quality and the balances
are considered fully recoverable. Notes receivables are reclassified to debt
instrument at FVTOCI upon application of IFRS 9 on 1 January 2018.

AEE-REHOEFEEHRN FIE
WA NHEEZEFEFHBTE - AKEE
BEPZER HBAEERFBMN
NEEEAKRBEZBENRLCEMBE
AEPETREREED-

g5EKRNARETRASE 2 MR
REEARSZBTIRFER  AREH
S UREIS £ RN VEEY S
T8 ) B B 4 1 R R 02 4T 0 i« F
CEEI T FETY ER P
Tyl eESEEFOREEE RS
BRI -

AEBEZEKFARER207F12A
NHEKRE S AR %206,601,0007T - H
EFRBEREAOFE REREKRYHK
HELNFHRE BREESEH DR

BUREBRBIALER  BRE RN
FNEIOE - E=ZRR/BAREER
EfE FRAEEERYEEAEHE
ZEBBDBE DA BHRE - R2018%F
TATEERBRMBEREEREIREK
RUEZREFRDBREAABEFAL
hEERENEFIA-
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‘ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

REMBHRRM TR
24. Trade and Notes Receivables (continued) 2, BHBEZEREBEWKREEGE)
Aging analysis of trade receivables net of allowance for credit losses based on REZHHREWREZEERNDHZENINCZE 5
invoice date or notes receiving dates is as follows: EUWHEBEBHGREEEBEE) 2ERDM
LUNNE
At 31 December
R12A31H
2018 2017
2018 2017 F
RMB'000 RMB000
AR® T AR¥ET T
1-90 days 1290H 448,239 293,006
91-180 days 91=180H 75,851 72,187
181-365 days 181265 H 121,812 96,524
1-2 years 122F 81,775 156,788
2-3 years 223F 18,454 37,385
Over 3 years HBEIF 32,939 11,363
779,070 667,253
As at 31 December 2018, included in the Group's trade receivables balance are R2018F12A31H BRERAKEEKE
debtors with aggregate carrying amount of RMB330,831,000 which are past due SR EE B ABLKREEAR330,831,000
as at the reporting date. THEBA ERGEHRE@H-
As at 31 December 2017, included in the Group's trade receivable balance are R2017F128318  BERAKEREKE
debtors with aggregate carrying amount of RMB321,872,000 which are past due SRS R BIREE A K 321,872,000
as at the reporting date for which the Group has not recognised any allowance THEBA ERBEHRE8E i A
for doubtful debts because, based on past experience, the Directors are of the SEYRAUERTNRERE FRA
opinion that there has not been a significant change in credit quality and the BREANTKR EERAEEERIRESE
balances are still considered fully recoverable. There is no past due for notes RNEEH LD RERBEUE - B &
receivables. EaHERER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued)

24. Trade and Notes Receivables (continued) 24,

Aging analysis of trade receivables that are past due but not impaired is as

SEMBBRRME®

B 5 &R R R ()
EABEYEREZEZREKAZR

follows: BoWwmT

At 31 December
2017
R2017
12A31H8
RMB'000
ARKET T

Overdue by: 1 HA
1-90 days 1290H 25,914
91-180 days 91=180H 80,938
181-365 days 1812365 H 116,775
1-2 years 182F 66,837
2-3 years 223F 20,050
Over 3 years HIE3F 11,358
321,872

Movements in the allowance for doubtful debts are as follows: RERB2EHMOT

2017
2017
RMB000
AR¥ET T
At beginning of the year gl 49,289
Recoveries of debts previously written off W el 38 1F i 55 2 B 7% 1,800
Reversal of allowance for trade receivables g5 e IR R ERR (10,458)
Amounts written off as uncollectable A 0% M 30 T 48R D R IE (9.207)
At end of the year RER 31,424

As at 31 December 2017, allowance for doubtful debts included individually
impaired trade receivables with an aggregate gross principal balance of
RMB235,218,000, which were either under dispute with the customers or the
customers are in financial difficulties. The Group does not hold any collateral
over these balances.

R2017F12A3NE  REBEREER
BEEZRURE FEEBRABERARY
235218000 REABEZEEFHE L4
MEAZEEFPHBEM RN AEE YL E
RRSERFETMETR-
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‘ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

)

24,

230

BERERME@E

Trade and Notes Receivables (continued)

Movement in lifetime ECL that has been recognised for trade receivables in
accordance with the simplified approach set out in IFRS 9 for the year ended 31
December 2018 is as follows:

24. R 58 W kR B M o OR 68 ()
BE0BF1I2ANALFE EREER
MBEREEAFIRMEAERRNE S
ERFEZHRACEEENEHNT

RMB’000
ARBT T

At 31 December 2017 under IAS 39 2017612 A3 B BB & 5t 2 Al
F39KET 31,424

Reclassification to allowance for contract assets upon JIE FB B R BF 75 s o E B BB 1557 18
application of IFRS 15 ENOBEARNEERE (5,281)
Adjustment upon application of IFRS 9 EABEETEREEEIRE CHE 900

At 1 January 2018 — restated under IFRS 9 R20184 1 B 1 H —BIBR Bf 7% 3k & % A

FIRBETED 27,043
Allowance for trade receivables g 5 MW IE & 324
Written-off as uncollectible 48 5% U (3] i 88 (4,391)
At 31 December 2018 R2018512A31 H 22,976

The Group writes off a trade receivable when there is information indicating that
the debtor is in severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, e.g. when the debtor has been placed under liquidation or has entered
into bankruptcy proceedings whichever occurs earlier. The Group has taken legal
action against the debtors to recover the amount due.
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25.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued)

SEMBBRRME®

Transfers of Financial Assets 2% ¢HMEEEE
As at 31 December 2018, unmatured notes receivable amounting to B Z22018F 12318 & F FmETH
RMB66,368,000 (2017: nil) issued by certain listed banks were discounted to TEHEAFEBNEREZEESEAARE
banks. As the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards 66,368,000 T (20174 : &)+ W BL 3 &= iR
relating to these notes to the banks, these notes receivable have been T AR AEBECBEHEZSEREED
derecognized in the consolidated financial statements. BRAEPRBEERELZRT WEZSF
BEZBEERNGEEMBBRETRILEER-
In addition, the following are the Group's financial assets as at 31 December o AT BAREBER2018F12A318 &
2018 that were transferred to banks by discounting the notes receivables on TR EEENER AR EKREE mME
a full recourse basis. As the Group has not transferred substantially all the BPERTHESREE RAERTEER
risks and rewards relating to these receivables, the full carrying amount of WEEWFBHNEXNS SRR LOR E
the receivables are continuously recognised and the cash received upon the WHBNEBREAREAESEERRLNER
discount is recorded as a collateralised bank borrowing (see note 33). These BUWENRSVEAEEWMBITEIG
financial assets are carried at fair value through other comprehensive income in 203303 ANAEENBEmER
the Group’s consolidated statement of financial position as the overall business NEBEZEeREENKRANR S
model is to hold to collect contractual cash flows and to sell. RERLE ZSeRmEBER AR BEST
AZHUBREAEE NG E M BN K
5l B o
As at 31 December 2018 R2018F12831H
Notes
receivables
discounted
but not
derecognised
ERRE
REILER
MW R &
RMB'000
AR®T T
Carrying amount of transferred assets EREEREE 38,483
Carrying amount of associated liabilities HEEEREE (38,483)

Net position -]
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‘ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
SEMBBRRME®

26. Prepayments, Deposits and Other Receivables

232

2. FARAE -HeRAMEKRKRER

At 31 December

®W12A31H

2018 2017

2018 2017 F

RMB'000 RMB'000

AR® TR ARBT T

Project bidding and other deposits EREREREMES 23,767 27,529

Prepayments for project construction cost and BEHERRANBEERRXRE
project equipment purchase Z T RIE 21,326 20,942
Prepaid construction outsourcing fee BRNEEINBER 8,433 8,663
Prepaid value added tax B[ E R 60,491 4411
Deferred listing cost BT ETRAR = 7,019
Others EHiy 3,657 1,912
123,674 70,476
Less: impairment losses on other receivables At B R IEDR B B 1B (484) (300)
123,190 70,176
Movements in the allowance for doubtful debts are as follows: RERE STHNT

2017

2017 F

RMB000

ARET T

At beginning of the year R E ) 700
Allowance for other receivables H i & WOk IR BB 300
Amounts written off as uncollectable 5% I (8] i 6E /) 308 (700)
At end of the year NEX 300
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26.

21.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued)

Prepayments, Deposits and Other Receivables (continued)
Movement in lifetime ECL that has been recognised for other receivables in
accordance with the simplified approach set out in IFRS 9 for the year ended 31
December 2018 is as follows:

SEMBBRRME®

26. WARIA - -BRERHfERRRTGE)

BE2018F12A3NBLEFE EREER
HHRELERFEIRELC T EERNEAM
BUSFE2HEREEERNEHNT

RMB’000
ARBF T
At 31 December 2017 under IAS 39 R2017F12 AN AER €t &8

EREEAENN 300
Adjustment upon application of IFRS 9 JERBMRE EHmEERFEIFRE AR 59

At 1 January 2018 — restated under IFRS 9 R2018F 1 A1 H — B BB 7% 3R &5 2 A
FIRETED 359
Allowance for other receivables Hfth e sRIB B 125
At 31 December 2018 M2018F12A31H 484

Overview of the Group’s Exposure to Credit Risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual
obligations resulting in financial loss to the Group. At the end of the reporting
periods, the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk which cause a financial
loss to the Group due to failure to discharge an obligation by the counterparties is
arising from the carrying amount of the respective recognised financial assets as
stated in the consolidated statements of financial position.

In order to minimise credit risk, the Group has tasked a team to develop and
maintain the Group’s credit risk grading to categorise exposures according
to their degree of risk of default. The Directors use historical credit loss
experience to rate its customers. The Group’s exposure and the credit ratings
of its counterparties are continuously monitored and the aggregate value of
transactions concluded is spread amongst approved counterparties.

2]. % Sk [ Fr T R B9 15 5 R BR #Ridt

FERBEHFIREANREETENE
ERASENBRRNER - RNHREH
K AEEARZHEF I RERTRES
NAGSEHABERMAEZEREER
BRAGAFBARARRIHASEERY
BEEZIREME-

AEEREEERR FAEEKERTE
BRIk RASENEFEERR TR
€ 3R iEE AR BREE KA E R R R
PR EERABECEFRLRYEP
fER AR - AEBEFE M EREAE GRS
EREEEFINEEFA ETKHNR
SREEECHENEF TN E -
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‘ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

)

2].

234

BERERME@E

Overview of the Group’s Exposure to Credit Risk (continued) 27,

The Group's current credit risk grading framework comprises the following

categories:

# 5% (5] Py T B AO 15 S5 B L Sk ()
BT

AEEREEERBRARERE
Bl

Internal credit rating

Description

Basis for recognising expected
credit losses

RBEETR i BRAEHFEFBENER

Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of default 12-months ECL

ARt HFFHBBERSE REAREHEEER

Doubtful There has been a significant increase in credit risk since Lifetime ECL-not credit- impaired

THEE initial recognition PHENGEEFRE-BEERE
BEVRERARGERBREE

In default There is evidence indicating that the asset is Lifetime ECL- credit- impaired

pag:t credit-impaired EHEREEFE-LREERE
ARBETNZEELREERE

Write-off There is evidence indicating that the debtor is in severe Amount is written off

8 financial difficulty and the Group has no realistic HEE M

prospect of recovery

FEBRTERARNBRENBKE -
BAXASESREORFEEERHNE
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2].

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued)

EXln B )

Overview of the Group's Exposure to Credit Risk (continued)  27. 7 5k [B Ff o BS &9 (5 £ B8 #1d (48)
The tables below detail the credit risk exposures of the Group’s financial assets TEHIAEELREERAHNBER
and contract assets, which are subject to ECL assessment: EHESEEERIGFERNEERRK
External Internal 12-month Gross
31/12/2018 Notes credit rating credit rating or lifetime  carrying amount
o8 A& 128 A
2018512 A 31H Pt &% EETR EEFR %28 BEREE
RMB’000
ARBTR
Debt instrument at FVTOCI BARBEAEM 20 N/A Low risk 12-month
PHEUNENERTA TEm & B B 1218 A 70,205
Trade receivables B o EWHE % N/A Note Lifetime ECL
TER Bt 5% THIEH
FEER 800,742
Contract assets BHEE 23 N/A Note Lifetime ECL
TER Bt 5% 2HEH
FEBAR 208,707
Amounts due from related parties FE W & ;T IB 4 N/A Note Lifetime ECL
@R Pt &% 2HREH
FEBA 329,890
Receivables under service BHEELTHETH 16 M- Low risk 12-month
concession arrangement A ERE] 15 3 R 1218 A 383,073
Prepayments, deposits and other BENRE RER 2% N/A Low risk 12-month
receivables H 4 e Uy 208 N el 1218 A 123,674

Note:  For trade receivables and contract assets, the Group has applied the simplified approach in IFRS
9 to measure the loss allowance at lifetime ECL. Except for debtors with significant outstanding
balances or credit-impaired, the Group determines the expected credit losses on these items by
using a provision matrix, grouped by past due status.

The Group writes off trade receivables and contract assets when there is
information indicating that the debtor is in severe financial difficulty and there
is no realistic prospect of recovery, e.g. when the debtor has been placed under
liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings.

As part of the Group’s credit risk management, the Group uses debtors’ aging to
assess the impairment for its customers in relation to its all operation because
these customers consist of some customers with common risk characteristics
that are representative of the customers’ abilities to pay all amounts due in
accordance with the contractual terms.

Wit: HEZEUKEREHNEEME AEEEA
Bl M EEREIR B n it ERH
BHEEBROERREE EHRAEERE
HBEEEREAEBA  FEBEREREEEE
(BRAHMES ) EEXZERANRAEER

WEENBREBARRNEEN B R E
FEBERHE R B R A K E A E
ZEFRUFBERANEED MRES
ABBRIEARERFE)

ERASEEERREEN—HD XK
BEREBEANRRIGEEFPARA
BEZENRE AZERFPEIHIA
BERARBRBBNES ERREFER
EREADEREARBENEN
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Overview of the Group’s Exposure to Credit Risk (continued)
The following tables provide information about the exposure to credit risk for
trade receivables and amounts due from related parties which are assessed
based on provision matrix as at 1 December 2018 and 31 December 2018 within
lifetime ECL (not credit impaired). Trade debtors with credit impaired with gross
carrying amounts of RMB1,504,000 and RMB1,304,000 at 1 January 2018 and 31
December 2018 were assessed individually.

As at 1 January 2018

27. 7 5% [ Fr i B Y 15 5 PR 48R ()
MT&REHABEN2018F12A18 R
2018512 A3TA 5L B 5 & WK B K B I
BETRARENREREFELFGEOMR
HERE2HBEREEER(ESERE)MN
AMEERBRNER - R2018F1A1A R
2018F12A318 - WRERRENE S E
BABREEERARE1504000T kAR
#1,304,0007T - Ut % BB A Ty B L IE 5T
fi e

R20185F1H 18

Average Gross carrying Impairment

Trade receivables loss rate amount loss allowance
EZEWRRE FHYEHEE HEEE REBERE
% RMB’000 RMB'000

% ARBT R AR®T

Less than 1 year DI E 1.48 335,104 4,947
1-2 years 182%F 5.26 100,915 5311
2-3 years 223F 16.49 39,381 6,493
More than 3 years HBiB3F 30.89 28,447 8,788
503,847 25,539

Average Gross carrying Impairment

Amounts due from related parties loss rate amount loss allowance
FE W BEE B B FHEBRE HMIEEE REBREE
% RMB’000 RMB'000

% ARBT R ARBTR

Less than 1 year DN F 1.1 209,294 2,319
1-2 years 182%F 1.38 800 11
More than 3 years HBiB3F 2.78 18,325 509
228,419 2,839
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued)
SEMBBRRME®

Overview of the Group’s Exposure to Credit Risk (continued)
As at 31 December 2018

27. 5% Fr i BR Y 15 55 PR 48R (3R
R2018%512 4318

Average Gross carrying Impairment

Trade receivables loss rate amount loss allowance
EZEWRE THEBEBRX HEEE REBERE
% RMB’000 RMB'000

% ARBTR ARBTR

Less than 1 year D1E 0.92 651,881 5979
1-2 years 1822F 3.29 84,555 2,780
2-3 years 2E3F 12.36 21,056 2,602
More than 3 years BiB3F 23.84 43,250 10,311
800,742 21,672

Average Gross carrying Impairment

Amounts due from related parties loss rate amount loss allowance
FE W BEE K HE FHERE HEEE REBERE
% RMB’000 RMB'000

% ARBT R ARBTR

Less than 1 year DI F 0.92 149,295 1,377
1-2 years 18225 2.05 180,595 3,706
329,890 5,083

The credit risk of contract assets is assessed based on the provision matrix
within lifetime ECL. The Group applies average loss rates of 2.62% and 2.12%
on the gross carrying amounts of RMB222,837,000 and RMB208,707,000 for
contract assets with not-credit impaired as at 1 January 2018 and 31 December
2018, respectively. The gross carrying amount of RMB2,693,000 at 31 December
2018 for the contract asset with credit impaired was assessed individually.

AHNEENEERRDIREZBHEHRE
EFBRANBEERFG AEEMR
201851 A1H R2018F12A31A £ K |
B R A ARK22837000T kAR
208,707,000t M A W B E(EEERME)E
A 19818 £ 2.62% 5 2.12% - 2018512 A
NE - BEHEERARK26930007TH &
MEEMWREERE S BTG -
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BB RRMEE)

Overview of the Group’s Exposure to Credit Risk (continued)
As at 31 December 2018 (continued)

For receivable under service concession arrangement, the Directors determine
the ECL rate separately based on the specific credit risk of the customer. Such
customer has good credit rating, rare past default payment history with minimal
amount. The Directors have adopted average loss rate of 0.90% and 0.92%
on the gross carrying amounts of the receivable under service concession
arrangement as at 1 January 2018 and 31 December 2018, respectively, as there
is no significant change in the specific credit risk.

2]. % SR [ PR ER AY 15 S5 A B 48R ik (4R)

R2018512 8318 (&)
FURBHITLELETHRERIE &
FEREFPETEFERRERNMETE
HEEEB ZEREFABRIGETR
kELBABMERCHBEEANE-R
20181818 %2018F12R8310 B 5
REBTRELHE THRERFTENLE
EE D AR FHEEX090% 20.92% -
BEREEEERRTEERNEH-

Average Gross carrying Impairment
loss rate amount  loss allowance
BEZX IYHAREE REBSERE
% RMB'000 RMB’000
% ARBT R AR¥ T
As at 1 January 2018 R2018%181H
Receivables under service concession KL T EYZRE 0.90 408,084 3,673
As at 31 December 2018 R2018%12831H
Receivables under service concession 45 FF 48 & & HE T K E UL 0B 0.92 383,073 3,518

In determining the ECL for pledged bank deposits, bank balances and cash,
other receivables and debt instrument at FVTOCI for notes receivables, the
Directors have taken into account the historical default experience and the future
prospects of the industries and/or considering various external sources of actual
and forecast economic information, as appropriate, in estimating the probability
of default of each of pledged bank deposits, bank balances and cash, other
receivables and debt instrument at FVTQCI for notes receivables, occurring within
their respective loss assessment time horizon, as well as the loss upon default
in each case. For the purposes of impairment assessment, other receivables,
receivables under service concession arrangement and amounts due from related
parties, are considered to have very low credit risk as the counterparties to these
financial assets have a high credit rating. Accordingly, the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to 12m ECL and minimal.

CHINA BOQI ENVIRONMENTAL (HOLDING) CO., LTD. R EfZBR(ZR) AR A 7

ARAEERBEECERRITER R
BRRAE HOBRKFBARERELIA
BEFAEMGZANSENER T ANE
KEBNRACEERE ZRBATEN
KRRZSTENRRARR/RERE
BIR R TR 60 48 7 A A A0 % 181 50 B8 SRR (4
ERINEEEERRTER RITEH
ERE EttERBFARER/EAAEBE
AARMEARENEE TANREKRE
BREBBERFIGKHEENROME
THERBEBRREDKOER MR
BERFfEMS A BERHE REEFL
B BT R B MR R KRB T SRR
WRAARFFENEERR AR
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28.

29.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued)

Overview of the Group’s Exposure to Credit Risk (continued)
As at 31 December 2018 (continued)

No allowance has been provided for notes receivables, pledged bank deposits
and bank balances and cash since the balances are all with the banks which
have low credit risks during the year ended 31 December 2018.

There has been no change in the estimation technique or significant assumptions
made throughout the year ended 31 December 2018.

Pledged Bank Deposits

Pledged bank deposits represent deposits pledged to banks to secure 1) other
short-term bank borrowings, letter of credits and facilities of the Group as at
31 December 2018 and 2017 and 2) a back to back guarantee provided by a
bank in the PRC in respect of an oversea bank borrowing of the Company as
at 31 December 2017, and the guarantee have been withdrawed as the bank
borrowing was repaid in 2018. The pledged bank deposits will be released upon
the settlement of the expiration of letter of credits and banking facilities.

Pledged bank deposits of the Group carrying interest at market rates which range
from 0.30% to 4.00% per annum as at 31 December 2018 (2017: from 0.30% to
4.00% per annum).

Bank Balances and Cash

Bank balances and cash of the Group comprises cash held by the Group and bank
balances that bear interest at prevailing market rates ranging from 0.0001% to
1.50% per annum as at 31 December 2018 (2017: from 0.0001% to 1.75% per
annum), with an original maturity of three months or less.

21.

28.

29.

SEMBBRRME®

7 5% 8] R 1 BR A9 15 55 R B 5 (4)
M2018512 A31 R (&)
BE2018F1N2ANBLEFE HEREK
B BERRTERRBOTEHRRS
EHBEE WARMAELSEREAT
ERNEEERBRIT 2 &EH-

REBZE2018F12ANBILFER  fHat &K
MAERRRMELT -

EEHRTER
EERRTEREDRAEBER2018F
R2017F12A31 B E R BRITEN
ERAELRE: RORHPBE-—KETRN
20175 12ANEB R AR AN EINRITE
FARENESERMERTRTNE
P RERCEARTEEN2018FEEM
BE-EHEARTERREREBRBER
BRBTRENRREE -

M2018F12A31H - REEN S KM RT
7 AR N F0.30% £ 4.00% &) T 35 F F| =
7 8.(2017 4 : 0.30% £4.00%) °

BTRBERA®
AEERTHEBEACLRAREARE
W SRE RRITERR N2018512 731
B %S HITEHEN T00001%E150%
(20174 :  F0.0001% E1.75%) 0 R 17
BEMNEFEARIABAR=ZEAKT
R=f8A-
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‘ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

REMBHRRM TR
30. Trade and Notes Payables 0. EHEFARBAREFMRE
At 31 December
R128318
2018 2017
2018 2017 F
RMB'000 RMB000
AR® TR AR¥ET T
Trade payables B 5 ERMZIE 695,360 641,187
Notes payables ERZEE 190,175 79,540
Total Bt 885,535 720,727
The credit period on purchases of goods and services is generally 30 to 90 days. FEEMERBZEEH K RBIED
The table below sets forth, as at the end of reporting period indicated, the aging He TRHEIRATIREBRBEER AL
analysis of the trade and notes payables based on the invoice or completion THBREAHNESENRERESE
report date: B2 RER DT
At 31 December
R12831H
2018 2017
2018 2017
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR® T AR¥ET T
Less than 90 days LR 90H 349,822 244,900
90-180 days 90£ 180 H 194,485 108,416
180 days—1 year 180BE15 92,898 95,020
1-2 years 1224 87,244 128,528
2-3 years 223F 58,310 46,241
QOver 3 years HBiE3F 102,776 97,622
Total 4=t 885,535 720,727
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued)
SEMBBRRME®

31. Other Payables, Deposits Received and Accrued Expenses N. KtERRR BEWEEREH

k2
At 31 December

R12831H
2018 2017
2018 2017 F
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®T R ARETF T
Advance from customers BEFE#X 51,797
Accrued expenses JEH B 55,581
Accrued liabilities (note) fEt & & H ) 26,708
Accrued payroll and welfare Bzt TE REF 34,446

Payable for obtaining service concession HQ15 AR 75 45 5 48 & 2 HE Y

arrangement &4 5K 18 = 217,536
Projects deposit received from vendors BEEFRKRDRMNBERS 28,863 9,043
Others Efh 12,769 10,378
176,024 405,489

Note:  Accrued liabilities mainly represent the expected loss for onerous contract recorded when it is
probable that total contract costs will exceed total contract revenue.

32. Other Tax Liabilities

32.

Wit : Bt RELTREFFHRENK KA EBEE
RHREHERE A EHER

HttREAR

At 31 December

R12831H
2018 2017
2018 2017 F
RMB'000 RMB’000
ARBT R ARKET T
Value added tax E R 31,972
Other taxes H i 1518 413
32,385
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‘ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

REMBHRRM TR
33. Bank Borrowings 33. RMITHM
At 31 December
R12A31H
2018 2017
2018 2017
RMB'000 RMB000
ARBTR ARBT T
Analysed as: DMA:
Secured bank borrowings carry interest BEHFNEFEMNHER
at variable rates RITIE X 3,000 11,000
Secured bank borrowing arose from discounted 1% B E | E 5 5 H 8L 3R e
notes receivables carry interest at fixed rates EREENBERBTER 38,483 =
Unsecured bank borrowings carry interest RIS EFTENEER
at variable rates |AT & 24,000 116,000
65,483 127,000
Carrying amount repayable: EEEREE:
Within one year —F R 53,483 100,000
More than one year, but not more than two years —FUEETBBEME 12,000 15,000
More than two years but not more than five years MENEETNEBRRESF - 12,000
65,483 127,000
Less: Amounts due within one year shown BN RBAGERY M
under current liabilities N—FERNE 53,483 100,000
Amounts shown under non-current liabilities RIERBEERIAZIA 12,000 27,000
The amounts due are based on scheduled repayment dates set out in the AR BB HIERNET G ERESNEEE
borrowing agreements. As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, no bank borrowings EHE - RN2018F &2017F12 A31 8 » ##
contained any repayment on demand clause. EPTERIBEERNEERKEENKR -
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33.

34.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued)

SEMBBRRME®

Bank Borrowings (continued) 33. RITERGEE)
Interests on bank borrowings denominated in RMB at floating rates are UIARBAENZERTEINERS
calculated based on the borrowing rates announced by the People’s Bank of ARBIAHOEZFRAERITHE
China. The effective interest rate bank borrowings are charged at the prevailing THEEMNZRIZN2018F12B31B N F
market rates ranging from 3.65% to 4.79% per annum as at 31 December 2018 3.65% £ 4.79% ) 3R 17 1 % & 1 & Y ER (2017
(2017: 1.68% to 4. 79%). F:1.68%Z%4.79%) °
As at 31 December 2018, bank borrowings of approximately RMB3,000,000 201812 A31 8 » £ A K 3,000,000 T
(2017: RMB11,000,000) were secured by the pledge of bank deposits, or the right (20174 + A R #11,000,0007T)3R 1715 X &
to the future income stream or the pledge of the concession arrangements for DEBETFERRERREWA RS E
borrowings used in Jinggangshan Bogi's service concession arrangements, and ML FEEFRALEBETREETLCS
bank discounted notes receivables of approximately RMB38,483,000 (2017: nil) ZHERANEZNSE TR L BT HER
were secured by the notes discounted to the bank. LR £ AR #38,483,000 7t (2017 4F -
EINROTEREBR BB FELRTIR
SRERR-
Convertible Ordinary Shares 34. WIS %R
At 1 January Change in At 31 December
2018 fair value Conversion 2018
R2018 F AREHE R2018 %
181A8 28 B 12A31H
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARBETR AR TR AR®T ARET R
Class B convertible ordinary shares Bl m s i Bk
(“Class B Shares”) (IBE A7 ]) 295,548 (52,266) (243,282) -
Class C-1 convertible ordinary shares CHEmERLaR
(“Class C-1 Shares”) (fC-1ER R 65,195 (11,530) (53,665) -
Class C-2 convertible ordinary shares C-2Mam e i @ik
(“Class C-2 Shares”) (TC-2E B ]) 260,777 (46,116) (214,661) -
Class C-3 convertible ordinary shares CIEmERLAR
(“Class C-3 Shares") (TC-38 M fn 1) 133,609 (23,629) (109,980) -
Class C convertible ordinary shares CRuERLAR
(“Class C Shares”) (TCERM]) 459,581 (81,275) (378,306) -
755,129 (133,541) (621,586) -

On 16 March 2018, the Company was successfully listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, upon when all of the Company's Class
B and Class C convertible ordinary shares were converted into ordinary shares.
The fair value of such Class B and Class C convertible shares upon conversion
was changed to RMB621,588,000, which was recorded as the Company’s equity
upon such conversion.

R2018F3A16H R AR KN R E BB
BERGMEBRDBERET  AEART
BERCEIEBREARBENERASER
BRoREHRE ZEBARCATERLR
Be A nBEERARK621,5880007T
WRZBREINERARNRB M EER -
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‘ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

REMBHRRM TR
35. Reconciliation of Liabilities Arising from Financing 3B BHETHELENEEZHIE

Activities

The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities arising from financing TRAUMAEBERETHELENEGEN

activities, including both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from BE O AEBESLIIFEESEH HELE

financing activities are those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will MELEAGBAYFERAERGRARS
be, classified in the Group's consolidated statement of cash flows from financing RERNPEABREETHMELARSLEE
activities. MBEEREIRREERE-
Non-cash changes
1942
Financing Fair value Other

01/01/2017 cashflows’  Redesignation  Exchange effect adjustments changes” 3122017

M7E BE NiEE 0175

1R1B RE&RED  EHER Eiz2 AE HE®HO  12ANA

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETT ARETR

Bank borrowings (note 33) RITERM#33) 343,254 (223.863) - 2276 - 5333 127,000

Convertile ordinary shares AEHERR - 280459 wm - 3328 - 755,129

343254 56,596 21487 2276 133228 5333 882129

Non-cash changes
FREED
Financing Fair value Other

01/01/2018  cashflows®  Conversion  adjustments changes' 31122018

20185 HE ARERE 20185

1818 HEREN B WE Hugso 12A31A

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTT ARBTR AR%ETR AR®Tr AR®Tn AR%Tx

Bank borrowings (note 33) RITBRM233) 127,000 (67417) - - 5,900 65,483

Convertible ordinary shares MERLER 755,129 (621,588) (133541) - -

882129 (67,417) (621,588) (133,541) 5,900 65,483

Notes: Wit :

i) The cash flows from bank borrowings and convertible ordinary shares make up the net amount (i) RITEFRATEREBRTELE S RER
of praceeds from borrowings, repayment of borrowings, payment of interest and issuance of B REFMELENE EEEH &
convertible ordinary shares in the statement of cash flows. TFERETAIEEE AR FE -

(i) Other changes include interest accruals. (i) Hfh #E)e1E R FIE

36. Share Capital 36. BF
Details of the movement of share capital are as follows: RABNEB BN -
Number of Nominal value
shares per share Share capital
I £ 2 B BREE g 2=
uss$ US$
EYw Ev
Authorised EE
At 31 December 2017 and R2017F12A318B &
31 December 2018 2018412 A 318 5,000,000,000 0.00001
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36.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued)

REMBHRRM TR
Share Capital (continued) 36. B & (i)
Issued
R
Share capital
Class B Class C of ordinary
Class A convertible convertible shares and
Ordinary ordinary ordinary ordinary Nominal value Class A
shares shares shares shares Total per shares  ordinary shares
LERR
BEWER CETER AEERRH
LER  ABLER LER LER it SREAE R&
Uss Uss
E E
At 1 January 2017 RTE1R1A 625,000,000 = = = 625,000,000 000001 6,250
Redesignation of orcinary shares to ENEEEARA
Class A Shares fnote ] ABERR I (W) (60000000 625000000 - - 000001 -
Redesignation of Class A ordinary ENETAEL AR
shres o Class B convertihle BBETEA
ordinary shares (rnofe i) TRR2) = (125,000,000} 125,000,000 = = 0.00001 (1,250
Issuance of Class C-1 convertile B0 ETER
ardinary shares (rote 34 takWau - - - 757359 57359 0.00001 =
Issuance of Class (-2 convertihle B028ER
arinary shares (note 34 ERRWH) = - - 110,294,118 110,294,118 0.0000t =
Issuance of Class (-3 convertible B3 mEs
rdinary shares (note 34 LRk 2 - - - 31,786,152 31,786,152 0.00001 -
Repurchase of Class A ordnary shares BB EIAE L@ R = (24722,563) = = (24722,563) 0.00001 (247)
Issuance of Class C-3 convertile BEERTCIR
orcinary shares upon repurchase AERLRR - - - 24710563 2471563 0.00001 -
At 31 December 2017 RTE12831H = 475,21 431 125,000,000 194,376,362 794,653,799 (.00001 4753
Conversion of Class A ordnary shares ~~ AB L BRERZE
to rdinary shares (note i) BRI i) e ) - - - 000001 -
Conversion of Class B convertible BEmERLAR
ordinary Shares to ordinary shares ERcEak 125,000,000 - (125,000,000} - 0.00001 1,250
Conversion of Class C-1 convertible CIEMEBRLAR
ordinary Shares to ordinary shares BEHTEER
(note i) (K i) 21513509 - - (27573529) = 0.0000t 76
Conversion of Class -2 convertible CIBMERLER
ordinary Shares to ordinary shares EHhaLER
(note (iv) (B () 110,294.118 = = (110,294,118) = 0.00001 1103
Conversion of Class C-3 convertible (IEABRL AR
ordinary Shares to ordinary shares Enztak
fnotefv) (Wt iv) 56,508,715 - - (5,508,715 - 000001 i
Issue of new shares upon lsting RETEETH
(note (v) RN 216,105,000 - - - 216,105,000 000001 2161
At 31 December 2018 R218E12 831 1,010,758,799 - - - 1,010,758,799 0.00001 10,108
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‘ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
SEMBBRRME®

36.

246

Share Capital (continued)

36. Bx&(#)

At 31 December

R12A31H
2018 2017
2018 20174
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARBTT

Presented as

2R

G -

Notes:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

On 9 January 2017, all of the Company's ordinary shares were redesignated to Class A ordinary
shares.

On 9 January 2017, the Company redesignated 125,000,000 Class A ordinary shares which
were owned by New Asia to Class B convertible ordinary shares.

Upon completion of the Initial Public Offering (“IPO”), all of the Company's Class A ordinary
shares were converted into ordinary shares on an one-to-one basis immediately.

Upon completion of the IPO, all of the Company's outstanding 125,000,000 Class B convertible
ordinary shares and 194,376,362 Class C convertible ordinary shares were converted into
ordinary shares on a one-to-one basis immediately. As a result, the financial liabilities for the
convertible redeemable preferred shares were derecognised and recorded as share capital and
share premium reserve of the Company, respectively.

Upon completion of the IPO, the Company issued 216,105,000 new shares by way of global
offering of US$0.00001 each at a price of HK$2.40 (equivalent to AMB1.94) each, and raised
gross proceeds of approximately HK$518,652,000 (equivalent to RMB418,860,000). The
respective share capital amount was approximately AMB13,699 and share premium arising
from the issuance was approximately RMB390,983,000, net of the share issuance costs. The
share issuance costs mainly included share underwriting commissions, lawyers’ fees, reporting
accountant's fee and other related costs, which are incremental costs directly attributable to
the issuance of the new shares. These costs amounting to RMBZ7,863,000 were treated as a
deduction against the share premium arising from the issuance.
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(1)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

R2017F1HIA XL AR FFEEBREE
HEERAEEBR -

R2017F1H9H + & 1 7] & 5 #5 E New Asia
A # 125,000,000 AZF & 3 ik A BAE ] 8 15 &
IR -

RERRAEE([ERRHEE)THKE A
BARAMAREBRR — 1t — B EFRF 8B
EEBER-

RERZHEEZTHKE HEAREHK
# % (#9125,000,000/8 BAF 7] # £ & & K K
194,376,362 R CIR rJ B BB IR % — L — B &
A BHEEEER K B AR ES
B e 16 5 5 15 R B A UL BRI 5 B 5 R B A
R B H R R R 17 )i 1B 1

RERAHEEZHKE AR BBEEREE
W #F % [ (50.00001 3 7T # & 8 2.40/% 7T (16 &
RARK1.947T) %77 T 216,105,000 37 B 17 -
A8 BT 15 50 49 /5518,652,000% T (158 R A B
#418,860,0007T) - 1HEH R A 2 BB ABAR
M13699TC B HITHEERRD EEHABA
B #390,983,0007T (#1 B % 17 #7175 &)  BR (7
BITKAFZBRERGOHAS ZAHE A
HEAMBEAREMBEARE HEBHF
THRGEBEEMNESKA HELHEA
A R #27,863,0007T i % 7 # 48 B B #7T AT E
4 B R 17 5 1B A9 HB



37.

38.

Non-Controlling Interests

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued)

SEMBBRRME®

37. FERED

RMB’000
ARBT T

At 1 January 2017
Loss and total comprehensive expense for the year
Contribution from non-controlling interests shareholder (note)

W2017€1 818 -
FABEBREZ2ERAYEE (611)
SR EEE (M) 1,200

At 31 December 2017

7201712 A31 B 589

Loss and total comprehensive expense for the year

FRABEREEMX AR (1,540)

At 31 December 2018

2018512 A31H (951)

Capital Risk Management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will be able to
continue as a going concern while maximising the return to shareholders through
the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group's overall strategy

remains unchanged during the year ended 31 December 2018.

The capital structure of the Group consists of bank borrowings, bank balances
and cash and equity attributable to owners of the Company, comprising paid-in
capital and reserves in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

The Directors review the capital structure on an annual basis. As part of this
review, the Directors consider the cost of capital and the risks associated with
each class of capital. Based on the results of the review of the Directors, the
Group will balance its overall capital structure through the payment of dividends,

raising new share capital as well as the issue of new debt.

38 RxEARER
AEBEHAERETERE URERAKE
ZEERUEBRFELLEEERE FAE
BEEBLLEGREAYE ARRAER
ALK - REEOREERBNEZ20185
NANBLFEART A& -

AEBZEARBEARTER ROIEH
FEREURARABEREARGERERE
GARSEYRTHNEARALER A
}j&o

EXEFRTEARB - FRULBERTHN
—R EFEREAKRAREELRER M
MEmER REEENRIER A&
EREBRNKE SEMBPARBITH
EERVOHRBELNRE
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‘ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

REMBHRRM TR
39. Financial Instruments 39 £MIA
Categories of financial instruments EMIAEER
At 31 December,
R12831H
2018 2017
2018 20174
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®ET R ARET T
Financial assets TRMEE
Financial assets at amortised cost REBEKAFTENELREE 2,378,965 -
Equity instrument at FVTOCI BAnBEFAELMEZE RS
Bk AT A 3,540 -
Debt instrument at FVTOCI BARBEFAEMEE R
MEKIA 70,205 -
Loans and receivables EFRERFERERS
(including cash and cash equivalents) LEESZEY) 2,076,634
AFS investment AHHERE 9,000
Financial liabilities ETREE
Liabilities measured at amortised cost BREHEKATENER 1,079,323 1,145,761
Liabilities measured at FVTPL BARBEFAERGENAR = 755,129
Financial risk management objectives and policies ERRAREEERRBE

248

The Group’s major financial instruments include equity investment, debt
investment, trade receivables, other receivables, receivables under service
concession arrangement, amounts due from related parties, pledged bank
deposits, bank balances and cash, trade and notes payables, other payables,
amounts due to related parties, bank borrowings and convertible ordinary shares.
Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The risks
associated with these financial instruments include market risk (interest rate
risk, currency risk and other price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies
on how to mitigate these risks are set out in note 27 and below. The Directors
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.
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39.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued)

Financial Instruments (continued)

Categories of financial instruments (continued)

Market risk

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation to variable-rate
bank borrowings, pledged bank deposits and bank balances. And the Group is
also exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation to fixed-rate borrowings
(see note 33 for the details). It is the Group's policy to keep its bank borrowings,
pledged bank deposits and bank balances at floating rate of interests so as to
minimise the fair value interest rate risk. The Group's cash flow interest rate risk
is mainly concentrated on the fluctuation of the Benchmark Lending Rate of the
People’s Bank of China.

The Group currently does not have an interest rate hedging policy. However, the
Directors monitors interest rate exposure and will consider hedging significant
interest rate exposure should the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on the exposure to
interest rates for bank balances and cash, pledged bank deposits and variable
rate bank borrowings at the end of each reporting period and assumed that
the amount of liabilities outstanding at the end of each reporting period was
outstanding for the whole year. A 50 basis point increase or decrease is used
when reporting interest rate risk internally to key management personnel and
represents management’'s assessment of the reasonably possible change in
interest rates.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher/lower and all other variables
were held constant, the Group’s post-tax profit for the year ended 31 December ,
2018 would have increased/decreased by RMB3,123,000 (2017: RMB2,670,000),
respectively. This is mainly attributable to the Group's exposure to interest rates
on its bank balances and pledged bank deposits and partially offset by the impact
from bank borrowings.

Currency risk
The Group has bank balances which is denominated in foreign currencies, mainly
US$ and HKS, as at 31 December 2018 and 2017.

39.

SEMBBRRME®

eMIAGE
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\ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued)

)

39.

250

BB RRMEE)

Financial Instruments (continued)

Foreign currency sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on the exposure
to foreign currency rates and includes only outstanding foreign currency
denominated monetary items and adjusts their translation at the period end for
a 5% change in foreign currency rates. A 5% increase or decrease is used when
reporting foreign currency rate risk internally to key management personnel
and represents the Directors’ assessment of the reasonably possible change in
foreign currency rates.

If RMB had been appreciated/depreciated 5% against the foreign currency and
all other variables were held constant, the Group’s post-tax profit for the year
ended 31 December 2018 would have decreased/increased by RMB14,902,000
(2017: RMBA4,043,000). This is mainly attributable to the Group’s exposure to the
foreign currency bank balance as at 31 December 2018 and 2017.

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk which cause a financial loss to the
Group due to failure to discharge an obligation by the counterparties is arising
from the carrying amount of the respective recognised financial assets as stated
in the consolidated statement of financial position.

CHINA BOQI ENVIRONMENTAL (HOLDING) CO., LTD. R EfZBR(ZR) AR A 7
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39.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued)

Financial Instruments (continued)
Sensitivity analysis (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to its trade and notes receivables,
receivables under service concession arrangement, bank balances and cash,
pledged bank deposit, debt instrument at FVTOCI, prepayments, deposits and
other receivables, amounts due from related parties and contract assets.

With respect to the credit risk of the Group's treasury operations, the Directors
has established internal procedures to monitor the Group’s bank balances and
cash, investments to be placed and entered into with financial institutions of
good reputation. These internal procedures help minimise the Group's credit risk
exposure.

The credit risk on bank balances and pledged bank deposits is limited because
the counterparties are banks with high credit ratings.

Due to the nature of business of the Group, the Group has significant
concentration of credit risk on a number of customers. As at 31 December 2018,
the aggregate amount of the Group's trade receivables to the top five customers
was RMB448,798,000, representing 57.6% (2017: RMB225,456,000, 33.8%)
of the total trade receivables of the Group. In addition, the receivables under
concession arrangements was RMB379,555,000 as at 31 December 2018 (2017:
RMBA408,084,000), which was due from one customer. Furthermore, the Group’s
concentration of credit risk by geographical locations is solely in the PRC. In the
opinion of the Directors, those customers are mainly large electricity companies
with good financial backgrounds.

The Group only invests in debt securities with low credit risk. The Group’s debt
instrument at FVTOCI mainly comprise notes receivables discounted to the
banks with good credit rating and therefore are considered to be low credit risk
investments. During the year ended 31 December 2018, no expected credit losses
on debt instrument at FVTOCI were recognised in the profit or loss.

SEMBBRRME®

39. &#MIAGHE
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\ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued)

)

39.

252

BB RRMEE)

Financial Instruments (continued)
Sensitivity analysis (continued)

Liquidity risk

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the Directors,
who have established an appropriate liquidity risk management framework
for the management of the Group’s short-, medium-and long-term funding
and liquidity management requirements. The Group manages liquidity risk
by maintaining adequate reserves, banking facilities and reserve borrowing
facilities, by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows, and by
matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities.

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual maturity for its
non-derivative financial liabilities. The table has been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on
which the Group can be required to pay. The tables include both interest and
principal cash flows. To the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the
undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate curves at the end of the
reporting period. The contractual maturity is based on the earliest date on which
the Group may be required to pay.

The amounts included in below tables for guarantee are the maximum amounts
the Group could be forced to settle under the arrangement for the full guaranteed
amount if that amount is claimed by the bank to the guarantor. The Directors
have represented that they considered the initial fair value of such guarantee
was immaterial and that the borrower has made repayments to the bank in
accordance with the scheduled repayment dates set out in the bank borrowing
agreements, it is not probable that the Group will result in payment under such
financial guarantee.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued)

REMBHRRM IR
39. Financial Instruments (continued) 39. &mIAGE)
Sensitivity analysis (continued) HRESIRNGE)
Liquidity risk (continued) wREESERE)
Weighted
average On demand Total
effective or within 3 months 15 Morethan  undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 3 months to1year years 5years cash flow value
mETH RER 3EA AFRRE

ERAZ AMEAR 3k 1258 S5ELE REAR REE
% RMB'000 RMB 000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB 000 RMB'000
h ARBTR ARMTR AR®Tn ARBTr ARRTR ARETR

At31 December 2018 R2018512 4317
Financial liabilities SREE
Trade and notes payables BSEMHA
RENTE 885,535 885,535 885,535
Other payables EfEMTE 104,404 104,404 104,404
Amounts due to related parties ENEERZE 2390 390 B0
Bank borrowings RITAER ! 2 67,744 65,483
Guaranteg ER - 66,000 -
1,014,138 1,147,584 1,079,323
At 31 December 2017 R217E12A31 R
Financial liabilities tRER
Trade and notes payables EHEME
RERZ#& - o - - - 00 0
Other payables EfEME - 192538 - - - 19253 19253
Amounts due to related parties Eft @&, 208 - 5,49 - - - 5,4% 5,49
Bank borrowings RITAER 44 1432 103,569 2789 - 132914 127,000
Guarantee 2R - - - 66,000 - 66,000 -
1,020,193 103589 93893 - 1217675 1,145,761
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‘ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

REMBHRRM TR

39. Financial Instruments (continued) 39. eMIAME
Sensitivity analysis (continued) HRESNGE)
Fair value measurement DAEBEEE
Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities that are REEMEEENDAABESEZAE
measured at fair value on a recurring basis. CTRHEEHSREBELANEBE
This note provides information about how the Group determines fair values of AWFIREAEREET TV EREED
the following financial assets. ABEFENER -

Fair value as at 31 December

M2ANBMNAREE
2018 2017 Valuation technique and
20185 20174 Fair value key input
RMB'000 RMB'000 hierarchy HERITR
ARBTT AR®TT DAEEER  IEHAEE
Equity investment in the PRC (note 18) & B R 4 1% & (K7 £ 18) 9,000 Level3 Discounted cash flow
F= based on the future
cash flow of the

company's operations (note (i)
BB AAEE R RK
RemelRRens

(22 (i)
Debt instrument at FVTOCI (note 20) &2 A BEFF A E 4t 70,205 — Level3 Discounted cash flow (note (ii))
FEHBAMNEBIA EF=R BRI IR &% 2 (7 (i)
(K1 aE20)
Convertible ordinary shares ] 840 T R 755,129  Level 3 Market Approach (note (iii)
F=R T35 fd (8% (f 22 (iii))
There were no transfers between Level 1 and 2 during the year ended 31 EZE2018F12A31BILFE MEE
December 2018 (2017 nil). ZRZELEEE(2017F ﬁ) °
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39.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued)

Financial Instruments (continued)

Sensitivity analysis (continued)
Fair value measurement (continued)

Notes:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

A slight increase in the discount rate used in isolation would result in a decrease in the fair
value. A 1% increase in the discount rate, holding all other variables constant, would decrease
the carrying amount of the equity investment in the PRC by RMB 302,000 as at 31 December
2018 (2017: RMBI11,000). A 1% decrease in the discount rate, holding all other variables
constant, would increase the carrying amount of the equity investment in the PRC by RMB
405,000 as at 31 December 2018 (2017: RMB1,146,000).

A slight increase in the discount rate used in isolation would result in a decrease in the fair
value. A 1% increase in the discount rate, holding all other variables constant, would decrease
the carrying amount of the debt instrument as FVTOCI by RMB 114,000 as at 31 December
2018. A 1% decrease in the discount rate, holding all other variables constant, would increase
the carrying amount of the debt instrument as FVTOCI by RMB 115,000 as at 31 December
2018.

The convertible ordinary shares issued by the Company are not traded in an active market and
the respective fair value is determined by using valuation technique. The Directors have used
market approach to determine the fair value of the convertible ordinary shares. Fair value of
convertible ordinary shares is primarily affected by market multiples — P/E ratio. If the market
multiple — F/E ratio had increased/decreased by 10% with all other variables held
constant, profit before income tax for the year ended 31 December 2017 would have been
approximately RMB72,189,000 lower/higher, respectively.

SEMBBRRME®

39. @MIAGR)
BBESHGR)
ARAEET B

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

BUEHAE R EEE MG SRR EE
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FEE KR A RK3020007T (20174 : AR
#911,0007T) - R20184 12531 8 » 1§ ok 3 %
BL1%(FFERAMABRAZRIFTE) F 8
¥ I8 & Y B [E (8 45 55 1A R #405,0007T (2017
F: AR K1,146,0007T) °

BUEANGRFENENGERR A EE
T &k o 201812531 H - fiaf Ab 2 4% 101 % (A
BAMARAEZRIFTE) KRR BEGA
EzE U EFETARBEEFRSAR
#114,0007T - R2018F 12 A31 H - 1 5 3 % )5
L1%(FTERAMABRAEZRFTE) BAL
BEAEME Kz 0 EH T AKEES
A & #115,0007T

KRB FITH AR E BRI EE LR S
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EFCRATGEEZEETEREBRD
AAEE AHEREBROXALEELIERT
GEHA TR EGE M THEHA A E
B HL10% - BHTEE M AT EEE AT
£ HE2017F12 431 8 1L FZ 86 F 17 # BT
& FING 5 BIR 2, 1 M4 A B #72,189,0007T

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 4F 255



‘ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
SEMBBRRME®

39.

40.

256

Financial Instruments (continued)
Sensitivity analysis (continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)

Fair value of the Group's financial assets and financial liabilities that are not
measured at fair value on a recurring basis.

The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial
liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements
approximate their fair values due to short maturity, initially recognised close to
the end of reporting period, or with floating interest rates.

Operating Leases

The Group as lessor

Leasing arrangements

Operating leases relate to the investment properties owned by the Group are
with lease terms of two years. The lessee does not have an option to purchase
the property at the expiry of the lease periods.

Rental income earned by the Group from its investment properties and direct
operating expenses arising on the investment properties are set out in note 10.

Non-cancellable operating lease receivables

39.

40.

&eMIAGE

BWE SR

AAEET B
FEREUEENRAAEBEFEZARE
BeREERSBARBECAAEE

ARNFEHE NRERRIRE BRI
R EERANGEAMBHRRTIRE
BERAARNCBREERERABAR
HEAEQAAEBERS-

HEHR

FREFBHAA

HEZH
BASEMBARERENEEBANLEEHA
EvHBRME -ABRALEREREW
RERZME ERE-

AEEEREVERDOBEUARR
EMEMELNERLERMXHERME
10

TUBECERERURER

At 31 December

—FR

Within one year
In the second to fifth year, inclusive

F_ELF(BREREMSF)

R12A31R
2018 2017
2018 2017 %
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET ARBTT
1,362
944
2,306
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40.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued)

Operating Leases (continued) 40.

The Group as lessee
Minimum lease payments paid under operating leases during the year ended 31
December 2018 and 2017 are as follows:

FEMBERME®
BEHRGR)
ZREFBEREA

BZE2018F R2017F12A3NBEFE R
BREHEEXNNKERERENT

Year ended 31 December
EZ12ANBLLEE

/S

Premises

Non-cancellable operating lease payables

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments for future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases which fall due
as follows:

2018 2017

2018 2017 4

RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBT R ARETF T
FARMBEEHERGRE

RBEBMR AEBRE AT HELER
ENAKRREMEERBAETHER D
T~

At 31 December

—FR
F_ERF(BREEMF)

Within one year
In the second to fifth year, inclusive

M12A31H
2018 2017
20185 20174
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETT
10,305 10,299
10,125 19,406
20,430 29,705

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group for certain of
its office properties. Leases are negotiated for an average term of two years and
rentals are fixed for an average of two years.

REMEREEAKEREETHLY
XEMMEE HELEARZYHFEY
AME MESEEXMEFHHRLAE
EO
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‘ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
SEMBBRRME®

a.

258

Related Party Transactions and Balances

(a)

Amounts due from related parties

Amounts due from related parties — trade nature

a.

MELX AR KGR
(a) BWKAESRE
EUBESRE-E51E

At 31 December

M12A31E

2018 2017
2018 F 20174
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T R ARBTT

Yangxi Haibin Electric Power Development Co., Ltd
("Yangxi Electric”)

Yangmei Group Shouyang Bogi Electric Co., Ltd.
(“Shouyang Power”)

Sinopec Shanghai Petrochemical Company Limited
("Sinopec Shanghai”)

Sinopec Shanghai Gaogiao Petrochemical Co., Ltd
("Sinopec Shanghai Gaogiao”)

HREBEENERARLA
(TFEREHN])
BREESEETHEAR
BEELR(BHEE])
REAEEBARIEIRG
BARAR(HEALLE])
EACLEESBABILT

100,868 18,860

26,735 18,714

47,007 32,597

ERAR(HEALLEESED 6,590 -

181,200 70,17

Analysed for reporting purpose as:
Current assets
Non-current assets

HEFZRBEAT DM,
mEBE
FRBEE

181,200 70,171

181,200 70,17
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued)

RERBEREMFE@
41. Related Party Transactions and Balances (continued) N REFXZRERE
(@) Amounts due from related parties (continued) (a) BUWFESRIEGE)

Amounts due from related parties — trade nature (continued)

EHREELSRE-EZHEEK)
REB-—RAEBESIRTIOXH
EEH -ERBETFRAESLE)
BREZHHMNERIMMOT

The Group generally grants a credit period of 90 days to its related parties.
Aging analysis of amounts due from related parties — trade nature, based
on invoice date, is as follows:

At 31 December

R12B31H
2018 2017
2018 2017 F
RMB'000 RMB’000
ARBT R ARBF T
1-90 days 1290k 72,896 50,672
91-180 days 91 £180K 66,412 10,503
181-365 days 181 2 365K 8,290 8,196
1-2 years 182%F 33,602 800
181,200 70,171

8 5 18 1 AR R (B2 P8 MR B 22 0 IR
(BZHB)NEREDMOT -

Aging analysis of amounts due from related parties — trade nature that
are past due but not impaired is as follows:

At 31 December 2017
M2017%12831H

RMB'000

ARET T

1-90 days 1290H 10,503
91-180 days 91£180H 8,196
1-2 years 1225 800
19,499
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‘ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
SEMBBRRME®

a.

260

Related Party Transactions and Balances (continued) a1.

(a) Amounts due from related parties (continued)
Amounts due from related parties — non-trade nature

MELAX AR GERGE)
(a) FE MR = 75 A ()
EUHESRE-FESMHE

At 31 December

MW12A31H
2018 2017
2018 F 2017 %
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARM®T T ARET T
Yangxi Electric (note (i) F5 78 E 5 (H7 &£ li) 143,287 139,690
Bogi Environmental Engineering (note {ii)) BERR IR (i) - 18,324
Han Chuan Long Yuan (note (i) 2 B2 IR (B aE(ii) 320 234
143,607 158,248
Notes: B it
(i) On 28 August 2017, the Group entered into a revised management service agreement (i) R2017F8H28H X EFHEREE

with Guangdong Huaxia Electric Development Co., Ltd and Yangxi Electric to extend
the O&M service term from 1 January 2017 to 31 December 2017 to a term from 1
January 2017 to 31 December 2025 and require a deposit of RMB139,690,000, which
was paid by the Group on 31 December 2017. The deposit is unsecured and repayable
at the end of the 0&M service term.

(ii) The balances are all unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.
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(a)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued)

REMBREMEE)
Related Party Transactions and Balances (continued) N HEFXGREERE)
Amounts due from related parties (continued) (a) BERMESREGE)
Amounts due from related parties — non-trade nature (continued) EWBEEFRE-FEZHE(H)
Maximum amount outstanding during the year are as follows: EFRNREREESENT:
Year ended 31 December
BEZ12A3NBLLEE
2018 2017
2018 2017 F
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR® TR ARBT T
Yangxi Electric GEEN 143,287 139,690
Bogi Environmental Engineering BHERERIRE 18,324 18,328
Han Chuan Long Yuan Z I 82 R 320 420
161,931 158,438
At 31 December
®W12A31H
2018 2017
2018 2017 F
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBT R ARET T
Analysed for reporting purpose as: HERARIELN T2
Current assets REEE 320 234
Non-current assets ERBDEE 143,287 158,014
143,607 158,248

Movement in lifetime ECL that has been recognised for amounts due from
related parties in accordance with the simplified approach set out in IFRS
9 for the year ended 31 December 2018 is as follows:

BE218F12A31BLFE - R
B BERELERFIRMELS
EHEANERBES XBR2HRY
FEEHREHWMT :

RMB’000
AR®T T

At 31 December 2017 under IAS 39

Adjustment upon application of IFRS 9

R2017E12ANBERE
F39F/ET
ERBERMERELENFIRR AE

st

At 1 January 2018—restated under IFRS 9

Allowance for amounts due from related parties

R20185F1 A1 H—BIFR BF 7% & & 8l
FIRBETET
JE W A 2= 75 ROR B

At 31 December 2018

R2018%12 4318
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‘ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

REMBHRRM TR
#1. Related Party Transactions and Balances (continued) N FHEFXZRERE)
(b) Amounts due to related parties (b) BEARESFRIE

Amounts due to related parties — trade nature

ENBELIRE-BE5M4E

At 31 December

M12A31H
2018 2017
2018 2017 &
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR TR ARETT
Chongging Chuanwei Petrochemical Engineering FEACEE)I#HT
Company Limited of the Sinopec Group BERAR(EE) %))
(“Chongging Chuanwei") -
Sinopec Ningbo Engineering Co., Ltd (“Sinopec Ningbo”) H Bl AL ZE R TR ER A 7
(A=K =
Sinopec Fifth Construction Co., Ltd. FEACERREBRAR =
Richinfo Technology Co., Ltd (note) R R A R DB (A7) 86
Bogi Environmental Engineering BHERRIRE 176 =
Sinopec Shanghai FER LS = 5410
23,901 5,496

Wit: HiAmEALRER —HTHH BT
EZTHEEEHA495%RIE -

Note:  Richinfo is owned as to 49.5% by Mr. Zeng and an independent third party in
aggregate acting-in-correct with each other.

BESRTHEEHN FI0E0X -
ERHEESTFBR(EZUEE) N RE

The credit period granted by the related parties is ranging from 30 to 90
days. Aging analysis of amounts due to related parties — trade nature is as

follows: DI :
At 31 December

MW12A31H
2018 2017
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARBFT
1-90 days 1290k 23,525 5,496
91-180 days 91£ 180K 376 —
23,901 5,496
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued)

RERBEREMFE@
41. Related Party Transactions and Balances (continued) N WEFXSRESGE)
(c) The transactions with related parties during the year (c) REEFE REAXZZHEIIM

reported are listed out below:

TF:

Year ended 31 December
BENRANBLEE

2018
2018
RMB'000
AR®T T

Yangxi Electric (note (i))
— 0&M service
— Interest income
— Water and electricity, labor, spare parts
and miscellaneous items charged by
Yangxi Electric
Shouyang Power (note (ii))
— EPC service
Sinopec Shanghai (note (iii))
— EPC service
Sinopec Shanghai Gaogiao (note (iv))
— EPC service
Richinfo Technology Co., Ltd. (“Richinfo”)
— Purchase of intangible assets
Sinopec Fushun Petrochemical Research
Institute of Petroleum and Petrochemicals
(“Fushun Research Institute”)
— EPC consulting fee (note (v))
— Designing service
Sinopec Fifth Construction Co., Ltd.
(note (vi))
— Purchase of equipments
— Purchase of construction service
Chongging Chuanwei
— EPC service (note (vii))
Sinopec Ningbo
— EPC service (note (viii))
Sinopec Dalian Petrochemical Research Institute
— Consulting service

W5 78 E 11 (M et (i)
— B MR
—F 2 A
—-FAENEBRAKE -
BT HHRMEE
%A
£15 3 B (K 22 (ii)
—EPC R #%
B Ak £ 8 (K (i)
—EPC AR 7%
FEALEEEE A (V)
—EPC AR 7%
FABEROARAATFD
-RERFVEE 21
F B A (L R E
A TH XK
(48 I8 #F 72 Bz )
—BAER MWV
— A R
FRALERRZERAA
(¢ &% (vi)
-BEHR
-BEREERD
EE)I %
—EPC AR % (K1 7% (vii))
FRER
—EPC AR % (M1 7E (viii))
FERAKER B IHRER
—H ARG

255,575
6,160

126,729

6,321

2017
20175
RMB'000

ARETT

197,061

2,510

84,944

23,329

146,990

8,154

745

2,150
472
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“ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
SEMBERME®

a.

264

Related Party Transactions and Balances (continued)

(c)

The transactions with related parties during the years
reported are listed out below: (continued)

Notes:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

In December 2016, the Group entered into a management service agreement, pursuant
to which the Group provided O&M service to Yangxi Electric, and RAMB255,575,000
was recognised as revenue during the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017:
RMB197,061,000). The Group also purchases water and electricity, labor, space
parts and miscellaneous items from Yangxi to support the O&M service. During
the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group purchased RMB89,724,000 (2017:
RNB84,944,000) water and electricity, labor, space parts and miscellaneous items
from Yangxi Electric;

In December 2015, the Group entered into an EPC service contract with Shouyang
Power for a total contract amount of RMB287,560,000, of which no revenue were
recognised during the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017: RMB23,329,000);

In March 2017, the Group entered into an EPC service contract with Sinopec Shanghai
for a total contract of RMB224,626,000, of which RMB126,729,000 was recognised as
revenue during the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017: RMB146,990,000);

In April 2017, the Group entered into EPC service contract with Sinopec Shanghai
Gaogiao for a total contract amount of RMB16,990,000, of which RMB6,321,000
was recognised as revenue during the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017:
RMB8, 154,000);

In September 2017, the Group entered into a technology licensing contract with Fushun
Research Institute, an entity of which the controlling shareholder has significant
influence in the company, pursuant to which the Group was licensed to use certain
patents and know-how of Fushun Research Institute from the contract signing date to
the end of December 2018.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the group purchases equipments and
construction service from Sinopec Fifth Construction for certain EPC contract amount
of RMB2,001,000 and RMB12,542,000, respectively.

In September 2018, the Group entered into an EPC service contract with Chongging
Chuanwei for a total contract amount of RMB194,870,000, of which RMB6,849,000
were recognised as revenue during the year ended 31 December 2018.

In August 2018, the Group entered into an EPC service contract with Sinopec NingBo
Engineering for a total contract amount of RMBZ24,800,000, of which RMB1,250,000
were recognised as revenue during the year ended 31 December 2018.

CHINA BOQI ENVIRONMENTAL (HOLDING) CO., LTD. R EfZBR(ZR) AR A 7

a.

MELAX AR GERGE)
REEFE MELXZEIW

(c)

TF:

ft it -

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(#)

R2016F 128 XEBT L EERK
ek B AEEGIERERRE T
BEE N & EHE018F12A31H
ILFEEHERKA B A R 255575000
7L (20174 : 197,061,000 ) + 74 % B jf
BEEAEEKE ST EHREEE
B UZHEERE BZE2018F128
SAUFE AEBEEAENEE
KE LT EHRBEEAARK
89,724,000 (2017 4 : 84,944,000T) :

R2015F12H X EBHEFG ZEZT
VEPCRBEEH RENZERARK
287,560,000 - A # & F20184 12531
H 1k F B f8 7 33 1F (A (2017 A
R #23329,0007T) :

R2017F3F X £ B EH B AL E
B VEPCRBE A K BEHNEE
B A R 224626000 - B F & =
20184125318 IF F Z BB WA A
R #126,729,0007T (20174 : A B %
146,990,0007z)

R2017F47  KEBES AL LGS
BETVEPCIRFEEH  HENEHERA
& #16,990,0007T - X # # 22018412
A 318 1 F R H#EZRAN R #6,321,000
JT (20174 : A E#8,154,0007T)

R2017F9F » 7 % B 22 4 JB 7 7 B 2T
URMHFEH ERERRRE A A
BEAFE BM A EEEENZE
EHHE8FI12AFX B A A REAR
ETHENMEEEAM

B E2018F12H31A L FE - X% H
BETEPCEHETHALERLRRE
BERBEREERFOTEDFIBAR
%2,001,0007T & A B #12,542,000 7T +

R2018FIF XA EBEEE )| #7T7
EPCRRBERH BENEERARK
194,870,0007T - A o & = 20184 12.4 31
H 1F R BB IRA A K 6,849,000 ¢

R20184F8F « 7K % B £ i B 77 {£ 2 )%
TREVEPCIREA A BEHNTHE
A K 524,800,000t - B+ & =2018
FI2ANA L FEBBUANRK
1,250,0007T °



a.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued)

Related Party Transactions and Balances (continued)

(d)

(e)

Guarantees provided to Han Chuan Long Yuan

On 18 July 2014 and 15 January 2015, the Company and the Wuhan
branch of China Everbright Bank entered into two separate financial
guarantee contracts, pursuant to which Beijing Boqi will provide
guarantees for the liabilities under the maximum credit limit amounting to
RMB45,000,000 and RMB21,000,000, respectively, arising from securing
two bank term loans to Han Chuan Long Yuan, for the loan period from
18 July 2014 to 17 July 2021 and from 15 January 2015 to 14 January
2022, respectively. The Company has considered the initial fair value of
such guarantee was immaterial and that Han Chuan Long Yuan has made
repayments to China Everbright for their bank loans in accordance with the
scheduled repayment dates set out in the bank borrowing agreements, it
is not probable that the Group will result in payment under such financial
guarantee.

Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of key management personnel which represent the
Directors and key executives of the Company for the year reported are as
follows:

a.

]
(d)

(e)

SEMBBRRME®

ELEXHRERGR)

MENGERREENER

201497 188 %2015 1A 158 -
AATEPBEERBATREDTE
UMBENLMBERSL B AL
AEFERESEEEINAAR
#45,000,0007C % A K %21,000,000
THABRRMHER BEDHRE
RMBERTEHERTEINNERRA
B BEXRHRE SR A201457 188
F2021%F7R178 8 f& k201541 A
158 ZE2022F1B14B 8 KA A
AT BERRMEERNTBELD
AEBEETIAEKR BEJERER

B SR 1T 8 3R 1 & Fﬁ%‘zﬁ’ﬁr?ﬂ%‘ﬁa
By o B KB R P R&
ITKTEKEJLEZEH%%‘ %*y: 4 E fa]
A °

FREEARTH

TEEBRAEHWARAEERTE
TRABIRBEFENHFMMOT :

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A3NBLEE

2018 2017

2018 20174

RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBT R ARET T

Salaries and other benefits 5o RE 8 F 3.260
Contributions to retirement benefits scheme RRAEF 5 2 50 7
Total emoluments HlazE 3431

The remuneration of the Directors and key executives is determined by the
remuneration committee having regard to the performance of individuals
and market trends.

Same as disclosed above, there were no other significant transactions
with related parties during the years reported or other significant balances
with them at the end of each reporting period.

EERFETHAENE L HBH
ZEeEREEARBERTEBEE
BE-

BREMBEN RBESFEERE

NYBEMBEARS  REZHS
MARBRFNY EEMEREER

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 4F 265



& NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued)
SEMBERME®

42,

43.

266

Retirement Benefits Plans

The employees of the Group in the PRC are members of a state-managed
retirement benefits scheme operated by the PRC government. The Group is
required to contribute a specified percentage of payroll costs as determined by
respective local government authority to the retirement benefits scheme to fund
the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement
benefits scheme is to make the specified contributions under the scheme.

The amounts of contributions made by the Group in respect of the retirement
benefits scheme during the year reported are disclosed in notes 10 and 12.

Share-Based Payment

The Company adopted the Pre-IPO Share Award Scheme (“Scheme”) pursuant to
a resolution passed by the Directors on 15 April 2016, through which a total of
25,000,000 shares (“Awarded Shares”) at a par value of US$0.00001 each were
issued to Acheson (the “Trust”) on 11 May 2016, who will hold the Awarded
Shares for the benefit of the eligible employees (“Selected Employees”) and
facilitate the purchase, holding and/or vesting of such Awarded Shares as a
trustee pursuant to the trust deed (“Trust Deed”) signed by the Company. The
Trust was established pursuant to the Trust Deed dated 2 September 2016 with
retrospective effect from 10 May 2016.

A management committee has been established and authorised by the Directors
to make all determination and provide directions to the Trustee in relation to
the Scheme (the “Committee”). The Pre-IPO Share Award Scheme is valid and
effective for a period of ten years from the date of adoption.

Pursuant to the Scheme, the Selected Employees are entitled to subscribe for
the Awarded Shares at the price of RMB0.85 per Awarded Share by way of a
loan provided by the Company. The Awarded Shares shall vest in three tranches
on the following vesting dates provided that the vesting conditions applicable to
such Selected Employee are satisfied:

(i) 50% on the date of listing of the Company’s share on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing” and “Listing Date”)
(the “First Vested Shares”), provided the Selected Employees remain in
service until the first trading day following the first anniversary of the
Listing Date;

(i) 25% on the first trading date following the first anniversary of the Listing
Date; and

(i) 25% on the first trading date following the second anniversary of the
Listing Date.
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42.

43.

B ki IR R
ASBERTENEESTERAFERN
BREGERABRAGFENKE AEEA
MERKENFE LA SIETREHE
BENTIERABEBDLOHRT B
BAMRRES -AKBEEBERNKEFGE
METESREF LT ERN-

R EFE - AN K EHE KRS FH
MRS BN E10R12HE -

DEGEERBMTR
AARBBEEEN20165E48 158 BBH
RERFMBE X RARABESH RN L/
ZI([aF&1]) - # it - A $£25,000,000 3% &= B
M {E0.00001E LBk B ([REN R 7 ]) R
201645 A 11 B # 47 T Acheson ([{5 5E])
EBUAEREE(RTERBNFH
BRESBROTBREADAEENET
2E(EARBEDIEASTAREEE -
BRER/SEBZERBEM - ZEETD
B 1% B H A2016F9 A28 1 18 ¥ £2016
FER10BBEBMELZEKIL -

EEZEE((ZECEEXULRKES
RENFEEL —DRERAZEALR
HIES - BRAREEH BN RETE A
RMEHESBTERRABARN

REFE CHEREARZEREDK
AR #0.85 T M EI& AR A 2 B & KA
HARBEBKRD - RBKRNHDANATE
BRI -HEE HAEZKERANEH
REEEENEBGMT:

() S0%MBBBEORARABROER
EMAXIMBERARERLME
AlEmIRIEmBERDEBE(E
HEBKRM) AREERETRMN
MEBTHELIMARE-BFRE -
B % B Al TS BER

(i) 25%WREBEOKR LHABE—
BEREF-—EARZARER: &

(i) 25%MRBBROBR LHAEE -
BFERE-—EAXHEHE -



43.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued)

Share-Based Payment (continued)

Upon the date of Listing, the trustee will sell the First Vested Shares under the
instruction of the Committee. The proceeds, after netting off the loan borrowed
by the respective Selected Employees (“Net Proceed”), 80% of which will be
paid to the Selected Employees. However, if such Selected Employee terminates
its employment with the Group during the one-year period after the Listing Date,
the Net Proceed received should be repaid to the Company. The remaining 20%
of the Net Proceed will be paid provided that such Selected Employee continues
to serve the Company for one year after the Listing Date. If the proceeds are less
than the amount of the loan borrowed, the Selected Employees will still need to
repay the loan to the Company.

The expected vesting period for tranche (i) and (i) is one year after the Listing
Date and the expected vesting period for tranche (i) is two years after the
Listing Date.

On 7 September 2016, the Company granted 23,170,000 Awarded Shares to the
Selected Employees.

The details of the Awarded Shares granted for the year ended 31 December 2016
are as follows:

43.

SEMBBRRME®

LB 17 & & W& 0 3 5% (%)
RETEE XEXABKZEENETL
EEHRERO -HEEBECRERERS
ERERER MEFRE(HERBFER])
HB0% MM TREERE - A WA
KBEEEXRLEMAHR -—FHELL
EARKEMNEREE RS KRROREX
BREEROTARAE - A/HBEEN
BT2%REXNTFTEBERE HEAAL
BEEREARLM AR -—FHEESE
EXADAEBRTAEE - WASREER
EEAENEHE KBEEENSARA
ARIEEEN -

Batil k(iR ERBE A LT A BHEK
—FomiiANEFEBRES LS
BB M E

R20166F9R7H » & 1 & & F23,170,000
BEBRDTEBEES -

BEW6F12ANBLFERLNER
Bin s 5T

Purchase price

Number of Awarded RMB
Shares granted Grant date Expiry date HEEE
B RER OB 2B it B Jiziwm B 24 ARETT
23,170,000 7 September 2016 7 September 2026 0.85
23,170,0008% 201649 A 7H 20269AH7H

At the end of each reporting period, the Company will revise its estimates of the
number and timing of shares that are expected to vest ultimately. The impact of
the revision of the estimates, if any, will be recognised in profit or loss, with a
corresponding adjustment to the share options reserve.

In accordance with the Trust deed entered into between the Trust and the
Company (“Trust Deed”), the Company has the control over the Trust. Therefore,
the Trust is consolidated by the Group. Accordingly, the shares issued and held
by Acheson should be treated as treasury shares and shown separate amounts
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. In addition, finance costs and
administration expenses of the trust are recognised by the Company.

The Group has used the discounted cash flow method to determine the underlying
ordinary share fair value of Awarded Shares. The Group has determined the
fair value of the Awarded Shares based on binominal option-pricing model as
of the grant date. The valuation model requires the input of highly subjective
assumptions, including the equity risk premium and the discount rate due to lack
of control, and changes in the subjective input assumptions can materially affect
the fair value estimate of the Awarded Shares.

REREHR ARARETRABZE
BEORMMMGEHE RER - G5 (00
RIBRTMEERRNASHER THEK
EREFELAERE-

BREETEARATLHNELTRE(E
ZED)  ARREEHEEEE - At
EEEAEEBLESE AR B Acheson
FBTkFEIRNEERAETR G
TREAESESHRTEBFI RS E It
o ERHBERARTHRAXHAAR R

27
e

AGRBECERBRARERES N UEBTE
ZRRONAEERBRAABE - ARHE
EREHASRRI AL IR EEREN
BERBBRONRAEE ZEERART
ZELEETERRNBA BERER
BEBRRZENTEX BXTBEAR
ROEHATHRBROORIAEBENRE
BEREAFE-
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‘ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

SEMBBRRME®

43. Share-Based Payment (continued)

43. it eErde) M (R)

7 September 2016

201659 A 7H
RMB
AR
Weighted average grant date fair value per share FRMEFHELEBAREE 1.94
Weighted average exercise price MEFHITEE 0.85
Detailed forecast period = 4m 78 8 AR 5 years
Weighted average cost of capitals I T B AR A 16.83%
Leveraged beta 18 12 beta 1.04
Equity risk premium i 4 2 B i B 0.5%
Discount rate due to lack of control Bz TR R 10%
Movements in Awarded Shares during the year RBEORFEFANED
The following reconciles the shares outstanding at the beginning and end of the UTAEFEVETEINROEFERETE
year: AR 1) /D ¥ B
Weighted
Number of average
shares purchase price
MHEFH
B g B BEE
Balance at 1 January 2017 R20179F1 A1 8 K& & 23,170,000 0.85
Forfeited during the year FERRI (925,000) 0.85
Balance at 31 December 2017 201712 A31 B 0 4 8 22,245,000 0.85
Exercised during the year FANITHE (11,122,000 0.85
Forfeited during the year F A% K (250,000) 0.85
Balance at 31 December 2018 R 2018412 A31 B /) 4 % 10,873,000 0.85
The Company recognised a total share-based payment expenses of BE218F12A318 EFEAXAR AR A
RMB8,442,000 in profit or loss during the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017: NEBEENEERORNBEERARND
RMB7,206,000) in relation to the Awarded Shares granted by the Company. BEMET RS 2% 5 A K S8,442,000

44. Commitment for Capital Expenditure

7t (20174 : AR #7,206,0007C)

4. REMIXKiE

At 31 December

R12A31H
2018 2017
2018 2017 %
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARETR ARETTT

Commitments for construction of infrastructure
under concession operation (contracted
but not provided for)

T ER TREERRE
HE R (BRI M 1B RBE)

116,209
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45. Statement of Financial Position and Reserves of the

Company

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued)

SEMBBRRME®

45. ELFMBERARE #MH

Non-Current Assets FRBEE

Property, plant and equipment mE BELRRE

Amounts due from subsidiaries = NGIE e

Investments in subsidiaries R BABNEE

Current Assets mEEE

Inventories FE

Prepayments, deposits and other receivables BRRE R REMERKE
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE W Y 18 A B IR

Bank balances and cash RITEHRRS

Current liabilities mEEE

Other payables, deposits received and
accrued expenses

HieEAHE ChERER
Rl

Net current assets mEE EFE
Non-Current Liabilities ERBAE

Class B and Class C convertible ordinary shares B8 N C48 mJ & 482 @ A%
Net assets BEEFE

Paid-in capital/share capital BEWER/BA
Reserves 5 1

Total equity R B

At 31 December

R12A31R
2018 2017
20184 2017 %
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET ARBTT

272 =
201,791 =
1,082,859 1,082,859

1,284,922 1,082,859

6,704 1211
6,462 1,282
3,931 26,958
318,979 80,873

336,076 122,384

29,864 10,641
306,212 111,743
= 755,129

= 755,129
1,591,134 439,473
67 32
1,591,067 439,441
1,591,134 439,473
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‘ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
SEMBBRRME®

45. Statement of Financial Position and Reserves of the

270

Company (continued)

The movements in the reserves of the Company are shown as follows:

45. ELFMBRARR & W(E)

ARARBEHITAT

Share
Treasury Merger Other premium Retained
shares reserve reserve reserve profits Total
ERrRf  AfEK Rttt ROEERE  REEH a3
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
ARETR ARETn ARETr ARETR AR%Tn ARET:x
At 1 January 2017 RTE1R1H 2) 371,500 130310) 136,146 (25,79) 952,140
Loss and total comprehensive expense EREBREA
for the year gt = - - - (278473) (278473)
Share-based compensation expenses DRHAERNBERS - - - 7,206 - 7008
Redesignation of Class A ordinary shares to MELBARENETA
Olass B convertible ordinary shares BEmERL AR - - - (201,329) = (201,329
Repurchase of Class A shares BOAERN - - - (40,103) - 40,103)
At 31 December 2017 R17E12R31A 2 371,500 130310) 502,520 (304,267) 439,441
Loss and total comprehensive expense for the year 4 I 18 |k 2 B % 44 58 = = = = 132,359 132,359
Share-based payment IR 17 B EE B ) & Y - - - 8442 - 8442
Forfeiture of pre-1PO share awards BRERDRZENER
B - - - " - "
Repurchase of ordinary shares BOEER (1,799 - - - - (1,799
Conversion of Class Band C convertible ordinary B R CE B4 L i3 R
shares into ordinary shares ERRLER - - - 621,567 - 621,567
Issue of new shares upon listing RETEETHRD - - - 390,983 - 390,983
At 31 December 2018 R2018%E12E31R (1.801) 371,500 (130,310) 1,523,566 (171,908) 1,591,067
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued)
SEMBBRRME®

46. B L FHE
RERESF AADRTHHEADE
EREMEEARE REER

46. Particulars of Subsidiaries

At end of each reporting periods, the Company has direct and indirect
shareholders/equity interests in the following subsidiaries:

Issued and fully

paid share capital/ Proportion of nominal value of
registered capital issued capital/registered capital
Place of BRTR held by the Company
Name of subsidiary establishment BRRE/ RARREERT Principal activities
WEAREH AL &R RAEE/ERExLA TEXH
As of 31 December
M2R318
2018 2017
2018% 0178
% %
% %
CBEE BV = 100 Investment holding
CBEE EBRNAE = RERR
Beijing Shengyi The PRC RMB371,500,000 100 Investment holding
IRER e AR#371,500,0007 RETER
Beijing Bosheng The PRC RMB10,000,000 100 Investment holding
REE ik AR #10,000,0007c REBR
Beijing Bogi The PRC RMB400,000,000 100 Environmental protection
TRES HE AR#400,000,00070 facilities engineering, operation and
maintenance services
RiRRHLIE -
ERRETRE
Jinggangshan Bogi The PRC RMB81,000,000 100 Concession operation services
HELER HE AR#81,000,0007 Rt RS
Zhejiang Bogi Electric Power SCI-TECH The PRC RMB20,000,000 100 Inactive
Co, Ltd. ["Zhejiang Bog e AK#20,000,0007C ghez
HIBEENHRERAA
Puzhou Bogi The PRC RMB55,000,000 100 Concession operation services
ANES M AR 55,000,000 B2 R
Hejin Bogi The PRC RMB25,000,000 100 Concession operation services
EEE M AE#25,000,0007 e e k%

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 4F 2N



‘ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
SEMBBRRME®

46. Particulars of Subsidiaries (continued)

46. B 1B 4 B 5% 1R ()

Issued and fully

paid share capital/ Proportion of nominal value of
registered capital issued capital/registered capital
Place of BRTR held by the Company
Name of subsidiary establishment BRRA/ RAAREEET Principal activities
WEARER Rt &R RAEE/REALA TEEH
As of 31 December
M12R318
2018 2017
20185 0175
% %
% %
Anhui Nengda Fuel Co., Ltd. The PRC RMB20,000,000 100 Sale of coal and chemicals
["Anhui Nengda'| HE AK#20,000,0007 BERIEERHE
ZHEERRERAR
Shanxi Bo Yuan Qi Cheng Environmental The PRC RMB10,000,000 100 Operation and maintenance services
Equipment Senvice Co., Ltd G AE#10,000,0007 RRHRETRE  EEE
["Shanxi Bo Yuan") YerERRE
WEERTRRRR
REBRA A
Changjizhou Bogi Environmental The PRC RMB140,000,000 100 Environmental protection facility
Technology Co., Ltd. i AK140,000,0007 engingering, operation and
("Changjizhou Bogi") maintenance services
EEMBERRMEARAA RRRMIE EER
&R
Beijing Bogi Environmental Remediation The PRC RMB3,000,000 60 Technology services, engineering
Tech Co. Ltd. ("Bogi Remediation”) H AE#3,000,0007T and exploration services
G RESRREEERAT iR - TR RERIRH
Huainan Bogi Environmental The PRC RMB50,000,000 N/A Environmental protection facility
Technology Co, Ltd. i AR#50,000,0007 N engineering, operation and
("Huainan Bogi”) maintenance services
EEEERRMRARAA RRZMIE  EER
&R
41. Subsequent Events 47. &SR
Save as disclosed above, there has been no other material events subsequent to BRENFEEEIN REFERTEHEME

272

the year, which require adjustment or disclosure in accordance with IFRSs.
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hERAEGWMR(F1R) BIRAAl
China Bogi Environmental (Holding) Co., Ltd.

Address #i3it :  40/F., Sunlight Tower, 248 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong
EBEFERKER2485 /55 0404

Tel E;&§ : +86 10 5957 9665
+86 10 5957 9509
Fax HHE : +86 10 5957 9900 — 001

Website #3834 : www.chinabogi.com
Email ZEEp : irhk@chinabogi.com
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